
Page 1 
 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, 

PLEASE CONTACT THE CLERK DEPARTMENT AT (408) 354-6834.  NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING WILL ENABLE THE TOWN 

TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING [28 CFR §35.102-35.104] 

                     

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

OCTOBER 09, 2019 
110 EAST MAIN STREET 

LOS GATOS, CA 

Matthew Hudes, Chair 
Melanie Hanssen, Vice Chair 

Mary Badame, Commissioner 
Kendra Burch, Commissioner 

Kathryn Janoff, Commissioner 
Tom O’Donnell, Commissioner 
Reza Tavana, Commissioner 

 
 
PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC PROCESS 

 
How to participate:  The Town of Los Gatos strongly encourages your active participation in the 

public process, which is the cornerstone of democracy.  If you wish to speak to an item on the 

agenda, please complete a “speaker’s card” and return it to the Staff Liaison.  If you wish to speak 

to an item NOT on the agenda, you may do so during the “verbal communications” period. The 

time allocated to speakers may change to better facilitate the Planning Commission meeting.  

 

Effective Proceedings:  The purpose of the Planning Commission meeting is to conduct the 

business of the community in an effective and efficient manner.  For the benefit of the 

community, the Town of Los Gatos asks that you follow the Town’s meeting guidelines while 

attending Planning Commission meetings and treat everyone with respect and dignity.  This is 

done by following meeting guidelines set forth in State law and in the Town Code. Disruptive 

conduct is not tolerated, including but not limited to: addressing the Commissioners without first 

being recognized; interrupting speakers, Commissioners or Town staff; continuing to speak after 

the allotted time has expired; failing to relinquish the podium when directed to do so; and 

repetitiously addressing the same subject. 

Deadlines for Public Comment and Presentations are as follows: 

 Persons wishing to make an audio/visual presentation on any agenda item must submit the 
presentation electronically, either in person or via email, to the Planning Department by 1 
p.m. or the Clerk’s Office no later than 3:00 p.m. on the day of the Planning Commission 
meeting. 

 Persons wishing to submit written comments to be included in the materials provided to the 
Planning Commission must provide the comments to the Planning Department as follows: 
o For inclusion in the regular packet: by 11:00 a.m. the Friday before the meeting 
o For inclusion in any Addendum: by 11:00 a.m. the Monday before the meeting 
o For inclusion in any Desk Item: by 11:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting 

 
 

 

 

  

Planning Commission meetings are broadcast Live on KCAT, Channel 15 (on Comcast) on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays at 7:00 p.m. 
Live and Archived Planning Commission meetings can be viewed by going to: 

https://www.kcat.org/government-meetings 

Page 1

https://www.kcat.org/government-meetings


Page 2 
 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

OCTOBER 09, 2019 

7:00 PM 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS  (Members of the public may address the Commission on any matter 
that is not listed on the agenda. Unless additional time is authorized by the Commission, remarks 
shall be limited to three minutes.) 

CONSENT ITEMS (TO BE ACTED UPON BY A SINGLE MOTION)  (Before the Planning Commission 
acts on the consent agenda, any member of the public or Commission may request that any item 
be removed from the consent agenda.  At the Chair’s discretion, items removed from the consent 
calendar may be considered either before or after the Public Hearings portion of the agenda) 

1. Minutes of September 11, 2019 
  

2. Architecture and Site Application S-17-047.  Project Location:  16 Chestnut Avenue. 
Property Owner:  Kim Roper.  Applicant/Appellant:  Bess Wiersema, Studio 3 Design.  
Project Planner:  Erin Walters. 
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving a request 
for demolition of an existing pre-1941 single-family residence and construction of a new 
single-family residence on property zoned R-1:12.  APN 510-40-012. Continued from 
July 10, 2019 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  (Applicants/Appellants and their representatives may be allotted up to a total 
of ten minutes maximum for opening statements.  Members of the public may be allotted up to 
three minutes to comment on any public hearing item.  Applicants/Appellants and their 
representatives may be allotted up to a total of five minutes maximum for closing 
statements.  Items requested/recommended for continuance are subject to the Commission’s 
consent at the meeting.) 

3. Architecture and Site Application S-18-050.  Project Location:  56 Central Avenue. 
Property Owner:  Andrew and Ashley Bothman.  Applicant:  Rick Hartman, HOMETEC 
Architecture. Appellant: Leslie Morley.  Project Planner:  Jocelyn Shoopman. Consider an 
appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving a request for 
demolition of a dwelling, construction of a new single-family residence with reduced 
setbacks, and removal of large protected trees on property zoned R-1:10.  APN 529-35-
068. 
  
  
  

Page 2



Page 3 
 

4. Architecture and Site Application S-18-060.  Project Location: 16336 Shady View Lane. 
Appellant: Matt and Carrie Currie.  Applicant:  De Mattei Construction.  Property Owner: 
Allan and Katty Coulson.  
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee Decision approving a request 
for demolition of a single-family residence and construction of a new single-family 
residence on property zoned R-1:8. APN 532-03-034. 
  

5. General Plan Amendment Application GP-19-001.  Project Location: Town Wide.  
Applicant: Town of Los Gatos. 
Consider proposed General Plan amendments to language specific to Highway 17 in 
Goal TRA-4 and supporting policies.   

OTHER BUSINESS  (Up to three minutes may be allotted to each speaker on any of the following 
items.) 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS / COMMISSION MATTERS 

ADJOURNMENT  (Planning Commission policy is to adjourn no later than 11:30 p.m. unless a 
majority of the Planning Commission votes for an extension of time) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Writings related to an item on the Planning Commission meeting agenda distributed to members of the Commission 

within 72 hours of the meeting are available for public inspection at the reference desk of the Los Gatos Town Library, 

located at 100 Villa Avenue; the Community Development Department and Clerk Department, both located at 110 E. 

Main Street; and are also available for review on the official Town of Los Gatos website.  Copies of desk items 

distributed to members of the Commission at the meeting are available for review in the Town Council Chambers. 

 

Note: The Town of Los Gatos has adopted the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6; litigation challenging a 

decision of the Town Council must be brought within 90 days after the decision is announced unless a shorter time is 

required by State or Federal law. 

  

Page 3



 

 
  

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 408-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 10/09/2019 

ITEM NO: 1 

 
   

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  

SEPTEMBER 11, 2019 
 
The Planning Commission of the Town of Los Gatos conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Wednesday, September 11, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 7:00 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL  
Present: Chair Matthew Hudes, Vice Chair Melanie Hanssen, Commissioner Mary Badame, 
Commissioner Kendra Burch, Commissioner Kathryn Janoff, and Commissioner Reza Tavana,  
Absent: Commissioner Tom O'Donnell 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioner Tavana led the Pledge of Allegiance. The audience was invited to participate.  
 
VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS 
None. 

 
CONSENT ITEMS (TO BE ACTED UPON BY A SINGLE MOTION)  
 

1. Approval of Minutes – August 14, 2019 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Badame to approve adoption of the Consent 

Calendar. Seconded by Commissioner Burch. 
 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

2. Town Wide - Demolition Regulations 
Town Code Amendment Application A-19-007 
Project Location: Town Wide 
Applicant: Town of Los Gatos 
 

Page 4



PAGE 2 OF 4 
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2019 
DATE: OCTOBER 4, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\MINUTES - PC\2019 PC Minutes\DRAFT\LOS GATOS ACTION MINUTES 9-11-19 DRAFT.docx 
 

Consider Amendments to Chapter 29 (Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code regarding 
demolition regulations.  

 
Jennifer Armer, Senior  Planner, presented the staff report. 
 
Opened Public Comment.  
 
Gary Kohlsaat 
- He is encouraged by the Town's willingness to listen to professionals and modify the rules. 

He has gone up against this particular rule many times and it is frustrating. The City of 
Saratoga defines a wall by the framing, meaning if the house cannot be demolished the 
walls could be stripped off, making it easier to do several things. He encouraged the 
Commission to consider the Policy Committee's recommendation.  
 

Closed Public Comment. 
 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Badame to forward a recommendation of 

approval to Town Council for Town Code Amendment A-19-007 regarding 
demolition regulations. Seconded by Vice Chair Hanssen. 

 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

3. 400 Carlton Avenue 
Architecture and Site Application S-19-032 
APN 424-12-098 
Applicant: Gary Kohlsaat 
Property Owner: T&M Properties 
 
Requesting approval of a modification to an approved Architecture and Site application 
for demolition of two existing medical office buildings and construction of a new 
medical office building on property zoned O. 

 
Sean Mullin , Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 
 
Opened Public Comment.  
 
Gary Kohlsaat 
- This building was approved in January 2018, however the cost overruns for the 

underground parking structure are too much for his client to bear so it has been eliminated 
and the project redesigned with on-grade parking with 26 parking spaces. They have 

Page 5



PAGE 3 OF 4 
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2019 
DATE: OCTOBER 4, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\MINUTES - PC\2019 PC Minutes\DRAFT\LOS GATOS ACTION MINUTES 9-11-19 DRAFT.docx 
 

maintained the existing architectural style and this design is better overall than the first 
one. This project would be better for the site, the neighborhood, and his client.  
 

Juliana Lockman 
- Her major concern is parking in her neighborhood from multiple medical businesses and 

she is worried that with the elimination of the underground parking it could get worse. She 
is also concerned about safety with cars exiting the parking lot because of poor visibility.  
 

Gary Kohlsaat 
- Twelve parking spaces would be taken by staff and doctors, leaving 14 parking spaces for 

their patients, which should be adequate for their needs. The driveway entrance from Jo 
Drive is not on their property; it is parking for the building on the corner. The vacant space 
is open space for that project and is also not their property. They are concerned about 
adding landscaping screening along Jo Drive because they are close to the corner and have 
to be careful not to block visibility. Currently the striping and paint on the parking lot is 
worn off, but with the new building there would be new appropriate standards to help with 
traffic calming.  
 

Closed Public Comment. 
 
Commissioners discussed the matter. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Burch to approve an Architecture and Site 

Application with additional conditions for 400 Carlton Avenue. Seconded 
by Commissioner Badame. 

 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
 

4. Report from the Director of Community Development  
 
Joel Paulson, Director of Community Development 

• Town Council met on September 3, 2019, but there were no Planning items.  
• The General Plan Advisory Committee will meet on September 19, 2019 to discuss 

potential amendments to the existing General Plan regarding Highway 17.  
• The Planning Commission meeting of September 25, 2019 has been cancelled. 

 
  

Page 6



PAGE 4 OF 4 
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2019 
DATE: OCTOBER 4, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\MINUTES - PC\2019 PC Minutes\DRAFT\LOS GATOS ACTION MINUTES 9-11-19 DRAFT.docx 
 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS/COMMISSION MATTERS 

General Plan Advisory Committee  
Commissioner Janoff 
- GPAC has finished the land use input with the consultants. The next GPAC meeting is 

September 19, 2019. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 
 
This is to certify that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of the minutes of the 
September 11, 2019 meeting as approved by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Vicki Blandin 
 

Page 7



 

PREPARED BY: Erin Walters 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager, Community Development Director, and Town Attorney 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 406-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                         
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 10/09/2019 

ITEM NO: 2 

 
   

 

DATE:   October 2, 2019 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Architecture and Site Application S-17-047.  Project Location:  16 Chestnut 
Avenue.  Property Owner:  Kim Roper.  Applicant/Appellant:  Bess Wiersema, 
Studio 3 Design.  Project Planner:  Erin Walters. 
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving 
a request for demolition of an existing pre-1941 single-family residence and 
construction of a new single-family residence on property zoned R-1:12.   
APN 510-40-012. 

 
REMARKS:  
 
The appellant and staff request that the item be continued to the December 11, 2019 meeting 
to provide additional time for the preparation and review of additional materials (Exhibit 21).  
 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Previously received with the July 10, 2019 Staff Report:  
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations (one page) 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval (13 pages) 
4. Applicant’s Scope of Work and Letter of Justification, received December 19, 2019 (14 

pages) 
5. Project Data Sheet, received April 10, 2019 (two pages) 
6. June 27, 2018 Historic Preservation Committee Meeting Minutes (five pages) 
7. Consulting Architect Report, received March 12, 2018 (four pages) 
8. Applicant’s Arborist Report regarding Live Oak (Tree #6), received February 12, 2019 (13 

pages) 
9. Applicant’s Arborist Report, received February 12, 2019 (25 pages) 

 

Page 8



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: 16 Chestnut Avenue/S-17-047 
DATE: October 2, 2019 
 

 
 

EXHIBITS (continued): 
 
10. Town’s Consulting Arborist Peer Review, received March 7, 2019 (five pages) 
11. Applicant’s Arborist Response Letter, received April 10, 2019 (three pages) 
12. Town’s Consulting Arborist Peer Review Letter, received May 1, 2019 (one page) 
13. Town Prepared Site Diagram Overlay (one page) 
14. May 21, 2019 Development Review Committee meeting minutes (two pages) 
15. Letters of Support from Neighbors, received December 19, 2018 and June 28, 2019 (seven 

pages) 
16. Appellant’s Letter, received May 31, 2019 (two pages) 
17. Applicant’s Supplemental Letter and Exhibits, received June 28, 2019 (22 pages) 
18. Neighborhood Petition of Support, received June 28, 2019 (seven pages) 
19. Project Information Sheet provided by the Parks and Public Works Department, received 

July 1, 2019 (three pages) 
20. Development Plans received April 10, 2019 (27 pages)  

 
Received with this Staff Report:  
21. Appellant’s request to continue, received September 10, 2019 (one page) 
 

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



 

PREPARED BY: Jocelyn Shoopman 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager, Community Development Director, and Town Attorney 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 406-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                         
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 10/09/2019 

ITEM NO: 3 

 
   

 

DATE:   October 4, 2019 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Architecture and Site Application S-18-050.  Project Location:  56 Central 
Avenue.  Property Owner:  Andrew and Ashley Bothman.  Applicant:  Rick 
Hartman, HOMETEC Architecture. Appellant: Leslie Morley.  Project Planner:  
Jocelyn Shoopman. 
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving 
a request for demolition of a dwelling, construction of a new single-family 
residence with reduced setbacks, and removal of large protected trees on 
property zoned R-1:10.  APN 529-35-068. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Deny the appeal and uphold the decision of the Development Review Committee (DRC) to 
approve the application, subject to the recommended conditions of approval.   
 
PROJECT DATA:   
 
General Plan Designation:   Low Density Residential 
Zoning Designation:  R-1:10 - Single-Family Residential 
Applicable Plans & Standards:  General Plan, Residential Design Guidelines, and Hillside 

Development Standards and Guidelines 
Parcel Size:   11,281 square feet  
Surrounding Area: 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan Zoning 

North Residential  Low Density Residential  R-1:10 

South Residential  Low Density Residential  R-1:10 

East Residential  Low Density Residential  R-1:10 

West Residential Low Density Residential  R-1:20 

Page 12



PAGE 2 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

CEQA:   
 
The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation 
of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New Construction or Conversion of 
Small Structures. 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
 As required, pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 

Environmental Quality Act, this project is Categorically Exempt, Section 15303: New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.  

 As required by Section 29.10.09030(e) of the Town Code for the demolition of existing 
structures. 

 As required by Section 29.10.265(3) of the Town Code for granting a reduction in the 
setbacks for a nonconforming lot. 

 As required by the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines that other than a cut and 
fill exception, the project complies with the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines. 

 As required by the Residential Design Guidelines that the project complies with the 
Residential Design Guidelines. 

 

CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
 As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code for granting approval of an Architecture 

and Site application. 
 
ACTION: 
 

The decision of the Planning Commission is final unless appealed within ten days. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject 11,281-square foot property is located on the west side of Central Avenue  
(Exhibit 1) and currently contains a dwelling unit, a gazebo, wood terraces, and retaining walls.  
The Town approved a Certificate of Compliance in 2013 to recognize three legal lots located at 
60 Central Avenue.  As part of the approval, a condition required that a deed restriction be 
recorded on two of the lots, lots 59 and 60 (60 Central Avenue), prohibiting the recording of a 
Certificate of Compliance on the two lots until any structures which cross lot lines have been 
removed, or an Architecture and Site approval for the demolition of the existing dwelling and 
construction of a new single-family residence has been obtained.  As of today, neither actions 
have been taken and a Certificate of Compliance has not been recorded on lots 59 and 60 (60 
Central Avenue).  A deed restriction was not required, and therefore, the Certificate of 
Compliance has been recorded on the subject property, lot 61 (56 Central Avenue).  

Page 13



PAGE 3 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND (continued): 
 
On September 4, 2018, the applicant submitted an Architecture and Site application for the 
demolition of an existing dwelling, construction of a new 2,665-square foot two-story residence 
with 1,590 square feet of below grade square footage, a 717-square foot attached garage, and 
removal of large protected trees.   

The proposed project meets all technical requirements of the Town Code including parking, 
height, floor area, and building coverage with the exception of the required side setbacks.  The 
lot is nonconforming with regards to frontage and the applicant is requesting modification of 
the required side setbacks through the terms of the Architecture and Site application.  
 
On August 13, 2019, the DRC approved the Architecture and Site Application with additional 
conditions to address privacy concerns from the adjacent neighbor as detailed in the Discussion 
section of this report.   

On August 23, 2019, the decision of the DRC was appealed to the Planning Commission by the 
adjacent neighbor (appellant), due to concerns regarding the proposed setbacks and privacy 
(Exhibit 13).   

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
A. Architecture and Site Application 

 
Architecture and Site application approval is required to construct a new single-family 
residence and to modify the required side setbacks. 

 
B. Location and Surrounding Neighborhood 
 

The subject site is located on the west side of Central Avenue (Exhibit 1).  The surrounding 
properties are one-and two-story single-family residences, with a mix of architectural styles.  

 
C. Zoning Compliance 

 

The property is zoned R-1:10, which permits a single-family residence.  The property is 
located within the Hillside Overlay Area and is subject to the Hillside Development 
Standards and Guidelines (HDS&G), in addition to the Residential Design Guidelines.  The 
proposed residence is in compliance with parking, height, floor area, and building coverage 
requirements.  

 
 
 

Page 14



PAGE 4 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
A. Architecture and Site Application  
 

The applicant is proposing to construct a new two-story single-family residence with 2,665 
square feet of living floor area, 1,590 square feet of below grade square footage, and a 717-
square foot attached garage.  The maximum height of the proposed residence is 25 feet, 
where a maximum of 25 feet is allowed.  
 
Pursuant to Section 29.10.265 (3) of the Town Code, any rule of the zone including front, 
side, and rear yard requirements, may be modified by the terms of an Architecture and Site 
approval so that the building and its use will be compatible with the neighborhood. 

 
The existing lot is nonconforming with regards to the frontage. Where the minimum 
required frontage is 80 feet, the existing frontage is 50 feet.  Where the required side 
setbacks are 10 feet, the applicant is proposing five feet.  The lot is narrow with an average 
slope of 18 and one-half percent and abuts a corridor lot with a twenty-foot wide driveway 
on the north side.  There are multiple existing homes within the immediate area with 
reduced side setbacks.  Two homes in the immediate neighborhood have reduced side 
setbacks: 67 Central Avenue has a side setback from the fence of four feet per the Letter of 
Justification, and 64 Central Avenue has a side setback of four feet, eight inches per Town 
records (Exhibit 6).  Two other homes just outside the immediate neighborhood have 
reduced side setbacks per Town records: 70 Central Avenue has a side setback of five feet, 
and 71 Central Avenue has a side setback of three feet, six inches (Exhibit 6).   
 
The development plans show a future accessory dwelling unit (ADU) that is proposed on the 
second story of the residence above the garage (Exhibit 15).  The ADU is not a part of the 
Architecture and Site approval and would require a future submittal for a separate 
ministerial permit for approval by the Community Development Director.  A new ADU on 
the property would be subject to the requirements contained in Section 29.10.320 of the 
Town Code.  Project information, including the proposed square footage of the home is not 
inclusive of a future ADU.       
 
The applicant’s project description is attached as Exhibit 5.  The project data sheet is 
attached as Exhibit 4 and includes additional information regarding the proposed project.  

 
B. Building Design   

 
The Town’s Consulting Architect reviewed the proposed project within the neighborhood 
context to provide recommendations regarding the building design (Exhibit 8).  The site is in 
a neighborhood of one- and two-story homes, with a mixture of architectural styles on deep 
lots.  In the Issues and Concerns background section of the report, the Consulting Architect  

Page 15



PAGE 5 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
discussed the second-floor building mass and projecting garage.  In the Recommendations 
section of the report, the Consulting Architect made the following recommendations to 
address consistency with the Residential Design Guidelines:   

 
1. Shift the second-floor building mass and entry roof away from the right side first floor 

building line; 
2. Eliminate the projecting garage element in favor of a simpler form; and 
3. Provide a deep inset for the garage doors. 
 
The applicant revised the project to incorporate each of the recommendations prior to DRC 
approval.  

 
C. Neighborhood Compatibility 
 

The immediate neighborhood is made up of one- and two-story single-family residences, 
including a mix of architectural styles.  Based on Town and County records, the residences in 
the immediate neighborhood range in size from 1,746 square feet to 3,127 square feet. The 
floor area ratios (FAR) range from 0.11 to 0.33.  The table below reflects the current 
conditions of the immediate neighborhood: 
 

 
Neighborhood Analysis 

Address Floor 
Area 

Garage 
Floor Area 

Gross Lot 
Area 

FAR Stories Zoning 

67 Central   1,746 0 11,250 0.16 1 R-1:10 

61 Central 2,284 0 11,250 0.20 1 R-1:10 

64 Central 2,044 240 7,350 0.28 1 R-1:10 

60 Central 2,289 285 16,957 0.13 2 R-1:10 

50 Central 1,792 484 6,000 0.30 1 R-1:10 

44 Central  1,200 0 11,280 0.11 1 R-1:10 

57 Central 3,127 495 15,000 0.21 1 R-1:10 

51 Central 2,474 441 7,500 0.33 2 R-1:10 

56 Central (Ex)  1,188 0 11,281 0.11 1 R-1:10 

56 Central (P)  2,665 717 11,281 0.21 2 R-1:10 

 
The proposed residence would not be the largest home in the immediate neighborhood in 
terms of square footage or FAR.  
 
 
 
 

Page 16



PAGE 6 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

DISCUSSION (continued): 
 

D. Tree Impacts 
 

The project site contains 13 protected trees, with seven protected trees growing on the 
property boundary or adjacent to the property. The applicant is proposing to remove eight 
trees, two of which are large protected trees (Trees 526 and 527).   
 
The Town’s Consulting Arborist prepared a report for the site and recommendations for the 
project (Exhibit 9).  The Consulting Arborist recommends removal of each of the eight trees  
due to their suitability for conservation with the proposed project.  Of the proposed eight 
tree removals, two trees are considered to be large protected trees (Trees 526 and 527), 
which are in fair condition and will be highly impacted by the proposed project.  A tree in 
fair condition has reduced vigor, damage, dieback, or pest problems, at least one significant 
structural problem, or multiple moderate defects requiring treatment (Exhibit 9).    
 
The Consulting Arborist observed that Tree 521, a Palm tree which is proposed for removal, 
contained nesting owls.  As a result, a focused survey of the Palm tree by a qualified 
biologist was completed.  As part of the inspection, no owl eggs, nestlings, nor any other 
signs of an active owl nest were observed; however, it appeared that a barn owl had 
recently roosted in the tree (Exhibit 10).  In response to this observation, the dead Palm 
tree fronds were removed to minimize the potential for barn owls to establish a nest in the 
Palm tree prior to tree removal.  A condition of approval requires a qualified biologist to 
conduct a pre-construction survey for nesting birds prior to tree removal during nesting 
season (Exhibit 10).        
 
If the project is approved, tree protection measures would be implemented prior to and 
during construction.  Replacement trees would also be required to be planted pursuant to 
the Town Code.  

 
E. Development Review Committee 
 

The DRC held a public hearing for the Architecture and Site application on July 30, 2019 
(Exhibit 11).  Written public hearing notices were sent to surrounding property owners and 
occupants within 500 feet of the subject property.  

 
The following neighbors were in attendance and spoke on the item:  
 

 Lesley Morley – 60 Central Avenue (Appellant) 

 Susan Branch – 7 Central Court  
 
 

Page 17



PAGE 7 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

DISCUSSION (continued): 
 

The neighbors raised concerns regarding the proposed setbacks, tree removals, privacy, 
height, and a loss of views (Exhibit 11).   

 
The DRC continued the item to the August 13, 2019 meeting to allow the applicant time to 
work with the neighbors to further address the concerns raised at the meeting.  
 
On August 13, 2019, the DRC held a public hearing for the Architecture and Site application.  
With additional conditions of approval addressing privacy concerns (Exhibit 3, Conditions 4 
through 6), the DRC found that the application was complete and in compliance with the 
Town Code, Residential Design Guidelines, and HDS&G other than a cut and fill exception 
for a portion of the rear yard area.  Based on the justification prepared by the applicant for 
the exception requests (Exhibit 7) and per the development plans, the DRC was able make 
findings to approve the cut and fill exception requests.  Based on these findings and 
determinations, the DRC approved the proposed project, subject to the recommended 
conditions of approval. 
 

      GRADING EXCEPTIONS  

Cut exception to decks/yards Maximum cut: 4 feet 

 Proposed cut: 8 feet, 5 inches 

Fill exception to decks/yards Maximum fill: 3 feet 

 Proposed fill: 5 feet 

 
F. Appeal  
 

On August 23, 2019, the decision of the DRC was appealed to the Planning Commission by 
the adjacent neighbor, Leslie Morley (Exhibit 13).  The applicant submitted a response letter 
to the appeal (Exhibit 14).  The specific reasons for the appeal are summarized below, 
followed by analysis in italic font.  
 

“The designed residence is too close to the existing house at 60 Central Avenue. I 
believe that there are no other properties, except 60 Central Avenue, that have setbacks 
of five feet or less on Central Avenue on both sides.”   
 
The existing lot is nonconforming with regards to the frontage. The minimum required 
frontage is 80 feet, whereas, the existing frontage is 50 feet.  Where the required side 
setbacks are 10 feet, the applicant is proposing five feet. The lot is narrow with an 
average slope of 18 and one-half percent and abuts a corridor lot with a twenty-foot 
wide driveway on the north side.  There are multiple existing homes within the 
immediate area with reduced side setbacks (Exhibit 6). 

 

Page 18



PAGE 8 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

DISCUSSION (continued): 
 
“The top of the first floor is seven feet above the master bedroom balcony of my home 
due to their elevation difference, basement, and ceiling heights.  Their house will block 
my view and morning sun.  The building at one point will be three feet from the closest 
edge of my balcony.  It will make my bedroom dark and I will lose privacy for the 
balcony.” 
 
The development plans include a shadow study (Exhibit 15, Sheet A-10).  The DRC 
approved the Architecture and Site application with additional conditions, including  
clerestory windows, balcony screening, and landscape screening, to address privacy 
concerns from the adjacent neighbor.   
 

G. CEQA Determination 
 

The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Public comments received between 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, August 13, 2019, and 11:00 a.m., 
Friday, October 4, 2019, are included as Exhibit 16.   
 
Story poles and project sign including the hearing date, contact information, project 
description, and front elevation, were installed on the site; and the written notice of the DRC 
public hearing was sent to neighboring property owners and occupants.  Following the appeal, 
written notice of the Planning Commission hearing has been sent to neighboring property 
owners and occupants, the story poles have remained in place, and the project sign has been 
updated to reflect the appeal hearing before Planning Commission.   
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
A. Conclusion  
 

The proposed project is in compliance with the Town Code, Residential Design Guidelines, 
and the HDS&G other than a cut and fill exception.  The applicant revised the project and 
agreed to additional conditions to address the concerns of the adjacent neighbor prior to 
DRC approval.  

 
 
 

Page 19



PAGE 9 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

B. Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission take the following actions to deny the 
appeal, uphold the decision of the DRC, and approve the Architecture and Site application:  

 
1. Find that the proposed project is categorically exempt pursuant to the adopted 

Guidelines for the implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 
15303: New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures (Exhibit 2);  

2. Make the required findings as required by Section 29.10.09030(e) of the Town Code for 
granting approval of the demolition of existing structures (Exhibit 2);  

3. Make the finding that the reduced setbacks on a nonconforming lot are appropriate as 
required by Section 29.10.265(3) of the Town Code (Exhibit 2); 

4. Make the finding that a cut and fill exception is appropriate and the project is otherwise 
in compliance with the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines (Exhibit 2);  

5. Make the finding required by the Town’s Residential Design Guidelines that the project 
complies with the Residential Design Guidelines (Exhibit 2); 

6. Make the required considerations as required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code 
for granting approval of an Architecture and Site application (Exhibit 2); and 

7. Approve Architecture and Site application S-18-050 with the conditions contained in 
Exhibit 3 and development plans attached as Exhibit 15. 

 
C. Alternatives 

 
Alternatively, the Commission can: 

 
1. Continue the matter to a date certain with specific direction;  
2. Deny the appeal and approve the application with additional and/or modified 

conditions;  
3. Grant the appeal and remand the application to the DRC with direction for revisions; or 
4. Grant the appeal and deny the Architecture and Site application. 

 
EXHIBITS: 
 
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations (two pages) 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval (14 pages) 
4. Project data sheet (two pages) 
5. Project description, received July 11, 2019 (three pages) 
6. Letter of justification for reduced setbacks, received August 12, 2019 (eight pages) 
7. Letter of justification for exceptions to HDS&G, received May 3, 2019 (one page) 
8. Consulting Architect Report, dated November 5, 2018 (seven pages) 
9. Consulting Arborist Report, dated October 11, 2018 (36 pages) 

Page 20



PAGE 10 OF 10 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 

 
 

EXHIBITS (continued): 
 
10. Applicant’s Biologist Report, received January 23, 2019 (two pages) 
11. July 30, 2019 Development Review Committee meeting minutes (three pages) 
12. August 13, 2019 Development Review Committee meeting minutes (three pages) 
13. Appeal of Development Review Committee received August 23, 2019 (two pages) 
14. Applicant’s response letter to appeal, received September 9, 2019 (five pages) 
15. Development plans, received September 5, 2019 (18 sheets)  
16. Additional letter from the appellant, received October 4, 2019 (two pages) 
17. Public comments received between 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, August 13, 2019, and 11:00 a.m., 

Friday, October 4, 2019 
 

Page 21



OA
K H

ILL
 W

Y

JACKSON ST

KIMBLE AV GROVE ST

CE
NT

RA
L A

V

ROGERS RD

CE
NT

RA
L C

T

ORCHARD ST

56 Central Avenue

0 0.250.125 Miles

°

EXHIBIT 1

Page 22



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 23



N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2019\CENTRAL 56 - PC - 10-09-19.DOCX

PLANNING COMMISSION – October 9, 2019 
REQUIRED FINDINGS & CONSIDERATIONS FOR: 

56 Central Avenue  
Architecture and Site Application S-18-050 

Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving a 
request for demolition of an existing dwelling, construction of a new single-family 
residence with reduced setbacks, and removal of large protected trees on property 
zoned R-1:10. APN 529-35-068.  
PROPERTY OWNER: Andrew and Ashley Bothman  
APPLICANT: Richard Hartman  

FINDINGS 
Required finding for CEQA: 

■ The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.

Required finding for the demolition of a dwelling: 

■ As required by Section 29.10.09030(e) of the Town Code for the demolition of existing
structures:

1. The Town's housing stock will be maintained as the dwelling will be replaced.
2. The existing structures have no architectural or historical significance, and are in

poor condition.
3. The property owner does not desire to maintain the structures as they exist; and
4. The economic utility of the structures was not considered.

Required finding for reduced setbacks on a nonconforming lot: 

■ As required by Section 29.10.265(3) of the Town Code for modification of zoning rules
on nonconforming lots, including setback requirements:

1. The subject property is nonconforming with regard to the frontage being 50 feet
in a zone where 80 feet is required.

2. The new single-family residence will be compatible with the neighborhood.

EXHIBIT 2Page 24



 
N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2019\CENTRAL 56 - PC - 10-09-19.DOCX 

Compliance with Hillside Development Standards & Guidelines: 
 
■ An exception to allow cut greater than four feet and fill greater than three feet at the rear 

of the property is supported by the fact that the existing grade of the site has been modified 
by wood terraces, retaining walls, and stairs. The project is otherwise in compliance with 
the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines. 

 
Required Compliance with the Residential Design Guidelines: 
 
■ The project is in compliance with the Town’s Residential Design Guidelines. 
 

 
CONSIDERATIONS 

 
Required considerations in review of Architecture & Site applications: 
 
■ As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code, the considerations in review of an 

Architecture and Site application were all made in reviewing this project. 

Page 25



PLANNING COMMISSION – October 9, 2019 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

56 Central Avenue  
Architecture and Site Application S-18-050 

Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving a 
request for demolition of a dwelling, construction of a new single-family residence 
with reduced setbacks, and removal of large protected trees on property zoned R-
1:10.  APN 529-35-068. 
PROPERTY OWNER: Andrew and Ashley Bothman  
APPLICANT: Richard Hartman  

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

Planning Division 
1. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all of the conditions of

approval and in substantial compliance with the approved plans.  Any changes or
modifications to the approved plans and/or business operation shall be approved by the
Community Development Director, DRC or the Planning Commission depending on the
scope of the changes.

2. EXPIRATION: The approval will expire two years from the approval date pursuant to Section
29.20.320 of the Town Code, unless the approval has been vested.

3. OUTDOOR LIGHTING:  Exterior lighting shall be kept to a minimum and shall be down
directed fixtures that will not reflect or encroach onto adjacent properties.  No flood lights
shall be used unless it can be demonstrated that they are needed for safety or security.

4. WINDOWS: The windows along the southern elevation in the master bedroom, master
bathroom, and bedroom #2 shall be clerestory.

5. BALCONY: The balcony off the master bedroom, adjacent to the southern property line shall
be screened by a wall and/or with vegetation that shall not exceed six feet in height.

6. LANDSCAPE SCREENING: The applicant shall meet with the neighbor located at 60 Central
Avenue to select the tree species to be planted along the southern property line in order to
achieve privacy between the properties. A minimum of six, 15-gallon sized trees shall be
planted.  The installation of the landscape screening shall be completed prior to occupancy.

7. DEED RESTRICTION:  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a deed restriction shall be
recorded by the applicant with the Santa Clara County Recorder’s Office that requires all
exterior materials to be maintained in conformance with the Town’s Hillside Development
Standards and Guidelines.

8. BIOLOGICAL SURVEY: The project developer shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a
pre-construction survey for nesting birds in Tree #521. This survey shall be conducted no
more than two weeks prior to the initiation of construction activities and/or tree removal. A
report documenting survey results and plan for active bird nest avoidance (if needed) shall
be completed by the qualified biologist and submitted to the Town of Los Gatos for
approval prior to initiation of construction activities. If no active bird nests are detected

EXHIBIT 3Page 26



during the survey, then construction activities and/or tree removal can proceed as 
scheduled. However, if an active bird nest of a native species is detected during the survey, 
then a plan for active bird nest avoidance shall be prepared by a qualified biologist to 
determine and clearly delineate a temporary protective buffer area around each active 
nest, with buffer area size depending on the nesting bird species, existing site conditions, 
and type of proposed construction activities. 

9. TREE REMOVAL PERMIT: A Tree Removal Permit shall be obtained for any protected trees to 
be removed, prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. 

10. EXISTING TREES: All existing trees shown on the plan and trees required to remain or to be 
planted are specific subjects of approval of this plan and must remain on the site. 

11. TREE PROTECTION: Protective tree fencing, and other protection measures shall be placed 
at the drip line of existing trees prior to issuance of demolition and building permits and 
shall remain through all phases of construction.  Include a tree protection plan with the 
construction plans incorporating the requirements of Section 29.10.1005 of the Town Code. 

12. TREE STAKING: All newly planted trees shall be double-staked using rubber tree ties. 
13. REPLACEMENT TREES:  New trees shall be planted to mitigate the loss of trees being 

removed.  The number of trees and size of replacement trees shall be determined using the 
canopy replacement table in the Town Code.  Town Code requires a minimum 24-inch box 
size replacement tree.  New trees shall be double staked with rubber ties and shall be 
planted prior to final inspection and issuance of occupancy permits. 

14. FRONT YARD LANDSCAPE: Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the front yard 
must be landscaped.  

15. WATER EFFICIENCY LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE:  The final landscape plan shall meet the 
requirements of the Town of Los Gatos Water Conservation Ordinance or the State Water 
Efficient Landscape Ordinance, whichever is more restrictive.  Submittal of a Landscape 
Documentation Package pursuant to WELO is required prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  A review fee based on the current fee schedule adopted by the Town Council is 
required when working landscape and irrigation plans are submitted for review.  A 
completed WELO Certificate of Completion is required prior to final inspection/certificate of 
occupancy. 

16. STORY POLES: The story poles on the project site shall be removed within 30 days of 
approval of the Architecture & Site application. 

17. TOWN INDEMNITY: Applicants are notified that Town Code Section 1.10.115 requires that 
any applicant who receives a permit or entitlement from the Town shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Town and its officials in any action brought by a third party to 
overturn, set aside, or void the permit or entitlement.  This requirement is a condition of 
approval of all such permits and entitlements whether or not expressly set forth in the 
approval and may be secured to the satisfaction of the Town Attorney. 

18. COMPLIANCE MEMORANDUM: A memorandum shall be prepared and submitted with the 
building plans detailing how the Conditions of Approval will be addressed.  
 

Building Division 
19. PERMITS REQUIRED: A Building Permit is required for the renovation and addition of the 

existing single-family residence. 

Page 27



20. PERMITS REQUIRED: A Demolition Permit is required for the demolition of the existing guest 
cottage, gazebo and storage shed.  A separate Building Permit is required for the 
construction of the new single-family residence and attached garage.  

21. APPLICABLE CODES: The current codes, as amended and adopted by the Town of Los Gatos 
as of January 1, 2017, are the 2016 California Building Standards Code, California Code of 
Regulations Title 24, Parts 1-12. 

22. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The Conditions of Approval must be blue-lined in full on the 
cover sheet of the construction plans. A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared and 
submitted with the building permit application detailing how the Conditions of Approval will 
be addressed. 

23. BUILDING & SUITE NUMBERS: Submit requests for new building addresses to the Building 
Division prior to submitting for the building permit application process. 

24. SIZE OF PLANS:  Submit four sets of construction plans, minimum size 24” x 36”, maximum 
size 30” x 42”. 

25. REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPLETE DEMOLITION OF STRUCTURE: Obtain a Building 
Department Demolition Application and a Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
Application from the Building Department Service Counter.  Once the demolition form has 
been completed, all signatures obtained, and written verification from PG&E that all utilities 
have been disconnected, return the completed form to the Building Department Service 
Counter with the Air District’s J# Certificate, PG&E verification, and three (3) sets of site 
plans showing all existing structures, existing utility service lines such as water, sewer, and 
PG&E.  No demolition work shall be done without first obtaining a permit from the Town. 

26. SOILS REPORT:  A Soils Report, prepared to the satisfaction of the Building Official, 
containing foundation and retaining wall design recommendations, shall be submitted with 
the Building Permit Application.  This report shall be prepared by a licensed Civil Engineer 
specializing in soils mechanics.  

27. SHORING: Shoring plans and calculations will be required for all excavations which exceed 
five (5) feet in depth or which remove lateral support from any existing building, adjacent 
property, or the public right-of-way.  Shoring plans and calculations shall be prepared by a 
California licensed engineer and shall confirm to the Cal/OSHA regulations. 

28. FOUNDATION INSPECTIONS:  A pad certificate prepared by a licensed civil engineer or land 
surveyor shall be submitted to the project Building Inspector at foundation inspection.  This 
certificate shall certify compliance with the recommendations as specified in the Soils 
Report, and that the building pad elevations and on-site retaining wall locations and 
elevations have been prepared according to the approved plans.  Horizontal and vertical 
controls shall be set and certified by a licensed surveyor or registered Civil Engineer for the 
following items: 
a. Building pad elevation 
b. Finish floor elevation 
c. Foundation corner locations 
d. Retaining wall(s) locations and elevations 

29. TITLE 24 ENERGY COMPLIANCE:  All required California Title 24 Energy Compliance Forms 
must be blue-lined (sticky-backed), i.e. directly printed, onto a plan sheet. 

Page 28



30. TOWN RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS: New residential units shall be designed 
with adaptability features for single-family residences per Town Resolution 1994-61: 
a. Wood backing (2” x 8” minimum) shall be provided in all bathroom walls, at water 

closets, showers, and bathtubs, located 34 inches from the floor to the center of the 
backing, suitable for the installation of grab bars if needed in the future. 

b. All passage doors shall be at least 32 inch doors on the accessible floor level. 
c. The primary entrance door shall be a 36 inch wide door including a 5’x 5’ level landing, 

no more than 1 inch out of plane with the immediate interior floor level and with an 18 
inch clearance at interior strike edge. 

d. A door buzzer, bell or chime shall be hard wired at primary entrance. 
31. BACKWATER VALVE: The scope of this project may require the installation of a   sanitary 

sewer backwater valve per Town Ordinance 6.50.025. Please provide information on the 
plans if a backwater valve is required and the location of the installation. The Town of Los 
Gatos Ordinance and West Valley Sanitation District (WVSD) requires backwater valves on 
drainage piping serving fixtures that have flood level rims less than 12 inches above the 
elevation of the next upstream manhole. 

32. TOWN FIREPLACE STANDARDS: New wood burning fireplaces shall be an EPA Phase II 
approved appliance or gas appliance per Town Ordinance 1905.  Tree limbs shall be cut 
within 10 feet of chimneys. 

33. HAZARDOUS FIRE ZONE:  All projects in the Town of Los Gatos require Class A roof 
assemblies. 

34. WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE: This project is located in a Wildland-Urban Interface High 
Fire Area and must comply with Section R337 of the 2016 California Residential Code, Public 
Resources Code 4291 and California Government Code Section 51182.  

35. PROVIDE DEFENSIBLE SPACE/FIRE BREAK LANDSCAPING PLAN: Prepared by a California 
licensed Landscape Architect in conformance with California Public Resources Code 4291 
and California Government Code Section 51182. 

36. PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION: Provide a letter from a California licensed Landscape Architect 
certifying the landscaping and vegetation clearance requirements have been completed per 
the California Public Resources Code 4291 and Government Code Section 51182. 

37. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS: When a special inspection is required by CBC Section 1704, the 
Architect or Engineer of Record shall prepare an inspection program that shall be submitted 
to the Building Official for approval prior to issuance of the Building Permit. The Town 
Special Inspection form must be completely filled-out and signed by all requested parties 
prior to permit issuance. Special Inspection forms are available from the Building Division 
Service Counter or online at www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

38. BLUE PRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY SHEET: The Town standard Santa Clara Valley Nonpoint 
Source Pollution Control Program Sheet (page size same as submitted drawings) shall be 
part of the plan submittal as the second page. The specification sheet is available at the 
Building Division Service Counter for a fee of $2 or at ARC Blue Print for a fee or online at 
www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

39. APPROVALS REQUIRED: The project requires the following departments and agencies 
approval before issuing a building permit: 
a. Community Development – Planning Division: (408) 354-6874 

Page 29



b. Engineering/Parks & Public Works Department: (408) 399-5771 
c. Santa Clara County Fire Department: (408) 378-4010 
d. West Valley Sanitation District: (408) 378-2407 
e. Local School District:  The Town will forward the paperwork to the appropriate school 

district(s) for processing.  A copy of the paid receipt is required prior to permit issuance. 

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF PARKS & PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
Engineering Division 
40. GENERAL: All work shall conform to the applicable Town ordinances.  The adjacent public 

right-of-way shall be kept clear of all job-related mud, silt, concrete, dirt and other 
construction debris at the end of the day.  Dirt and debris shall not be washed into storm 
drainage facilities.  The storing of goods and materials on the sidewalk and/or the street will 
not be allowed unless an encroachment permit is issued by the Engineering Division of the 
Parks and Public Works Department.  The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer's 
representative in charge shall be at the job site during all working hours.  Failure to 
maintain the public right-of-way according to this condition may result in the issuance of 
correction notices, citations, or stop work orders and the Town performing the required 
maintenance at the Owner, Applicant and/or Developer's expense. 

41. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all the conditions of 
approval listed below and in substantial compliance with the latest reviewed and approved 
development plans.  Any changes or modifications to the approved plans or conditions of 
approvals shall be approved by the Town Engineer. 

42. ENCROACHMENT PERMIT: All work in the public right-of-way will require a Construction 
Encroachment Permit.  All work over $5,000 will require construction security.  It is the 
responsibility of the Owner/Applicant/Developer to obtain any necessary encroachment 
permits from affected agencies and private parties, including but not limited to, Pacific Gas 
and Electric (PG&E), AT&T, Comcast, Santa Clara Valley Water District, California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  Copies of any approvals or permits must be 
submitted to the Town Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department prior 
to releasing any permit. 

43. PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY (INDEMNITY AGREEMENT): The 
property owner shall enter into an agreement with the Town for all existing and proposed 
private improvements within the Town’s right-of-way.  The Owner shall be solely 
responsible for maintaining the improvements in a good and safe condition at all times and 
shall indemnify the Town of Los Gatos.  The agreement must be completed and accepted by 
the Director of Parks and Public Works, and subsequently recorded by the Town Clerk at the 
Santa Clara County Office of the Clerk-Recorder, prior to the issuance of any grading or 
building permits.  Please note that this process may take approximately six to eight (6-8) 
weeks. 

44. PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTIONS: The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer or their 
representative shall notify the Engineering Inspector at least twenty-four (24) hours before 
starting any work pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading or paving, and all work in 

Page 30



the Town's right-of-way.  Failure to do so will result in penalties and rejection of any work 
that occurred without inspection. 

45. RESTORATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer or their 
representative shall repair or replace all existing improvements not designated for removal 
that are damaged or removed because of the Owner, Applicant and/or Developer or their 
representative's operations.  Improvements such as, but not limited to: curbs, gutters, 
sidewalks, driveways, signs, pavements, raised pavement markers, thermoplastic pavement 
markings, etc., shall be repaired and replaced to a condition equal to or better than the 
original condition.  Any new concrete shall be free of stamps, logos, names, graffiti, etc.  
Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or equal shall be removed and replaced at 
the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional compensation shall be allowed therefore.  
Existing improvement to be repaired or replaced shall be at the direction of the Engineering 
Construction Inspector and shall comply with all Title 24 Disabled Access provisions.  The 
restoration of all improvements identified by the Engineering Construction Inspector shall 
be completed before the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  The Owner, Applicant 
and/or Developer or their representative shall request a walk-through with the Engineering 
Construction Inspector before the start of construction to verify existing conditions. 

46. SITE SUPERVISION: The General Contractor shall provide qualified supervision on the job 
site at all times during construction. 

47. STREET/SIDEWALK CLOSURE: Any proposed blockage or partial closure of the street and/or 
sidewalk requires an encroachment permit.  Special provisions such as limitations on works 
hours, protective enclosures, or other means to facilitate public access in a safe manner 
may be required. 

48. PLAN CHECK FEES: Plan check fees associated with the Grading Permit shall be deposited 
with the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department prior to the 
commencement of plan check review. 

49. INSPECTION FEES: Inspection fees shall be deposited with the Town prior to the issuance of 
any grading or building permits. 

50. DESIGN CHANGES: Any proposed changes to the approved plans shall be subject to the 
approval of the Town prior to the commencement of any and all altered work.  The Owner, 
Applicant and/or Developer’s project engineer shall notify, in writing, the Town Engineer at 
least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of all the proposed changes.  Any approved 
changes shall be incorporated into the final “as-built” plans. 

51. GRADING PERMIT: A grading permit is required for all site grading and drainage work except 
for exemptions listed in Section 12.20.015 of The Code of the Town of Los Gatos (Grading 
Ordinance).  After the preceding Architecture and Site Application has been approved by 
the respective deciding body, the grading permit application (with grading plans and 
associated required materials and plan check fees) shall be made to the Engineering 
Division of the Parks and Public Works Department located at 41 Miles Avenue.  The grading 
plans shall include final grading, drainage, retaining wall location(s), driveway, utilities and 
interim erosion control.  Grading plans shall list earthwork quantities and a table of existing 
and proposed impervious areas.  Unless specifically allowed by the Director of Parks and 
Public Works, the grading permit will be issued concurrently with the building permit. The 
grading permit is for work outside the building footprint(s).  Prior to Engineering signing off 

Page 31



and closing out on the issued grading permit, the Owner/Applicant/Developer’s soils 
engineer shall verify, with a stamped and signed letter, that the grading activities were 
completed per plans and per the requirements as noted in the soils report.  A separate 
building permit, issued by the Building Department, located at 110 E. Main Street, is needed 
for grading within the building footprint. 

52. GRADING ACTIVITY RESTRICTIONS Upon receipt of a grading permit, any and all grading 
activities and operations shall not commence until after/occur during the rainy season, as 
defined by Town Code of the Town of Los Gatos, Sec. 12.10.020, (October 15-April 15), has 
ended. 

53. COMPLIANCE WITH HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES: All grading 
activities and operations shall be in compliance with Section III of the Town’s Hillside 
Development Standards and Guidelines.  All development shall be in compliance with 
Section II of the Town’s Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines. 

54. DRIVEWAY: The driveway conform to existing pavement on Central Avenue shall be 
constructed in a manner such that the existing drainage patterns will not be obstructed. 

55. TREE REMOVAL: Copies of all necessary tree removal permits shall be provided prior to the 
issuance of a grading permit/building permit. 

56. SURVEYING CONTROLS: Horizontal and vertical controls shall be set and certified by a 
licensed surveyor or registered civil engineer qualified to practice land surveying, for the 
following items: 
a. Retaining wall: top of wall elevations and locations. 
b. Toe and top of cut and fill slopes. 

57. PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING: Prior to issuance of any grading or building permits or the 
commencement of any site work, the general contractor shall: 
a. Along with the Owner, Applicant and/or Developer, attend a pre-construction meeting 

with the Town Engineer and/or Town Engineering Inspector to discuss the project 
conditions of approval, working hours, site maintenance and other construction 
matters; 

b. Acknowledge in writing that they have read and understand the project conditions of 
approval and will make certain that all project sub-contractors have read and 
understand them as well prior to commencing any work, and that a copy of the project 
conditions of approval will be posted on-site at all times during construction. 

58. RETAINING WALLS: A building permit, issued by the Building Department, located at 110 E. 
Main Street, may be required for site retaining walls. Walls are not reviewed or approved by 
the Engineering Division of Parks and Public Works during the grading permit plan review 
process. 

59. PROXIMITY OF RETAINING WALLS TO ADJACENT BUILDINGS: Prior to the issuance of a 
grading or building permit, structural details for the proposed retaining walls located 
immediately adjacent to or in the immediate vicinity of existing buildings on adjoining lots 
shall be submitted confirming that said walls will not negatively affect the structural 
integrity of these buildings. 

60. SOILS REVIEW:  Prior to Town approval of a development application, the Owner, Applicant 
and/or Developer’s engineers shall prepare and submit a design-level geotechnical and 
geological investigation for review by the Town’s consultant, with costs borne by the 

Page 32



Owner, Applicant and/or Developer, and subsequent approval by the Town.  The Owner, 
Applicant and/or Developer’s soils engineer shall review the final grading and drainage 
plans to ensure that designs for foundations, retaining walls, site grading, and site drainage 
are in accordance with their recommendations and the peer review comments.  Approval of 
the Owner, Applicant and/or Developer’s soils engineer shall then be conveyed to the Town 
either by submitting a Plan Review Letter prior to issuance of grading or building permit(s). 

61. SOILS ENGINEER CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION: During construction, all excavations and 
grading shall be inspected by the Owner, Applicant and/or Developer’s soils engineer prior 
to placement of concrete and/or backfill so they can verify that the actual conditions are as 
anticipated in the design-level geotechnical report and recommend appropriate changes in 
the recommendations contained in the report, if necessary.  The results of the construction 
observation and testing shall be documented in an “as-built” letter/report prepared by the 
Owner, Applicant and/or Developer’s soils engineer and submitted to the Town before a 
certificate of occupancy is granted. 

62. SOIL RECOMMENDATIONS: The project shall incorporate the geotechnical/geological 
recommendations contained in the Geotechnical Investigation by Wayne Ting & Associates, 
Inc, dated June 6, 2018, and any subsequently required report or addendum.  Subsequent 
reports or addendum are subject to peer review by the Town’s consultant and costs shall be 
borne by the Owner, Applicant and/or Developer. 

63. WATER METER: The existing water meter shall be relocated within the property in question, 
directly behind the public right-of-way line.  The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer shall 
repair and replace to existing Town standards any portion of concrete flatwork within said 
right-of-way that is damaged during this activity prior to issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy. 

64. SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT: The existing sanitary sewer cleanout shall be relocated within 
the property in question, within one (1) foot of the property line per West Valley Sanitation 
District Standard Drawing 3, or at a location specified by the Town.  The Owner, Applicant 
and/or Developer shall repair and replace to existing Town standards any portion of 
concrete flatwork within said right-of-way that is damaged during this activity prior to 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

65. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY: The Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works 
Department will not sign off on a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy or a Final Certificate 
of Occupancy until all required improvements within the Town’s right-of-way have been 
completed and approved by the Town. 

66. UTILITIES: The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer shall install all new, relocated, or 
temporarily removed utility services, including telephone, electric power and all other 
communications lines underground, as required by Town Code Section 27.50.015(b).  All 
new utility services shall be placed underground.  Underground conduit shall be provided 
for cable television service.  The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer is required to obtain 
approval of all proposed utility alignments from any and all utility service providers before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued.  The Town of Los Gatos does 
not approve or imply approval for final alignment or design of these facilities. 

67. UTILITY SETBACKS: House foundations shall be set back from utility lines a sufficient 
distance to allow excavation of the utility without undermining the house foundation.  The 

Page 33



Town Engineer shall determine the appropriate setback based on the depth of the utility, 
input from the project soils engineer, and the type of foundation. 

68. TRENCHING: Trenching within a newly paved street will be allowed subject to the following 
requirements: 
a. The Town standard “T” trench detail shall be used. 
b. A Town-approved colored controlled density backfill shall be used. 
c. All necessary utility trenches and related pavement cuts shall be consolidated to 

minimize the impacted area of the roadway. 
d. The total asphalt thickness shall be a minimum of three (3) inches, meet Town 

standards, or shall match the existing thickness, whichever is greater.  The final lift shall 
be 1.5-inches of one-half (½) inch medium asphalt.  The initial lift(s) shall be of three-
quarter (¾) inch medium asphalt. 

e. The Contractor shall schedule a pre-paving meeting with the Town Engineering 
Construction Inspector the day the paving is to take place. 

f. A slurry seal topping may be required by the construction inspector depending their 
assessment of the quality of the trench paving.  If required, the slurry seal shall extend 
the full width of the street and shall extend five (5) feet beyond the longitudinal limits of 
trenching.  Slurry seal materials shall be approved by the Town Engineering Construction 
Inspector prior to placement.  Black sand may be required in the slurry mix.  All existing 
striping and pavement markings shall be replaced upon completion of slurry seal 
operations.  All pavement restorations shall be completed and approved by the 
Inspector before occupancy. 

69. SIDEWALK REPAIR: The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer shall repair and replace to 
existing Town standards any sidewalk damaged now or during construction of this project.  
All new and existing adjacent infrastructure must meet current ADA standards.  Sidewalk 
repair shall match existing color, texture and design, and shall be constructed per Town 
Standard Details.  New concrete shall be free of stamps, logos, names, graffiti, etc.  Any 
concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or equal shall be removed and replaced at the 
Contractor’s sole expense and no additional compensation shall be allowed therefore.  The 
limits of sidewalk repair will be determined by the Engineering Construction Inspector 
during the construction phase of the project.  The improvements must be completed and 
accepted by the Town before a Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued. 

70. CURB AND GUTTER REPAIR: The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer shall repair and replace 
to existing Town standards any curb and gutter damaged now or during construction of this 
project.  All new and existing adjacent infrastructure must meet Town standards.  New curb 
and gutter shall be constructed per Town Standard Details. New concrete shall be free of 
stamps, logos, names, graffiti, etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or 
equal shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional 
compensation shall be allowed therefore.  The limits of curb and gutter repair will be 
determined by the Engineering Construction Inspector during the construction phase of the 
project.  The improvements must be completed and accepted by the Town before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued. 

71. FENCING: Any fencing proposed within two hundred (200) feet of an intersection shall 
comply with Town Code Section §23.10.080. 

Page 34



72. SIGHT TRIANGLE AND TRAFFIC VIEW AREA: Any proposed improvements, including but not 
limiting to trees and hedges, will need to abide by Town Code Sections 23.10.080, 
26.10.065, and 29.40.030. 

73. FENCES: Fences between all adjacent parcels will need to be located on the property 
lines/boundary lines.  Any existing fences that encroach into the neighbor’s property will 
need to be removed and replaced to the correct location of the boundary lines before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued.  Waiver of this condition will 
require signed and notarized letters from all affected neighbors. 

74. CONSTRUCTION VEHICLE PARKING: Construction vehicle parking within the public right-of-
way will only be allowed if it does not cause access or safety problems as determined by the 
Town. 

75. TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN: A traffic control plan is required and must be submitted and 
approved by the Town Engineer prior to the issuance of an encroachment, grading or 
building permit.  This plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following measures: 
a. Construction activities shall be strategically timed and coordinated to minimize traffic 

disruption for schools, residents, businesses, special events, and other projects in the 
area.  The schools located on the haul route shall be contacted to help with the 
coordination of the trucking operation to minimize traffic disruption. 

b. Flag persons shall be placed at locations necessary to control one-way traffic flow.  All 
flag persons shall have the capability of communicating with each other to coordinate 
the operation. 

c. Prior to construction, advance notification of all affected residents and emergency 
services shall be made regarding one-way operation, specifying dates and hours of 
operation. 

76. CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL: All construction traffic and related vehicular routes, 
traffic control plan, and applicable pedestrian or traffic detour plans shall be submitted for 
review and approval by the Town Engineer prior to the issuance of an encroachment, 
grading or building permit. 

77. ADVANCE NOTIFICATION: Advance notification of all affected residents and emergency 
services shall be made regarding parking restriction, lane closure or road closure, with 
specification of dates and hours of operation. 

78. HAULING OF SOIL: Hauling of soil on- or off-site shall not occur during the morning or 
evening peak periods (between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and between 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 
p.m.), and at other times as specified by the Director of Parks and Public Works.  Prior to the 
issuance of a grading or building permit, the Owner and/or Applicant or their representative 
shall work with the Town Building Department and Engineering Division Inspectors to devise 
a traffic control plan to ensure safe and efficient traffic flow under periods when soil is 
hauled on or off the project site.  This may include, but is not limited to provisions for the 
Owner and/or Applicant to place construction notification signs noting the dates and time 
of construction and hauling activities, or providing additional traffic control.  Coordination 
with other significant projects in the area may also be required.  Cover all trucks hauling 
soil, sand and other loose debris. 

79. CONSTRUCTION NOISE: Between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., weekdays and 9:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. weekends and holidays, construction, alteration or repair activities shall 

Page 35



be allowed.  No individual piece of equipment shall produce a noise level exceeding eighty-
five (85) dBA at twenty-five (25) feet from the source.  If the device is located within a 
structure on the property, the measurement shall be made at distances as close to twenty-
five (25) feet from the device as possible.  The noise level at any point outside of the 
property plane shall not exceed eighty-five (85) dBA. 

80. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PLAN SHEET: Prior to the issuance of any grading or 
building permits, the Owner and/or Applicant’s design consultant shall submit a 
construction management plan sheet (full-size) within the plan set that shall incorporate at 
a minimum the Earth Movement Plan, Traffic Control Plan, Project Schedule, site security 
fencing, employee parking, construction staging area, materials storage area(s), concrete 
washout(s) and proposed outhouse locations.  Please refer to the Town’s Construction 
Management Plan Guidelines document for additional information. 

81. SANITARY SEWER BACKWATER VALVE: Drainage piping serving fixtures which have flood 
level rims less than twelve (12) inches (304.8 mm) above the elevation of the next upstream 
manhole and/or flushing inlet cover at the public or private sewer system serving such 
drainage piping shall be protected from backflow of sewage by installing an approved type 
backwater valve.  Fixtures above such elevation shall not discharge through the backwater 
valve, unless first approved by the Building Official.  The Town shall not incur any liability or 
responsibility for damage resulting from a sewer overflow where the property owner or 
other person has failed to install a backwater valve as defined in the Uniform Plumbing 
Code adopted by the Town and maintain such device in a functional operation condition.  
Evidence of West Sanitation District’s decision on whether a backwater device is needed 
shall be provided prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

82. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs): The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer is 
responsible for ensuring that all contractors are aware of all storm water quality measures 
and that such measures are implemented.  Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be 
maintained and be placed for all areas that have been graded or disturbed and for all 
material, equipment and/or operations that need protection.  Removal of BMPs (temporary 
removal during construction activities) shall be replaced at the end of each working day.  
Failure to comply with the construction BMP will result in the issuance of correction notices, 
citations, or stop work orders. 

83. SITE DESIGN MEASURES: All projects shall incorporate at least one of the following 
measures: 
a. Protect sensitive areas and minimize changes to the natural topography. 
b. Minimize impervious surface areas. 
c. Direct roof downspouts to vegetated areas. 
d. Use porous or pervious pavement surfaces on the driveway, at a minimum. 
e. Use landscaping to treat stormwater.  

84. UNLAWFUL DISCHARGES: It is unlawful to discharge any wastewater, or cause hazardous 
domestic waste materials to be deposited in such a manner or location as to constitute a 
threatened discharge, into storm drains, gutters, creeks or the San Francisco Bay.  Unlawful 
discharges to storm drains include, but are not limited to: discharges from toilets, sinks, 
industrial processes, cooling systems, boilers, fabric cleaning, equipment cleaning or vehicle 
cleaning. 

Page 36



85. EROSION CONTROL: Interim and final erosion control plans shall be prepared and submitted 
to the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department.  A maximum of two 
(2) weeks is allowed between clearing of an area and stabilizing/building on an area if 
grading is allowed during the rainy season.  Interim erosion control measures, to be carried 
out during construction and before installation of the final landscaping, shall be included.  
Interim erosion control method shall include, but are not limited to: silt fences, fiber rolls 
(with locations and details), erosion control blankets, Town standard seeding specification, 
filter berms, check dams, retention basins, etc.  Provide erosion control measures as 
needed to protect downstream water quality during winter months.  The Town of Los Gatos 
Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department and the Building 
Department will conduct periodic NPDES inspections of the site throughout the recognized 
storm season to verify compliance with the Construction General Permit and Stormwater 
ordinances and regulations. 

86. DUST CONTROL: Blowing dust shall be reduced by timing construction activities so that 
paving and building construction begin as soon as possible after completion of grading, and 
by landscaping disturbed soils as soon as possible.  Further, water trucks shall be present 
and in use at the construction site.  All portions of the site subject to blowing dust shall be 
watered as often as deemed necessary by the Town, or a minimum of three (3) times daily, 
or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers on all unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging 
areas at construction sites in order to insure proper control of blowing dust for the duration 
of the project. Watering on public streets shall not occur.  Streets shall be cleaned by street 
sweepers or by hand as often as deemed necessary by the Town Engineer, or at least once a 
day.  Watering associated with on-site construction activity shall take place between the 
hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. and shall include at least one (1) late-afternoon watering to 
minimize the effects of blowing dust.  All public streets soiled or littered due to this 
construction activity shall be cleaned and swept on a daily basis during the workweek to the 
satisfaction of the Town.  Demolition or earthwork activities shall be halted when wind 
speeds (instantaneous gusts) exceed twenty-five (25) miles per hour (MPH).  All trucks 
hauling soil, sand, or other loose debris shall be covered. 

87. DETAILING OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES: Prior to the issuance of any 
grading or building permits, all pertinent details of any and all proposed stormwater 
management facilities, including, but not limited to, ditches, swales, pipes, bubble-ups, dry 
wells, outfalls, infiltration trenches, detention basins and energy dissipaters, shall be 
provided on submitted plans, reviewed by the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public 
Works Department, and approved for implementation. 

88. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES: All construction shall conform to the latest requirements of the 
CASQA Stormwater Best Management Practices Handbooks for Construction Activities and 
New Development and Redevelopment, the Town's grading and erosion control ordinance, 
and other generally accepted engineering practices for erosion control as required by the 
Town Engineer when undertaking construction activities. 

89. WATER FEATURES: New swimming pools, hot tubs, spas and/or fountains shall have a 
connection to the sanitary sewer system, subject to West Valley Sanitation District’s 
authority and standards, to facilitate draining events.  Discharges from this/these feature(s) 
shall be directed to the sanitary sewer and are not allowed into the storm drain system. 

Page 37



90. SITE DRAINAGE: Rainwater leaders shall be discharged to splash blocks.  No through curb 
drains will be allowed.  Any storm drain inlets (public or private) directly connected to public 
storm system shall be stenciled/signed with appropriate “NO DUMPING - Flows to Bay” 
NPDES required language.  On-site drainage systems for all projects shall include one of the 
alternatives included in section C.3.i of the Municipal Regional NPDES Permit.  These include 
storm water reuse via cisterns or rain barrels, directing runoff from impervious surfaces to 
vegetated areas and use of permeable surfaces.  If stormwater treatment facilities are to be 
used they shall be placed a minimum of ten (10) feet from the adjacent property line and/or 
right-of-way.  Alternatively, the facility(ies) may be located with an offset between 5 and 10 
feet from the adjacent property and/or right-of-way line(s) if the responsible engineer in 
charge provides a stamped and signed letter that addresses infiltration and states how 
facilities, improvements and infrastructure within the Town’s right-of-way (driveway 
approach, curb and gutter, etc.) and/or the adjacent property will not be adversely affected.  
No improvements shall obstruct or divert runoff to the detriment of an adjacent, 
downstream or down slope property. 

91. SILT AND MUD IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY: It is the responsibility of Contractor and 
homeowner to make sure that all dirt tracked into the public right-of-way is cleaned up on a 
daily basis.  Mud, silt, concrete and other construction debris SHALL NOT be washed into 
the Town’s storm drains. 

92. GOOD HOUSEKEEPING: Good housekeeping practices shall be observed at all times during 
the course of construction.  All construction shall be diligently supervised by a person or 
persons authorized to do so at all times during working hours.  The Owner, Applicant and/or 
Developer's representative in charge shall be at the job site during all working hours.  
Failure to maintain the public right-of-way according to this condition may result in 
penalties and/or the Town performing the required maintenance at the Owner, Applicant 
and/or Developer's expense. 

93. COVERED TRUCKS: All trucks transporting materials to and from the site shall be covered. 
 

 
TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

 
94. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED.  An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall be installed 

in one- and two-family dwellings as follows: In all new one- and two-family dwellings and 
existing one- and two-family dwellings when additions are made that increase the building 
area to more than 3,600 square feet.  Exception: A one-time addition to an existing building 
that does not total more than 1,000 square feet of building area.  NOTE: The owner(s), 
occupant(s) and any contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) are responsible for consulting with 
the water purveyor of record in order to determine if any modification or upgrade of the 
existing water service is required.  A State of California license (C-16) Fire Protection 
Contractor shall submit plans, calculations, a completed permit application and appropriate 
fees to the Santa Clara County Fire Department for review and approval prior to beginning 
their work.  CRC Sec. 313.2 as adopted and amended by LGTC. 

95. WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS.  Potable water supplies shall be protected from 
contamination caused by fire protection water supplies.  It is the responsibility of the 

Page 38



applicant and any contractors and subcontractors to contact the water purveyor supplying 
the site of such project, and to comply with the requirements of that purveyor.  Such 
requirements shall be incorporated into the design of any water-based fire protection 
systems, and/or fire suppression water supply systems or storage containers that may be 
physically connected in any manner to an appliance capable of causing contamination of the 
potable water supply of the purveyor of record.  Final approval of the system(s) under 
consideration will not be granted by the Santa Clara County Fire Department until 
compliance with the requirements of the water purveyor of record are documented by that 
purveyor as having been met by the applicant(s).  2016 CFC Sec. 903.3.5 and Health and 
Safety Code 13114.7. 

96. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: New and existing buildings shall have approved address 
numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is 
plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property.  These numbers 
shall contrast with their background.  Where required by fire code official, address numbers 
shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response.  
Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.  Numbers shall be a 
minimum of 4 inches (101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke with of 0.5 inch (12.7mm).  
Where access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from the 
public way, a monument, pole or other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure.  
Address numbers shall be maintained.  CFC Sec. 505.1. 

97. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFETY: All construction sites must comply with applicable 
provisions of the CFC Chapter 33 and Santa Clara County Fire Department Standard Detail 
and Specification S1-7.  Provide notations on subsequent plan submittals, as appropriate to 
the project.  CFC Ch. 33. 

 
N:\DEV\CONDITIONS\2019\Central 56 - DRC - 07-30-19.docx 

 

Page 39



EXHIBIT 4
Page 40



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 41



EXHIBIT 5
Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 45



EXHIBIT 6Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



EXHIBIT 7
Page 54



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 55



EXHIBIT 8

Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 63



EXHIBIT 9Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



EXHIBIT 10

Page 100



Page 101



110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 408-354-6874 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS  

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
COMMITTEE REPORT 

MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 
JULY 30, 2019 

The Development Review Committee of the Town of Los Gatos conducted a Regular Meeting on 
July 30, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. 

ROLL CALL  
Present: Sally Zarnowitz, CDD Planning; Robert Gray, CDD Building; Kevin Bagley, PPW 
Engineering; Tracy Staiger, SCCFD  

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 10:00 AM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Robert Gray led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS 
- None

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. 56 Central Avenue
Architecture and Site Application S-18-050

Requesting approval for demolition of an existing accessory structure, construction of a
new single-family residence with reduced setbacks, and removal of large protected
trees on property zoned R-1:10. APN 529-35-068.
PROPERTY OWNER: Andrew and Ashley Bothman
APPLICANT: Richard Hartman
PROJECT PLANNER: Jocelyn Shoopman

Jocelyn Shoopman, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 

Opened Public Comment. 

Susan Branch 
- She lives at 7 Central Court.  She is concerned about the reduction in side setbacks, and

the removal of trees in the neighborhood of older one-story homes.  There are other

EXHIBIT 11Page 102



PAGE 2 OF 3 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES OF JULY 30, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\DRC\Min 2019\7-30-19.docx 
 

new homes in the area that do not have reduced side setbacks.  She objects to the 
removal of the Blue Oak (Tree # 527) in the side setback.   

 
Lesley Morley 

- She lives at 60 Central Avenue adjacent to the subject site. She is concerned about the 
removal of trees, which provide screening from her property; and the distance from her 
home to the proposed home, particularly to the proposed balcony. The property line 
should be surveyed; the grading should be done with care, especially with the tree 
removals; and the home should not block her hillside views. 

 
Staff noted that conditions of approval could be added that along the southern elevation 
adjacent to 60 Central Avenue: windows be clerestory or frosted, the balcony be screened with 
vegetation and/or lattice, and additional screening trees be planted.  
 
Closed Public Comment  
 
Committee members discussed the matter. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Robert Gray to continue to August 13, 2019. Seconded by 

Tracy Staiger. 
 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. 1 N. Santa Cruz Avenue 
Conditional Use Permit Application U-19-008   
 
Requesting approval for a Conditional Use Permit for a restaurant with beer and wine 
service (Oren’s Hummus) on property zoned C-2:LHP. APN 510-44-077. 
PROPERTY OWNER: James E. Brady 
APPLICANT: Ahmad Mohazab 
PROJECT PLANNER: Sean Mullin  

 
Sean Mullin, Associate Planner, presented the staff report.  The project description has been 
corrected and the project has been re-noticed for the August 6, 2019 Development Review 
Committee meeting. 
 
Opened and closed Public Comment. 
 
Committee members discussed the matter. 
 
 

Page 103



PAGE 3 OF 3 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES OF JULY 30, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\DRC\Min 2019\7-30-19.docx 
 

MOTION: Motion by Robert Gray to drop the item from the agenda for 
consideration at the August 6, 2019 meeting.   
 
Seconded by Kevin Bagley. 

 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
- None 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
The meeting adjourned at 10:20 a.m. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
_____________________________________ 
/s/ Sally Zarnowitz, Planning Manager 
 

Page 104



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 105



110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 408-354-6874 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS  

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
COMMITTEE REPORT 

MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 
AUGUST 13, 2019 

The Development Review Committee of the Town of Los Gatos conducted a Regular Meeting on 
August 13, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. 

ROLL CALL  
Present: Sally Zarnowitz, CDD Planning; Robert Gray, CDD Building; Kevin Bagley, PPW 
Engineering; Mike Weisz, PPW Engineering; Katherine Baker, SCCFD 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 10:00 AM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Committee members recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  The audience was invited to participate. 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS 
- None

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. 16336 Shady View Lane
Architecture and Site Application S-18-060

Requesting approval for demolition of an existing single-family residence and
construction of a new single-family residence on property prezoned R-1:8.
APN 532-03-034.
PROPERTY OWNER: Allan and Katty Coulson
APPLICANT: Lerika Liscano, De Mattei Construction
PROJECT PLANNER: Ryan Safty

Ryan Safty, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 

Opened Public Comment. 

Matt Currie 
- He lives at 16330 Shannon Road adjacent to the subject site and strongly opposes the

project.  He objects to the second floor balcony which impacts their privacy, and the
second floor massing which is unarticulated along the side elevation facing their
property.  Their two-story home was leveraged to allow new construction that is

EXHIBIT 12Page 106



PAGE 2 OF 3 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES OF AUGUST 13, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\DRC\Min 2019\8-13-19.docx 
 

inappropriate, ignoring certain provisions of the Design Guidelines.  Consistency and 
predictability are needed.   

 
Carrie Currie 

- She also lives at 16330 Shannon Road adjacent to the subject site and opposes the 
project.  They had to articulate the roofline on their two-story house, and she had 
hoped for some sensitivity.  She is concerned about the safety of the new driveway on 
Shannon Road, the massing of the second story along the side property line with a 
roofline that lacks articulation, and the privacy of the second story balcony that 
encroaches on their privacy.  They tried to work with their neighbors in the construction 
of their house and would like to see collaboration here. 

 
Bob Boschert 

- He lives at 16310 Shannon Road near the subject site and received notice of the hearing 
for the new house.    

 
The applicant noted that the project is more complicated because it is on a corner lot. They’ve 
worked to respond to the neighbors’ requests by incorporating raised window sill heights and 
obscured glass at the second story along the side property line, increased setbacks and a 
screening wall at the second floor balcony, and additional trees added to the landscape plan to 
address privacy along the side property line.   
 
Closed Public Comment. 
 
Committee members discussed the matter.   
 
 
MOTION: Motion by Robert Gray to approve. Seconded by Mike Weisz. 
 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. 56 Central Avenue 
Architecture and Site Application S-18-050   
 
Requesting approval for demolition of an existing accessory structure, construction of  
a new single-family residence with reduced setbacks, and removal of large protected 
trees on property zoned R-1:10. APN 529-35-068. 
PROPERTY OWNER: Andrew and Ashley Bothman 
APPLICANT: Richard Hartman 
PROJECT PLANNER: Jocelyn Shoopman 
Continued from July 30, 2019 

 
Jocelyn Shoopman, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 

Page 107



PAGE 3 OF 3 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES OF AUGUST 13, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\DRC\Min 2019\8-13-19.docx 
 

Opened Public Comment. 
 
Ashley Bothman 

- She and her husband are the applicants and look forward to raising their family in Los 
Gatos.  They have worked to address their neighbors’ concerns and build relationships.   

 
Lesley Morley 

- She lives at 60 Central Avenue adjacent to the subject site and opposes the reduced side 
setback along her property.  She has requested that a survey be conducted prior to 
Planning approval, and the balconies be screened and reduced in size.     

 
Susan Branch 

- She lives at 7 Central Court and is concerned about the reduced side setbacks.   
 
Andrew Bothman 

- They have correspondence about the reduced side setbacks during the negotiations 
with the adjacent neighbor who sold them the property.  They have agreed to raise the 
windows, screen the balcony, and plant six 15-gallon trees along the southern property 
line to achieve greater privacy.    

 
Closed Public Comment. 
 
Committee members discussed the matter. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Kevin Bagley to approve. Seconded by Robert Gray. 
 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
- None 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
The meeting adjourned at 10:30 a.m. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
_____________________________________ 
/s/ Sally Zarnowitz, Planning Manager 

Page 108



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 109



PLEASE TYPE or PRINT NEATLY

TOWN OF LOS GATOS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTME 
110 E. Main Street 

Los Gatos, CA 95030 

APPEAL OF THE DECISION OF 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

PAID 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS

fJ p"'�,q 

I, the undersigned, do hereby appeal a decision of the DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITIEE as follows:

DATE OF DECISION: e \ r1:>'\\ G\
RECEIVED 

PROJECT/APPLICATION:
AUG 2 3 2019 

LOCATION:

1 /' J - TOWN OF LOS GATOSvoe:::::, � o,..... -VS. 1 CA 4 5l::g O PLANNING DIVISION

LIST REASONS WHY THE APPEAL SHOULD BE GRANTED:

?-e� �l.V\-ed t-e..-+�. 

(If more space is needed, attach additional sheets.)

IMPORTANT: 

1. Appeal must be filed not more than ten (10) days after the decision is rendered by the Development Review
Committee. If the tenth (10th) day is a Saturday, Sunday, or Town holiday, then the appeal may be filed on
the workday immediately following the tenth (10th) day, usually a Monday. 

2. The appeal shall be set for the first regular meeting of the Planning Commission which the business of the 
planning commission will permit, more than five (5) after the date of the filing of the appeal. The Planning
Commission may hear the matter a new and render a new decision in the matter.

3. You will be notified, in writing, of the appeal date. 
4. Contact the project planner to determine what material is required to be submitted for the public hearing.

RETURN APPEAL FORM TO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

PRINT NAME: ____._l"""-'e.s.=· ""-'\'-'--, t-=-----t'----'\'-"-o-'-""-l ec......,7-
0 \ � � \,C\ DATE: --------------

SIGNATURE: __..g
"""""'
d_
_....
.u ..... ' ___,(YJ___,_,,�--"'-"'�"""'1-----

ADDRESS: __ (a�Q�Ce�V\�jv�:0.----'\_�-�-V�e_-,_ 

PHONE: /...J.o� {oS""(D .... 7 Joo EMAIL: \rnov-\e
1 

e; Sttv-eVto �t:ou.o corn
*********************************************************** **************�** r� 

DATE OF PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING: 

COMMISSION ACTION: 1. 
2. 
3. 

\ PLAPPEAL 
PLAPPEAL 
PLAPPEAL 

OFFICE USE ONLY

$ 221.00 Residential) 
$ 882.00 Commercial 

$ 90.00 Tree Appeals 

N:\DEV\FORMS\Planning\2019-20 Forms\Appeal - DRC.docx 

DATE: ____ _ _ _  _ 
DATE: _ __ _ ___ _ 
DATE: ------- -

07/01/2019 

EXHIBIT 13
Page 110



Page 111



EXHIBIT 14Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 117



N

UP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX X X
X X X X X X X X X X X

X X X X X X X
XXXDEMODEMODEMO

D
E

M
O

DEMODEMO

DEMO
D

E
M

O

EXIST

E
XIS

T

D
E

M
O

D
E

M
O

DEMO

S S S S S S S S S S

E
XI

S
T

E
XI

S
T

E
XI

S
T

EXIST

E
XI

S
T

E
XI

S
T

E
XI

S
T

E
XIS

T

EXIST

E
XIS

T
E

XIS
T

EXIST
EXIST

E
XI

S
T

EXIST EXIST

E
XI

S
T

E / L E / L E / L
GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS

C / W C / W C / W C / W C / W C / W

5
'-

0
"

5
'-

0
"

25'-0"

5
'-

0
"

25'-0"

26'-0"

16
'-

0
"

7,737 sq. ft.
0.18 acres

9,220 sq. ft.
0.21 acres

11,281 sq. ft.
0.26 acres

WM

 COL  FD.PK

SSMH

JP

24"TREE

12"CEDAR

  DI

WATER

POOL EQ

18"OAK

2-7"TREE

 16"OAK

 14"OAK

10"OAK

16"OAK

 12"OAK

 IP

CO

SSMH

18"TREE

CO

 8"OAK

FF

FF

N 58º 45' 00" W  236.40'

N
 0

8
º 12' 0

0
"  E

 
 4

9
.20

'

N 16%%D31'10" W    80.46'

N
2

4
%

%
D

5
9

'2
1"

E
5

0
.9

5
'

N 58%%D45'00" W 152.00'

N
3

1%
%

D
15

'0
0

"
E

15
0

.0
0

'
S

D
W

K

D
W

Y
P

LA
N

TE
R

C
U

R
B

G
U

TT
E

R

COL

BRICK

WOOD
DECK

SHED

H
E

D
G

E

L A W N

CONC.

DWY

S
TE

P
S

STEPS

REMOVE GAZEBO

STE
PS

STEPS

TANK

STEPS

3
.5

'S
T.W

A
LL

2
' S

T.W
A

LL

(E)HOUSE

P O O L

CO
N

C. W
K

STEPS

DECK

STEPS
STEPS

CONC.

2
'S

T.
W

A
LL

POOL HOUSE

STEPS

CONC. SW
ALE

2
' S

TO
N

E
 W

A
LL

2
'S

TO
N

E
 W

A
LL

2
'H

IG
H

REMOVE
SHED

2
' S

TO
N

E
W

A
LL

S
D

W
K

L A W N

(E
)G

A
R

A
G

E

R
E

M
O

VE
 P

LA
N

TE
R

S

C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E

OA
K H

ILL W
A

Y

5
10

5
2

0

520

5
3

0

530

5
3

0

5
4

0

540

5
4

0

5
5

0

550

556

5
5

8

5
5

4

554

552

5
5

2

552

548

A.P.N. 529-35-041

AREA = 28,237 S.F. NET (0.648 ACRES)

AVERAGE SLOPE 19.5%

 FD.PK

 FD.PK

N
3

1°
15

'0
0

"W
 1

5
0

.0
0

'

5
0

.0
0

'
5

0
.0

0
'

5
0

.0
0

'

7.03'

73.43'

0.65'

5
0

.3
0

'

19
.9

6
' (

19
.9

2
')

2
19

.7
4

' (
2

19
.8

3
')

N58°45'00"W 157.49'

S  58° 45' 00"   E  211.93'

LOT 59

LOT 60

LOT 61

MALONE

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

REQ'D SETBACK

REQ'D SETBACK

2-CAR GARAGE

DRIVEWAY

NEW PAVER DRIVEWAY

EXISTING STONE COLUMN

REMOVE EXISTING STONE COLUMN
NEW 2-STORY HOUSE

PORCH

PAVER PATIO BELOW 
DECK ABOVE

BALCONY ABOVE

LINE OF SECOND STORY

LRDA

10'0 20' 30' 40'

OAK HILL W
AY

C
E

N
TR

A
L A

VE

NEW STONE COLUMN

#515 - 8" ITALIAN CYPRESS

#516 - 12" ITALIAN CYPRESS

#517 - 11" COAST LIVE OAK

#518 - 9" COAST LIVE OAK

#519 - 12" COAST LIVE OAK

#520 - 28" COAST LIVE OAK

#521 - 24" DATE PALM

#522 - 4" ORANGE

#523 - 34" STONE PINE

#524 - 27" DEODAR CEDAR

#525 - 22" COAST LIVE OAK

#526 - 27" COAST LIVE OAK#527 - 24" BLUE OAK

#528 - 28" BLUE OAK

#529 - 16"
COAST LIVE OAK

#530 - 5"
COAST LIVE OAK

#531 - 15"
COAST LIVE OAK

#532 - 4"
BAY LAUREL

#533 - 13" COAST LIVE OAK

#534 - 13" COAST LIVE OAK

R
E

M
O

VE
 P

LA
N

TE
R

S

N
.3

1º
 1

5
 '0

0
" 

E
.

W/M

C.O. C.O. C.O.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

REMOVE EXISTING GATE

NEW DRIVE APRON

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
O

O
L

PAVER PATIO 

NEW MITIGATION / PRIVACY
SCREENING TREES

529 - 35 - 041    LOT61

R - 1 : 10

11,281  S.F.

FIRST
FLOOR:

SECOND
FLOOR:

TOTAL:

1,435  S.F.

717   S.F.

F.A.R. ALLOWED:

PROPOSED:

1,230  S.F. 2,665  S.F.

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

A
.I.

A
.

H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

A-2

A.P.N. :

A-1

ZONING:

OCCUPANCY GROUP:  R-3, U

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet 

of  Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION: VB

LOT SIZE:

EXISTING HOUSE:

NEW HOUSE:

VICINITY MAPSITE DATA

SITE PLAN

GARAGE:

1" = 10'-0"

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH 2016 CBC, CRC, CMC, CPC,  CEC,
CFC, CAL GREEN, CAL ENERGY CODE, AND LOCAL ORD.

1" = 10'-0"

8 - 30 - 18

1,188  S.F.   (TO BE REMOVED)

.35 - [(8.235 - 5) / 25] X .20 = .324
8235.13, X .324 = 2,668  S.F.

AVE. SLOPE = 18.5%

LOT SIZE REDUCTION = 10 + ( 2 X 8.5) = 27%

11,281 X .27 = 3,045.87

11,281 - 3,045.87 = 8,235.13  S.F. NET

F.A.R. = .35 -[ ( A-5) / 25 ] X .20 =

8235.13, X .324 = 2,668  S.F.

1,590  S.F.CELLAR:

2,665  S.F.

SCOPE OF WORK:

REMOVE EXISTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES.

BUILD NEW 2-STORY HOUSE WITH ATTACHED 2-CAR GARAGE.

3 BEDROOMS, 2 BATHS ON 2nd FLOOR.

1 BEDROOM, 1 BATH ON 1st FLOOR WITH LIVING, FAMILY, DINING, KITCHEN.

CELLAR BELOW WITH 1 BEDROOM, 1 BATH, REC ROOM.

REMOVE TREES #521, 523, 525, 526, 527

A.D.U. ABOVE GARAGE SHAAL BE UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT.

SHEET INDEX

A-1 SITE PLAN
A-2 1ST FLOOR PLAN
A-3 2ND FLOOR PLAN

A-4 CELLAR FLOOR PLAN

A-5 ELEVATIONS

A-6 ELEVATIONS, SECTIONS

A-7 SECTION

A-8 AREA CALCS

A-9 STREET SECTION/SCAPE

A-10 BUILD IT GREEN, SHADOW STUDY

C-1 GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

C-1 EROSION CONTROL PLAN

L1.01 LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN

L1.02 CONCEPTION PLANTING PLAN

L1.03 PLANTING & MATERIALS BOARD

L1.04 PLANTING & MATERIALS BOARD

PLANNING
10-9-18

LOT COV. ALLOWED:

PROPOSED:

8235.13, X .40 = 3,294  S.F.

3,129 = 37.9%

PLANNING
12-10-18

319   S.F.FRONT PORCH:

COVERED PATIO: 632   S.F.

FOR GRADING AND DRAINAGE - SEE CIVIL SHEETS

FIRE SPRINKLERS SHALL BE PROVIDED

 CUT (CY) FILL (CY)

GARAGE  7  0

BASEMENT  841  0

DRIVEWAY  4  0

POOL  92

YARD  119 60

TOTAL 1063 60

EXPORT 1003 C.Y.

EARTHWORK QUANTITIES

PLANNING
3-27-19

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

EXHIBIT 15

Page 118



N

WALL TYPES

NEW WALLS

1-HOUR FIRE WALLS, INTERIOR - SEE

1-HOUR FIRE WALLS, EXTERIOR - SEE

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

DN

Wine Cellar

3050FX3050FX

3
0

8
0

14
8

0
FX

2060SC2060SC4046DC3046DC

4
0

6
0

D
C

5
2

8
0

2
8

8
0

2268

2680

70
6

0
TC

3080

3
0

8
0

3080

2
8

8
0

12
0

8
0

2
6

5
6

4060DC 2040SC
3080

3050FX 3050FX

12
0

8
0

9590

4014PT

6
0

6
8

2
8

8
0

2068

8
0

8
0

8
0

8
0

DN

UP

UP

3'-6"4'-0"3'-10" 2'-2"2'-0"2'-4"

1'-0" 2'-0" 6'-0" 2'-0" 1'-0"1'-0" 3'-0" 10'-10" 4'-0" 4'-6"

16'-0" 23'-4" 5'-4" 12'-0" 8'-0" 26'-8"

91'-4"

2'-0" 1'-6"
5

'-6
"

5
'-0

"
2

1'-
0

"

3
9

'-8
"

13
'-8

"

12'-0"3'-0"7'-6"3'-0"3'-0"3'-0"2'-6"

34'-0"4'-2"6'-6"2'-4"11'-4"5'-3"11'-3"20'-0"

74'-10"

1'-
2

"
8

'-7
"

1'-
6

"
8

'-7
"

1'-
2

"

18
'-0

"
16

'-2
"

3
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

1'-
2

"
3

'-0
"

12
'-0

"
3

'-
0

"

4'-0"

12'-0"5'-4"

6
'-0

"
7'

-0
"

8
'-8

"
4

'-0
"

7'
-1

1"

3
'-1

0
"

4
'-6

"

3
4

'-2
"

4'-4"

4
'-0

"

1'-6"

5
'-2

"

4'-1" X 6'-0"

1468 SQ FT

10'-10" X 11'-10"

18'-6" X 19'-1"

11'-0" X 12'-6"

5'-2" X 5'-5"

5'-8" X 5'-3"

3'-8" X 6'-8"

5'-8" X 3'-8"

11'-2" X 7'-7"

5'-0" X 5'-6"

4'-1" X 9'-2"

20'-0" X 34'-3"

14'-2" X 12'-8"

8'-8" X 14'-10"

8'-0" X 18'-8"

31'-8" X 20'-0"

5'-8" X 2'-6"

16'-8" X 6'-1"

3'-10" X 4'-6"

LIVING AREA

GARAGE

DINING

BEDROOM #4

BUTLER'S
PANTRY

FAMILY

DECK

PORCH

BATH

HALL

OPEN BELOW

PANTRY

CLOSET

KITCHEN

10'-0" CEILING

10'-0" CEILING

LIGHTWELL

SLAB @ 555.00'

FF @ 556.00'

NOOK

ENTRY

3
A-7

3
A-7

2
A-6

1
A-6

SHOWER

BALCONY ABOVE

RAIL

FIREBOX ABOVE

TANKLESS WATER HEATER (ADU)

ENTRY

3
6

" 
G

A
S

 C
O

O
K

TO
P

D/W

OVEN OVEN

42" REFDESK MICRO

48" LINEAR GAS FIREPLACE

RAIL

PORCH

D.S. D.S.

D.S.

D.S. D.S.

D.S.

A-2FIRST FLOOR PLAN

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

PLANNING
3-27-19

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 119



N

DN

DN

11
2

6
8

2016SC2016SC

2
0

4
0

S
C

4030DC4040DC

8
0

5
0

TC

4040DC 2010SC

6068 2868

3040SC 2030SC

2
0

3
0

S
C

6
0

5
0

D
C

4
0

4
0

D
C

2668

2868

2
6

6
8

2868

2668

2
6

6
8

2
0

6
8

5
0

4
0

D
C

6
0

6
8

2016SC2016SC2016SC

2
8

6
8

2
6

6
8

3050SC 3050SC 3050SC 3050SC

2
8

6
8

2
0

6
8

6
0

6
8

2
8

6
8

6'-4"4'-0"1'-0"8"2'-0"1'-2"8'-6"3'-0"1'-2" 2'-6"3'-0"5'-8"3'-0"4'-2"3'-0"9"3'-10"2'-0"8"

7'-0" 4'-0" 5'-0"

1'-2" 2'-0" 9'-8" 2'-0" 10" 1'-9" 2'-0" 1'-7" 1'-0" 2'-0" 6'-8" 2'-0" 1'-0"

8'-8" 15'-8" 5'-4" 12'-8"

42'-4"

6'-1" 4'-0" 3'-0"

13'-1" 2'-4" 16'-0" 2'-8"

1'-6"3'-0"2'-6"

7'-0"5'-0"11'-1"11'-0"6'-6"2'-4"11'-4"3'-10"12'-8"4'-0"

74'-9"

8"

1'-0"

16
'-2

"
14

'-6
"

3
0

'-8
"

1'-
0

"
4

'-0
"

6
"

5
'-6

"

3
'-6

"

1'-
6

"

3
'-4

 1
/2

"
8

'-0
"

3
'-4

 1
/2

"

6
'-3

"
14

'-9
"

1'-
6

"

3
9

'-8
"

4
'-2

"
5

'-0
"

4
'-3

 1
/2

"
10

 1
/2

"2
'-0

"
10

"

13
'-5

 1
/2

"
3

'-8
 1

/2
"

1'-
6

"

1'-
10

"
11

'-2
"

2
'-5

"
1'-

10
"

2
'-0

"
2

'-3
"

8
'-8

"
4

'-0
"

7'
-7

 1
/2

"
4

'-0
 1

/2
"

2
'-4

"

6
'-2

"
8

'-1
1"

9
'-2

"
6

'-1
"

15
'-5

"

4
'-6

"
5

'-4
"

3
'-1

0
"

7'
-4

"

2'-4"1'-10"

4'-2"

4'-0"

3'-0"

1'-
2

"
6

'-0
"

2
'-0

"

1230 SQ FT
LIVING AREA

OPEN BELOW

HALL

LIVING

BEDROOM #2

BATH

LAUNDRY
BEDROOM #3

MASTER BDRM

BATH

OPEN BELOW

BALCONY

CLOSET
SHOWER BEDROOM

SHOWER
BATH

HALL

ENTRY

8235.13, X .324 = 2,668  S.F.

FF = 567.23'

SLOPED CEILING

3
A-7

3
A-7

2
A-6

1
A-6

BATH

(A.D.U. = 685 S.F.)

RAIL

F.A.U. IN ATTIC

F.A.U. IN ATTIC (ADU)

GAS FIREPLACE

3
0

" 
G

A
S

R
A

N
G

E

D/W

36" REF

8'-0" CEILING

8'-0" CEILING

8'-0" CEILING

8'-0" CEILING

8'-0" CEILING

8'-0" CEILING

60" PRIVACY WALL WITH 12" LATTICE

WALL TYPES

NEW WALLS

1-HOUR FIRE WALLS, INTERIOR - SEE

1-HOUR FIRE WALLS, EXTERIOR - SEE

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

A-3SECOND FLOOR PLAN

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

PLANNING
3-27-19

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 120



N

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

SS

S

S
S S

S

S

R
E

F.

3
0

5
0

S
C

2
4

8
0

12
0

8
0

10
0

8
0 2

6
8

0

2880

50802480

6
0

8
0

2
4

8
0

2
0

6
83060SC

UP

UP

4'-0" 9'-6" 23'-4" 17'-4"

4'-5 1/2" 33'-8 1/2"

2
1'-

0
"

4
3

'-9
"

14
'-8

"
4

'-0
"

4
'-1

0
"

4
'-9

"

33'-8 1/2"9'-10 1/2"14'-9"5'-3"11'-3"

5
'-6

"

4'-0"

4
'-0

"
1'-

0
"

10
'-0

"
1'-

2
"

1'-
0

"
12

'-0
"

9
"

4
'-3

"

6
'-8

"
6

'-0
"

4'-9"2'-6"3'-8 1/2"11'-6"2'-0"

12'-0"5'-4"

3
'-1

0
"

4
'-7

 3
/4

"
14

'-8
"

5'-4"

12
'-2

"
18

'-0
"

13'-6"

9'-6"

33'-3" X 20'-0"

5'-7" X 5'-8"

16'-10" X 11'-0"

7'-7" X 7'-4"
3'-1" X 7'-0"

12'-11" X 7'-8"

22'-10" X 16'-2"

10'-2" X 13'-4"

4'-2" X 4'-5"

16'-1" X 12'-0"

18'-2" X 15'-4"

5'-6" X 5'-0"

2
'-8

" 
X 

5
'-

0
"

5'-0" X 6'-4"

23'-7" X 42'-6"

15'-10" X 25'-11"

9'-5" X 3'-7"

GARAGE SLAB ABOVE

GAME ROOM

BEDROOM #5

CLOSET
UTILITY

LIGHTWELL

WINE CLOSET

SLAB @ 544.27'

BATH

S
H

O
W

E
R

BATH

3
A-7

3
A-7

2
A-6

1
A-6

CLOSET

HALL

REC. ROOM

WET BAR

F.A.U.

TANKLESS WATER HEATER

RETAINING WALL

RETAINING WALL

COURT

PORCH

PLANTER

PLANTER

NON-HABITABLE SPACE

WALL TYPES

NEW WALLS

1-HOUR FIRE WALLS, INTERIOR - SEE

1-HOUR FIRE WALLS, EXTERIOR - SEE

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

A-4CELLAR FLOOR PLAN

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

PLANNING
3-27-19

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 121



10
'-0

"

4
'-0

"

10
'-1

"
4

'-6
"

544.27'
FIN. FLOOR - CELLAR

556.00'
FIN. FLOOR - 1st FLOOR

567.25'
FIN. FLOOR - 2nd FLOOR

575.25'
TOP PLATE - 2nd FLOOR

566.00'
TOP PLATE - 1st FLOOR

554.75'
TOP PLATE - CELLAR

579.75'
ROOF HEIGHT

550.75'
LOWEST FIN. GRADE AT CELLAR

4
'-0

"

2
5

'-0
"

8
'-0

"

1'-
6

"

2
5

'-0
"

2
5

'-0
"

5
'-

2
"

FIN. GRADE 554.40'

FIN. GRADE 550.75'

FIN. GRADE 546.60'

FIN. GRADE 554.00'

FIN. GRADE 553.80'

EXIST. GRADE 554.89'

EXIST. GRADE 553.73'

EXIST. GRADE 550.53'

EXIST. GRADE 548.00'

60" PRIVACY WALL WITH 12" LATTICE

10
'-0

"

4
'-0

"

10
'-1

"
4

'-6
"

544.27'
FIN. FLOOR - CELLAR

556.00'
FIN. FLOOR - 1st FLOOR

567.25'
FIN. FLOOR - 2nd FLOOR

575.25'
TOP PLATE - 2nd FLOOR

566.00'
TOP PLATE - 1st FLOOR

554.75'
TOP PLATE - CELLAR

579.75'
ROOF HEIGHT

550.75'
LOWEST FIN. GRADE AT CELLAR

3
5

'-0
"

12
4

12
4

12
4

12
2

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

(UPPER ROOF) COMPOSITION SHINGLES WITH 30
LB. FELT UNDERLAYMENT, CLASS 'A', INSTALL PER
MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

A-5
SOUTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION MIN. 4" TALL STREET ADDRESS NUMERALS
OF CONTRASTING COLOR TO BACKGROUND. 

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

FIN. GRADE:  554.40'

PLANNING
10-9-18

8'' LAP "HARDIE PLANK" SIDING OVER (1)
LAYER OF TYPE I. NO. 15 ASPHALT SATURATED

FELT COMPLYING TO ASTM D 226.

BOARD & BATT. "HARDIE PLANK" SIDING OVER
(1) LAYER OF TYPE I. NO. 15 ASPHALT

SATURATED FELT COMPLYING TO ASTM D 226.

USED BRICK VENEER AT LOWER RET. WALLS

CERTAINTEED LANDMARK PREMIUM
MAX. DEF. "MOIRE BLACK"

(LOWER ROOF) STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOF BY 'ASC PRODUCTS'.

COLOR: OLD TOWN GRAY

COLOR: KELLY-MOORE, #KM4810 "APPALACHIAN"

COLOR: KELLY-MOORE, #KM4810 "APPALACHIAN"

WOOD WINDOW/DOOR TRIM

COLOR: KELLY-MOORE,
#KM4810 "APPALACHIAN"

VINYL WINDOWS BY MILGARD, COLOR "BRONZ"

WALNUT FRONT DOOR

PLANNING
12-10-18

PLANNING
3-27-19

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,

NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 122



10
'-0

"

4
'-0

"

10
'-1

"
4

'-6
"

556.00'
FIN. FLOOR - 1st FLOOR

567.25'
FIN. FLOOR - 2nd FLOOR

575.25'
TOP PLATE - 2nd FLOOR

566.00'
TOP PLATE - 1st FLOOR

554.75'
TOP PLATE - CELLAR

579.75'
ROOF HEIGHT

550.75'
LOWEST FIN. GRADE AT CELLAR

3
'-6

"

3
'-6

"

4
'-0

"

2
5

'-0
"

2
5

'-0
"

2
5

'-0
"

FIN. GRADE = 554.75'

FIN. GRADE = 554.40' T.W. = 556.00'

EXIST. GRADE = 554.00'

FIN. GRADE = 552.00'

EXIST. GRADE

EXIST. GRADE

10
'-0

"

4
'-0

"

10
'-1

"
4

'-6
"

8
'-

0
"

544.27'
FIN. FLOOR - CELLAR

556.00'
FIN. FLOOR - 1st FLOOR

567.25'
FIN. FLOOR - 2nd FLOOR

575.25'
TOP PLATE - 2nd FLOOR

566.00'
TOP PLATE - 1st FLOOR

554.75'
TOP PLATE - CELLAR

579.75'
ROOF HEIGHT

550.75'
LOWEST FIN. GRADE AT CELLAR

10
'-0

"

4
'-0

"

10
'-1

"
4

'-6
"

8
'-0

"

544.27'
FIN. FLOOR - CELLAR

556.00'
FIN. FLOOR - 1st FLOOR

567.25'
FIN. FLOOR - 2nd FLOOR

575.25'
TOP PLATE - 2nd FLOOR

566.00'
TOP PLATE - 1st FLOOR

554.75'
TOP PLATE - CELLAR

579.75'
ROOF HEIGHT

550.75'
LOWEST FIN. GRADE AT CELLAR

12
2

12
4

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

A-6

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

SECTION SECTION11 22

1/2'' GYP. BD. (TYP.)

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

NORTH ELEVATION

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

PLANNING
3-27-19

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 123



10
'-0

"

4
'-0

"

10
'-1

"
4

'-6
"

8
'-0

"

544.27'
FIN. FLOOR - CELLAR

556.00'
FIN. FLOOR - 1st FLOOR

567.25'
FIN. FLOOR - 2nd FLOOR

575.25'
TOP PLATE - 2nd FLOOR

566.00'
TOP PLATE - 1st FLOOR

554.75'
TOP PLATE - CELLAR

579.75'
ROOF HEIGHT

550.75'
LOWEST FIN. GRADE AT CELLAR

4
 : 

124 : 12

4
 : 

12

4 : 12

4
 : 

12

4 : 12

4
 : 

12

4 : 12

4
 : 

12
4

 : 
12

2 : 12

2
 : 

12

2 : 12

2
 : 

12 4 : 12

4
 : 

12

4 : 12

4
 : 

12

4
 : 

12

4 : 12

4
 : 

12
4

 : 
12

4 : 12

2
 : 

12

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

A-7

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

SECTION33

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

ROOF PLAN
1/8" = 1'-0"

PLANNING
3-27-19

WOOD FINISHED CEILING

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 124



Wine Cellar

18
'-0

"

16'-6"

16
'-2

"

20'-0"

3
4

'-2
"

34'-2"

8'-0"40'-8"16'-0"

4'-0"

4
'-6

"
10

'-0
"

20'-2"

36'-8"

5
'-6

"

6
'-6

" 2
1'-

0
"

GARAGE

DINING

BEDROOM #4

BUTLER'S
PANTRY

FAMILY

DECK

PORCH

BATH

HALL

OPEN BELOW

PANTRY

CLOSET

KITCHEN

LIGHTWELL

NOOK

ENTRY

3
A-7

2
A-6

1
A-6

SHOWER

ENTRY

B

C

a

G-1

A

PORCH

G-2

31'-5"

2'-8"

14
'-9

"

2
1'-

0
"

1'-
6

"

5'-0"

13
'-3

 1
/2

"

12'-8"21'-0"

16'-6" 20'-2"

15
'-5

"
15

'-3
"

12'-0" 5
'-7

 5
/8

"

2
0

'-1
0

"

1230 SQ FT
LIVING AREA

OPEN BELOW

HALL

LIVING

BEDROOM #2

BATH

LAUNDRY
BEDROOM #3

MASTER BDRM

BATH

OPEN BELOW

BALCONY

CLOSET
SHOWER BEDROOM

SHOWER
BATH

HALL

ENTRY

BATH

D

E b

c

d

F

G

H

R
E

F.

24'-7 1/2"16'-8"

20'-6" 20'-2 15/16"

18
'-

8
"

2
1'-

0
"

18
'-0

"

4'-0"

GARAGE SLAB ABOVE

GAME ROOM

BEDROOM #5

CLOSET
UTILITY

LIGHTWELL

WINE CLOSET

BATH
S

H
O

W
E

R

BATH

CLOSET

HALL

REC. ROOM

1

2

3

4

PORCH

PLANTER

PLANTER

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

A-8

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

GARAGE

G-1 :  34.16 X 21 = 696.36
G-2 :  4 X 10 = 40

TOTAL GARAGE = 717  S.F.

AREA CALCULATIONS

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

PLANNING
3-27-19

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 125



50'-0"

20'-0"

80'-0"

19
'-

0
"

18
'-1

0
"

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

A-9

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

STREET SCAPE

STREET SECTION

56  (SUBJECT) 5854

DRIVEWAY

1" = 10'-0"

1" = 20'-0"

OAK HILL WAY

CENTRAL AVE.

DRIVEWAY
DRIVEWAY

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

67 CENTRAL AVE.60 CENTRAL AVE.57 CENTRAL AVE.51 CENTRAL AVE.45 CENTRAL AVE.39 CENTRAL AVE.

STREET SCAPE (ACROSS STREET)

25' TALL24' TALL
22' TALL

22' TALL

18' TALL

16' TALL

5756  (SUBJECT)

25' TALL

PLANNING
3-27-19

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,
NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

A.D.U. UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT,

NOT PART OF THIS REVIEW.

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 126



DN

DN

UP

UP

10'0 20' 30' 40'

9:00 AM 6/21/2018

12:0
0

 PM
 6

/21/20
18 3:0

0 P
M

 6
/2

1/2
018

OA
K H

ILL W
A

Y

C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E

SPLIT LEVEL HOUSE
22' TALL

1-STORY HOUSE
17' TALL

1-STORY HOUSE
17' TALL

GARAGE
12' TALL

DN

DN

UP

UP

10'0 20' 30' 40'

9:00 AM 12/21/2018

12:0
0

 PM
 12/21/20

18 3
:0

0
 P

M
 1

2/
2

1/
2

0
18

C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E

OA
K H

ILL W
A

Y

SPLIT LEVEL HOUSE
22' TALL

1-STORY HOUSE
17' TALL

1-STORY HOUSE
17' TALL

GARAGE
12' TALL

5
6

 C
E

N
TR

A
L 

A
VE

N
U

E
, L

O
S

 G
A

TO
S

, C
A

. 9
5

3
0

3

A-10

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
 F

O
R

:

A
N

D
R

E
W

 &
 A

S
H

LE
Y

 B
O

TH
M

A
N

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 A
. H

A
R

T
M

A
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

.I.
A

.
H
O
M
E
T
E
C

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

E
, I

N
C

.

61
9 

N
O

R
T

H
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, S
A

N
 J

O
SE

, C
A

 9
51

12
40

8/
99

5-
04

96
 

H
om

et
ec

A
rc

h@
G

m
ai

l.c
om

18-013

RAH

1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Scale

Drawn

Job

Sheet           

of              Sheets

REVISIONS      BY

8 - 30 - 18

PLANNING
10-9-18

PLANNING
12-10-18

SHADOW STUDY - DECEMBER

SHADOW STUDY - JUNE

PLANNING
3-27-19

PLANNING
9-3-19

Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 151



 

PREPARED BY: Jocelyn Shoopman 
 Associate Planner 
  
   
Reviewed by:  Planning Manager, Community Development Director, and Town Attorney 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 406-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                         
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 10/9/2019 

ITEM NO: 3 

ADDENDUM 

 

 

   
 

DATE:   October 8, 2019 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Architecture and Site Application S-18-050.  Project Location:  56 Central 
Avenue.  Property Owner:  Andrew and Ashley Bothman.  Applicant:  Rick 
Hartman, HOMETEC Architecture. Appellant: Leslie Morley.  Project Planner:  
Jocelyn Shoopman. 
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving 
a request for demolition of a dwelling, construction of a new single-family 
residence with reduced setbacks, and removal of large protected trees on 
property zoned R-1:10.  APN 529-35-068. 

 
REMARKS:  
 
The Architecture and Site application number was inadvertently identified as S-17-047 in the 
subject section of the staff report.  This addendum report correctly identifies the Architecture 
and Site application number as S-18-050. 
 
Exhibit 18 includes an additional letter, neighborhood square footage, and drawings provided 
by the appellant. 
 
EXHIBITS:  
 
Previously received with October 9, 2019 Staff Report:  
1. Location Map 
2. Required Findings and Considerations (two pages) 
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval (14 pages) 
4. Project data sheet (two pages) 
5. Project description, received July 11, 2019 (three pages) 
6. Letter of justification for reduced setbacks, received August 12, 2019 (eight pages) 
7. Letter of justification for exceptions to HDS&G, received May 3, 2019 (one page) 
8. Consulting Architect Report, dated November 5, 2018 (seven pages) 

Page 152



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: 56 Central Avenue/S-18-050 
DATE: October 8, 2019 
 

 
 

EXHIBITS (continued):   
 
9. Consulting Arborist Report, dated October 11, 2018 (36 pages) 
10. Applicant’s Biologist Report, received January 23, 2019 (two pages) 
11. July 30, 2019 Development Review Committee meeting minutes (three pages) 
12. August 13, 2019 Development Review Committee meeting minutes (three pages) 
13. Appeal of Development Review Committee received August 23, 2019 (two pages) 
14. Applicant’s response letter to appeal, received September 9, 2019 (five pages) 
15. Development plans, received September 5, 2019 (18 sheets)  
16. Additional letter from the appellant, received October 4, 2019 (two pages) 
17. Public comments received between 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, August 13, 2019, and 11:00 a.m., 

Friday, October 4, 2019 
 
Received with this Addendum Report: 
18. Additional letter and attachments from the appellant, received between 11:01 a.m., Friday, 

October 4, 2019 and 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
 

Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



 

PREPARED BY: Ryan Safty 
 Associate Planner 
  
   

Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                         
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 10/09/2019 

ITEM NO: 4 

 
   

 

DATE:   October 3, 2019 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Architecture and Site Application S-18-060.  Project Location: 16336 Shady 
View Lane.  Appellant: Matt and Carrie Currie.  Applicant:  De Mattei 
Construction.  Property Owner: Allan and Katty Coulson.  
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee Decision approving 
a request for demolition of a single-family residence and construction of a 
new single-family residence on property zoned R-1:8. APN 532-03-034. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Deny the appeal and uphold the decision of the Development Review Committee to approve 
the application, subject to the recommended conditions of approval.   
 
PROJECT DATA:   
 
General Plan Designation:   Low Density Residential   
Zoning Designation:                    Single-Family Residential, R-1:8   
Applicable Plans & Standards:  General Plan; Residential Design Guidelines      
Parcel Size:            8,610 square feet  
Surrounding Area: 
 

 

 

 

 Existing Land Use General Plan Land Use Designation Zoning 

North Park  Open Space  R-1:8 

South Residential Low Density Residential  R-1:8 

East Residential Low Density Residential R-1:8  

West Residential Low Density Residential R-1:8 

Page 170



PAGE 2 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
CEQA:   
 
The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation 
of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New Construction or Conversion of 
Small Structures.   
 
FINDINGS: 
 
 As required, pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 

Environmental Quality Act, this project is Categorically Exempt, Section 15303: New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.  

 As required by Section 29.10.09030(e) of the Town Code for the demolition of existing 
structures. 

 As required by the Residential Design Guidelines that the project complies with the 
Residential Design Guidelines. 

 

CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
 As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code for granting approval of an Architecture 

and Site application. 
 
ACTION: 
 

The decision of the Planning Commission is final unless appealed within ten days. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject property is located on the south-eastern corner of Shannon Road and Shady View 
Lane (Exhibit 1).  The lot is approximately 8,610 square feet with an existing 1,056-square foot 
single-story residence.  The immediate neighborhood contains a mix of one- and two-story 
residences.  
 
On December 17, 2018, an Architecture and Site application was submitted for the subject site.  
The applicant proposes to demolish the existing residence and construct a new 2,699-square 
foot two-story residence with a 423-square foot attached garage fronting on Shannon Road 
(Exhibit 18). 
 
The proposed project meets all technical requirements of the Town Code including parking, 
setbacks, height, floor area, and building coverage.   
 
On August 13, 2019, the Development Review Committee approved the proposed project 
(Exhibit 13).  The application is being reviewed by the Planning Commission because the 
decision of the Development Review Committee has been appealed (Exhibit 14). 

Page 171



PAGE 3 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
A. Architecture and Site Application  
 

Architecture and Site approval is required to construct a new single-family residence.  The 
story poles, netting, and project identification sign have been in place since July 2, 2019 to 
aid in the review of the project.  

 
B. Location and Surrounding Neighborhood  

 
The subject property is located at the corner of Shannon Road and Shady View Lane, across 
Shannon Road from Blossom Hill Park (Exhibit 1).  The surrounding properties are mostly 
one-and two-story single-family residences, with a mix of architectural styles.  

 
C. Zoning Compliance 

 
The property is zoned R-1:8, which permits a single-family residence.  The proposed 
residence is in compliance with parking, setbacks, height, floor area, and building coverage 
requirements.   
 

DISCUSSION: 
  
A. Architecture and Site Application 

 
The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing 1,056-square foot single-story residence 
and construct a new 2,699-square foot two-story single-family residence with 1,425 square 
feet of floor area on the first floor, 1,274 square feet of floor area on the second floor, and a 
423-square foot attached garage.  The proposal also includes a covered first-floor porch on 
the rear elevation and covered second-floor balconies on the front and rear elevations 
which do not count towards floor area maximums.  
 
The existing site has two driveways: one fronting on Shannon Road and one fronting on 
Shady View Lane. The applicant proposes to maintain the existing driveway fronting on 
Shannon Road in its current location and remove the driveway fronting on Shady View Lane.   
 
The development plans show a future accessory dwelling unit proposed at the rear of the 
residence (Exhibit 18).  The accessory dwelling unit is not a part of the Architecture and Site 
approval and would require a future submittal for a separate ministerial permit for approval 
by the Community Development Director.  A new accessory dwelling unit on the property 
would be subject to the requirements contained in Section 29.10.320 of the Town Code.  
Project information, including the proposed square footage of the home, is not inclusive of 
a future accessory dwelling unit.         
 

Page 172



PAGE 4 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued):  

 
The applicant’s project description is attached as Exhibit 5.  The project data sheet is 
attached as Exhibit 4 and includes additional information regarding the proposed project.  

 
B. Building Design 
 

The Town’s Consulting Architect reviewed the design of the proposed project within the 
neighborhood context to provide recommendations regarding the building design (Exhibits 
7 and 8).  The site is in a neighborhood of many newer one- and two-story homes 
constructed within the fabric of largely one-story homes.  In the Issues and Concerns 
background section of the report, the Consulting Architect noted that the home was well 
designed in a Spanish Revival Style, and that the main issue was the tall blank wall at the 
corner of Shady View Lane and Shannon Road.  In the Recommendations section of the 
report, the Consulting Architect made the following recommendation(s) to address 
consistency with the Residential Design Guidelines: 
 
1. Enhance the architectural details which would serve to mitigate the situation and divert 

attention away from the tall walls.  These details could include the following:   
• Additional windows at the corner on both the north and west facades 
• Decorative wood corbels at eave lines 
• Trim molding on all sides of the house at the second-floor line 
• Deep set garage doors and all windows on all facades 
• Projecting stucco base on all sides of the house 
• Add a decorative carriage light consistent with the architectural style at the entry 
• Make the second-floor columns on the north balcony square  

 
The applicant revised the project to incorporate the Consulting Architect’s 
recommendations by enhancing most of these details, and adding stacked stone at the 
corner tower feature, prior to Development Review Committee approval.   

 
C. Neighborhood Compatibility   

 
The immediate neighborhood is made up of one- and two-story single-family residences, 
including a mix of architectural styles.  Based on Town and County records, the residences in 
the immediate area range in size from 1,285 square feet to 3,957 square feet.  The floor 
area ratios range from 0.06 to 0.49.  The proposed residence would be 2,699 square feet 
with a floor area ratio of 0.31.  Pursuant to Town Code, the maximum allowable square 
footage for the 8,610-square foot lot is 2,765 square feet with a maximum floor area ratio 
of 0.32.  The table below reflects the current conditions of the immediate neighborhood:  

 
 
 

Page 173



PAGE 5 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued):  

 

 
The proposed residence would not be the largest home in the immediate neighborhood in 
terms of square footage or FAR.   
 
The applicant reached out to surrounding neighbors during the review process (Exhibit 10).  
The adjacent neighbors to the east (16330 Shannon Road) have raised concerns regarding 
massing, neighborhood compatibility, and privacy during the review process (Exhibit 11).  In 
response to the neighbors’ privacy concerns, the applicant made the following plan 
revisions:  raised the master bedroom windows so that sill heights are above eye level, 
obscured the window in the master bathroom, added privacy trees between the properties, 
reduced the size of the second-story balcony on the rear elevation, and added a screening 
wall on the east side of the balcony.  

 
D. Tree Impacts 

 
The Town’s Consulting Arborist prepared a report for the site and recommendations for the 
project (Exhibit 9).  The project site contains five protected trees, two of which are 
considered large protected trees.  The applicant is proposing to remove two of the existing 
cypress trees located near the proposed footprint, neither of which is a large protected 
tree.   

 
If the project is approved, tree protection measures would be implemented prior to and 
during construction.  Replacement trees would also be required to be planted pursuant to 
Town Code.   

 
 
 
 

Page 174



PAGE 6 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued):   
 
E. Development Review Committee 

 
The Development Review Committee held a public hearing for the Architecture and Site 
application on August 13, 2019.   Written public hearing notices were sent to surrounding 
property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the subject property.  

 
The following neighbors were in attendance and spoke on the item:  
 

 Matt and Carrie Currie – 16330 Shannon Road 

 Bob Boschert – 16310 Shannon Road 
 
Mr. Boschert did not have any concerns and attended because he received notice of the 
hearing.  The Curries raised concerns regarding privacy impacts associated with the second-
floor balcony, the second-floor massing along the side elevation facing their property, and 
the safety of the driveway on Shannon Road (Exhibit 13).  

 
The applicant provided an updated landscape plan which incorporated additional screening 
trees as a standard measure to address the neighbors’ privacy concerns (Exhibit 12).  The 
Development Review Committee found that the application was complete and in 
compliance with the Town Code and Residential Design Guidelines.  Based on these findings 
and determinations, the Development Review Committee approved the proposed project, 
subject to the recommended conditions of approval.   

 
F. Appeal 

 
On August 22, 2019, the decision of the Development Review Committee was appealed to 
the Planning Commission by the adjacent neighbor, Matt Currie (Exhibit 14).  The applicant 
submitted a written response to the appeal, included as Exhibit 15.   
 
The specific reasons for the appeal are summarized below, followed by analysis in italic 
font.  

The Application violates Section 1.4 (Community Expectations) of the Town’s 
Residential Design Guidelines.  Among other things, this section requires that “homes 
will be designed with respect for the views, privacy and solar access of their 
neighbors.”   
 
The Application violates Section 2.5.2 (Design with Sensitivity to Adjacent Neighbors) 
of the Town’s Residential Design Guidelines.  Among other things, this section 
provides that “new homes should be planned with awareness of the impacts which 
they will have on the views, sky exposure, sun access and privacy of neighbors.”  

 

Page 175



PAGE 7 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued):   
 

The Application violates Section 3.3.2 (Height and Bulk at Front and Side setbacks).  
Among other things, this section directs applicants to “give special attention to 
adopting to the height and massing of adjacent homes.”  
 
The Application violates Section 3.11.1 (Minimize shadow impacts on adjacent 
properties) of the Town’s Residential Design Guidelines.  Among other things, this 
section directs applicants to “locate structures to minimize blocking sun access to 
living spaces and actively used outdoor areas on adjacent homes.”  
 
The Application violates Section 3.11.2 of the Residential Design Guidelines.  Among 
other things, this section provides that “Second-floor balconies and decks should be 
used only when they do not intrude on the privacy of adjacent neighbors”; and “when 
windows are needed and desired in side building walls, they should be modest in 
size.”  
 
A shadow-study was submitted for the proposed project, showing that no new 
shadows from the proposed building will be cast on the neighboring property (Exhibit 
18).   
 
In response to the neighbors’ privacy concerns, the applicant made the following plan 
revisions: raised the master bedroom windows so that sill heights are above eye level, 
obscured the window in the master bathroom, added privacy trees between the 
properties, reduced the size of the second-story balcony on the rear elevation, and 
added a screening wall on the east side of the balcony.  The applicant also provided an 
updated landscape plan which incorporated additional screening trees as a standard 
measure to address the neighbors’ privacy concerns (Exhibit 12). 
 
The Application violates General Plan goal CD-1, which among other things, includes 
the following policies: (CD-1.1) “building elements shall be in proportion with those 
traditionally in the neighborhood.”; (CD-1.2) “new structures, remodels, landscapes… 
shall be designed to harmonize and blend with the scale and rhythm of the 
neighborhood and natural features in the area.”; and (CD-1.5) “town staff shall 
evaluate projects to assess how built characteristics, including scale, materials… and 
landscape, blend into the surrounding neighborhood.” 
 
The Application violates General Plan goal CD-2, which is intended to “limit the 
intensity of new development to a level that is consistent with surrounding 
development and with the Town at large.”  

 
 
 

Page 176



PAGE 8 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
The Application violates General Plan Goal CD-6, which includes the following relevant 
policies: (CD-6.1) “reduce the visual impact of new construction and/or remodels on 
the Town and its neighborhoods”; (CD-6.2) “balance the size and number of units to 
achieve appropriate intensity”; (CD-6.3) “encourage basements and cellars to provide 
‘hidden’ square footage in lieu of visible mass”; and (CD-6.4) “new homes shall be 
sited to maximize privacy, livability… and adequate solar access and wind conditions.”  
 
The Town’s Consulting Architect reviewed the design of the proposed project within the 
neighborhood context to provide recommendations regarding the building design 
(Exhibits 7 and 8).  The site is in a neighborhood of many newer one- and two-story 
homes constructed within the fabric of largely one-story homes.  The applicant revised 
the project to incorporate the Consulting Architect’s recommendations by enhancing 
details and adding stacked stone at the corner tower feature, prior to Development 
Review Committee approval.   
 
The proposed residence would not be the largest home in the immediate neighborhood 
in terms of square footage or FAR.  In terms of floor area, the proposed residence 
would be the fifth largest in the immediate neighborhood.  In terms of house FAR, the 
proposed residence would have the fourth largest FAR.  In terms of number of stories, 
the proposed residence would be the fifth two-story residence in the immediate 
neighborhood.   
 
The Shady View Project failed to comply with the Town’s Height Pole and Netting 
Policy for New Construction.  Specifically, Section III (e) of that policy requires project 
identification signs to be posted that identify the square footage of new construction, 
as well as provide color perspective and three dimensional or photographic 
simulations of the new construction. 
 
Story poles, and project sign including the hearing date, contact information, project 
description, and front elevation, were installed on the site; and the written notice of 
the Development Review Committee public hearing was sent to neighboring property 
owners and occupants.  Following the appeal, written notice of the Planning 
Commission hearing was sent to neighboring property owners and occupants, the story 
poles have remained in place, and the project sign has been updated to reflect the 
appeal hearing before Planning Commission.   

 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 177



PAGE 9 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
Finally, the Curries are concerned because it appears that the Town applied a different 
standard when approving the Shady View Project than was applied to the Curries’ and 
other neighbors when they undertook prior construction and remodeling projects.  
For example, the Curries undertook extensive efforts when remodeling their residence 
to protect neighbor’s privacy, including enhanced second-floor setbacks, heightened 
and obscured second-level windows, and minimization of size and massing of the 
Curries’ second-floor.  These design elements were incorporated to conform with the 
Town’s residential and community design guidelines, and to preserve neighbors’ 
privacy while minimizing other detrimental impacts.  
 
The Town’s Consulting Architect reviewed the design of the proposed project within the 
neighborhood context to provide recommendations regarding the building design 
(Exhibits 7 and 8).  The site is in a neighborhood of many newer one- and two-story 
homes constructed within the fabric of largely one-story homes.   
 
At the time 16330 Shannon Road application was processed, there were no 
immediately adjacent two-story homes.  The Residential Design Guidelines contain 
increased standards and guidelines for new two-story homes adjacent to single-story 
homes.  The proposed 16336 Shady View Lane residence would be the fifth two-story 
residence in the immediate neighborhood, the residence would be immediately 
adjacent to a two-story home to the east at 16330 Shannon Road, and the second-
story wall would be setback approximately 60 feet from the single-story neighbor to 
the south at 16356 Shady View Lane.  
 

Following the appeal, the applicant proposed alternative design options in an additional 
effort to address the appellant’s concerns, and related correspondence is included as 
Exhibit 16.  The applicant proposed enclosing the balcony and reducing the first-floor area 
to comply with floor area limitations.  Additionally, the applicant proposed moving the 
building four and one-half feet closer to Shady View Lane, thus increasing the separation of 
the two residences from 16 feet to 20 and one-half feet.  This four and one-half-foot 
setback encroachment would be compatible with the building setbacks of the property 
directly across Shady View Lane (16337 Shady View Lane).  Since the subject property is 
nonconforming as to the lot frontage requirements of the R-1:8 zone (66 feet when 80 feet 
are required), building setback requirements may be modified through Architecture and 
Site approval so that the building and its use would be compatible with the neighborhood 
(Town Code Section 29.10.265).  
  
 
 
 
 

Page 178



PAGE 10 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

 
The applicant submitted revised development plans on October 4, 2019 (Exhibit 17) which 
incorporate the alternative design options outlined in Exhibit 16.  At the time of publication 
of this report, no agreement between the applicant and appellant has been reached.  
However, if the Planning Commission finds this additional setback modification and balcony 
enclosure desirable, a condition of approval may be added for the project plans to be 
modified at time of building permit submittal to reflect the plan modifications shown in 
Exhibit 17.  Public Works has reviewed the proposed building location modification and, if 
approved, will require that a condition of approval be added to ensure that the existing 
driveway approach on Shannon Road not be moved any closer to the intersection at 
Shannon Road and Shady View Lane.  

 
G. Environmental Review 

 
The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the 
Implementation of California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New Construction 
or Conversion of Small Structures. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
The applicant previously met with the surrounding neighbors and a summary of that 
correspondence is included as Exhibit 10.  The applicant and appellant have also exchanged 
communications, included as Exhibit 11.   
 
Story poles, and project sign including the hearing date, contact information, project 
description, and front elevation, were installed on the site; and the written notice of the 
Development Review Committee public hearing was sent to neighboring property owners and 
occupants.  Following the appeal, written notice of the Planning Commission hearing was sent 
to neighboring property owners and occupants, the story poles have remained in place, and the 
project sign has been updated to reflect the appeal hearing before Planning Commission.   
 
Correspondence between the applicant and appellant following the filing of the appeal are 
included as Exhibit 16.  Additional public comments received regarding the project are included 
as Exhibit 19.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
A. Conclusion 

 
The proposed project is in compliance with the Residential Design Guidelines and Town 
Code.  The applicant has made modifications to their proposal in an effort to address the 
privacy concerns of the adjacent neighbors.  

Page 179



PAGE 11 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
CONCLUSION (continued): 
 
B. Recommendation  
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission take the following actions to deny the 
appeal, uphold the decision of the Development Review Committee, and approve the 
Architecture and Site application: 

 
1. Find that the proposed project is categorically exempt pursuant to the adopted 

Guidelines for the implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 
15303: New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures (Exhibit 2);  

2. Make the required findings as required by Section 29.10.09030(e) of the Town Code for 
the demolition of a single-family residence (Exhibit 2);  

3. Make the finding required by the Town’s Residential Design Guidelines that the project 
complies with the Residential Design Guidelines (Exhibit 2);  

4. Make the required considerations as required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code 
for granting approval of an Architecture and Site application (Exhibit 2); and 

5. Approve Architecture and Site Application S-18-051 with the conditions contained in 
Exhibit 3 and development plans attached as Exhibit 18. 

 
C. Alternatives 

 
Alternatively, the Commission can: 
 
1. Continue the matter to a date certain with specific direction;  
2. Deny the appeal and approve the application with additional and/or modified 

conditions;  
3. Grant the appeal and remand the application to the Development Review Committee 

with direction for revisions; or 
4. Grant the appeal and deny the Architecture and Site application. 

 
EXHIBITS: 
 
1. Location map  
2. Required Findings and Considerations (two pages)   
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval (12 pages)  
4. Project data sheet (two pages) 
5. Project Description and Letter of Justification dated November 21, 2018 (one page) 
6. Color and materials sample received September 5, 2019 (one page) 
7. Consulting Architect’s Report dated February 8, 2019 (five pages) 
8. Update to Consulting Architect’s Report received September 26, 2019 (one page) 
9. Consulting Arborist’s Report dated January 31, 2019 (39 pages) 
 

Page 180



PAGE 12 OF 12 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 3, 2019 
 
EXHIBITS (continued): 
 
10. Summary of neighborhood outreach received June 14, 2019 and September 10, 2019 (three 

pages) 
11. Correspondence between applicant and appellant prior to August 13, 2019 Development 

Review Committee meeting (20 pages)   
12. Landscape Plan Modifications received August 13, 2019 (one page) 
13. August 13, 2019 Development Review Committee meeting minutes (three pages) 
14. Appeal of Development Review Committee received August 22, 2019 (15 pages) 
15. Applicant’s response letter to appeal received September 10, 2019 (one page) 
16. Correspondence between applicant and appellant following appeal (17 pages)  
17. Revised development plans incorporating alternative design options received October 4, 

2019 (22 sheets) 
18. Development plans approved by Development Review Committee on August 13, 2019             

(20 sheets) 
19. Public comment received by 11:00 a.m., Friday, October 4, 2019 

Page 181



BO
NN

IE 
LN

SHANNON RD

SH
AD

Y V
IEW

 LN

HIL
OW

 C
T

DE
L C

AR
LO

 C
T

HIL
OW

 RD

NOBLE CT
16336 Shady View Lane

0 0.250.125 Miles

°

EXHIBIT 1

Page 182



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 183



N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2019\Shady View Lane 16336 PC appeal Findings.docx

PLANNING COMMISSION – October 9, 2019 
REQUIRED FINDINGS & CONSIDERATIONS FOR: 

16336 Shady View Lane 
Architecture and Site Application S-18-060 

Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving a request 
for demolition of a single-family residence and construction of a new single-family 
residence on property zoned R-1:8. APN 532-03-034. 
PROPERTY OWNER: Allan and Katty Coulson 
APPLICANT: Lerika Liscano (De Mattei Construction) 

FINDINGS 

Required findings for CEQA: 

■ The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.

Required finding for the demolition of a single-family residence: 

■ As required by Section 29.10.09030(e) of the Town Code for the demolition of a single-
family residence:
1. The Town's housing stock will be maintained as the single-family residence will be

replaced.
2. The existing structure has no architectural or historical significance, and is in poor

condition.
3. The property owner does not desire to maintain the structure as it exists; and
4. The economic utility of the structures was considered.

Required Compliance with the Residential Design Guidelines: 

■ The project is in compliance with the Residential Design Guidelines for single-family homes
not in hillside residential areas and was reviewed by the Town’s Consulting Architect. The
project is compatible with the immediate neighborhood in terms of size, bulk, and scale.
The proposed two-story residence is adjacent to a two-story home and would not be the
largest or tallest home in the immediate neighborhood. Privacy measures have been taken
in the form of screening trees, window modifications and reductions, and size reductions
and enclosure of one side of a second-story balcony with a screening wall.

EXHIBIT 2Page 184



 
N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2019\Shady View Lane 16336 PC appeal Findings.docx 

CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

Considerations in review of Architecture & Site applications: 
 
■ As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code, the considerations in review of an 

Architecture and Site application were all made in reviewing this project 
 

 

Page 185



PLANNING COMMISSION – October 9, 2019 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

16336 Shady View Lane 
Architecture and Site Application S-18-060 
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving a request 
for demolition of a single-family residence and construction of a new single-family 
residence on property zoned R-1:8. APN 532-03-034. 
PROPERTY OWNER: Allan and Katty Coulson 
APPLICANT: Lerika Liscano (De Mattei Construction) 

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

Planning Division 
1. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all of the conditions of

approval and in substantial compliance with the approved plans.  Any changes or
modifications to the approved plans and/or business operation shall be approved by the
Community Development Director, DRC or the Planning Commission depending on the
scope of the changes.

2. EXPIRATION:  The approval will expire two years from the approval date pursuant to Section 
29.20.320 of the Town Code, unless the approval has been vested.

3. OUTDOOR LIGHTING:  Exterior lighting shall be kept to a minimum, and shall be down
directed fixtures that will not reflect or encroach onto adjacent properties.  No flood lights
shall be used unless it can be demonstrated that they are needed for safety or security.  The
lighting plan shall be reviewed during building plan check.

4. TREE REMOVAL PERMIT:  A Tree Removal Permit shall be obtained for any trees to be
removed, prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit.

5. EXISTING TREES: All existing trees shown on the plan and trees required to remain or to
be planted are specific subjects of approval of this plan, and must remain on the site.

6. PROTECTIVE TREE FENCING:  Prior to any construction or building permits being issued, tree
protection fencing shall be installed prior to, and be maintained during, construction. The
fencing shall be a four-foot high chain link attached to steel poles driven two feet into the
ground when at the dripline of the tree.

7. TREE STAKING: All newly planted trees shall be double-staked using rubber tree ties.
8. ARBORIST REQUIREMENTS: The developer shall implement, at their cost, all

recommendations made by the Consulting Arborist Walter Levison, identified in the
Arborist’s report, dated as received January 31, 2019, on file in the Community
Development Department.  This includes relocation of the future pool outside of the critical
root zone of Tree #54.  A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared by the applicant and
submitted with the building permit application detailing how the recommendations have
or will be addressed.  These recommendations must be incorporated in the building permit
plans, and completed prior to issuance of a building permit where applicable.

9. FRONT YARD LANDSCAPE: Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the front yard
must be landscaped.

EXHIBIT 3
Page 186



10. STORY POLES:  The story poles on the project site shall be removed within 30 days of 
approval of the Architecture & Site application. 

11. SOLAR. During the Architecture and Site application process all new residences, to the 
extent feasible, shall be designed to take full advantage of passive solar opportunities. Each 
residence shall be pre-plumbed for solar hot water heating and shall comply with the 
Town’s Conservation Element of the General Plan.  

12. WATER EFFICIENCY LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE: The final landscape plan shall meet the Town 
of Los Gatos Water Conservation Ordinance or the State Water Efficient Landscape 
Ordinance, whichever is more restrictive. A review fee based on the current fee schedule 
adopted by the Town Council is required when working landscape and irrigation plans are 
submitted for review. 

13. COMPLIANCE MEMORANDUM: A memorandum, in compliance with standard Town 
practice, shall be prepared and submitted with the building permit detailing how the 
conditions of approval will be addressed. 

14. TOWN INDEMNITY: Applicants are notified that Town Code Section 1.10.115 requires that 
any applicant who receives a permit or entitlement from the Town shall defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless the Town and its officials in any action brought by a third party to 
overturn, set aside, or void the permit or entitlement.  This requirement is a condition of 
approval of all such permits and entitlements whether or not expressly set forth in the 
approval, and may be secured to the satisfaction of the Town Attorney.   

 
Building Division  
15. PERMITS REQUIRED: A Demolition Permit is required for the demolition of the existing 

single-family residence and attached garage.  An additional Demolition Permit will be 
required for the single large shed located on the SW corner of the existing structure.  A 
separate Building Permit is required for the construction of the new single-family residence 
with attached garage and attached ADU. An additional permit will be required for each 
individual detached structure such as the pool house or swimming pool. 

16. APPLICABLE CODES: The current codes, as amended and adopted by the Town of Los Gatos 
as of January 1, 2017, are the 2016 California Building Standards Code, California Code of 
Regulations Title 24, Parts 1-12. 

17. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The Conditions of Approval must be blue-lined in full on the 
cover sheet of the construction plans. A Compliance Memorandum shall be prepared and 
submitted with the building permit application detailing how the Conditions of Approval 
will be addressed. 

18. BUILDING & SUITE NUMBERS: Submit requests for new building or ADU addresses to the 
Building Division prior to submitting for the building permit application process.  

19. SIZE OF PLANS:  Submit four sets of construction plans, minimum size 24” x 36”, maximum 
size 30” x 42”. 

20. REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPLETE DEMOLITION OF STRUCTURE: Obtain a Building 
Department Demolition Application and a Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
Application from the Building Department Service Counter.  Once the demolition form has 
been completed, all signatures obtained, and written verification from PG&E that all utilities 
have been disconnected, return the completed form to the Building Department Service 
Counter with the Air District’s J# Certificate, PG&E verification, and three (3) sets of site 

Page 187



plans showing all existing structures, existing utility service lines such as water, sewer, and 
PG&E.  No demolition work shall be done without first obtaining a permit from the Town. 

21. SOILS REPORT:  A Soils Report, prepared to the satisfaction of the Building Official, 
containing foundation and retaining wall design recommendations, shall be submitted with 
the Building Permit Application.  This report shall be prepared by a licensed Civil Engineer 
specializing in soils mechanics.  

22. SHORING: Shoring plans and calculations will be required for all excavations which exceed 
five (5) feet in depth or which remove lateral support from any existing building, adjacent 
property, or the public right-of-way.  Shoring plans and calculations shall be prepared by a 
California licensed engineer and shall confirm to the Cal/OSHA regulations. 

23. FOUNDATION INSPECTIONS:  A pad certificate prepared by a licensed civil engineer or land 
surveyor shall be submitted to the project Building Inspector at foundation inspection.  This 
certificate shall certify compliance with the recommendations as specified in the Soils 
Report, and that the building pad elevations and on-site retaining wall locations and 
elevations have been prepared according to the approved plans.  Horizontal and vertical 
controls shall be set and certified by a licensed surveyor or registered Civil Engineer for the 
following items: 
a. Building pad elevation 
b. Finish floor elevation 
c. Foundation corner locations 
d. Retaining wall(s) locations and elevations 

24. TITLE 24 ENERGY COMPLIANCE:  All required California Title 24 Energy Compliance Forms 
must be blue-lined (sticky-backed), i.e. directly printed, onto a plan sheet. 

25. TOWN RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS: New residential units shall be designed 
with adaptability features for single-family residences per Town Resolution 1994-61: 
a. Wood backing (2” x 8” minimum) shall be provided in all bathroom walls, at water 

closets, showers, and bathtubs, located 34 inches from the floor to the center of the 
backing, suitable for the installation of grab bars if needed in the future. 

b. All passage doors shall be at least 32-inch doors on the accessible floor level. 
c. The primary entrance door shall be a 36-inch-wide door including a 5’x 5’ level landing, 

no more than 1 inch out of plane with the immediate interior floor level and with an 
18 inch clearance at interior strike edge. 

d. A door buzzer, bell or chime shall be hard wired at primary entrance. 
26. BACKWATER VALVE: The scope of this project may require the installation of a   sanitary 

sewer backwater valve per Town Ordinance 6.50.025. Please provide information on the 
plans if a backwater valve is required and the location of the installation. The Town of Los 
Gatos Ordinance and West Valley Sanitation District (WVSD) requires backwater valves on 
drainage piping serving fixtures that have flood level rims less than 12 inches above the 
elevation of the next upstream manhole. 

27. TOWN FIREPLACE STANDARDS: New wood burning fireplaces shall be an EPA Phase II 
approved appliance or gas appliance per Town Ordinance 1905.  Tree limbs shall be cut 
within 10 feet of chimneys. 

28. HAZARDOUS FIRE ZONE:  All projects in the Town of Los Gatos require Class A roof 
assemblies. 
 

Page 188



29. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS: When a special inspection is required by CBC Section 1704, the 
Architect or Engineer of Record shall prepare an inspection program that shall be submitted 
to the Building Official for approval prior to issuance of the Building Permit. The Town 
Special Inspection form must be completely filled-out and signed by all requested parties 
prior to permit issuance. Special Inspection forms are available from the Building Division 
Service Counter or online at www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

30. BLUE PRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY SHEET: The Town standard Santa Clara Valley Nonpoint 
Source Pollution Control Program Sheet (page size same as submitted drawings) shall be 
part of the plan submittal as the second page. The specification sheet is available at the 
Building Division Service Counter for a fee of $2 or at ARC Blue Print for a fee or online at 
www.losgatosca.gov/building. 

31. APPROVALS REQUIRED: The project requires the following departments and agencies 
approval before issuing a building permit: 
a. Community Development – Planning Division: (408) 354-6874 
b. Engineering/Parks & Public Works Department: (408) 399-5771 
c. Santa Clara County Fire Department: (408) 378-4010 
d. West Valley Sanitation District: (408) 378-2407 
e. Local School District:  The Town will forward the paperwork to the appropriate school 

district(s) for processing.  A copy of the paid receipt is required prior to permit issuance. 
 

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
Engineering Division 
32. GENERAL: All public improvements shall be made according to the latest adopted Town 

Standard Plans, Standard Specifications and Engineering Design Standards.  All work shall 
conform to the applicable Town ordinances.  The adjacent public right-of-way shall be kept 
clear of all job-related mud, silt, concrete, dirt and other construction debris at the end of 
the day.  Dirt and debris shall not be washed into storm drainage facilities.  The storing of 
goods and materials on the sidewalk and/or the street will not be allowed unless an 
encroachment permit is issued by the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works 
Department.  The Owner and/or Applicant's representative in charge shall be at the job site 
during all working hours.  Failure to maintain the public right-of-way according to this 
condition may result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or stop work orders 
and the Town performing the required maintenance at the Owner and/or Applicant's 
expense. 

33. APPROVAL: This application shall be completed in accordance with all the conditions of 
approval listed below and in substantial compliance with the latest reviewed and approved 
development plans.  Any changes or modifications to the approved plans or conditions of 
approvals shall be approved by the Town Engineer. 

34. ENCROACHMENT PERMIT: All work in the public right-of-way will require a Construction 
Encroachment Permit.  All work over $5,000 will require construction security.  It is the 
responsibility of the Owner/Applicant to obtain any necessary encroachment permits from 
affected agencies and private parties, including but not limited to, Pacific Gas and Electric 
(PG&E), AT&T, Comcast, Santa Clara Valley Water District, California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans).  Copies of any approvals or permits must be submitted to the 

Page 189



Town Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department prior to releasing any 
permit. 

35. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE: The property owner shall provide proof of insurance to the 
Town on a yearly basis.  In addition to general coverage, the policy must cover all elements 
encroaching into the Town’s right-of-way. 

36. PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTIONS: The Owner, Applicant and/or Developer or their 
representative shall notify the Engineering Inspector at least twenty-four (24) hours before 
starting any work pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading or paving, and all work in 
the Town's right-of-way.  Failure to do so will result in penalties and rejection of any work 
that occurred without inspection. 

37. RESTORATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: The Owner and/or Applicant or their 
representative shall repair or replace all existing improvements not designated for removal 
that are damaged or removed because of the Owner and/or Applicant or their 
representative's operations.  Improvements such as, but not limited to: curbs, gutters, 
sidewalks, driveways, signs, pavements, raised pavement markers, thermoplastic 
pavement markings, etc., shall be repaired and replaced to a condition equal to or better 
than the original condition.  Any new concrete shall be free of stamps, logos, names, graffiti, 
etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or equal shall be removed and 
replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional compensation shall be allowed 
therefore.  Existing improvement to be repaired or replaced shall be at the direction of the 
Engineering Construction Inspector and shall comply with all Title 24 Disabled Access 
provisions.  The restoration of all improvements identified by the Engineering Construction 
Inspector shall be completed before the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  The Owner 
and/or Applicant or their representative shall request a walk-through with the Engineering 
Construction Inspector before the start of construction to verify existing conditions. 

38. SITE SUPERVISION: The General Contractor shall provide qualified supervision on the job 
site at all times during construction. 

39. STREET CLOSURE: Any proposed blockage or partial closure of the street requires an 
encroachment permit.  Special provisions such as limitations on works hours, protective 
enclosures, or other means to facilitate public access in a safe manner may be required. 

40. INSPECTION FEES: Inspection fees shall be deposited with the Town prior to the issuance of 
any building permits. 

41. DESIGN CHANGES: Any proposed changes to the approved plans shall be subject to the 
approval of the Town prior to the commencement of any and all altered work.  The Owner 
and/or Applicant’s project engineer shall notify, in writing, the Town Engineer at least 
seventy-two (72) hours in advance of all the proposed changes.  Any approved changes shall 
be incorporated into the final “as-built” plans. 

42. PLANS AND STUDIES: Any studies imposed by the Planning Commission or Town Council 
shall be funded by the Owner and/or Applicant. 

43. DRIVEWAY: The driveway conform to existing pavement on Shannon Road shall be 
constructed in a manner such that the existing drainage patterns will not be obstructed. 

44. DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT: Prior to the issuance of any building permits, the Owner and/or 
Applicant shall: a) design provisions for surface drainage; and b) design all necessary storm 
drain facilities extending to a satisfactory point of disposal for the proper control and 

Page 190



disposal of storm runoff; and c) provide a recorded copy of any required easements to the 
Town. 

45. PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING: Prior to the commencement of any site work, the general 
contractor shall: 
a. Along with the Owner and/or Applicant, attend a pre-construction meeting with the 

Town Engineer to discuss the project conditions of approval, working hours, site 
maintenance and other construction matters; 

b. Acknowledge in writing that they have read and understand the project conditions of 
approval and will make certain that all project sub-contractors have read and 
understand them as well prior to commencing any work, and that a copy of the project 
conditions of approval will be posted on-site at all times during construction. 

46. WATER METER: The existing water meter, currently located within the Shady View Lane 
right-of-way, shall be relocated within the property in question, directly behind the public 
right-of-way line.  The Owner and/or Applicant shall repair and replace to existing Town 
standards any portion of concrete flatwork within said right-of-way that is damaged during 
this activity prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

47. SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT: The existing sanitary sewer cleanout, currently located within 
the Shady View Lane right-of-way, shall be relocated within the property in question, within 
one (1) foot of the property line per West Valley Sanitation District Standard Drawing 3, or 
at a location specified by the Town.  The Owner and/or Applicant shall repair and replace 
to existing Town standards any portion of concrete flatwork within said right-of-way that is 
damaged during this activity prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

48. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: The following improvements shall be installed by the Owner 
and/or Applicant.  Plans for those improvements shall be prepared by a California registered 
civil engineer, reviewed and approved by the Town before the issuance of any building 
permits.  The improvements must be completed and accepted by the Town before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued. 
a. Shannon Road: sidewalk; curb and gutter and tie-in paving as required. 
b. Shady View Lane: Curb and gutter; 2” overlay from the centerline to the eastern lip of 

gutter, or alternative pavement restoration measure as approved by the Town 
Engineer. 

c. Southeastern intersection of Shannon Road and Shady View Lane: curb ramp. 
49. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY: The Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works 

Department will not sign off on a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy or a Final Certificate 
of Occupancy until all required improvements within the Town’s right-of-way have been 
completed and approved by the Town. 

50. FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS: The Owner and/or Applicant shall be required to improve the 
project’s public frontage (right-of-way line to centerline and/or to limits per the direction 
of the Town Engineer) to current Town Standards.  These improvements may include but 
not limited to curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway approach(es), curb ramp, signs, pavement, 
raised pavement markers, thermoplastic pavement markings, storm drain facilities, etc.  
The improvements must be completed and accepted by the Town before a Certificate of 
Occupancy for any new building can be issued. 

51. UTILITIES: The Owner and/or Applicant shall install all new, relocated, or temporarily 
removed utility services, including telephone, electric power and all other communications 

Page 191



lines underground, as required by Town Code Section 27.50.015(b).  All new utility services 
shall be placed underground.  Underground conduit shall be provided for cable television 
service.  The Owner and/or Applicant is required to obtain approval of all proposed utility 
alignments from any and all utility service providers before a Certificate of Occupancy for 
any new building can be issued.  The Town of Los Gatos does not approve or imply approval 
for final alignment or design of these facilities. 

52. TRENCHING MORATORIUM (SHANNON ROAD FRONTAGE): Trenching within a newly paved 
street will be allowed subject to the following requirements: 
a. The Town standard “T” trench detail shall be used. 
b. A Town-approved colored controlled density backfill shall be used. 
c. All necessary utility trenches and related pavement cuts shall be consolidated to 

minimize the impacted area of the roadway. 
d. The total asphalt thickness shall be a minimum of three (3) inches, meet Town 

standards, or shall match the existing thickness, whichever is greater.  The final lift 
shall be 1.5-inches of one-half (½) inch medium asphalt.  The initial lift(s) shall be of 
three-quarter (¾) inch medium asphalt. 

e. The Contractor shall schedule a pre-paving meeting with the Town Engineering 
Construction Inspector the day the paving is to take place. 

f. A slurry seal topping may be required by the construction inspector depending their 
assessment of the quality of the trench paving.  If required, the slurry seal shall extend 
the full width of the street and shall extend five (5) feet beyond the longitudinal limits 
of trenching.  Slurry seal materials shall be approved by the Town Engineering 
Construction Inspector prior to placement.  Black sand may be required in the slurry 
mix.  All existing striping and pavement markings shall be replaced upon completion 
of slurry seal operations.  All pavement restorations shall be completed and approved 
by the Inspector before occupancy. 

53. SIDEWALK IN-LIEU FEE: A curb and sidewalk in-lieu fee of $9,600.00 shall be paid prior to 
issuance of a grading or building permit.  This fee is based on 600 square feet of 4.5-foot 
wide sidewalk at $16.00 per square foot in accordance with Town policy and the Town’s 
Comprehensive Fee Schedule.  The final sidewalk in-lieu fee for this project shall be 
calculated using the current fee schedule and rate schedule in effect at the time the fee is 
paid. 

54. CURB AND GUTTER REPAIR: The Owner and/or Applicant shall repair and replace to existing 
Town standards any curb and gutter damaged now or during construction of this project.  
All new and existing adjacent infrastructure must meet Town standards.  New curb and 
gutter shall be constructed per Town Standard Details. New concrete shall be free of 
stamps, logos, names, graffiti, etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or 
equal shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional 
compensation shall be allowed therefore.  The limits of curb and gutter repair will be 
determined by the Engineering Construction Inspector during the construction phase of the 
project.  The improvements must be completed and accepted by the Town before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued. 

55. DRIVEWAY APPROACH: The Owner and/or Applicant shall install one(1) Town standard 
residential driveway approach.  The new driveway approach shall be constructed per Town 
Standard Plans and must be completed and accepted by the Town before a Certificate of 

Page 192



Occupancy for any new building can be issued.  New concrete shall be free of stamps, logos, 
names, graffiti, etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or equal shall be 
removed and replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional compensation 
shall be allowed therefore. 

56. CURB RAMP: The Owner and/or Applicant shall construct one (1) curb ramp in compliance 
with ADA Standards which must be completed and accepted by the Town before a 
Certificate of Occupancy for any new building can be issued.  New concrete shall be free of 
stamps, logos, names, graffiti, etc.  Any concrete identified that is displaying a stamp or 
equal shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense and no additional 
compensation shall be allowed therefore. 

57. FENCING: Any fencing proposed within two hundred (200) feet of an intersection shall 
comply with Town Code Section §23.10.080. 

58. SIGHT TRIANGLE AND TRAFFIC VIEW AREA: Any proposed improvements, including but not 
limiting to trees and hedges, will need to abide by Town Code Sections 23.10.080, 
26.10.065, and 29.40.030. 

59. CONSTRUCTION VEHICLE PARKING: Construction vehicle parking within the public right-of-
way will only be allowed if it does not cause access or safety problems as determined by 
the Town. 

60. HAULING OF SOIL: Hauling of soil on- or off-site shall not occur during the morning or 
evening peak periods (between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and between 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 
p.m.), and at other times as specified by the Director of Parks and Public Works.  Prior to 
the issuance of a building permit, the Owner and/or Applicant or their representative shall 
work with the Town Building Department and Engineering Division Inspectors to devise a 
traffic control plan to ensure safe and efficient traffic flow under periods when soil is hauled 
on or off the project site.  This may include, but is not limited to provisions for the Owner 
and/or Applicant to place construction notification signs noting the dates and time of 
construction and hauling activities, or providing additional traffic control.  Coordination 
with other significant projects in the area may also be required.  Cover all trucks hauling 
soil, sand and other loose debris. 

61. CONSTRUCTION HOURS: All construction activities, including the delivery of construction 
materials, labors, heavy equipment, supplies, etc., shall be limited to the hours of 8:00 a.m. 
to 8:00 p.m., weekdays and 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. weekends and holidays.  The Town may 
authorize, on a case-by-case basis, alternate construction hours.  The Owner and/or 
Applicant shall provide written notice twenty-four (24) hours in advance of modified 
construction hours.  Approval of this request is at discretion of the Town. 

62. CONSTRUCTION NOISE: Between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., weekdays and 9:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. weekends and holidays, construction, alteration or repair activities shall 
be allowed.  No individual piece of equipment shall produce a noise level exceeding eighty-
five (85) dBA at twenty-five (25) feet from the source.  If the device is located within a 
structure on the property, the measurement shall be made at distances as close to twenty-
five (25) feet from the device as possible.  The noise level at any point outside of the 
property plane shall not exceed eighty-five (85) dBA. 

63. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PLAN SHEET: Prior to the issuance of any building permits, 
the Owner and/or Applicant’s design consultant shall submit a construction management 
plan sheet (full-size) within the plan set that shall incorporate at a minimum the Project 

Page 193



Schedule, site security fencing, employee parking, construction staging area, materials 
storage area(s), concrete washout(s) and proposed outhouse location(s).  Please refer to 
the Town’s Construction Management Plan Guidelines document for additional 
information. 

64. SANITARY SEWER BACKWATER VALVE: Drainage piping serving fixtures which have flood 
level rims less than twelve (12) inches (304.8 mm) above the elevation of the next upstream 
manhole and/or flushing inlet cover at the public or private sewer system serving such 
drainage piping shall be protected from backflow of sewage by installing an approved type 
backwater valve.  Fixtures above such elevation shall not discharge through the backwater 
valve, unless first approved by the Building Official.  The Town shall not incur any liability or 
responsibility for damage resulting from a sewer overflow where the property owner or 
other person has failed to install a backwater valve as defined in the Uniform Plumbing 
Code adopted by the Town and maintain such device in a functional operation condition.  
Evidence of West Sanitation District’s decision on whether a backwater device is needed 
shall be provided prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

65. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs): The Owner and/or Applicant is responsible for 
ensuring that all contractors are aware of all storm water quality measures and that such 
measures are implemented.  Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be maintained and 
be placed for all areas that have been graded or disturbed and for all material, equipment 
and/or operations that need protection.  Removal of BMPs (temporary removal during 
construction activities) shall be replaced at the end of each working day.  Failure to comply 
with the construction BMP will result in the issuance of correction notices, citations, or stop 
work orders. 

66. SITE DESIGN MEASURES: All projects shall incorporate at least one of the following 
measures: 
a. Protect sensitive areas and minimize changes to the natural topography. 
b. Minimize impervious surface areas. 
c. Direct roof downspouts to vegetated areas. 
d. Use porous or pervious pavement surfaces on the driveway, at a minimum. 
e. Use landscaping to treat stormwater.  

67. EROSION CONTROL: Interim and final erosion control plans shall be prepared and submitted 
to the Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department.  A maximum of two 
(2) weeks is allowed between clearing of an area and stabilizing/building on an area if 
grading is allowed during the rainy season.  Interim erosion control measures, to be carried 
out during construction and before installation of the final landscaping, shall be included.  
Interim erosion control method shall include, but are not limited to: silt fences, fiber rolls 
(with locations and details), erosion control blankets, Town standard seeding specification, 
filter berms, check dams, retention basins, etc.  Provide erosion control measures as 
needed to protect downstream water quality during winter months.  The Town of Los Gatos 
Engineering Division of the Parks and Public Works Department and the Building 
Department will conduct periodic NPDES inspections of the site throughout the recognized 
storm season to verify compliance with the Construction General Permit and Stormwater 
ordinances and regulations. 

68. DUST CONTROL: Blowing dust shall be reduced by timing construction activities so that 
paving and building construction begin as soon as possible after completion of grading, and 

Page 194



by landscaping disturbed soils as soon as possible.  Further, water trucks shall be present 
and in use at the construction site.  All portions of the site subject to blowing dust shall be 
watered as often as deemed necessary by the Town, or a minimum of three (3) times daily, 
or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers on all unpaved access roads, parking areas, and staging 
areas at construction sites in order to insure proper control of blowing dust for the duration 
of the project. Watering on public streets shall not occur.  Streets shall be cleaned by street 
sweepers or by hand as often as deemed necessary by the Town Engineer, or at least once 
a day.  Watering associated with on-site construction activity shall take place between the 
hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. and shall include at least one (1) late-afternoon watering to 
minimize the effects of blowing dust.  All public streets soiled or littered due to this 
construction activity shall be cleaned and swept on a daily basis during the workweek to 
the satisfaction of the Town.  Demolition or earthwork activities shall be halted when wind 
speeds (instantaneous gusts) exceed twenty (20) miles per hour (MPH).  All trucks hauling 
soil, sand, or other loose debris shall be covered. 

69. AIR QUALITY: To limit the project’s construction-related dust and criteria pollutant 
emissions, the following the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD)-
recommended basic construction measures shall be included in the project’s grading plan, 
building plans, and contract specifications: 
a. All exposed surfaces (e.g., parking areas, staging areas, soil piles, graded areas, and 

unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day, or otherwise kept dust-
free. 

b. All haul trucks designated for removal of excavated soil and demolition debris from 
site shall be staged off-site until materials are ready for immediate loading and 
removal from site. 

c. All haul trucks transporting soil, sand, debris, or other loose material off-site shall be 
covered. 

d. As practicable, all haul trucks and other large construction equipment shall be staged 
in areas away from the adjacent residential homes. 

e. All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet 
power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day, or as deemed appropriate by 
Town Engineer.  The use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.  An on-site track-out 
control device is also recommended to minimize mud and dirt-track-out onto adjacent 
public roads. 

f. All vehicle speeds on unpaved surfaces shall be limited to fifteen (15) miles per hour. 
g. All driveways and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as possible.  

Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil 
binders are used. 

h. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the 
lead agency regarding dust complaints.  This person shall respond and take corrective 
action within forty-eight (48) hours.  The Air District’s phone number shall also be 
visible to ensure compliance with applicable regulations. 

i. All excavation, grading, and/or demolition activities shall be suspended when average 
wind speeds exceed twenty (20) miles per hour. 

Page 195



j. Vegetative ground cover (e.g., fast-germinating native grass seed) shall be planted in 
disturbed areas as soon as possible and watered appropriately until vegetation is 
established. 

70. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES: All construction shall conform to the latest requirements of 
the CASQA Stormwater Best Management Practices Handbooks for Construction Activities 
and New Development and Redevelopment, the Town's grading and erosion control 
ordinance, and other generally accepted engineering practices for erosion control as 
required by the Town Engineer when undertaking construction activities. 

71. SITE DRAINAGE: Rainwater leaders shall be discharged to splash blocks.  No through curb 
drains will be allowed.  On-site drainage systems for all projects shall include one of the 
alternatives included in section C.3.i of the Municipal Regional NPDES Permit.  These include 
storm water reuse via cisterns or rain barrels, directing runoff from impervious surfaces to 
vegetated areas and use of permeable surfaces.  If stormwater treatment facilities are to 
be used they shall be placed a minimum of ten (10) feet from the right-of-way.  
Alternatively, the facility(ies) may be located with an offset between 5 and 10 feet from the 
adjacent right-of-way line(s) if the responsible engineer in charge provides a stamped and 
signed letter that addresses infiltration and states how facilities, improvements and 
infrastructure within the Town’s right-of-way (driveway approach, curb and gutter, etc.) 
will not be adversely affected.  No improvements shall obstruct or divert runoff to the 
detriment of an adjacent, downstream or down slope property. 

72. SILT AND MUD IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY: It is the responsibility of Contractor and 
homeowner to make sure that all dirt tracked into the public right-of-way is cleaned up on 
a daily basis.  Mud, silt, concrete and other construction debris SHALL NOT be washed into 
the Town’s storm drains. 

73. GOOD HOUSEKEEPING: Good housekeeping practices shall be observed at all times during 
the course of construction.  All construction shall be diligently supervised by a person or 
persons authorized to do so at all times during working hours.  The Owner and/or 
Applicant's representative in charge shall be at the job site during all working hours.  Failure 
to maintain the public right-of-way according to this condition may result in penalties 
and/or the Town performing the required maintenance at the Owner and/or Applicant's 
expense. 

74. COVERED TRUCKS: All trucks transporting materials to and from the site shall be covered. 
 

TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE SANTA CLARA COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
 

75. Review of this Developmental proposal is limited to acceptability of site access, water 
supply and may include specific additional requirements as they pertain to fire 
department operations, and shall not be construed as a substitute for formal plan review 
to determine compliance with adopted model codes. Prior to performing any work, the 
applicant shall make application to, and receive from, the Building Department all 
applicable construction permits. 

76. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED: Fire sprinklers required to be installed in both the single family 
home and the secondary dwelling unit. An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall 
be installed in one- and two-family dwellings as follows: In all new one- and two-family 
dwellings and in existing one- and two-family dwellings when additions are made that 

Page 196



increase the building area to more than 3,600 square feet. EXCEPTION: A one-time addition 
to an existing building that does not total more than 1,000 square feet of building area. 
Note: The owner(s), occupant(s) and any contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) are responsible 
for consulting with the water purveyor of record in order to determine if any modification 
or update of the existing water service is required. A State of California licensed (C-16) Fire 
Protection Contractor shall submit plans, calculations, a completed permit application and 
appropriate fees to this department for review and approval prior to beginning their work. 
CRC Sec. 313.2 as adopted and amended by LGTC.   

77. WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS: Potable water supplies shall be protected from 
contamination caused by fire protection water supplies. It is the responsibility of the 
applicant and any contractors and subcontractors to contact the water purveyor supplying 
the site of such project, and to comply with the requirements of that purveyor. Such 
requirements shall be incorporated into the design of any water-based fire protection 
systems, and/or fire suppression water supply systems or storage containers that may be 
physically connected in any manner to an appliance capable of causing contamination of 
the potable water supply of the purveyor of record. Final approval of the system(s) under 
consideration will not be granted by this office until compliance with the requirements of 
the water purveyor of record are documented by that purveyor as having been met by the 
applicant(s). 2016 CFC Sec. 903.3.5 and Health and Safety Code 13114.7 

78. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFETY: All construction sites must comply with applicable 
provisions of the CFC Chapter 33 and Santa Clara County Fire Department Standard Detail 
and Specification S1-7.  Provide appropriate notations on subsequent plan submittals, as 
appropriate to the project.  CFC Ch. 33. 

79. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: New and existing buildings shall have approved address 
numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is 
plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property.  These numbers 
shall contrast with their background. Where required by fire code official, address numbers 
shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response.  
Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.  Numbers shall be a 
minimum of 4 inches (101.6 mm) high with a minimum stroke with of 0.5 inch (12.7mm).  
Where access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from the 
public way, a monument, pole or other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure.  
Address numbers shall be maintained.  CFC Sec. 505.1. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N:\DEV\CONDITIONS\2019\Shady View Lane 16336 - PC appeal.docx 

Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Planning Department 
Town of Los Gatos 
110 E Main St. 
Los Gatos, CA 95031 

Project Name: Coulson Residence 
Project Address: 16336 Shady View Lane. 
Date: 11/21/18 
Description of Project, Letter of demolition justification and structure condition report. 

To Whom It May Concern, 

The existing 1‐story, non‐sprinklered residence located at 16336 Shady View Lane is a ranch style home 

of wood and stucco siding, and composite roof over conventional raised floor spread footing foundation.  

The home was built in 1952 to building codes of the time. The structure is of reasonable condition with 

no signs of major structural failure and does not pose any significant risk to person or property. 

Although the existing home is in good condition, it lacks the benefits of recent building codes such as 

seismic improvements and energy savings.  We are proposing to build a new 2‐story Spanish style home 

with 2 car garage and pool at the rear yard.  The new home will be constructed in compliance with 

current codes using modern methods and materials and will be fully sprinklered.  Further, the new home 

will make more efficient use of the site and will be aesthetically compatible with the Town guidelines 

and immediate neighborhood. Landscape and site work design will utilize materials and methods 

consistent with current green building measures and be compatible with the site and surrounding 

neighborhood. 

We feel that the new home will be a wonderful addition to the neighborhood. 

Please don’t hesitate to contact me with any questions or concerns. 

Regards, 

Lerika Liscano 

De Mattei Construction 

415‐559‐1081 

EXHIBIT 5

Page 200



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 201



Page 202



This Page 
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 203



February 8, 2019

Mr. Azhar Kahn
Community Development Department
Town of  Los Gatos
110 E. Main Street
Los Gatos, CA  95031

RE: 16336 Shady View Lane

Dear Azhar:

I reviewed the drawings and evaluated the site context. I am familiar with the site by virtue of  reviewing the new 
house immediately adjacent to this parcel on Shannon Road. My comments and recommendations are as follows:

Neighborhood Context 
The site is in a neighborhood which has seen many newer one and two-story homes constructed within the fabric of  largely 
one-story older homes. The architectural styles of  the neighborhood are eclectic, but all are traditional in form and architec-
tural style. Photographs of  the site and surrounding neighborhood context are shown on the following page.

EXHIBIT 7

Page 204



16336 Shady View Lane
Design Review Comments
February 8, 2019    Page 2

The Site

House to the immediate left on Shannon Road House to the immediate Right on Shady View Lane

House immediately Across Shady View Lane

Nearby house to the right on Shady View Lane

The Site: Shannon Road Frontage

Park immediately Across Shannon Road

House immediately Across Shady View Lane
(Shannon Road Frontage)

Page 205



16336 Shady View Lane
Design Review Comments
February 8, 2019    Page 3

Issues and Concerns
The proposed house is located on a corner parcel, and is largely two-stories in height - see illustration below. 

The home is well designed in a Spanish Revival Style. I believe the main issue is the height and mass of  the structure 
- especially at the corner of  Shady View Lane and Shannon Road. It should be noted that there are different context 
conditions on each side of  this parcel. Two specific issues are of  note:

1. The eave and roof  ridge heights are substantially taller than most homes in the immediate neighborhood.

2. The tall corner wall at the Shady View Lane and Shannon Road corner would be in substantial contrast to the 
strong first floor roof  eave emphasis of  homes in the immediate neighborhood.

Page 206



16336 Shady View Lane
Design Review Comments
February 8, 2019    Page 4

Recommendations

1.  The tall corner facades with substantial blank wall area compared to the window areas could be redesigned to re-
place the round tower form with perpendicular wall planes, and a first floor eave and roof  section carried around 
to both the north and west facades. However, the round stair tower is a common feature of  this architectural 
style. Overall, the proposed design, while correct in general form, is short of  the architectural details normally 
associated with the style. My recommendation would be to enhance the architectural details which would serve to 
mitigate the situation and divert attention away from the tall walls. These details could include the following:

• Additional windows at the corner on both the north and west facades.
 Note: Second floor arched window heads appear to be lower than eye level, and consideration should be given to raising them.

• Decorative wood corbels at eave lines.

• Trim molding on all sides of  the house at the second floor line.

• Deep set garage doors and all windows on all facades - see example photo below.

• Projecting stucco base on all sides of  the house.

• Add a decorative carriage light consistent with the architectural style at the entry door.

• Make the second floor columns on the north balcony square. They are now shown  with a wide face on Shan-
non Road and a narrower face on Shady View Lane

Recommended Shannon Road Elevation

Page 207



16336 Shady View Lane
Design Review Comments
February 8, 2019    Page 5

Recommended East Elevation

Recommended Shady View Lane Elevation

Recommended South Elevation

Azhar, please let me know if  you have any questions or if  there are issues that I did not address.

Sincerely,
CANNON DESIGN GROUP

Larry L. Cannon

Page 208



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 209



Page 210



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 211



ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A  Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

 1 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane             Version: 1/31/2019

Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture      
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 

Assessment of Five (5) Regulated-Size Trees #51 Through #55 
At and Adjacent to 

16336 Shady View Lane 
Los Gatos, California  

Prepared for:  
Mr. Azhar Khan, Assistant Planner 

Town of Los Gatos Community Development Department 

Field Visit:  
Walter Levison, Contract Town Arborist (CTA) 

1/29/2019 

Report by (CTA) 
1/31/2019 

EXHIBIT 9

Page 212



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              2 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
1.0 Summary _________________________________________________________________________ 3 

2.0 Assignment & Background ___________________________________________________________ 9 

3.0 Town of Los Gatos – What Trees are Protected? ________________________________________ 10 

4.0 Recommendations _________________________________________________________________ 11 

5.0 Tree Protection and Maintenance Directions per Town Code ______________________________ 18 

6.0 Tree Replacement Standards – Los Gatos Town Code ___________________________________ 21 

7.0 Author’s Qualifications _____________________________________________________________ 23 

8.0 Assumptions and Limiting Conditions _________________________________________________ 24 

9.0 Certification _______________________________________________________________________ 25 

10.0 Digital Images ____________________________________________________________________ 26 

11.0 Tree Data Table ___________________________________________________________________ 30 

12.0 Attached: Tree Location & Protection Fence Map Mark-up _______________________________ 36 

13.0 Attached: Tree Appraisal (Valuation) Worksheet Using the New 2018 Guide for Plant Appraisal 36 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

Page 213



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              3 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

1.0 Summary  
 
a. Below is a matrix style overview of the tree situation at the site, summarizing tree disposition and the suggested maintenance and protection items that 

should be performed or installed to optimize survival of both on-site trees and neighbor-owned trees that the CTA expects to be retained during and after 
proposed construction.     

 
Appraised values of the trees, which can be used as a tool for determining the proper security bond amount to have the applicant post with the Town as a 
hedge against site plan-related tree damages (if applicable), are noted in detail in the attached appraisal worksheet at the end of this report.  

 
Note: Only trees on this property, and neighbor-owned trees within roughly 10 horizontal feet of the existing property line fences, are included in this initial 
tree study.  
 
Note also that this initial study is based on a rough site plan sheet that does not include grading daylights, drainage pipe trenching routes, utility trenching 
routes, irrigation and landscape activity proposed, etc. Therefore, additional analysis of negative impacts to trees from proposed new work will likely need 
to be performed by WLCA and written up as part of a revision of this initial arborist report, prior to start of the proposed new site work.  

 
Table 1.0(a) (REFER TO THE WLCATREE MAP MARKUP WHEN REVIEWING THIS MATRIX) 
 

Tree 
Tag 

Number 
Common 

Name 

Special 
Protection as a 

Los Gatos 
“Large 

Protected 
Tree” (LPT)?  

  
Conflicts with Current Proposed Plans & Suggested Plan 

Adjustments to Reduce Those Conflicts 
 

Appraised 
Value Per 
Separate 

Worksheet by 
the CTA 

Replacement 
Rate Per 

Canopy Lost 
Replacement 

Size Tree 

51 Italian cypress No (To be removed) $8,900. 2 ($500.) 24” box 

52 Italian cypress No (To be removed) $8,900. 2 ($500.) 24” box 

53 California 
valley oak Yes 

 
a. Proposed joint trench will cut through root system within the 

Critical Root Zone (CRZ) area. Suggest relocate trench to at 
least 20 or 25 feet offset from trunk.  

 
b. Proposed storm drain trench and drain box will cut 

through south side of root system within the Critical Root 
Zone (CRZ) area. Suggest eliminate trenching in this area, 
and go with a shallow hand-graded earth swale to convey 
stormwater overland to a point near the street where a drain 

$28,500. 6 ($1,500.) 24” box 

Page 214



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              4 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tree 
Tag 

Number 
Common 

Name 

Special 
Protection as a 

Los Gatos 
“Large 

Protected 
Tree” (LPT)?  

  
Conflicts with Current Proposed Plans & Suggested Plan 

Adjustments to Reduce Those Conflicts 
 

Appraised 
Value Per 
Separate 

Worksheet by 
the CTA 

Replacement 
Rate Per 

Canopy Lost 
Replacement 

Size Tree 

can be installed as necessary to comply with any public 
works stormwater requirements.  
 

c. Proposed storm drain trench west of trunk cuts through 
the Critical Root Zone (CRZ) area that is beneath the existing 
older driveway. Suggest relocate or eliminate this trench, 
since the storm drain box inlet will be eliminated from the 
area south of the trunk of oak #53 anyway.  

 
d. Proposed new driveway excavation if built as per normal 

construction standards will destroy the west side of the oak 
#53 root system within the Critical Root Zone (CRZ) area. 
Suggest eliminate subbase overexcavation and eliminate 
subbase recompaction through use of a Tensar TriAx triaxial 
geogrid underlayment pinned down over the older baserock 
or the older soil surface, which will allow the new driveway to 
be built up over the soil without any excavation below existing 
soil grade elevations whatsoever (see digital images of 
Walter Levison’s Stanford University parking lot project from 
summer 2018 below in this report for a real-world example of 
this type of installation). 

 
e. Proposed new garage foundation work, if built using a 

standard slab on grade and a perimeter grade beam, which is 
typically cut down to 18 inches or more below soil surface 
grade, will destroy the oak #53 root system at roughly 10 to 
12 feet south of trunk edge. The CTA suggests requiring a 
condition of project approval that states that the specification 
for the new garage perimeter grade beam be floated over 
existing soil surface elevations, with a maximum of 4 inches 
of total cut below grade for the bottom edge of the beam.  
 

Page 215



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              5 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tree 
Tag 

Number 
Common 

Name 

Special 
Protection as a 

Los Gatos 
“Large 

Protected 
Tree” (LPT)?  

  
Conflicts with Current Proposed Plans & Suggested Plan 

Adjustments to Reduce Those Conflicts 
 

Appraised 
Value Per 
Separate 

Worksheet by 
the CTA 

Replacement 
Rate Per 

Canopy Lost 
Replacement 

Size Tree 

54 

Coast 
redwood  

 
(Neighbor 

tree) 

Yes 

This is by far the most valuable tree noted in this tree study, 
though it is located off-site on a neighbor property, with two 
mainstems located just east of the southeast corner of the 16336 
Shady View Lane property (see the CTA’s tree map attached to 
the end of this report).  
 
a. The swimming pool that is assumedly proposed as a 

separate “future” permit application, and an associated “pool 
house” which appears to be an accessory dwelling unit 
(ADU), are shown on the applicant’s plans in the south 
portion of the site. Even if the pool is to be a separate future 
entitlement application, the excavation of this area of the site 
may cause severe damage to the root system of redwood 
#54, which is assumed to be growing laterally westward 
beneath the existing older southmost residence foundation 
footing at 16336 Shady View Lane proposed to be 
demolished. Many of these older foundations were built in a 
substandard manner, and allow for tree roots to grow 
beneath the footing.1 
 
The CTA suggests that Staff require a condition of approval 
that the proposed pool be eliminated or relocated to an area 
outside of the Critical Root Zone (CRZ) which spans roughly 
23 to 25 feet west radius from the trunks of redwood #55. If 
the pool is not eliminated from this area, the tree may decline 
or die as a result of root loss (assuming that the tree’s root 
system consisting of very small, small, and larger diameter 
fibrous and woody roots does continue throughout the area 
underneath the existing southmost residence foundation 

$62,600. 6 ($1,500.) 24” box 

                                                           
1 I am currently dealing with a very similar situation at a Walter Levison project in Berkeley, where very large diameter coast redwood roots are growing horizontally through 
the entire basement area of a 100 year old residence. The roots plunged underneath the perimeter beam footing, and then grew upward in the soil profile, continuing horizontal 
growth for roughly 30 or 40 feet of extension distance beyond the foundation footing, essentially coursing through the entire footprint of the residence. This is the 6th or 7th 
instance that I have documented this occurrence with older residence footings and coast redwood specimens during my 20 years as a professional consulting arborist in the 
Bay Area.  

Page 216



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              6 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tree 
Tag 

Number 
Common 

Name 

Special 
Protection as a 

Los Gatos 
“Large 

Protected 
Tree” (LPT)?  

  
Conflicts with Current Proposed Plans & Suggested Plan 

Adjustments to Reduce Those Conflicts 
 

Appraised 
Value Per 
Separate 

Worksheet by 
the CTA 

Replacement 
Rate Per 

Canopy Lost 
Replacement 

Size Tree 

footprint at 16336 Shady View Lane).   
One option for the applicant would be to relocate the pool 
westward such that it would lay in a position outside of (i.e. 
west of) the CTA’s indicated magenta highlighted Critical 
Root Zone (CRZ) area. This would bring the pool closer to 
the proposed residence footprint, abutted up to the southeast 
corner of the new residence. The associated “pool house” 
(second dwelling unit?) would then assumedly have to be 
reduced in square footage or pushed westward from its 
current proposed position to allow the pool footprint to itself 
be pushed westward to outside of the redwood tree CRZ.  
 
Note that the CTA has included a red dashed line on the tree 
map attached to this report, which indicates a “post-
demolition fencing route” where chain link fencing will need to 
be installed immediately after demolition of the existing 
residence, in order to preserve and protect the root system of 
redwood #55 assumed to be present underneath the older 
foundation.  

55 

Purple smoke 
tree 

 
(Town right of 

way tree) 

No 

No apparent conflicts. Protect with chain link fencing (RPZ) as 
shown on the CTA’s tree map markup attached to this report, and 

periodically irrigate the tree with garden hose water 1x/week.  
 

Note that this tree was not shown on the applicant’s plans. If the 
applicant wishes to propose removal of this Town-owned tree, 

then Staff will need to approve the removal, and mitigate 
accordingly per the boxes at the right in this column.  

$3,680. 3 ($750.) 24” box 

 
2018-19 Town of Los Gatos In-lieu fee equivalent = $250 per each required 24” box mitigation tree planting not installed on 
the site. 
  
 
 

Page 217



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              7 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

 
1.0(b) Bulleted summary of tree disposition and tree issues, based on the initial grading and drainage plan sheet C-2 dated 
12/2/2018 by NNR Engineering of San Jose, California:  
 

1. TREE IMPACTS AND SUGGESTED AMENDMENTS TO THE PROPOSED PLANS AS DESCRIBED ABOVE IN TABLE 1.0(A):  
 
A. Oak #53:  

 
1.1. Proposed joint trench within critical root zone (CRZ). Need to relocate to 20 or 25 feet offset from trunk.  

 
1.2. Proposed storm drain and associated drain inlet/box south of trunk within critical root zone (CRZ). Need to relocate or eliminate, and use 

shallow hand graded swale to convey water toward street.  
 

1.3. Proposed storm drain west of trunk within critical root zone (CRZ). It appears that this drain may also convey roof downspout drainage water, 
though this would have to  be verified by the applicant. Need to relocate this entire trench to at least 20 or 25 feet offset radius from the trunk 
of oak #53. 

 
1.4. Proposed new driveway is within the critical root zone (CRZ). Suggest use alternative methods and materials, such as installation of a Tensar 

TriAx triaxial geogrid pinned down over the soil surface or old baserock surface as an underlayment to allow the new baserock and new 
concrete to be placed over grade as a floating system, thereby avoiding excavation. Geogrids allow for elimination of any subbase excavation 
or subbase recompaction. They also allow for up to a 50% thinning of the new base section thickness per Tensar Corp’s technical documents 
online.  

 
1.5. Proposed new garage will be built slightly within the critical root zone, and will destroy half of the existing southward root system (Current 

existing residence is over 20 feet south of trunk. Proposed new garage will be 10 or 11 feet south of trunk). Suggest use an alternative 
specification for the garage foundation work, such as “slab floating over grade with maximum 4 inches of total cut below existing grade 
elevation, and total max. cut of 4 inches below existing grade elevation for any proposed perimeter grade beam (if a grade beam required)”.  

 
1.6. Proposed work may require pruning to achieve 14 feet of airspace clearance over the new driveway. If airspace clearance pruning is 

required, then retain an ISA Certified Arborist to perform removal of one (1) 7 inch diameter limb at the point of attachment on the main stem 
at 15 feet above grade, to remove the entire limb which currently extends westward over the driveway and hangs down to just a few feet 
above grade (see photos in below in this report). 

 
B. Redwood #54:  

 
1.1. Proposed demolition of the existing southmost residence may cause damage to existing fine fibrous roots and larger diameter woody roots 

extending westward from neighbor redwood #54 valued at over $60,000, within the critical root zone (CRZ) of this tree. The CTA suggests 
that a chain link post-demolition fence be immediately erected around the zone shown in magenta highlight on the CTA’s tree map attached 
to this report, in order to protect the roots assumed to be growing horizontally westward underneath the existing residence foundation in this 
area. It is also suggested that this area be maintained as a “heavy irrigation” zone with once-weekly water applied to the area by garden hose 
or other means to maintain soil moisture within the critical root zone.  

Page 218



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              8 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

1.2. Proposed swimming pool work, shown as a “future” entitlement application on the grading and drainage plan sheet, would require deep 
excavation through the critical root zone (CRZ). The CTA suggests that the proposed swimming pool be relocated to an area west of the CRZ 
as shown in magenta colored highlight on the tree map attached to this arborist report, or eliminated and disallowed for this site. This may 
require that the proposed “pool house” (is this an accessory dwelling unit (ADU)?) be redesigned such that it is placed further westward than 
currently proposed on the applicant’s plans, in order to allow for the relocation of the proposed new swimming pool west of the redwood #54 
critical root zone.  

 
C. Smoke tree #55:  

 
This is a Town-owned street tree specimen of small stature, and can be retained as-is if chain link RPZ fencing is erected around the canopy 
dripline as shown on the CTA’s tree map attached to this arborist report, and once-weekly irrigation water applied to the root zone.  

 
It is not known if the applicant had planned on retaining the tree or removing it, since it was omitted from the survey and not shown on any of 
the proposed plan sheets. For the purposes of this report, the CTA assumes the tree is to remain.   

 
2. TREE REMOVALS :    

 
Cypress trees #51 and #52, valued at a total of $17,800, are proposed by the applicant to be removed.  
 
Per Town policy, the required mitigation for these removals is per canopy replacement value which totals 4 X $250 = $1,000, which is only 5% of the 
actual value of the trees. Alternatively, staff could require installation of four (4)  24” box size trees of (species and locations to be determined) on the 
proposed construction site.  
 
If Town-owned smoke tree #55 is also to be removed, then this would require an additional mitigation payment of $750 (3 X $250) canopy 
replacement fee by the applicant. Staff should verify with the applicant whether they had planned to remove this tree from the landscape.  

 
3. LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION    

 
Landscape plans and irrigation plans were not available in the submittal set of plans for the author’s review. Therefore, irrigation pipe trenching and 
tree planting locations (if any) will need to be reviewed by Town planning Staff prior to final approval of the plans, to ensure that PVC pipe trench 
alignments are kept to at least 20 or 25 radial distance offset from the trunks of oak #53 and redwood #54.  

 
4. APPRAISAL:  

 
The total value of the three (3) trees #53, 54, and #55 being protected and retained at and adjacent to this site is $94,780 as determined by the CTA 
and shown in the above table. See the table above for the appraised dollar value of each individual tree specimen based on the new Guide for Plant 
Appraisal 10th edition (2018). Also note that per this new edition of the Guide, a newly revised overall condition rating table applies (the new table is 
included in this report below the tree data table).   

 
 
 
 

Page 219



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              9 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

5. SECURITY BONDING:  
 

The new 2015 iteration of the Town tree ordinance section 29.10.1000 (c)3 includes wordage that requires that all trees being retained on a 
development site need to be appraised for dollar value at the applicant’s expense prior to building or grading permits being issued by the Town. Part ‘f’ 
of this same tree ordinance section states that the Town may condition a security bond prior to issuance of a permit, in the sum of $5,000 per each 
tree being preserved, or $25,000, whichever is less. There are three (3) trees being preserved.  
 
It would be reasonable, based on the actual appraised values of trees being retained at this site, for the Town to condition the project approval upon 
posting of a security bond in the amount of $15,000, to ensure that the trees being retained and protected (oak #53, redwood #54, smoke tree #55) 
actually survive the construction process and maintain their pre-project condition ratings into the future. Note that the actual value of these three trees 
is $94,780, and that a bond of $15,000 would constitute only 16% of the appraised value of the trees: a very reasonable security bond amount.  

  
2.0 Assignment & Background  
   
Walter Levison, Consulting Arborist (the Los Gatos CTA) was directed to tag and assess all Protected-Size (4-inch diameter and greater) trees in relatively 
close proximity to the proposed site plan project.  
 
The trees that were accessible were affixed with numeric tags at approximately eye level.   
 
The CTA summarized the tree situation from a long-term site manager’s perspective, both in table form and in written form above, in section 1 of the report. 
This may be most important section of the report, as it provides a quick but very detailed summary of existing tree conditions and suggested protection and 
maintenance items in both table form and written form for use by City Staff and the project development team.  
 
Specific recommendations for tree maintenance and protection are outlined below in section 4.0, and are based directly on the suggested protection and 
maintenance items noted in section 1.  
 
Digital images of the trees archived by WLCA are included below in this report for reference of existing pre-project conditions as report section 10. Images 
are in order of tree tag number.  
 
The tree data table with detailed tree information makes up section 11.0 of this report. The CTA used a forester’s D-tape to determine trunk diameter at 4.5 
feet above grade, or at a narrow point below a mainstem fork if the fork occurs at 4.5 feet above grade. The D-tape converts actual trunk circumference into 
diameter in inches and tenths of inches. Tree heights were determined using a digital Nikon Forestry Pro 550 rangefinder and hypsometer. Tree canopy 
spreads were visually estimated or paced out by foot.  
 
Tree tag numbers are noted on the CTA tree map markup attached to the end of this written report as section 12. The base sheet used for creation of this 
markup is the applicant’s grading and drainage plan sheet C-2 dated 12/2/2018 by NNR Engineering of San Jose, California. The sheet includes black 
clouding for canopy driplines, red dashed lines indicating preferred chain link root protection zone fence routing, magenta highlighting indicating rough 
“critical root zone” areas which should be maintained as “no dig” zones where trenching and excavation should be eliminated, and various typed notes.  
 
 

Page 220



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              10 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

The appraisal worksheet, also attached to the end of this report, is referenced as report section 13, and is a special Town of Los Gatos requirement that 
determines the dollar value of each tree. The CTA used the new 2018 10th edition of Guide for Plant Appraisal to determine these values, based on the new 
“trunk formula technique” (TFT) that has been in use for less than one year.   
 
3.0 Town of Los Gatos – What Trees are Protected?  
 
Per the most recent (2015) iteration of the Town of Los Gatos tree ordinance (Town Code Chapter 29 – Zoning Regulations, Article 1), the following 
regulations apply to all trees within the Town’s jurisdiction (wordage adjusted):  
 

1. All trees with at least a single mainstem measuring four (4) inches diameter or greater at 4.5 feet above grade are considered “Protected Trees” when 
removal relates to any development review.  
 

2. 12 inch diameter (18 inch multistem total) trees on developed residential property not currently subject to development review.  
 

3. 8 inch diameter (8 inch multistem total) blue oak (Quercus douglasii), black oak (Quercus kellogii), California buckeye (Aesculus californica), and 
Pacific madrone (Arbutus menziesii) on developed residential lots not currently subject to development review.  

 
4. 8 inch diameter (8 inch multistem total) trees on developed residential property not currently subject to development review, on lots in the designated 

Hillside Area per the official Town map.  
 

5. All trees with a single mainstem or sum of multiple mainstems totaling 48 inches diameter or greater at 4.5 feet above grade are considered “Large 
Protected Trees” (LPT).  
 

6. All oak species (Quercus spp.), California buckeye (Aesculus californica), and Pacific madrone (Arbutus menziesii) with one or more mainstems 
totaling 24 inches diameter or more at 4.5 feet above grade are considered “Large Protected Trees” (LPT).  
 

7. Section 29.10.0965. Prohibitions: A permit is required to prune, trim, cut off, or perform any work, on a single occasion or cumulatively, over a three-
year period, affecting 25% or more of any Protected Tree (including below ground root system).  
 

8. Section 29.10.0965. Prohibitions: A permit is required to prune, trim, or cut any branch or root greater than four (4) inches in diameter of a Large 
Protected Tree.  
 

9. Section 29.10.0965. Prohibitions: A permit is required to conduct severe pruning on any protected tree. Severe pruning is defined in section 
29.10.0955 as “topping or removal of foliage or significant scaffold limbs or large diameter branches so as to cause permanent damage and/or 
disfigurement of a tree, and/or which does not meet specific pruning goals and objectives as set forth in the current version of the International Society 
of Arboriculture Best Management Practices-Tree Pruning and ANSI A300-Part 1 Tree, Shrub, and Other Woody Plant Management-Standard 
Practices, (Pruning).”  

 
10. Exceptions:  

 

Page 221



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              11 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Severe Pruning Exception in Town Code section 29.10.1010(3) “…..except for pollarding of fruitless mulberry (Morus alba) or other species approved 
by the Town Arborist….”.  

 
Protected Tree Exceptions:  
 

a. Edible fruit or nut bearing trees less than 18 inches diameter (multistem total or single stem) 
b. Acacia melanoxylon (blackwood acacia) less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem) 
c. Liriodendron tulipifera (tulip tree) less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem) 
d. Ailanthus altissima  (tree of heaven) less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem) 
e. Eucalyptus globulus (Tasmanian blue gum) less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem) 
f. Eucalyptus camaldulensis  (River red gum) less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem) 
g. Other eucalyptus species (E. spp.) not noted above,  less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem)  

(REMOVAL O.K. ONLY AT HILLSIDE AREA LOCATIONS PER OFFICIAL TOWN MAP):  
www.losgatosca.gov/documentcenter/view/176  

h. All palm species (except Phoenix canariensis)  less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem) 
i. Ligustrum lucidum (glossy privet) less than 24 inches (multistem total or single stem) 
Note that per the exception in part ‘a’ above, fruiting olive trees with stems totaling less than 18 inches are considered non-
protected.  

 
4.0 Recommendations  

 
1. Project Team Pre-Project Adjustments, Clarifications, and Limits Requested (excerpted from this CTA Report Section 1.0(b):   

 
D. Oak #53:  

 
1.1. Proposed joint trench is within critical root zone (CRZ) of tree. Need to relocate to 20 or 25 feet offset from trunk edge.  

 
1.2. Proposed storm drain and associated drain inlet/box south of trunk within critical root zone (CRZ). Need to relocate or eliminate this drain 

trench and inlet box, and instead use shallow hand-graded swale to convey water toward street. Build inlet box adjacent to street as 
necessary to comply with Town Public Works Dept stormwater conveyance requirements.  

 
1.3. Proposed storm drain west of trunk within critical root zone (CRZ) of tree. Verify with applicant’s project team whether this drain pipe trench is 

meant to convey rooftop downspout water. Need to relocate this entire trench to at least 20 or 25 feet offset radius from the trunk of oak #53 
by placing it on the opposite side of the proposed new residence.  

 
1.4. Proposed new driveway is within the critical root zone (CRZ) of tree. Suggest use alternative methods and materials, such as installation of a 

Tensar TriAx triaxial geogrid pinned down over the soil surface or old baserock surface as an underlayment to allow the new baserock and 
new concrete to be placed over grade as a floating system, thereby avoiding excavation. The TriAx geogrid disperses load forces laterally, 
and thereby allows for elimination of any subbase excavation or subbase recompaction. It also allows for up to a 50% thinning of the new 
base section thickness per Tensar Corp’s technical documents online. See photos below showing Walter Levison’s Stanford University 
parking lot and sidewalk TriAx installation in 2018. NOTE: PHASE DEMOLITION OF THE OLDER DRIVEWAY TO END OF PROJECT.  

Page 222



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              12 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

This Page:  
 
Tensar TriAx geogrid being 
pinned down to the soil 
surface at Stanford University 
in 2018 (Walter Levison 
projects).  
 
Above and below images are 
a parking lot project where 
$200,000 worth of large 
mature oak trees are being 
preserved throughout the lot 
by use of the geogrid, and by 
eliminating subbase work 
altogether. Also, the curb 
footing bases were raised up 
to the elevations of the 
geogrid so that no 

unnecessary excavation 
would occur.   
 
The photo at far right is a 
sidewalk project at Stanford 
where the walkway passes 
beneath the canopy dripline 
of a very large and valuable 
oak specimen that is a key 
historic element of the 
landscape.  
 
Baserock is laid directly over 
the geogrid after it is pinned 
in place with steel pins 
(photo at right shows 
baserock piled over the 
geogrid).  
 
 
 

Page 223



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              13 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

1.5. Proposed new garage will be built slightly within the critical root zone. Suggest use an alternative specification for the garage foundation 
work, such as “slab floating over grade with maximum 4 inches of total cut below existing grade elevation, and total max. cut of 4 inches 
below existing grade elevation for any proposed perimeter grade beam.  

 
1.6. If 14 feet of airspace clearance over the new driveway is required, then retain an ISA Certified Arborist to perform removal of one (1) 7 inch 

diameter limb at the point of attachment on the main stem at 15 feet above grade per all of the most current ANSI A300 tree pruning 
standards, to remove the entire limb which currently extends westward over the driveway and hangs down to just a few feet above grade (see 
photos in below in this report). 

 
E. Redwood #54:  

 
1.1. Proposed demolition of the existing southmost residence may cause damage to existing fine fibrous roots and larger diameter woody roots 

extending westward from neighbor redwood #54 valued at over $60,000, within the critical root zone (CRZ) of this tree. The CTA suggests 
that a chain link post-demolition fence be immediately erected around the zone shown in magenta highlight on the CTA’s tree map attached 
to this report, in order to protect the roots assumed to be growing horizontally westward underneath the existing residence foundation in this 
area. It is also suggested that this area be maintained as a “heavy irrigation” zone with once-weekly water applied to the area by garden hose 
or other means to maintain soil moisture within the critical root zone.  
.  

1.2. Proposed swimming pool work, shown as a “future” entitlement application on the grading and drainage plan sheet, would require deep 
excavation through the critical root zone (CRZ). The CTA suggests that the proposed swimming pool be relocated to an area west of the CRZ 
as shown in magenta colored highlight on the tree map attached to this arborist report, or eliminated and disallowed for this site. This may 
require that the proposed “pool house” (is this an ADU second dwelling unit (ADU)?) be redesigned such that it is placed further westward 
than currently proposed on the applicant’s plans, in order to allow for the relocation of the proposed new swimming pool west of the redwood 
#54 critical root zone.  

 
F. Smoke tree #55 (if retained):  

 
Erect chain link RPZ fencing around the canopy dripline as shown on the CTA’s tree map attached to this arborist report, and apply once-
weekly irrigation water to the entire protected root zone area within the chain link fence perimeter.  
 

2. Pruning:  
  

All pruning work on trees at this project will need to be performed directly by or under full-time direct site supervision of an ISA Certified Arborist.  
 

All pruning shall conform to the most current iteration (2017) of ANSI-A300 tree, shrub,and other woody plant maintenance / pruning and the Best 
Management Practices companion pamphlet to the ANSI-A300 pruning standards, published by International Society of Arboriculture.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 224



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              14 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

3. New Irrigation Piping and Landscape Plantings: 
 

For irrigation piping that needs to be placed within 25 linear feet of oak #53 or redwood #54, use a flexible UV-resistant pipe of commercial grade, 
such as the following very thick-walled flexible UV-resistant PVC piping, which can be placed directly over-grade, or shallow-buried at 0 to 2 inches 
maximum depth below surface soil grade. Images of these components are shown below on page 17 of this report. The construction of this brand of piping 
is far superior to anything else available on the market in the United States, as the thickness of the tubing wall is at least 3x to 4x thickness of standard flex 
irrigation tubing, and is therefore highly resistant to animal chewing and other “vandalism” type damages that occur with surface-installed tubing.  Available 
for purchase only at Site One Landscape Supply in San Jose, CA within easy driving distance of Los Gatos.  
 
Suggested Best Management Practice (BMP) Irrigation System Components:  
 
• Salco brand flexible PVC. UV-resistant and algae-resistant. Salco model #PVC-AR-050IPS. “1/2 inch” diameter (see photo below for example of how 

the system is constructed).  
 

• White PVC ½ diameter” tubing couplings.  
 

• “1 gallon per minute” or “2 gallon per minute” very high-flow rate adjustable flood bubblers (e.g. TORO brand, etc.).  

 
 
 

 

Page 225



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              15 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

2. Trunk Buffer Wrap Type III Protection:  
 
Prior to project commencement, install a trunk buffer around the lowermost 6 to 8 feet of the 
mainstems of valley oak #53 and smoke tree #55 being retained in close proximity to proposed 
new construction activity.  

 
Wrap approximately 10 to 15 wraps of orange plastic snow fencing around the trunk between grade 
and 6 to 8 feet above grade to create a padding at least 1 to 2 inches thickness around each tree 
trunk.    
 
Stand 2x4 wood boards upright, side by side, around the entire circumference of the trunk. Affix using 
duct tape (do not use wires or ropes). See spec image at right showing the wooden boards correctly 
mounted against the plastic, such that the wood does not actually touch the trunk at all.    

 
3. Chain Link Fencing Type I and/or Type II Root Protection Zone (RPZ):  

 
Prior to commencing site demolition, erect chain link fencing panels set on moveable concrete block 
footings.  Wire the fence panels to iron layout stakes pounded 24 inches into the ground at the ends of 
each fence panel to keep the fence route stabilized and in its correct position. Do not wire the fence 
panels to the trunks of the trees. These panels are available commonly for rent or purchase.  

 
Alternative Fencing / Tube Posts and Rolled Chain Link:  
 
Using a professional grade post bounder, pound 7-foot long 2-inch diameter iron 
tube posts 24-inches into the ground, at 6 to 10-foot spacing maximum on-
center, and hang steel chain link fencing material minimum 5-feet height on the 
tube posts. These materials are available for purchase at many retail and 
wholesale construction supply houses such as Home Depot, Lowe’s, Grainger’s, 
White Cap, Harbor Freight, etc.  

 
Pre-construction fence routes:  
 
Per the red dashed lines on the tree map mark-up attached to this WLCA 
arborist report.  
 
• Valley oak #53: Erect fencing as far as possible from trunk, assuming 

the existing older driveway is to remain under the end of project. If the 
older driveway is demolished in the beginning of the project, then 
fencing will need to be placed over the entire magenta highlighted area 
indicated on the CTA’s tree map in order to preserve the root system 
within roughly 25 feet of trunk.  

Page 226



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              16 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

• Neighbor redwood #54: Erect fencing (immediately after demolition of the southmost older residence) around the entire magenta 
highlighted area indicated on the CTA’s tree map attached to this report.  
 

• Town-owned smoke tree #55: Erect fencing roughly 10 feet radius offset from trunk mass (i.e. 20 foot diameter fence perimeter).  
                    
(Routes may be subject to change, depending on the finalized alignments of work items).   

 
This fencing must be erected prior to any heavy machinery traffic or construction material arrival on site, except for redwood #54 fencing which is 
“post-demolition” phase.  
 
The protective fencing must not be temporarily moved during construction. No materials, tools, excavated soil, liquids, substances, etc. are to be 
placed or dumped, even temporarily, inside the root protection zone or “RPZ”.    
 
No storage, staging, work, or other activities will be allowed inside the RPZ except with PA monitoring. Note however that some RPZ 
fencing areas may need to be removed or moved to allow for final hardscape and final landscape plant and irrigation system installation to 
occur.  
 

4. Signage:  The RPZ fencing shall have one sign affixed with UV-stabilized zip ties to the chain link at eye level for every 15 linear feet of fencing, 
minimum 8”X11” size each, plastic laminated, with wordage that includes the Town Code section that refers to tree fence protection requirements 
(wordage can be adjusted):  

 

TREE PROTECTION ZONE FENCE 
ZONA DE PROTECCION PARA ARBOLES  

 
-NO ENTRE SIN PERMISO- 
-LLAME EL ARBOLISTA- 

 
REMOVAL OF THIS FENCE IS 

SUBJECT TO PENALTY ACCORDING TO 
LOS GATOS TOWN CODE 29.10.1025 

PROJECT ARBORIST:  
TELEFONO CELL:                                                                  EMAIL:                                                                              

Page 227



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              17 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

5. Water Spray:  
 
Spray off foliage of all trees within 20 feet of construction activity using a very high power garden 
hose or a pressure washer system set on low pressure to wash both the upper and lower surfaces of 
foliage. This helps keep the gas portals (stomata) unclogged for better gas exchange which is crucial 
for normal tree function.  
 
Spray should be applied approximately once-monthly, or when ambient airborne dust concentration 
is unusually high.  

 
6. Tree Removal Permiting / Removal of Protected-Size Trees:  

 
Removal of trees #51 and 52 is expected to occur as a result of proposed new project. The 
applicant shall pay a canopy replacement fee of $1,000, or install four (4) 24” box size trees on site 
(locations and species to be determined).  
 
If Town-owned smoke tree #55 is removed, then the applicant shall pay an additional $750 in canopy 
replacement fees, or site installation of an additional three (3) 24” box size trees (locations and 
species to be determined).  

 
7. Temporary Irrigation During Construction:  

 
Non-Oaks: Redwood #54 (Neighbor-owned tree)  
 
Volume per week: +/-100 gallons  
 
Application locations: Throughout the magenta highlighted area indicated on the CTA’s tree map markup (i.e. the entire area inside the post-demolition 
chain link RPZ fence perimeter that will span roughly 25 feet offset radius from the trunk edge).   

 
Native California Oaks / Valley Oak #53:   
 
Volume per week: (To be determined).   
 
Application locations:  (To be determined).    

 
Water application can be made using one or more of the following methods (see sample images):  
 
• Soaker hoses.  
• Emitter lines.  
• Garden hoses.  
• Fire truck hoses.  

Page 228



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              18 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

• Water trucks.  
• Tow-behind spray tank apparatus.  
• On-site water tank with gravity feed. 
• Over-grade PVC piping with spray heads wired to rebar or other steel stakes.  

 
5.0 Tree Protection and Maintenance Directions per Town Code   
 
The following is excerpted directly from the 2015 iteration of the Town of Los Gatos tree ordinance sections which provide specific tree protection directions 
and limitations on root pruning and above-ground pruning:  
 
Sec. 29.10.1000. New property development. 
 
(a) A tree survey shall be conducted prior to submittal of any development application proposing the removal of or impact to one or more protected 
trees. The development application shall include a Tree Survey Plan and Tree Preservation Report based on this survey. The tree survey inventory 
numbers shall correspond to a numbered metal tag placed on each tree on site during the tree survey. The tree survey plan shall be prepared by a certified 
or consulting arborist, and shall include the following information: 

 
(1) Location of all existing trees on the property as described in section 29.10.0995; 

 
(2) Identify all trees that could potentially be affected by the project  (directly  or  indirectly- immediately or in long term), such as upslope grading or 

compaction outside of the dripline; 
 

(3) Notation of all trees classified as protected trees; 
 

(4) In addition, for trees four (4) inches in diameter or larger, the plan shall specify the precise location of the trunk and crown spread, and the 
species, size (diameter, height, crown spread) and condition of the tree. 

 
(b) The tree survey plan shall be reviewed by the Town’s consulting arborist who shall, after making a field visit to the property, indicate in writing or as 
shown on approved plans, which trees are recommended for preservation (based on a retention rating of high/moderate/low) using, as a minimum, the 
Standards of Review set forth in section 29.10.0990. This plan shall be made part of the staff report to the Town reviewing body upon its consideration of the 
application for new property development; 

 
(c) When development impacts are within the dripline of or will affect any protected tree, the applicant shall provide a tree preservation report prepared 
by a certified or consulting arborist. The report, based on the findings of the tree survey plan and other relevant information, shall be used to determine the 
health and structure of existing trees, the effects of the proposed development and vegetation removal upon the trees, recommendations for specific 
precautions necessary for their preservation during all phases of development (demolition, grading, during construction, landscaping); and shall also 
indicate which trees are proposed for removal. The tree preservation report shall stipulate a required tree protection zone (TPZ) for trees to be 
retained, including street trees, protected trees and trees whose canopies are hanging over the project site from adjacent properties. The TPZ shall be 
fenced as specified in section 29.10.1005: 

 
(1) The final approved tree preservation report shall be included in the building permit set of development plans and printed on a sheet titled: 

Tree Preservation Instructions (Sheet T-1). Sheet T-1 shall be referenced on  all  relevant  sheets  (civil,  demolition,  utility,  landscape, 
irrigation) where tree impacts from improvements may be shown to occur; 

 
(2) The Town reviewing body through its site and design plan review shall endeavor to protect all trees  recommended for preservation by the 

Page 229



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              19 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Town’s consulting arborist. The Town reviewing body may determine if any of the trees recommended for preservation should be removed, if 
based upon  the evidence submitted the reviewing body determines that due to special site grading or other  unusual characteristics 
associated with the property, the preservation of the tree(s) would significantly preclude feasible development of the property as described in 
section 29.10.0990; 

 
(3) Approval of final site or landscape plans by the appropriate Town reviewing body shall comply with the following requirements and conditions of 

approval: 
 

a. The applicant shall, within ninety (90) days of final approval or prior to issuance of  a grading or building permit, whichever occurs 
first, secure an appraisal of the condition and value of all trees included in the tree report affected by the development that are required to 
remain within the development using the Tree Value Standard methodology as set forth in this Chapter. The appraisal of each tree shall 
recognize the location of the tree in the proposed development. The appraisal shall be performed in accordance with the current edition of 
the Guide for Plant Appraisal published by the Council of Tree and Landscape Appraisers (CTLA) and the Species and Group Classification 
Guide published by the Western Chapter of the International Society of Arboriculture. The appraisal shall be performed at the applicant's 
expense, and the appraisal shall be subject to the Director's approval. 

 
b. The site or landscape plans shall indicate which trees are to be removed. However, the plans do not constitute approval to remove a 
tree until a separate permit is granted. The property owner or applicant shall obtain a protected tree removal permit, as outlined in section 
29.10.0980, for each tree to be removed to satisfy the purpose of this division. 

 
(d) Prior to acceptance of proposed development or subdivision improvements, the developer shall submit to the Director a final tree preservation 
report prepared by a certified or consulting arborist. This report shall consider all trees that were to remain within the development. The report shall note 
the trees' health in relation to the initially reported condition of the trees and shall note any changes in the trees' numbers or physical conditions. The 
applicant will then be responsible for the loss of any tree not previously approved for removal. For protected trees, which were removed, the 
developer shall pay a penalty in the amount of the appraised value of such tree in addition to replacement requirements contained in section 
29.10.0985 of this Code. The applicant shall remain responsible for the health and survival of all trees within the development for a period of five (5) years 
following acceptance of the public improvements of the development or certificate of occupancy. 

 
(e) Prior to issuance of any demolition, grading or building permit, the applicant or contractor shall submit to the Building Department a written 
statement and photographs verifying that the required tree protection fence is installed around street trees and protected trees in accordance with the tree 
preservation report. 

 
(f) If required by the Director and conditioned as part of a discretionary approval, a security guarantee shall be provided to the Town. Prior to the 
issuance of any permit allowing construction to begin, the applicant shall post cash, bond or other security satisfactory to the Director, in the penal 
sum of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) for each tree required to be preserved, or twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00), whichever is less. The 
cash, bond or other security shall be retained for a period of one (1) year following acceptance of the public improvements for the development and shall 
be forfeited in an amount equal to five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) per tree as a civil penalty in the event that a tree or trees required to be preserved 
are removed, destroyed or severely damaged. 

 
(g) An applicant with a proposed development which requires underground utilities shall avoid the installation of said utilities within the dripline of 
existing trees whenever possible. In the event that this is unavoidable, all trenching shall be done using directional boring, air-spade excavation or by hand, 
taking extreme caution to avoid damage to the root structure. Work within the dripline of existing trees shall be supervised at all times by a certified or 
consulting arborist. 

 
(h) It shall be a violation of this division for any property owner or agent of the owner to fail to comply with any development approval condition 

Page 230



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              20 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

concerning preservation, protection, and maintenance of any protected tree. 
 

(Ord. No. 2114, §§ I, II, 8-4-03) 
 
Sec. 29.10.1005. Protection of trees during construction. 
 
(a) Protective tree fencing shall specify the following: 

 
(1) Size and materials. Six (6) foot high chain link  fencing,  mounted  on  two-inch  diameter galvanized iron posts, shall be driven into the ground 

to a depth of at least two (2) feet at no more than 10-foot spacing. For paving area that will not be demolished and when stipulated in a tree 
preservation plan, posts may be supported by a concrete base. 

 
(2) Area type to be fenced. Type I: Enclosure with chain link fencing of either the entire dripline area or at the tree protection zone (TPZ), when 

specified by a certified or consulting arborist. Type II: Enclosure for street trees located in a planter strip: chain link fence around the entire 
planter strip  to the outer branches. Type III: Protection for a tree located in a small planter cutout only (such as downtown): orange plastic 
fencing shall be wrapped around the trunk from the ground to the first branch with 2-inch wooden boards bound securely on the outside. 
Caution shall be used to avoid damaging any bark or branches. 

 
(3) Duration of  Type I, II, III  fencing. Fencing shall be erected before demolition,  grading or construction permits are issued and remain in 

place until the work is completed. Contractor shall first obtain the approval of the project arborist on record prior to removing a tree protection 
fence. 

 
(4) Warning sign. Each tree fence shall have prominently displayed an 8.5 x 11-inch sign stating: "Warning—Tree Protection Zone-this fence shall 

not be removed and is subject to penalty according to Town Code 29.10.1025". 
 
(b) All persons, shall comply with the following precautions: 

 
(1) Prior to the commencement of construction, install the fence at the dripline, or tree protection zone (TPZ) when specified in an approved arborist 

report, around any tree and/or vegetation to be retained which could be affected by the construction and prohibit any storage of construction 
materials or other materials, equipment cleaning, or parking of vehicles within the TPZ. The dripline shall not be altered in any way so as to 
increase the encroachment of the construction. 

 
(2) Prohibit all construction activities within the TPZ, including but not  limited  to:  excavation, grading, drainage and leveling within the dripline of 

the tree unless approved by the Director. 
 

(3) Prohibit disposal or depositing of oil, gasoline, chemicals or other harmful materials within the dripline of or in drainage channels, swales or 
areas that may lead to the dripline of a protected tree. 

 
(4) Prohibit the attachment of wires, signs or ropes to any protected tree. 

 
(5) Design utility services and irrigation lines to be located outside of the dripline when feasible. 

 
(6) Retain the services of a certified or consulting arborist who shall serve as the project arborist for periodic monitoring of the project site and the 

health of those trees to be preserved. The project arborist shall be present whenever activities occur which may pose a potential threat to the 
health of the trees to be preserved and shall document all site visits. 

 
(7) The Director and project arborist shall be notified of any damage that occurs to a protected tree during construction so that proper treatment may 

Page 231



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              21 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

be administered. 
 

(Ord. No. 2114, §§ I, II, 8-4-03) 
 

           Sec. 29.10.1010. Pruning and maintenance. 
 

All pruning shall be in accordance with the current version of the International Society of Arboriculture Best Management Practices—Tree Pruning 
and ANSI A300-Part 1 Tree, Shrub and Other Woody Plant Management—Standard Practices, (Pruning) and any special conditions as determined by the 
Director. For developments, which require a tree preservation report, a certified or consulting arborist shall be in reasonable charge of all activities involving 
protected trees, including pruning, cabling and any other work if specified. 
 

(1) Any public utility installing or maintaining any overhead wires or underground pipes or conduits in the vicinity of a protected tree shall obtain 
permission from the Director before performing any work, including pruning, which may cause injury to a protected tree. (e.g. cable TV/fiber optic 
trenching, gas, water, sewer trench, etc.). 

 
(2) Pruning for clearance of utility lines and energized conductors shall be performed in compliance with  the current version of the American 

National Standards Institute (ANSI) A300 (Part 1)- Pruning, Section 5.9 Utility Pruning. Using spikes or gaffs when pruning, except where no 
other alternative is available, is prohibited. 

 
(3) No person shall prune, trim, cut off, or perform any work, on a single occasion or cumulatively, over a three-year period, affecting twenty-five 

percent or more of the crown of any protected tree without first obtaining a permit pursuant to this division except for pollarding of fruitless 
mulberry trees (Morus alba) or other species approved by the Town Arborist. Applications for a pruning permit shall include photographs indicating 
where pruning is proposed. 

(4) No person shall remove any Heritage tree or large protected tree branch or root through pruning or other method greater than four (4) inches in 
diameter (12.5” in circumference) without first obtaining a permit pursuant to this division. 

 
(Ord. No. 2114, §§ I, II, 8-4-03) 
 

6.0 Tree Replacement Standards – Los Gatos Town Code 
 

(Excerpted from Town Code 29.10.0985 and 29.10.0987) 
 

(1) Two (2) or more replacement trees, of a species and size designated by the Director, shall be planted on the subject private property. Table 3-1 
The Tree Canopy—Replacement Standard shall be used as a basis for this requirement. The person requesting the permit shall pay the cost 
of purchasing and planting the replacement trees. 

(2) If a tree or trees cannot be reasonably planted on the subject property, an in-lieu payment in an amount set forth by the Town Council by 
resolution shall be paid to the Town Tree Replacement Fund to: 

 
a. Add or replace trees on public property in the vicinity of the subject property; or 

 
b. Add or replace trees or landscaping on other Town property; or 

 
c. Support the Town’s urban forestry management program. (Ord. No. 2114, §§ I, II, 8-4-03) 

Table 3-1 - Tree Canopy - Replacement Standard 
Page 232



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              22 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

 

Canopy Size of Removed Tree 1 
(Staff is using 24” box size as 
the Replacement Standard for 
SFR Projects as of 2016) 2,4 

Single Family 
Residential 

Replacement3,4 

10 feet or less Two 24 inch box trees Two 15 gallon trees 

More than 10 feet to 25 feet Three 24 inch box trees Three 15 gallon trees 

More than 25 feet to 40 feet 
Four 24 inch box 
trees; or Two 36 
inch box trees 

Four 15 gallon trees 

More than 40 feet to 55 feet 

Six 24 inch box 
trees; or Three 

36 inch box 
trees 

Not Available 

Greater than 55 feet 
Ten 24 inch box 
trees; or Five 36 
inch box trees 

Not Available 

Notes 
 

1To measure an asymmetrical canopy of a tree, the widest measurement shall be used to determine canopy size. 
2Often, it is not possible to replace a single large, older tree with an equivalent tree(s). In this case, the tree may be replaced with a combination of 
both the Tree Canopy Replacement Standard and in-lieu payment in an amount set forth by Town Council resolution paid to the Town Tree 
Replacement Fund. 

3Single Family Residential Replacement Option is available for developed single family residential lots under 10,000 square feet that are not 
subject to the Town’s Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines. All 15-gallon trees must be planted on-site. Any in-lieu fees for single 
family residential shall be based on 24” box tree rates as adopted by Town Council. 

4Replacement Trees shall be approved by the Town Arborist and shall be of a species suited to the available planting location, proximity to structures, 
overhead clearances, soil type, compatibility with surrounding canopy and other relevant factors. Replacement with native species shall be strongly 
encouraged. Replacement requirements in the Hillsides shall comply with the Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines Appendix A and 
Section 29.10.0987 Special Provisions--Hillsides. 

 
Page 233



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              23 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Sec. 29.10.0987.  Special Provisions—Hillsides 
 

The Town of Los Gatos recognizes its hillsides as an important natural resource and sensitive habitat which is also a key component of the 
Town’s identity, character and charm.  In order to maintain and encourage restoration of the hillside environment to its natural state, the Town 
has established the following special provisions for tree removal and replacement in the hillsides: 

 
(1) All protected trees located 30 or more feet from the primary residence that are removed shall be replaced with native trees listed in Appendix A 

Recommended Native Trees for Hillside Areas of the Town of Los Gatos Hillside Development Standards and Guidelines (HDS&G). 
 

(2) All protected trees located within 30 feet of the primary residence that are removed shall be replaced as follows: 
 

(a) If the removed tree is a native tree listed in Appendix A of the HDS&G, it shall only be replaced with a native tree listed in Appendix A of 
the HDS&G. 

 
(b) If the removed tree is not listed in Appendix A, it may be replaced with a tree listed in Appendix A, or replaced with another species of 
tree as approved by the Director. 

 
(c) Replacement trees listed in Appendix A may be planted anywhere on the property. 

 
(d) Replacement trees not listed in Appendix A may only be planted within 30 feet of the primary residence. 

 
(3) Replacement requirements shall comply with the requirements in Table 3-1 Tree Canopy Replacement Standard of this Code. 

 
(4) Property owners should be encouraged to retain dead or declining trees where they do not pose a safety or fire hazard, in order to foster wildlife 

habitat and the natural renewal of the hillside environment. 
 
7.0 Author’s Qualifications   
 

• Continued education through The American Society of Consulting Arborists, The International Society of Arboriculture (Western Chapter), and 
various governmental and non-governmental entities. 
 

• Contract Town Arborist, Town of Los Gatos, California  
Community Development Department / Planning Division  
2015-present    

 
• Tree Risk Assessment Qualified (ISA TRAQ Course Graduate, Palo Alto, California)  

 
• Millbrae Community Preservation Commission (Tree Board)  

2001-2006 
 

• ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 
 

• ASCA Arboriculture Consulting Academy graduate, class of 2000 
 

Page 234



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              24 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

• Associate Consulting Arborist 
Barrie D. Coate and Associates 
4/99-8/99 

 
• Contract City Arborist, City of Belmont, California  

Planning and Community Development Department 
5/99-present 
 

• ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A  
 

• Peace Corps Soil and Water Conservation Extension Agent 
Chiangmai Province, Thailand 1991-1993 
 

• B.A. Environmental Studies/Soil and Water Resources 
UC Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz, California 1990 
 
UCSC Chancellor’s Award, 1990 

 
(My full curriculum vitae is available upon request) 

 
8.0 Assumptions and Limiting Conditions    
 
Any legal description provided to the consultant/appraiser is assumed to be correct. Any titles and ownership to any property are assumed to be good and marketable. No responsibility is assumed 
for matters legal in character. Any and all property is appraised and evaluated as through free and clean, under responsible ownership and competent management. 
 
It is assumed that any property is not in violation of any applicable codes, ordinance, statutes, or other government regulations. 
 
Care has been taken to obtain all information from reliable sources.  All data has been verified insofar as possible; however, the consultant/appraiser can neither guarantee nor be responsible for 
the accuracy of information provided by others.  
 
The consultant/appraiser shall not be required to give testimony or to attend court by reason of this report unless subsequent contractual arrangements are made, including payment of an 
additional fee for such services as described in the fee schedule and contract of engagement. 
 
Unless required by law otherwise, the possession of this report or a copy thereof does not imply right of publication or use for any other purpose by any other than the person to whom it is 
addressed, without the prior expressed written or verbal consent of the consultant/appraiser. 
 
Unless required by law otherwise, neither all nor any part of the contents of this report, nor copy thereof, shall be conveyed by anyone, including the client, to the public through advertising, public 
relations, news, sales, or other media, without the prior expressed conclusions, identity of the consultant/appraiser, or any reference to any professional society or institute or to any initiated 
designation conferred upon the consultant/appraiser as stated in his qualifications. 
 
This report and any values expressed herein represent the opinion of the consultant/appraiser, and the consultant’s/appraiser’s fee is in no way contingent upon the reporting of a specified value, a 
stipulated result, the occurrence of a subsequent event, nor upon any finding to be reported. 
 
Sketches, drawings, and photographs in this report, being intended for visual aids, are not necessarily to scale and should not be construed as engineering or architectural reports or surveys 
unless expressed otherwise. The reproduction of any information generated by engineers, architects, or other consultants on any sketches, drawings, or photographs is for the express purpose of 

Page 235



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              25 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

coordination and ease of reference only. Inclusion of said information on any drawings or other documents does not constitute a representation by Walter Levison to the sufficiency or accuracy of 
said information. 
 
Unless expressed otherwise: 
a. information contained in this report covers only those items that were examined and reflects the conditions of those items at the time of inspection; and  
b. the inspection is limited to visual examination of accessible items without dissection, excavation, probing, or coring. There is no warranty or guarantee, expressed or implied, that 
problems or deficiencies of the plants or property in question may not arise in the future. 
 
Loss or alteration of any part of this report invalidates the entire report.  
 
Arborist Disclosure Statement: 
 
Arborists are tree specialists who use their education, knowledge, training, and experience to examine trees, recommend measures to enhance the beauty and health of trees, and attempt to 
reduce the risk of living near trees. Clients may choose to accept or disregard the recommendations of the arborist, or to seek additional advice.  
 
Arborists cannot detect every condition that could possibly lead to the structural failure of a tree. Tree are living organisms that fail in ways we do not fully understand. Conditions are often hidden 
within trees and below ground. Arborist cannot guarantee that a tree will be healthy or safe under all circumstances, or for a specified period of time. Likewise, remedial treatments, like any 
medicine, cannot be guaranteed.  
 
Treatment, pruning, and removal of trees may involve considerations beyond the scope of the arborist’s services such as property boundaries, property ownership, site lines, disputes between 
neighbors, and other issues. Arborists cannot take such considerations into account unless complete and accurate information is disclosed to the arborist. An arborist should then be expected to 
reasonably rely upon the completeness and accuracy of the information provided.  
 
Trees can be managed, but they cannot be controlled. To live near trees is to accept some degree of risk. The only way to eliminate all risk associated with trees is to eliminate the trees. 
  

9.0 Certification 
 
I hereby certify that all the statements of fact in this report are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief, and are made in good faith. 
 
Signature of Consultant 
 
 
 
Walter Levison  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 236



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              26 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

10.0 Digital Images   
 

WLCA archived images of the survey trees on 1/29/2019 
 

Tag # Image Tag # Image 

R to L 
51, 52 

 

R to L    
51, 52 

 

Page 237



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              27 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

53 

 
 

The limb extending left at 15 feet elevation may need to be removed to 
clear construction. It is placed directly over the existing and proposed 

driveway footprint, and extends generally westward, hanging down to just 
a few feet above grade once it reaches the grass area in this image.  

53 

 

Page 238



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              28 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

53  
 

This older driveway area is the oak #53 “Critical Root Zone” (west side of 
root zone) which will be required to be preserved and protected during 

construction.  
 

There are two separate proposed storm drain pipes that will have to be 
realigned to outside this area (preferably to 25 feet offset of the trunk), 

and one proposed new joint trench that will also need to be realigned to 
25 feet or so from trunk.  

 
To preserve the root zone under this older driveway, an underlayment of 

Tensar TriAx triaxial geogrid will need to be pinned down over the old 
baserock or old soil as a lateral load dispersal membrane, prior to 

building up baserock and pavers, etc. over the rock. This will allow us to 
avoid any subbase overexcavation or subbase recompaction that would 
otherwise be required and which normally destroy trees’ root systems in 

the process. See digital images of TriAx installations at Stanford for a 
Walter Levison project, above in this report.  

54 
 
 

 
 

The critical root zone (CRZ) of this very large neighbor owned redwood. 
valued at over $60,000, extends at least 20 feet westward beyond the 

property boundary fence, and into the proposed “future pool” area 
shown on the applicant’s plans.  

Page 239



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              29 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

54 

 
 

The tree extends 120 feet vertical, with 50 feet or more of canopy spread. 
The proposed pool area will need to be redesigned in order to avoid 

destroying the tree’s western root system, assuming that the roots extend 
under the existing residence to be demolished on 16336 Shady View 

(which is very likely).  

55  

Page 240



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              30 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

11.0 Tree Data Table  
 

NOTE 1: Fruit and nut trees measuring less than 18” diameter (total of all mainstems), including fruiting olive trees, both on the site and on 
adjacent neighbor properties, are excluded from the CTA’s tree studies as “exemption trees” per the Town tree ordinance.  
 
NOTE 2: Tree preservation suitability ratings (TPS) are determined independently from and irrespective of current proposed site construction 
work.  
 

Tr
ee

 T
ag

 N
um

be
r 

Genus & 
Species 

 
(PROTECTED 

STATUS NOTED 
WHERE 

APPLICABLE)  

Common 
Name 

Tr
un

k1
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k2
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k3
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Su
m

 o
f A

ll 
Tr

un
k 

D
ia

m
et

er
s 

H
ei

gh
t &

 C
an

op
y 

Sp
re

ad
 (F

t.)
 

H
ea

lth
 &

 
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 R
at

in
g 

   
   

   
 

(1
00

%
 E

ac
h)

 

Overall 
Condition 

Rating         
(0 to 100%) 

(R
)e

m
ov

e 
Tr

ee
 

(S
)a

ve
 T

re
e 

(D
)is

po
si

tio
n 

U
nc

le
ar

 

Tr
ee

 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

R
at

in
gs

 (T
PS

) 

Lo
ps

id
ed

 
C

an
op

y 
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n)

 

Tr
un

k 
Le

an
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

) 

G
ird

lin
g 

R
oo

ts
 

R
oo

t F
la

re
s 

B
ur

ie
d 

in
 F

ill
 S

oi
l 

Pe
st

s 
an

d 
D

is
ea

se
 

Pr
es

en
ce

, a
nd

 
O

th
er

 N
ot

es
 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 
C

O
D

ES
 

51 
Cupressus 

sempervirens 
Italian 

cypress 
Est. 
18 

--- --- Est. 18 50/8 75/70 74% Good X   
Mod 
to 

Good 
    

Good live 
crown ratio. 
No insect or 
pest issues 

noted. 
Trunk 

diameter 
measured 

near grade.  

(To be 
removed) 

52 
Cupressus 

sempervirens 
Italian 

cypress 
Est. 
18 

--- --- Est. 18 50/8 75/70 74% Good X   
Mod 
to 

Good 
    

Good live 
crown ratio. 
No insect or 
pest issues 

noted. 
Trunk 

diameter 
measured 

near grade. 

(To be 
removed) 

Page 241



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              31 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tr
ee

 T
ag

 N
um

be
r 

Genus & 
Species 

 
(PROTECTED 

STATUS NOTED 
WHERE 

APPLICABLE)  

Common 
Name 

Tr
un

k1
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k2
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k3
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Su
m

 o
f A

ll 
Tr

un
k 

D
ia

m
et

er
s 

H
ei

gh
t &

 C
an

op
y 

Sp
re

ad
 (F

t.)
 

H
ea

lth
 &

 
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 R
at

in
g 

   
   

   
 

(1
00

%
 E

ac
h)

 

Overall 
Condition 

Rating         
(0 to 100%) 

(R
)e

m
ov

e 
Tr

ee
 

(S
)a

ve
 T

re
e 

(D
)is

po
si

tio
n 

U
nc

le
ar

 

Tr
ee

 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

R
at

in
gs

 (T
PS

) 

Lo
ps

id
ed

 
C

an
op

y 
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n)

 

Tr
un

k 
Le

an
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

) 

G
ird

lin
g 

R
oo

ts
 

R
oo

t F
la

re
s 

B
ur

ie
d 

in
 F

ill
 S

oi
l 

Pe
st

s 
an

d 
D

is
ea

se
 

Pr
es

en
ce

, a
nd

 
O

th
er

 N
ot

es
 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 
C

O
D

ES
 

53 

Quercus 
lobata 

 
Protected as 

“Large 
Protected 

Tree” 

California 
valley oak 

26.4 --- --- 26.4 55/55 87/68 74% Good  X  

Good 
to 

Very 
Good 

West  
 

(due to 
pruning 
on east 
side by 

neighbor) 

Additional note: the 
existing residence 

foundation footprint 
is located at 21 to 

22 feet offset 
radius from the 

trunk edge of this 
oak tree, but the 
proposed garage 
will be at roughly 

11 feet offset, 
which means that 
half of the existing 
root area extending 
southward from the 

trunk will be 
destroyed by the 

garage alone. This 
impact may or may 
not be mitigatable 
through use of a 
floating slab over 
grade and floating 
perimeter grade 

beam for the 
garage, pending the 
project engineer’s 
approval, thereby 

allowing for 
preservation of this 
area of the oak root 

system. The 
engineers typically 

will allow a 
reduction of 

perimeter beam cut 
depth on the order 

of 2 inches to 6 
inches total cut 

below grade.   

Root system 
extends 50 
feet radius 
westward 

through the 
proposed 

work area.  
We may 
need to 

remove one 
(1) 7” 

diameter 
limb at 15 

feet 
elevation on 

west side 
above drive.  

 
Suggest 

move two 
(2) storm 

drain 
trenches 

and one (1) 
joint-trench 
(JT) out to 
at least 20 
or 25 feet 
from trunk 

to avoid 
root loss.  

 
Suggest use 

TriAx 
geogrid to 

avoid 
subbase 

excavation 
that would 
otherwise 
result in 
root loss.   

TB, RPZ, 
GEOGRID, 
RELOCATE 

THREE 
CURRENTLY 
PROPOSED 
TRENCHES 
TO 20-25 

FEET 
RADIUS 
OFFSET, 

AND 
REMOVE 

ONE (1) 7” 
DIAMETER 
LIMB AS 

NEEDED ON 
WEST SIDE.   

 
Use Tensar 

TriAx triaxial 
geogrid to 
build the 
new drive 

without any 
subbase 
“over – 

excavation” 
or 

recompact-
ion. Refer to 

photos in 
report 

showing this 
grid 

placement 
at Stanford 
parking lots 

(Walter 
Levison 

projects).  

Page 242



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              32 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tr
ee

 T
ag

 N
um

be
r 

Genus & 
Species 

 
(PROTECTED 

STATUS NOTED 
WHERE 

APPLICABLE)  

Common 
Name 

Tr
un

k1
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k2
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k3
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Su
m

 o
f A

ll 
Tr

un
k 

D
ia

m
et

er
s 

H
ei

gh
t &

 C
an

op
y 

Sp
re

ad
 (F

t.)
 

H
ea

lth
 &

 
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 R
at

in
g 

   
   

   
 

(1
00

%
 E

ac
h)

 

Overall 
Condition 

Rating         
(0 to 100%) 

(R
)e

m
ov

e 
Tr

ee
 

(S
)a

ve
 T

re
e 

(D
)is

po
si

tio
n 

U
nc

le
ar

 

Tr
ee

 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

R
at

in
gs

 (T
PS

) 

Lo
ps

id
ed

 
C

an
op

y 
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n)

 

Tr
un

k 
Le

an
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

) 

G
ird

lin
g 

R
oo

ts
 

R
oo

t F
la

re
s 

B
ur

ie
d 

in
 F

ill
 S

oi
l 

Pe
st

s 
an

d 
D

is
ea

se
 

Pr
es

en
ce

, a
nd

 
O

th
er

 N
ot

es
 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 
C

O
D

ES
 

54 

Sequoia 
sempervirens    

 
Protected as 

“Large 
Protected 

Tree” 

Coast 
redwood  

 
(NEIGHBOR 

TREE) 

Est. 
45 

Est. 
45 

 
Est. 90 
total 

120/50 85/70 73% Good  X  

Good 
to 

Very 
Good 

West 

Two 
main-
stems 
fork at 

low 
elev-
ation 

and are 
now 

angled 
off 

from 
vertical

.   

  

Trunk 
diameters 
estimated. 

Lower trunk 
situation is 
not visible 

due to 
property 

line fence. 
Critical Root 
Zone (CRZ) 

is 
calculated 
as roughly 
23 to 25 

feet west of 
trunk. 

Assume 
roots are 
growing 
laterally 

under the 
existing 

residence 
on 16336 

Shady View. 
The CTA 
suggests  

fencing off 
the entire 
area under 
the west 
canopy 

once the 
existing 

residence is 
demolished 

there.  

 Immediately 
after 

demolition of 
the 

residence 
under the 

west side of 
canopy, 

fence off the 
entire area 

under 
canopy 

using RPZ 
chain link, 

and irrigate 
1x/week 

heavily with 
a garden 

hose 100 to 
200 gallons 

min. per 
week, in the 
assumption 
that there is 
a viable root 

system of 
lateral 

woody roots 
extended 

through that 
area.  

 
Do not build 

proposed 
pool within 

25 feet west 
of tree trunk.  

Page 243



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              33 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tr
ee

 T
ag

 N
um

be
r 

Genus & 
Species 

 
(PROTECTED 

STATUS NOTED 
WHERE 

APPLICABLE)  

Common 
Name 

Tr
un

k1
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k2
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Tr
un

k3
 D

ia
m

et
er

 

Su
m

 o
f A

ll 
Tr

un
k 

D
ia

m
et

er
s 

H
ei

gh
t &

 C
an

op
y 

Sp
re

ad
 (F

t.)
 

H
ea

lth
 &

 
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 R
at

in
g 

   
   

   
 

(1
00

%
 E

ac
h)

 

Overall 
Condition 

Rating         
(0 to 100%) 

(R
)e

m
ov

e 
Tr

ee
 

(S
)a

ve
 T

re
e 

(D
)is

po
si

tio
n 

U
nc

le
ar

 

Tr
ee

 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Su

ita
bi

lit
y 

R
at

in
gs

 (T
PS

) 

Lo
ps

id
ed

 
C

an
op

y 
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n)

 

Tr
un

k 
Le

an
   

   
   

   
   

(n
ot

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

) 

G
ird

lin
g 

R
oo

ts
 

R
oo

t F
la

re
s 

B
ur

ie
d 

in
 F

ill
 S

oi
l 

Pe
st

s 
an

d 
D

is
ea

se
 

Pr
es

en
ce

, a
nd

 
O

th
er

 N
ot

es
 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
A

N
D

 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 
C

O
D

ES
 

55 

Cotinus 
coggygria 

 
Public right of 

way “street 
tree” status 

Purple 
smoke tree 

5 5 4 
27 

(seven 
stems) 

12/15 80/45 56% Fair  X  
Poor 

to 
Mod  

    

Tree has a 
relatively 
short life 

expectancy. 
Tree is 
easily 

preserved 
through use 
of periodic 

irrigation by 
hand (hose), 

and 
installation 

of a root 
protection 
zone fence 

around 
canopy prior 

to 
demolition 

start.  

RPZ, W  

 
Overall Tree Condition Ratings As Used In The Tree Data Table / New 2018 Breakdown of Numeric Ranges2:   
 
00 - 05% = Dead  
06 - 20% = Very Poor 
21 – 40% = Poor 
41 – 60% = Fair 
61 – 80% = Good 
81 – 100% = Exceptional  

 
 
                                                           
2 Based on the new 2018 Guide for Plant Appraisal, 10th Edition.  

Page 244



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              34 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tree Preservation Suitability (TPS) Ratings Based Solely on Each Tree’s Merits:  
(Not Associated With Proposed Site Plan Construction-Related Work) 
 

TPS Rating Definition  

VG 
Very Good 

Exceptional current season’s live twig density and twig extension (“TDE”). Tree provides multiple benefits to the property 
and users of site (e.g. shade, wildlife, patriarch tree, key landscape element or specimen in front yard, etc.). Trees with a 
minimum overall condition rating of 85% out of 100% points possible as determined by the City Arborist. Tree structure 
vertically-oriented with little or no lopsidedness or other architectural defects. Species with long life expectancy, and/or 
good resistance to most pests and diseases. Tree in a position that is correct for its sun/shade/drainage needs. Tree not 
damaged by incorrect pruning. Redesign of applicant’s proposed site work is warranted at any cost to preserve the root 
system and the above-ground portion of the tree.   

G 
Good 

Good TDE, with a 70% or better overall condition rating as determined by the City Arborist. Tree may be lopsided or leaning, 
but provides good benefit(s) to the property and users of the property (e.g. shade, wildlife, sight-line screening, etc.). 
Species with long life expectancy and/or good resistance to most pests and diseases.  Tree located in a position that is 
correct in terms of its sun/shade/drainage needs. Tree may or may not have been correctly pruned in the past. Applicant’s 
project team should seriously consider site plan redesign to work around the tree’s root system and above-ground canopy.  

M 
Moderate 

Moderate TDE. Tree may be significantly damaged by past pruning. Tree may exhibit pest and disease issues that are not 
curable through current known treatments. Tree may exhibit non-correctable structural issues. Species may be relatively 
short-lived or have a limited remaining useful life expectancy. Placement of tree may be incorrect in terms of high voltage 
power line conflicts, slow drainage, sun/shade requirements, etc. Consider allowing the applicant to remove the tree to 
achieve proposed site work goals.  

P 
Poor 

Tree has potentially serious structural and/or health issues that are not correctable through current known treatments (e.g. a 
very large diameter girdling root, a serious bark inclusion at a large diameter mainstem fork that is prone to catastrophic 
splitout, etc.). Tree may be growing vertically up into high voltage electric wires. Tree may be a species that is undesirable in 
terms of its low relative wood strength, short lifespan (e.g. a colonizing species such as white alder), etc. Tree may be at the 
end of its expected lifespan, and is in a spiral of decline. Tree root system may be in conflict with existing buildings, 
infrastructure, etc. Staff is encouraged to allow applicant to remove tree to achieve site plan work goals (though the tree 
may still be useful as a property boundary wildlife tree for raptors, songbirds, raccoons, foxes, etc.).  

VP 
Very Poor 

Roughly 0% to 20% overall condition rating. Tree in active declining stage with no possibility of recovery in terms of health 
(vigor) or structure. Tree may have a visible high risk of tree part failure and impact with life and/or property. Tree has little 
remaining useful lifespan. Removal of tree is encouraged as needed to achieve site plan work goals. Tree may still have 
some use as a sight-line screen and/or wildlife element if retained near the property boundary or far from residential 
structures and roadways.  

 
Page 245



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              35 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

Tree Maintenance and Protection Acronyms & Standards:  
 

RPZ: Root protection zone fence, chain link, with 2" diameter iron posts driven 24" into the ground, 6 to 8 feet on center max. spacing. Alternative material: 
chain link fence panels set over concrete block-type footings, with the fence panels wired to steel pins pounded 24 inches into the ground at both ends of each 
panel.  
 
RB: Root buffer consisting of wood chip mulch lain over existing soil as a 12 inch thick layer, overlain with 1 inch or greater plywood strapped together with 
metal plates. This root buffer or soil buffer should be placed over the entire width of the construction corridor between tree trunks and construction.  
 
RP: Root pruning. Prune woody roots measuring greater than or equal to 1 inch diameter by carefully back-digging into the soil around each root using small 
hand tools until an area is reached where the root is undamaged. Cleanly cut through the root at right angle to the root growth direction, using professional 
grade pruning equipment and/or a Sawzall with wood pruning blade. Backfill around the cut root immediately (same day), and thoroughly irrigate the area to 
saturate the uppermost 24 inches of the soil profile.  
 
BDRP: Back-dig root pruning: Hand-dig around the broken root, digging horizontally into the open soil root zone until a clean, unbroken, unshattered section of 
the root is visible. Proceed as per ‘root pruning’.  
 
RCX: Root crown excavation. Retain an experienced ISA-Certified arborist to perform careful hand-digging using small trowels or other dull digging tools to 
uncover currently-buried buttress root flares. Digging shall occur between trunk edge and at least two (2) feet horizontal from trunk edge. The final soil 
elevation will be at a level such that the tree’s buttress roots visibly flare out from the vertical trunk.  
 
TB: Trunk buffer consists of 20-40 wraps of orange plastic snow fencing to create a 2 inch thick buffer over the lowest 8 feet of tree trunk (usually takes at least 
an entire roll of orange fencing per each tree). Lay 2X4 wood boards vertically, side by side, around the entire circumference of the trunk. Secure buffer using 
duct tape (not wires).   
 
F: Fertilization with slow-release Greenbelt 22-14-14 tree formula, as a soil injection application using a fertilizer injection gun. This brand and formulation is 
commonly used by reputable tree care companies in the Bay Area. Apply at label rate and injection hole spacing.  
 
M: 4-inch thick layer of chipper truck type natural wood chips (example source: Lyngso Garden Supply, self pick-up). Do not use bark chips or shredded 
redwood bark.  
 
W: Irrigate using various methods to be determined through discussion with General Contractor. Irrigation frequency and duration to be determined through 
discussion and/or per directions in this report. Native oak species typically require 1x/month irrigation, while other tree species tend to prefer 2x/month or 
4x/month moderate to heavy irrigation during construction.  
 
P: Pruning per specifications noted elsewhere. All pruning must be performed only under direct site supervision of an ISA Certified Arborist, or performed 
directly by an ISA Certified Arborist, and shall conform to all current ANSI A300 standards.  
 
MON: A Project Arborist must be present to monitor specific work as noted for each tree.    

 
Page 246



 
 

ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #401 / ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified / ISA Certified Arborist #WE-3172A                        Cell: (415) 203-0990 / Email: walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com 

              36 of 36 
Site Address:  16336 Shady View Lane                                                                       Version: 1/31/2019
     
Registered Member, American Society of Consulting Arborists and Member of the International Society of Arboriculture       
 Walter Levison 2019 All Rights Reserved 
 

12.0 Attached: Tree Location & Protection Fence Map Mark-up 
 

WLCA added the following color-coded items to this sheet for reference purposes:  
 

a. Black clouding outlines are shown around tree specimens to show approximate true-scale canopy dripline dimensions.  
 

b. Magenta highlighted zones indicate the CTA’s suggested areas to preserve and protect as “Critical Root Zones” (CRZ). The actual CRZ of oak #53 is 
roughly 13 feet radius from trunk. However, given that the tree is a Quercus lobata specimen (a species that is extremely sensitive3 to construction 
damages such as root loss and grade changes), the CTA roughly doubled the CRZ distance to 25 feet radius offset from trunk to account for this 
sensitivity.  

 
c. Red dashed lines indicate optimal routing for chain link root protection zone (RPZ) fencing.  

 
The fencing around oak #53 is not shown as bounding the existing magenta root protection zone, since it is assumed that the driveway will be allowed to 
remain as-is during construction to act as a type of ground protection and root zone “buffer”. If the drive is to be demolished in the first phase (demolition 
phase), then fencing will need to be placed around the entire magenta colored area indicated on the CTA’s tree map to avoid damage to the root system in 
that area.  
 
The fencing around redwood #54’s root zone is “post-demolition” fencing that will be erected immediately after the existing older residence is removed 
from the magenta colored area indicated on the CTA’s map markup. The purpose of this particular fence is to protect and preserve lateral fine roots and 
larger woody roots that are assumed to be growing laterally westward under the existing residence to be demolished in the area west of the tree, which is 
the area considered to be the tree’s “Critical Root Zone” (CRZ) that must remain as a no-dig, no-impact zone.  

 
13.0 Attached: Tree Appraisal (Valuation) Worksheet Using the New 2018 Guide for Plant Appraisal  
 
An appraisal worksheet (Excel format) is attached to the end of this report, and includes fully transparent calculations based on the new 10th edition of the 
Guide for Plant Appraisal. The specific protocol used for this valuation is the “Trunk Formula Technique” (TFT), which is basically an entirely new system of 
tree valuation with calculations and multiplication factors that were not previously used in past iterations of the Guide. 
 

                                                           
3 Matheny and Clark. 1998. Trees and Development. Page 176.  
This statement is also based on the CTA’s 20 years of professional experience with valley oak specimens on construction sites throughout the Bay Area.  

Page 247



F
U

T
U

R
E

 
P

O
O

L

N
 
-
 
P

O
O

L

H
O

U
S

E

B
Y

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

1
"
 
=

1
0

'

1
2

-
2

-
2

0
1

8

N
R

S
C

A
L

E
:

D
A

T
E

:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

4
S

H
E

E
T

S
O

F

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

  N
O

T
E

S:

L
E

G
E

N
D

:
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 N
O

T
E

N
O

T
E

Page 248



     Line 9  Line 10 Line 11  

Tr
ee

 T
ag

 #

N
am

e 
(In

iti
al

s)

W
C

IS
A

 S
pe

ce
s 

G
ro

up
 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
B

oo
kl

et
 P

ag
e

H
ea

lth
 (W

ei
gh

te
d 

0.
15

)

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
(W

ei
gh

te
d 

0.
70

)

Fo
rm

 (W
ei

gh
te

d 
0.

15
)

O
ve

ra
ll 

C
on

di
tio

n 
R

at
in

g 
(O

C
R

) 
"W

ei
gh

te
d 

M
et

ho
d"

 

D
ia

m
et

er
 In

ch
es

 a
t 

4.
5 

ft.
 A

bo
ve

 G
ra

de

Fu
nc

tio
na

l 
Li

m
ita

tio
ns

Ex
te

rn
al

 
Li

m
ita

tio
ns

W
C

IS
A

 S
pe

ci
es

 
G

ro
up

 N
um

be
r

Tr
un

k 
Sq

ua
re

 
In

ch
es

 fo
r 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t-S
iz

e 
Sp

ec
im

en
 o

f T
hi

s 
Sp

ec
ie

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
F 

B
ay

 
A

re
a 

C
os

t o
f 2

4 
In

ch
 B

ox
 T

re
e 

(2
01

9)

(U
TC

) U
ni

t T
re

e 
C

os
t p

er
 S

q 
In

ch
 (M

 
D

iv
id

ed
 b

y 
L)

Tr
un

k 
A

re
a 

(T
A

) 
((d

ia
. x

 d
ia

.) 
x 

0.
78

5)

B
as

ic
 F

un
ct

io
na

l 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t C

os
t 

(B
FR

C
) =

 (O
xN

)

D
ep

re
ci

at
ed

 
Fu

nc
tio

na
l 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t C
os

t 
(D

FR
C

) =
 P

xG
xI

xJ

R
ou

nd
ed

-o
ff 

A
pp

ra
is

ed
 V

al
ue

s

51 Cs 12 0.75 0.7 0.9 74% 18 80% 90% 3 3.8 $250.00 $65.79 254.34 16,732.89$        8,885$                 $8,900

52 Cs 12 0.75 0.7 0.9 74% 18 80% 90% 3 3.8 $250.00 $65.79 254.34 16,732.89$        8,885$                 $8,900

53 Ql 31 0.87 0.68 0.9 74% 26.4 70% 90% 2 2.24 $250.00 $111.61 547.11 61,061.79$        28,525$               $28,500

54 Ss 34 0.85 0.7 0.78 73%

Multistem 
(estimated 

45" and 45") 
Neighbor 

Tree

75% 80% 4 4.75 $250.00 $52.63 2700.00 142,105.26$      62,626$               $62,600

55 Cc 11 0.8 0.45 0.8 56% Multistem     
5/5/4/4/3/3/3"  60% 90% 2 2.24 $250.00 $111.61 110.00 12,276.79$        3,679$                 $3,680

 

Valuation Appraisal Worksheet Based on Guide for Plant Appraisal, 10th Edition  (2018)  
"Functional Replacement Method / Trunk Formula Technique"
1/31/2019
16336 Shady View Lane, Los Gatos, California 

Depreciation Factors

Walter Levison, Consulting Arborist <walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com> Cell: (415) 203-0990 1 of 2

Page 249



     Line 9  Line 10 Line 11  

Tr
ee

 T
ag

 #

N
am

e 
(In

iti
al

s)

W
C

IS
A

 S
pe

ce
s 

G
ro

up
 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
B

oo
kl

et
 P

ag
e

H
ea

lth
 (W

ei
gh

te
d 

0.
15

)

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
(W

ei
gh

te
d 

0.
70

)

Fo
rm

 (W
ei

gh
te

d 
0.

15
)

O
ve

ra
ll 

C
on

di
tio

n 
R

at
in

g 
(O

C
R

) 
"W

ei
gh

te
d 

M
et

ho
d"

 

D
ia

m
et

er
 In

ch
es

 a
t 

4.
5 

ft.
 A

bo
ve

 G
ra

de

Fu
nc

tio
na

l 
Li

m
ita

tio
ns

Ex
te

rn
al

 
Li

m
ita

tio
ns

W
C

IS
A

 S
pe

ci
es

 
G

ro
up

 N
um

be
r

Tr
un

k 
Sq

ua
re

 
In

ch
es

 fo
r 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t-S
iz

e 
Sp

ec
im

en
 o

f T
hi

s 
Sp

ec
ie

s

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
F 

B
ay

 
A

re
a 

C
os

t o
f 2

4 
In

ch
 B

ox
 T

re
e 

(2
01

9)

(U
TC

) U
ni

t T
re

e 
C

os
t p

er
 S

q 
In

ch
 (M

 
D

iv
id

ed
 b

y 
L)

Tr
un

k 
A

re
a 

(T
A

) 
((d

ia
. x

 d
ia

.) 
x 

0.
78

5)

B
as

ic
 F

un
ct

io
na

l 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t C

os
t 

(B
FR

C
) =

 (O
xN

)

D
ep

re
ci

at
ed

 
Fu

nc
tio

na
l 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t C
os

t 
(D

FR
C

) =
 P

xG
xI

xJ

R
ou

nd
ed

-o
ff 

A
pp

ra
is

ed
 V

al
ue

s

 

Valuation Appraisal Worksheet Based on Guide for Plant Appraisal, 10th Edition  (2018)  
"Functional Replacement Method / Trunk Formula Technique"
1/31/2019
16336 Shady View Lane, Los Gatos, California 

Depreciation Factors

 Total Appraised 
Value of All 
Study Trees 

$112,580

Notes: 
(NEWLY REVISED) Overall condition rating range per the new 10th edition of Guide for Plant Appraisal (2018): 
Excellent: 81-100%
Good: 61-80%
Fair: 41-60%
Poor: 21-40%
Very Poor: 6-20%
Dead: 0-5%

Walter Levison, Consulting Arborist <walterslevisonjr@yahoo.com> Cell: (415) 203-0990 2 of 2

Page 250



This Page 
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 251



Neighbor Communication Summary Report 

16336 Shady View Lane, 
Los Gatos, CA 95032 

Allan and Katty Coulson 
June 6, 2019 

Allan and I have reached out to every neighbor shown in the picture shown below.  

1) Matt and Carrie Currie, 16330 Shannon Road
a. We initially reached out to Matt and Carrie sometime in January 2019

introducing ourselves. We mentioned we will come back to share the plans.
b. In March 2019 Allan’s father fell gravelly I’ll and in April we made decision to put

the property for sale. We did not reach out to any neighbors during this time.
c. May 2019 we sent a letter to Matt and Carrie asking for a time to meet with

them and share the plans and answer any questions they may have.
d. May 20th, 2019, I (Katty Coulson) stopped by their home and mentioned I would

be happy to answer any questions and share the plans. Carrie mentioned that
Matt would be replying to Allan with a few available dates/ time to meet.

e. Thursday, May 30th we meet at Peet’s coffee on Blossom Hill Rd. to talk about
the plans, listen to their concerns and answer their questions.

EXHIBIT 10Page 252



2) 16344 Shady View Ln – June 3rd and June 5th 
a. Both Allan and myself went to their home on June 3rdand again on June 5th, 

2019. We left a hand written note and a pint out of the design. (Picture 
attached) 

3) 16356 Shady View Lane – June 5th 
a. Letter was delivered with a copy of the design and the Shadow Report  
b. Allan spoke to the neighbor 

4) 16347 Shady View Lane– June 5th 
a. Letter was delivered with a copy of the design and the Shadow Report  
b. Neighbor was not at home 

5) 16337 Shady View Lane – June 5th 
a. Letter was delivered with a copy of the design and the Shadow Report  
b. Allan spoke with our neighbor 

6) 100 Hillow Court – June 5th 
a. Letter was delivered with a copy of the design and the Shadow Report  
b. Allan spoke with neighbor 

7) 100 Del Carlo Court – June 5th 
a. Letter was delivered with a copy of the design and the Shadow Report  
b. Allan spoke with neighbor 

8) 16359 Shady View Lane – June 5th  
a. Letter was delivered with a copy of the design and the Shadow Report  
b. Allan spoke to neighbor 

9) 16311 Shannon Road – June 6th 
a. Letter was delivered with a copy of the design and the Shadow Report 

 
 
 

 

Page 253



Page 254



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 255



EXHIBIT 11
Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 261



Page 262



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page 
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



This Page 
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 279



Page 280



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 281



4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

c L

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

4 1/2 : 12

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

5'
-0

"

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

5'-0"
5'-0"

6'
-5

 1
/2

"

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

PROPERTY LINE  142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(E) 26.4" OAK TREE
TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(N) DRIVEWAY.

(E) FIRE
HYDRANT TO

REMAIN.

SSCO

(E) JP

(E) JP

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF
FUTURE POOL
EQUIPMENT.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

E
D

G
E

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

(E) 27" SMOKE
TREE TO REMAIN.

5'
 0

" 
S

W
IM

M
IN

G
P

O
O

L 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

FUTURE SWIMMING
POOL (20'x15')

Under a separate permit.

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

(N) WATER
METER.

SSCO

SSCO

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

1 2

DN

(E) CANOPY
DRIPLINE, TYP.

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

(N) JOINT TRENCH
TO CONNECT TO
(N) UTILITIES.

(N) ELEC.
METER.
300 AMP.

(N) GAS
METER.

PROJECT SIGN. SEE
NOTE 'E' THIS PAGE.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

LI
N

E
78

.0
1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

LI
N

E
78

.0
1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
CONFORMING
STRUCTURE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(N) MAIN HOUSES
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

(N) ATTACHED
ADU

(under a separate permit)

(N) SEWER
LINE.

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SDSDSDSD

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSCO

(E) HOUSE

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 8/12/2019

LL / JW

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

11

22

33

44

55

11223344

55

EXHIBIT 12

Page 282



This Page 
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 283



110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 408-354-6874 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS  

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
COMMITTEE REPORT 

MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 
AUGUST 13, 2019 

The Development Review Committee of the Town of Los Gatos conducted a Regular Meeting on 
August 13, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. 

ROLL CALL  
Present: Sally Zarnowitz, CDD Planning; Robert Gray, CDD Building; Kevin Bagley, PPW 
Engineering; Mike Weisz, PPW Engineering; Katherine Baker, SCCFD 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 10:00 AM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Committee members recited the Pledge of Allegiance.  The audience was invited to participate. 

VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS 
- None

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. 16336 Shady View Lane
Architecture and Site Application S-18-060

Requesting approval for demolition of an existing single-family residence and
construction of a new single-family residence on property prezoned R-1:8.
APN 532-03-034.
PROPERTY OWNER: Allan and Katty Coulson
APPLICANT: Lerika Liscano, De Mattei Construction
PROJECT PLANNER: Ryan Safty

Ryan Safty, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 

Opened Public Comment. 

Matt Currie 
- He lives at 16330 Shannon Road adjacent to the subject site and strongly opposes the

project.  He objects to the second floor balcony which impacts their privacy, and the
second floor massing which is unarticulated along the side elevation facing their
property.  Their two-story home was leveraged to allow new construction that is

EXHIBIT 13

Page 284



PAGE 2 OF 3 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES OF AUGUST 13, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\DRC\Min 2019\8-13-19.docx 
 

inappropriate, ignoring certain provisions of the Design Guidelines.  Consistency and 
predictability are needed.   

 
Carrie Currie 

- She also lives at 16330 Shannon Road adjacent to the subject site and opposes the 
project.  They had to articulate the roofline on their two-story house, and she had 
hoped for some sensitivity.  She is concerned about the safety of the new driveway on 
Shannon Road, the massing of the second story along the side property line with a 
roofline that lacks articulation, and the privacy of the second story balcony that 
encroaches on their privacy.  They tried to work with their neighbors in the construction 
of their house and would like to see collaboration here. 

 
Bob Boschert 

- He lives at 16310 Shannon Road near the subject site and received notice of the hearing 
for the new house.    

 
The applicant noted that the project is more complicated because it is on a corner lot. They’ve 
worked to respond to the neighbors’ requests by incorporating raised window sill heights and 
obscured glass at the second story along the side property line, increased setbacks and a 
screening wall at the second floor balcony, and additional trees added to the landscape plan to 
address privacy along the side property line.   
 
Closed Public Comment. 
 
Committee members discussed the matter.   
 
 
MOTION: Motion by Robert Gray to approve. Seconded by Mike Weisz. 
 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

2. 56 Central Avenue 
Architecture and Site Application S-18-050   
 
Requesting approval for demolition of an existing accessory structure, construction of  
a new single-family residence with reduced setbacks, and removal of large protected 
trees on property zoned R-1:10. APN 529-35-068. 
PROPERTY OWNER: Andrew and Ashley Bothman 
APPLICANT: Richard Hartman 
PROJECT PLANNER: Jocelyn Shoopman 
Continued from July 30, 2019 

 

Page 285



PAGE 3 OF 3 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES OF AUGUST 13, 2019 
 

N:\DEV\DRC\Min 2019\8-13-19.docx 
 

Jocelyn Shoopman, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. 
 
Opened Public Comment. 
 
Ashley Bothman 

- She and her husband are the applicants and look forward to raising their family in Los 
Gatos.  They have worked to address their neighbors’ concerns and build relationships.   

 
Lesley Morley 

- She lives at 60 Central Avenue adjacent to the subject site and opposes the reduced side 
setback along her property.  She has requested that a survey be conducted prior to 
Planning approval, and the balconies be screened and reduced in size.     

 
Susan Branch 

- She lives at 7 Central Court and is concerned about the reduced side setbacks.   
 
Andrew Bothman 

- They have correspondence about the reduced side setbacks during the negotiations 
with the adjacent neighbor who sold them the property.  They have agreed to raise the 
windows, screen the balcony, and plant six 15-gallon trees along the southern property 
line to achieve greater privacy.    

 
Closed Public Comment. 
 
Committee members discussed the matter. 
 
 
MOTION: Motion by Kevin Bagley to approve. Seconded by Robert Gray. 
 
VOTE: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
- None 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
The meeting adjourned at 10:30 a.m. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
_____________________________________ 
/s/ Sally Zarnowitz, Planning Manager 

Page 286



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 287



EXHIBIT 14
Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



This Page 
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 303



Ryan Safty 
Planning Department 
Town of Los Gatos 
110 E Main St. 
Los Gatos, CA 95031 

Project Name: Coulson Residence 
Project Address: 16336 Shady View Lane. 
Date: 09/10/2019 
Planning Appeal Response Memorandum. 

Dear Mr. Safty, 

The purpose of this memorandum is to respond to the letter of appeal dated August 22nd 2019.  

During the course of the DRC approval process, many incremental changes were made in response to 

the Currie’s predominately privacy based concerns.  Some of these concessions included but were not 

limited to: raising and resizing Easterly facing windows, reducing the size and adding a wall at the east 

side of the South facing balcony, and providing privacy screening trees along the shared property line.  

In our most recent effort to show our willingness to work with the Currie’s, we informed them of our 

petition the town to reduce the street‐side setback at Shady View Lane. This would effectively increase 

the distance between the homes by an additional 4.5 feet. 

We have worked with the town and its’ consultants to ensure that the design is consistent with the 

zoning and town design guidelines. Further, we have followed the procedures and regulations set forth 

and regulated by the town and their policies.  We feel that through this process we have reached a 

design that is not only functional to our clients’ needs but is also compatible with the neighborhood. 

This sentiment is also echoed by the surrounding neighbors with their letters of support for the project. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

Regards, 

Jim Whitney 

De Mattei Construction 

1‐408‐350‐4200 

EXHIBIT 15

Page 304



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 323



EXHIBIT 17Page 324



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 325



4 1
/2

 : 1
2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

cL

c L

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W

JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

4 1/2 : 12

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

7"

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

5'-0"

5'-0"

6'
-5

 1
/2

"

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

10
'-7

"

12
'-4

 3
/4

"

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(E) 26.4" OAK TREE
TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(N) DRIVEWAY.

(E) FIRE
HYDRANT TO

REMAIN.

SSCO

SDMH

(E) JP

(E) JP

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF
FUTURE POOL
EQUIPMENT.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

(E) 27" SMOKE
TREE TO REMAIN.

5'
 0

" 
S

W
IM

M
IN

G
P

O
O

L 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

FUTURE SWIMMING
POOL (20'x15')

Under a separate permit.

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

(N) WATER
METER.

SSCO

SSCO

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

1 2

DN

(E) CANOPY
DRIPLINE, TYP.

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

(N) JOINT TRENCH
TO CONNECT TO
(N) UTILITIES.

PROJECT SIGN. SEE
NOTE 'E' THIS PAGE.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
PERMITTED
STRUCTURE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

ADJUSTED SETBACK

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(N) MAIN HOUSE

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

(N) ATTACHED ADU
AT 1ST FLOOR

(under a separate permit)

SS SS SS SS

(N) SEWER
LINE.

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SDSDSDSD

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSCO

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

CS

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

CITY OF SARATOGA:
CONSTRUCTION WORK HOURS:
MONDAY - FRIDAY 7:30AM - 6:00PM
SATURDAYS 9:00AM - 5:00PM
SUNDAYS AND WEEKDAY HOLIDAYS PROHIBITED

SITE MANAGEMENT:
A. SITE SHALL BE MAINTAINED CLEAN AT ALL TIMES AND CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS

HAULED OFF ON A REGULAR BASIS.
B. "BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE" SHALL BE IN PLACE AND MAINTAINED DURING

THIS PROJECT FOR PROTECTION OF ANY POLLUTANTS ENTERING THE EXISTING
STORMWATER SYSTEM.

COVERSHEET NOTES FOR SARATOGA

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

Fill out "Tools>Project Information> Client Information" to
populate client information on cover sheet and title block.

PROJECT DATA
ZONING R1-8-PREZONE
OCCUPANCY TYPE R3/U
BUILDING TYPE VB
APN 532-03-034
LOT AREA 8,610 SF
(E) RESIDENCE TO BE REMOVED 1,056 SF

FLOOR AREA:
     (N) 1st FLOOR 1,181.08 SF
     (N) 2ND FLOOR 1,459.67 SF

     TOTAL 2,640.75 SF
     (N) FAR 31 % > MAX. 32 %

(N) ATTACHED GARAGE: 422.81 SF
     FAR 5 % < MAX. 9 %

BUILDING COVERAGE:
     (N) RESIDENCE 2,307.96 SF

     TOTAL 2,307.96 SF
26.8 % < MAX. 40 %

PARKING 2 COVERED SPACES

SPECIAL INSPECTION

CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO:
2016 California Building Code
2016 California Residential Code
2016 California Plumbing Code
2016 California Mechanical Code
2016 California Electrical Code
2016 Energy Code
2016 Green Building Code
2016 California Fire Code
2016 California Reference Standards Code

COVERSHEET
GENERAL NOTES, CALGREEN CHECKLIST AND NOTES

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT DIRECTORY

SCOPE OF WORK:
DEMOLISH (E) 1,056 SF 1-STORY RESIDENCE. BUILD (N)
2,698.75 SF 2-STORY HOME.

PROPERTY OWNER:
Allan Coulson 
16336 Shady View Ln
Los Gatos, CA 95032

DESIGNER/CONTRACTOR:
DE MATTEI CONSTRUCTION, INC.
1794 THE ALAMEDA
SAN JOSE, CA. 95126
(408) 295-7516

SPECIAL INSPECTION NOTES

LOCATION MAP PARCEL MAP

1
Scale: 1/8"=1'-0"
 PROPOSED SITE/ROOF PLAN

ToDo:
1. PLACE HOLDER, BECAUSE IT WON'T

FORMAT WITHOUT IT.

SHEET INDEX

CS COVER SHEET
BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY

1 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
C-1 COVER SHEET
C-2 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C-3 DRAINAGE AND MISC. DETAILS
C-4 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
L1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
A0.0 GENERAL NOTES
A0.1 SITE DEMO AND TREE PROTECTION.
A0.2 GREENPOINT RATED CHECKLIST
A1.0 FLOOR AREA DIAGRAMS
A2.1 PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
A2.2 PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
A3.1 PROPOSED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A3.2 PROPOSED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A4.1 PROPOSED SECTIONS
A6.1 NEIGHBORHOOD PHOTOGRAPHS
A6.2 SHADOW STUDY
A6.3 SCHEMATIC NEIGHBORHOOD ELEVATIONS

A7.0 SITE PLAN
PE PRIVACY EXHIBIT

Coulson Residence
PROJECT
LOCATION

NOTES:
A. ROOF RAINWATER LEADERS ARE TO BE DISCHARGED ONTO SPLASH

BLOCKS AND DIRECTED INTO LANDSCAPED AREAS.
B. A SANITARY SEWER LATERAL CLEAN-OUT SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE

PROPERTY LINE, IF ONE DOES NOT ALREADY EXIST WITHIN TWO FEET
OF THE PROPERTY LINE.

C. All EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL BE DOWNWARD DIRECTED.
D. FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM WILL BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED PER

NFPA 13D 2016 ADDITION.
E. PROJECT SIGN SHALL BE ORIENTED TOWARDS THE STREET,WITHIN 1'

OF PROPERTY LINE OR 2' OF THE BACK OF SIDEWALK. THE TOP OF
THE SIGN SHALL BE 5' FROM (E) GRADE.

As shown

1

1

1

1

40 33
BOOK PAGE

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North

1

1

2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
05

/1
0/

20
19

2

2

2

2

2

Page 326



B
LU

E
P

R
IN

T
 F

O
R

 A
 C

LE
A

N
B

A
Y

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

Page 327



BYREVISIONS

1" =10'

9-28-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

1 SHEETSOF

SANITARY SEWER

CLEANOUT

SANITARY SEWER

MANHOLE

FENCE LINE

WATER METER

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

XX" TREE

GUY ANCHOR

AS NOTED

JOINT POLE

TREE, SIZE AND TYPE

W

G

CONCRETE

WATER LINE

GM

GAS METER

GAS LINE

FL              FLOWLINE

TC             TOP OF CURB

EP             EDGE OF PAVEMENT

CONC       CONCRETE

LIP            LIP OF GUTTER

GS            GROUND SHOT

AD            AREA DRAIN

TC            TOP OF CURB

FF             FINISH FLOOR

BSL           BUILDING SETBACK LINE

Page 328



BYREVISIONS

N.T.S.

12-2-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

GENERAL NOTES: 

UTILITY NOTES:

ABBREVIATION

DESCRIPTION LEGEND

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS
PERTINENT GRADING, PAVING AND TRENCH BACKFILL ON THIS SITE.
RECOMMENDATIONS ON STRIPPING AND SITE PREPARATION FOR ALL

EARTH WORK NOTE:
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STRICLY ADHERE TO THE SOILS ENGINEER'S

NOTE:

SHALL ESTABLISH HIS OWN QUANTITIES.

THE QUANTITIES ARE SHOWN FOR THE PURPOSE OF

GRADING PERMIT APPROVAL FROM THE TOWN OF 
LOS GATOS PUBLIC WORKS AND ARE NOT TO BE USED 
FOR  PAYMENT TO THE CONTRACTOR . CONTRACTOR 

STANDARD GRADING NOTES

“ ” 

55
3

52
0

APPROXIMATE GRADING QUANTITIES (CU. YDS.)

LOCATION CUT DEPTH FILL DEPTH

HOUSE 50

0

0 0

SITE 5 3 0.5'

TOTAL 55 3

NOTE: NO GRADING REQUIRED EXCEPT
FOR CRAWLSPACE & FOUNDATION
EXCAVATION & FOR SHAPING FINAL
GRADES FOR PROPER DRAINAGE

1'

2,552

2,971

5,523

IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE (S.F.)

BUILDINGS

DRIVEWAY/WALKS

TOTAL

EXISTING REPLACED NEW

1,359 1,327

328 148

1,687 1,826

TOTAL NEW & REPLACED IMPERVIOUS AREA=3,513 S.F.

THE PROJECT GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT PREPARED BY:

VICINITY MAP

SI
T

E

SHANNON RD

SH
A

D
Y

 V
IE

W
 L

A
N

E

D
E

L
 C

A
R

L
O

 C
O

U
R

T

B
O

N
N

IE
 L

A
N

E

H
IL

O
W

 R
D

N
O

B
L

E
 C

O
U

R
T

H
IL

O
W

 C
O

U
R

T

POOL 351

Page 329



N- ADU

1

2

D

N

FUTURE

POOL

FUTURE

P.E.Q.

DATEREVISIONS

1" =10'

12-2-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

GRADING AND DRAINAGE CONSTRUCTION  NOTES:

LEGEND:

DRAINAGE NOTE

DRAINAGE NOTE

Page 330



350

360

370

350

360

370

REVISIONS

AS SHOWN

12-2-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

AREA DRAIN DETAIL

A

A

GRAVEL BASIN DETAIL

NOTES:

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

CONCRETE DRIVEWAY-TYPICAL SECTION

 ROOF DOWNSPOUT/SPLASH BLOCK

INFILTRATION DEVICE DETAIL

FOOTING DRAINS SYSTEM

SUBFLOOR DRAIN DETAIL

CATCH BASIN DETAIL

DATE

Page 331



BYREVISIONS

1" =10'

1-24-2019

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE NOTES:  

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

LEGEND

STRAW WATTLES

ENTRENCHMENT 

IN FLAT AREA

STRAW  WATTLES

DETAIL

BURLAP SACK DRAIN INLET (D.I.)

SEDIMENT FILTER DETAIL

TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY ( ABOVE GRADE)

TEMPORARY COVER ON STOCK PILE

11.  

“ ”

“ ”

NOTES:

Page 332



Page 333



G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
T

E
S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A0.0

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

CALGREEN:
JOINTS AND OPENINGS: ANNULAR SPACES AROUND PIPES, ELECTRIC CABLES, CONDUITS,
OR OTHER OPENINGS IN PLATES AT EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL BE PROTECTED AGAINST THE
PASSAGE OF RODENTS BY CLOSING SUCH OPENING WITH CEMENT MORTAR, CONCRETE
MASONRY OR SIMILAR METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO THE ENFORCING AGENCY.

A MINIMUM OF 75% OF THE CONSTRUCTION WASTE GENERATED AT THE SITE IS DIVERTED
TO RECYCLE OR SALVAGE. THIS IS ACHIEVED EITHER BY USING CITY PRE-CERTIFIED
LANDFILLS OR IMPLEMENTATION OF A WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN. WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLAN SHALL BE PRE-APPROVED BY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT. 

HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM DESIGN SHALL BE SIZED, DESIGNED, AND HAVE
THEIR EQUIPMENT SELECTED USING THE FOLLOWING METHODS:

A HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS .

B HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS.

C SELECT HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT ACCORDING TO ACCA 36-S MANUAL S OR
OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHOD. 

DUCT OPENINGS AND OTHER RELATED AIR DISTRIBUTION COMPONENT OPENINGS SHALL
BE COVERED WITH TAPE, PLASTIC, SHEET METAL, OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE METHODS AT
THE TIME OF ROUGH INSTALLATION OR DURING STORAGE ON THE CONSTRUCTION SITE
AND UNTIL FINAL STARTUP OF THE HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT.

ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS, COATINGS, AND AEROSOL PAINTS SHALL COMPLY
WITH VOC AND OTHER CONTENT LIMITS. SPECIFIED IN SECTION 4.504 OF THE CGBSC. ALL
PRODUCT CONTAINERS SHALL REMAIN ON SITE FOR FIELD VERIFICATION. PRIOR TO FINAL
INSPECTION, A LETTER SIGNED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR MUST BE PROVIDED TO
THE BUILDING OFFICIAL CERTIFYING THAT ALL ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS,
COATINGS, AEROSOL PAINTS, AEROSOL COATINGS, CARPET SYSTEMS (INCLUDING
CARPETING, CUSHION, AND ADHESIVE), RESILIENT FLOORING SYSTEMS, AND COMPOSITE
WOOD PRODUCTS INSTALLED ON THIS PROJECT ARE WITHIN THE EMISSION LIMITS
SPECIFIED IN CGBSC SECTION 4.504

FINISHES:
A USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL) VOCS

REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2
B USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)
C DOCUMENTATION SHALL BE PROVIDED TO VERIFY THAT COMPLIANT VOC FINISH

MATERIALS HAVE BEEN USED PER CGBSC 4.504.2.4

80% OF FLOOR AREA RECEIVING RESILIENT FLOORING, SHALL COMPLY WITH THE VOC-
EMISSION LIMITS DEFINED IN THE COLLABORATIVE FOR HIGH PERFORMANCE SCHOOLS
(CHPS) LOW-EMITTING MATERIALS LIST OR BE CERTIFIED UNDER THE RESILIENT FLOOR
COVERING INSTITUTE (RCFI) FLOORSCORE PROGRAM.

PARTICLEBOARD, MEDIUM DENSITY FIBERBOARD (MDF), AND HARDWOOD PLYWOOD USED
IN INTERIOR FINISH SYSTEMS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOW FORMALDEHYDE EMISSION
STANDARDS. SPECIFY THE LIMITS ON THE PLANS IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 4.504.5.

VAPOR RETARDER AND CAPILLARY BREAK IS INSTALLED AT SLAB ON GRADE FOUNDATIONS.

PRIOR TO ENCLOSING THE WALL AND FLOOR FRAMING, CONFIRMATION MUST BE
PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING INSPECTOR SHOWING THE FRAMING MEMBERS DO NOT
EXCEED 19% MOISTURE CONTENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.505.3

ALL PLUMBING FIXTURES AND FITTINGS SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS REFERENCED IN
TABLE 1401.1 OF THE CURRENT CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE.

ALL EXISTING TO REMAIN PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING:
A TOILETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF SHALL BE REPLACED WITH TOILETS

WITH A MAXIMUM OF 1.28 GPF. 
B SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM SHALL BE REPLACED

WITH A MAXIMUM 2.0 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM SHALL

BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GPM (OR 1.8 GPM
FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS).

AN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUAL SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING
OCCUPANT OWNER.

HVAC SYSTEMS INSTALLERS SHALL BE TRAINED AND CERTIFIED IN THE PROPER
INSTALLATION OF HVAC SYSTEMS.

SPECIAL INSPECTORS EMPLOYED BY THE ENFORCING AGENCY MUST BE QUALIFIED AND
ABLE TO DEMONSTRATE COMPETENCE IN THE THE DISCIPLINE THEY ARE INSPECTING.

DOCUMENTATION USED TO SHOW COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CODE SHALL INCLUDE BUT IS
NOT LIMITED TO, CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, BUILDER OR
INSTALLER CERTIFICATION, INSPECTION REPORTS, OR OTHER METHODS ACCEPTABLE TO
THE ENFORCING AGENCY WHICH DEMONSTRATE SUBSTANTIAL CONFORMANCE. WHEN
SPECIFIC DOCUMENTATION OR SPECIAL INSPECTION IS NECESSARY TO VERIFY
COMPLIANCE, THAT METHOD OF COMPLIANCE WILL BE SPECIFIED IN THE APPROPRIATE
SECTION OR IDENTIFIED IN THE APPLICATION CHECKLIST.

==========================
MAY ONLY BE FOR LOS GATOS
==========================

WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN:
A. PROVIDE A CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL IN

ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.408.2.
B. DOCUMENTATION SHALL BE PROVIDED, PRIOR TO FIRST INSPECTION, CONFIRMING

COMPLIANCE TO THE WASTE WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN PROVIDED TO THE
JURISDICTION. CGBSC SECTION 4.408.2.1

C. A MANUAL, COMPACT DISC, WEB-BASED REFERENCE, OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE MEDIA
INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN SHALL BE PLACED IN THE
BUILDING PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.410.1

updated 10/12/18
address numbers

CALGREEN: (ALT)
FINISHES:
A. USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL)

VOCS REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2
B. USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)

PLUMBING:
ALL EXISTING TO REMAIN PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE
FOLLOWING:
A. TOILETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF SHALL BE REPLACED WITH

TOILETS WITH A MAXIMUM OF 1.28 GPF. 
B. SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM SHALL BE

REPLACED WITH A MAXIMUM 2.0 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C. LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM

SHALL BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GPM
(OR 1.8 GPM FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS). 

WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRE ZONE
REQUIREMENTS PER CRC R327:

PRIOR TO BUILDING PERMIT FINAL, THE PROPERTY SHALL BE IN A COMPLIANCE WITH THE
VEGETATION MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS PRESCRIBED IN CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE
SECTION 4906, INCLUDING CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 4291 OR CALIFORNIA
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 51182 PER CRC R327.1.5. 

ROOF GUTTERS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH THE MEANS TO PREVENT THE ACCUMULATION
OF LEAVES AND DEBRIS IN THE GUTTER PER CRC R327.5.4. 

EXTERIOR WALL COVERINGS SHALL EXTEND FROM THE TOP OF THE FOUNDATION TO THE
ROOF, AND TERMINATE AT 2 INCH NOMINAL SOLID WOOD BLOCKING BETWEEN RAFTERS AT
ALL ROOF OVERHANGS, OR IN THE CASE OF ENCLOSED EAVES, TERMINATE AT THE
ENCLOSURE PER CRC R327.7.3.1. 

THE EXPOSED UNDERSIDE OF ENCLOSED ROOF EAVES HAVING EITHER A BOXED-IN ROOF
EAVE SOFFIT WITH A HORIZONTAL UNDERSIDE, OR SLOPING RAFTER TAILS WITH AN
EXTERIOR COVERING APPLIED TO THE UNDERSIDE OF THE RAFTER TAILS, SHALL BE
PROTECTED BY ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PER CRC R327.7.5: 
30.1. NONCOMBUSTIBLE MATERIAL 30.2. IGNITION-RESISTANT MATERIAL 
30.3. ONE LAYER OF 5/8” TYPE ‘X’ GYPSUM SHEATHING APPLIED BEHIND AN EXTERIOR
COVERING ON THE UNDERSIDE OF THE RAFTER TAILS OR SOFFIT. 
30.4. THE EXTERIOR PORTION OF A 1-HOUR FIRE RESISTIVE EXTERIOR WALL ASSEMBLY
APPLIED TO THE UNDERSIDE OF THE RAFTER TAILS OR SOFFIT INCLUDING ASSEMBLIES
USING THE GYPSUM PANEL AND SHEATHING PRODUCTS LISTED IN THE GYPSUM
ASSOCIATION FIRE RESISTANT DESIGN MANUAL. 
30.5. BOXED-IN ROOF EAVE SOFFIT ASSEMBLIES WITH A HORIZONTAL UNDERSIDE THAT
MEET THE PERFORMANCE CRITERIA IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEST PROCEDURES SET
FORTH IN SFM STANDARD 12-7A-3. 

EXTERIOR WINDOWS AND EXTERIOR GLAZED DOOR ASSEMBLIES SHALL COMPLY WITH ONE
OF THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS PER CRC R327.8.2.1: 
31.1. BE CONSTRUCTED OF MULTI-PANE GLAZING WITH A MINIMUM OF ONE TEMPERED
PANE MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 2406 SAFETY GLAZING, OR 
31.2. BE CONSTRUCTED OF GLASS BLOCK UNITS, OR 
31.3. HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING OF NOT LESS THAN 20 MINUTES WHEN TESTED
ACCORDING TO NFPA 257, OR 
31.4. BE TESTED TO MEET THE PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS OF SFM STANDARD 12-7A-2.

EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL COMPLY WITH ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PER CRC 327.8.3: 
32.1. THE EXTERIOR SURFACE OR CLADDING SHALL BE OF NONCOMBUSTIBLE OR IGNITION-
RESISTANT MATERIAL, OR 32.2. SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF SOLID CORE WOOD THAT
COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 
32.2.1. STILES AND RAILS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 1 3/8 INCHES THICK 
32.2.2. RAISED PANELS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 1 1/4 INCHES THICK, EXCEPT FOR THE
EXTERIOR PERIMETER OF THE RAISED PANEL THAT MAY TAPER TO A TONGUE NOT LESS
THAN 3/8 INCH THICK. 
32.3. SHALL HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING OF NOT LESS THAN 20 MINUTES WHEN
TESTED ACCORDING TO NFPA 252. 
32.4. SHALL BE TESTED TO MEET THE PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS OF SFM STANDARD
12-7A-1.

GARAGE: 1-HR SEPARATION BETWEEN DWELLING AND GARAGE PER
CRC SECTION R302.6. 20 MINUTE, 1-3/4" SOLID WOOD FIRE RATED
DOOR WITH SELF CLOSING AND SELF LATCHING DEVICES PER CRC
SECTION R302.5

CODES: ALL HVAC EQUIPMENT, DUCT WORK AND INSTALLATIONS
SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE CURRENT
MECHANICAL CODE, CALIFORNIA TITLE 24 STANDARDS AND
MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS. ALL PLUMBING WORK SHALL
CONFORM WITH THE CURRENT CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE.

SKYLIGHTS: ALL SKYLIGHTS ARE TO BE PRE-MANUFACTURED PLASTIC
DOME TYPES WITH ANODIZED ALUMINUM FRAMES MOUNTED ON
WOOD CURBS OR DIRECTLY TO ROOF DECK. FRAME COLOR IS TO
MATCH OR BE SIMILAR TO THE ROOF COLOR.  CURB HEIGHT ABOVE
THE ADJACENT ROOF SURFACE IS TO BE 4" MINIMUM.  THE DOME
HEIGHT IS TO BE MINIMUM 5" OR 10% OF THE MAXIMUM SPAN OF THE
DOME.  SKYLIGHT UNITS SHALL MEET TITLE 24 REQUIREMENTS.
SKYLIGHTS WITH INSTALLED GLAZING 12' ABOVE THE WALKING
SURFACE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF LAMINATED GLASS WITH A
POLYVINYL BUTYRAL INTERLAYER AND A MINIMUM THICKNESS OF
0.030 INCHES (.76 mm)

EXTERIOR PLASTER LATH:  EXTERIOR PLASTER LATH SHALL BE OF AN
APPROVED, PAPER-BACKED, CORROSION RESISTANT METAL OR WIRE
FABRIC AND SHALL BE SELF FURRING.  (1/4" MIN.)  APPLY LATH OVER
WALL UNDERLAYMENT WITH THE LONG DIMENSION HORIZONTAL AND
LAP A MIN. 1/2" AT THE SIDES AND MIN. 1" AT THE ENDS.  WHERE END
LAPS OF SHEETS DO NOT OCCUR OVER SUPPORTS, THEY SHALL BE
SECURELY TIED TOGETHER WITH A MIN. 18 GA. WIRE.
REINFORCEMENT SHALL BE USED AT ALL CORNERS OR THE LATH
SHALL BE CARRIED AROUND CORNERS AT LEAST ONE SUPPORT.  A
WEEP SCREED SHALL BE PROVIDED AT OR BELOW THE FOUNDATION
LINE ON ALL EXTERIOR STUD WALLS A MIN. OF 4" ABOVE  HIGHEST
ADJACENT GRADE.  THE SCREED SHALL ALLOW TRAPPED WATER TO
DRAIN TO THE OUTSIDE.  BOTH THE METAL LATH AND PAPER
UNDERLAYMENT SHALL TERMINATE ON THE ATTACHMENT FLANGE OF
THE SCREED.  NAILING OF METAL LATH SHALL BE AT A MAX. OF 6 O.C.
EACH WAY USING EITHER 11 GA. X 1-1/2" LONG X 7/16" HEAD NAILS OR
16 GA. STAPLES WITH 7/8" LEGS.

GUARDRAILS: GUARDRAILS SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN 42 INCHES
HIGH MEASURED VERTICALLY ABOVE THE LEADING EDGE OF THE
TREAD, ADJACENT WALKING SURFACE OR ADJACENT SEATBOARD.
GUARDRAILS SHALL BE ABLE TO RESIST A SINGLE CONCENTRATED
LOAD OF 200 POUNDS, APPLIED IN ANY DIRECTION AT ANY POINT
ALONG THE TOP AND HAVE ATTACHMENT DEVICES AND SUPPORTING
STRUCTURE TO TRANSFER THIS LOADING TO THE APPROPRIATE
STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS OF THE BUILDING. INTERMEDIATE RAILS (ALL
THOSE EXCEPT THE HANDRAIL), BALUSTERS AND PANEL FILL ERS
SHALL BE DESIGNED TO WITHSTAND A HORIZONTALLY APPLIED
NORMAL LOAD OF 50 POUNDS ON AN AREA EQUAL TO ONE SQUARE
FOOT, INCLUDING OPENING AND SPACE BETWEEN RAILS.  OPEN
GUARDRAIL AND STAIR RAILINGS SHALL HAVE INTERMEDIATE RAILS,
BALUSTERS, PICKETS, ETC., ARRANGED SUCH THAT A 4" SPHERE
CANNOT PASS THROUGH THE OPENINGS.

INSULATION: FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION SHALL BE INSTALLED
ACCORDING TO THE T-24 REPORT. SEE T-24 REPORT FOR INSULATION
VALUES.

LISTINGS: ALL HVAC EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES SHALL BE LISTED
BY A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING LAB. INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS FOR ALL LISTED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED TO
THE FIELD INSPECTOR AT TIME OF INSPECTION.

EXHAUST FANS: ALL INTERIOR EXHAUST FANS SHALL PROVIDE 5 AIR
CHANGES PER HOUR OR MORE. EXHAUST FANS AND FAN SYSTEMS
SHALL HAVE BACK-DRAFT DAMPER CONTROLS.

1 HOUR WALLS: HVAC DUCTS PENETRATING ONE HOUR WALLS
(GARAGE/HOUSE WALL) SHALL BE MINIMUM 26 GAUGE GALVANIZED
STEEL. 1 HOUR SEPARATION BETWEEN DWELLING AND GARAGE PER
CRC SECTION R302.6.

GAS PIPING: GAS PIPING SHALL NOT BE IMBEDDED IN OR BELOW
CONCRETE SLABS

SEWER PIPING: PLASTIC OR PVC SEWER LINE SHALL BE PLACED WITH
MIN. 6" OF SAND BASE AND COVER.

FORCED AIR UNIT: FORCED AIR UNIT(S) SHALL BE INSTALLED PER THE
MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS AND THOSE OF THE
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER WHEN INSTALLED IN AN ATTIC SPACE.

GAS APPLIANCES: ALL GAS APPLIANCES AND EQUIPMENT SHALL HAVE
INTERMITTENT IGNITION DEVICES WITH NO CONTINUOUS BURNING
PILOTS. ALL APPLIANCES SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CURRENT
CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE.

WATER HEATERS: WATER HEATERS SHALL BE INSULATED WITH
EXTERNAL BLANKETS OF R-12 OF GREATER. INSULATE HOT WATER
INLET AND OUTLET PIPES (FIRST FIVE FEET IN UNCONDITIONED
SPACES) WITH EXTERNAL WRAPPING OF R-4 OR GREATER. WATER
HEATERS SHALL BE ANCHORED OR STRAPPED TO RESIST
HORIZONTAL DISPLACEMENT DUE TO EARTHQUAKE MOTION.
STRAPPING SHALL BE AT POINTS WITHIN THE UPPER 1/3 AND THE
LOWER 1/3 OF ITS VERTICAL DIMENSIONS. AT THE LOWER POINT, A
MINIMUM DISTANCE OF FOUR INCHES SHALL BE MAINTAINED ABOVE
THE CONTROLS WITH THE STRAPPING.  WATER HEATERS LOCATED IN
NON-LIVING SPACES SHALL BE INSTALLED ON A PLATFORM SUCH
THAT BURNERS AND BURNER-IGNITION DEVICES ARE LOCATED NOT
LESS THAN EIGHTEEN INCHES ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR. 

TANKLESS WATER HEATERS: TANKLESS WATER HEATER SHALL BE
INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATION.

DRYER VENT: CLOTHES DRYERS SHALL VENT TO THE OUTSIDE OF
THE BUILDING AND SHALL BE A MAXIMUM 14' IN LENGTH WITH TWO
FEET REDUCTION FOR EACH 90 DEGREE ELBOW OVER TWO.

PLUMBING VENTS: ALL PLUMBING VENTS SHALL BE MINIMUM 10 FEET
FROM OPERABLE SKYLIGHTS.

THERMOSTATS: ONLY "SETBACK" THERMOSTATS CERTIFIED BY THE 
CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION SHALL BE USED.

HOSE BIBS: HOSE BIBS AND WATER OUTLETS WITH HOSE
ATTACHMENTS SHALL HAVE APPROVED NON-REMOVABLE BACKFLOW
PREVENTION DEVICES.

FORCED AIR UNIT CLEARANCES: LISTED FURNACES SHALL BE
INSTALLED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF THEIR
LISTING. THE FURNACE INSTALLER SHALL LEAVE THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION AND OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS
ATTACHED TO THE APPLIANCE, CLEARANCES OF LISTED FURNACES
FROM COMBUSTIBLES SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED IN THE LISTING OR ON
THE FURNACE RATING PLATE. UNLISTED FURNACES SHALL HAVE THE
FOLLOWING CLEARANCES FROM COMBUSTIBLES:

ABOVE TOP OF CASING OR FURNACE 6"
FROM TOP AND SIDES OF WARM-AIR BONNET OR PLENUM 6"
FROM FRONT (UNLESS ACCESS REQUIREMENTS GREATER 18"
FROM BACK OF FURNACE 6"
FROM SIDES OF FURNACE 6"

DISHWASHERS: DISHWASHING MACHINES CONNECTED DIRECTLY TO A
DRAINAGE SYSTEM OR FOOD WASTE DISPOSAL SHALL HAVE AN
APPROVED DISHWASHER AIR GAP FITTING ON THE DISCHARGE SIDE
OF THE DISHWASHING MACHINE. LISTED AIR GAPS SHALL BE
INSTALLED WITH THE FLOOD LEVEL (FL) MARKING AT OR ABOVE THE
FLOOD LEVEL OF THE SINK/DRAIN BOARD, WHICH EVER IS HIGHER.

TUB AND SHOWER VALVES: TUB AND SHOWER VALVES SHALL HAVE
INDIVIDUAL CONTROL VALVES OF THE PRESSURE BALANCE OR THE
THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE TYPE 

QUICK ACTING VALVES: ALL BUILDING WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS IN
WHICH QUICK ACTING VALVES ARE INSTALLED (SUCH AS
DISHWASHERS, CLOTHES WASHERS, ETC.) SHALL BE APPROVED WITH
DEVICES AS CLOSE TO QUICK ACTING VALVES AS POSSIBLE TO
ABSORB HIGH PRESSURES RESULTING FROM THE QUICK CLOSING OF
THESE VALVES.

DUCT TERMINATIONS: ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCT TERMINATIONS
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF (3) FEET FROM PROPERTY LINES AND/OR ANY
OPENINGS INTO THE BUILDING.

WALL AND FLOOR FLASHING: ALL FLASHING AT WALLS, FLOORS, AND
ROOF JUNCTURES TO VERTICAL SURFACES SHALL BE 26 GA. G.I.
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS. FORM FABRICATE AND
INSTALL FLASHING AS SHOWN ON DETAILS. SET ALL FLASHING IN
PLASTIC CEMENT AND SET JOINTS IN BUTYL MASTIC. FLASHING
SECTIONS SHALL HAVE AN END LAP OF 4" MIN.

DOORS: ALL EXTERIOR DOORS ARE TO BE FULLY WEATHER-STRIPPED,
CERTIFIED AND LABELED FOR COMPLIANCE TO ENERGY
CONSERVATION REGULATIONS. ALL FRENCH DOORS SHALL BE PAINT
GRADE WOOD WITH TEMPERED, DOUBLE GLASS PANELS ARRANGED
AS SHOWN ON PLANS AND DOOR SCHEDULE.

WINDOWS: ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE FULLY WEATHER-STRIPPED,
CERTIFIED AND LABELED FOR COMPLIANCE TO ENERGY
CONSERVATION REGULATIONS. ALL WINDOWS ARE TO BE WOOD OR
VINYL FRAMED. DOUBLE GLAZED WITH PANES AS SHOWN ON PLANS
AND WINDOW SCHEDULE AND A MAXIMUM U-VALUE AS SET FORTH IN
THE T-24 ENERGY CALCULATIONS.

BATH COUNTER TOPS: ALL BATH COUNTERTOPS AND SPLASHES
SHALL BE CERAMIC TILE AS SELECTED BY OWNER UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS. USE GRANITE OR MARBLE TILES OR SLAB
WHERE NOTED ON PLANS AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS.

WEATHER BARRIER: ALL WEATHER EXPOSED WALL SURFACES SHALL
BE PROTECTED WITH AN UNDERLAYMENT OF (2) LAYERS GRADE "D"
BUILDING PAPER OVER PLYWOOD WALL SHEATHING. UNDERLAYMENT
SHALL BE APPLIED SHINGLE FASHION WITH MIN. 2" LAP AT
HORIZONTAL JOINTS AND MIN. 6" LAP AT VERTICAL JOINTS.
UNDERLAYMENT SHALL BE FREE OF HOLES AND BREAKS OTHER
THAN THOSE FROM NAILING TO PLYWOOD SHEATHING OR WALL
STUDS.

ARCHITECTURAL (CONT.)

CAULKING: ALL JOINTS AND PENETRATIONS AT EXTERIOR WALLS,
CEILINGS AND FLOOR ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE FULLY CAULKED AND
SEALED.

TUBS & SHOWERS: SHOWERS SHALL BE A MIN. SIZE OF 1024 SQ.IN
AND ACCOMMODATE AT 30" CIRCLE. BACKER FOR SHOWER AND TUB
SHOWER WALLS TO BE FIBER-CEMENT, FIBER REINFORCED
CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNITS, GLASS MAT GYPSUM BACKERS OR
FIBER-REINFORCED GYPSUM BACKERS TO A MIN. HEIGHT OF 72"
ABOVE THE FLOOR. SHOWER WALLS SHALL BE FINISHED WITH
CERAMIC TILE OF OTHER SMOOTH, HARD NON-ABSORBENT
COVERING. ALL TUB AND SHOWER GLAZING SHALL BE MADE OF
SHATTER-RESISTANT TEMPERED GLASS.  SWING DOORS SHALL OPEN
OUTWARD WITH A MIN. OPENING CLEARANCE OF 22".

PRE-FABRICATED FIREPLACES: PRE-FABRICATED METAL FIREPLACES
SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH INSULATED CHIMNEY FLUE, SPARK
ARRESTOR AND ACCESSORIES ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURERS
SPECIFICATIONS. FIREPLACE OPENING SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH A
TIGHT FITTING, CLOSEABLE METAL OR GLASS DOOR.  FIREPLACE
SHALL HAVE A FLUE DAMPER AND AN OUTSIDE AIR INTAKE WITH
DAMPER.  ONLY GAS APPLIANCE FIREPLACES ARE TO BE USED.

GLAZING: ALL GLAZING SHALL CONFORM TO FEDERAL GLAZING
REGULATIONS AND THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE.  GLAZING IN
HAZARDOUS LOCATIONS SHALL BE FULLY TEMPERED GLASS OR
APPROVED PLASTIC AND IS PERMANENTLY IDENTIFIED BY THE
MANUFACTURER OR INSTALLER.

MECHANICAL ROOM DOORS:  ACCESS DOORS OF THE MECHANICAL
ROOM SHALL BE SOLID CORE WITH MINIMUM 100 SQ. IN. LOUVERED
VENT AT TOP OF DOORS AND MINIMUM 100 SQ. IN. LOUVERED VENT AT
BOTTOM OF DOORS.

GYPSUM WALLBOARD:  ALL INTERIOR WALL AND CEILING FACES ARE
TO BE SHEATHED WITH 1/2" GYPSUM WALLBOARD EXCEPT WHERE
NOTED TO USE 5/8" TYPE "X" WALLBOARD.  TAPE, TEXTURE AND PAINT
GYP. BOARD ACCORDING TO FINISH SCHEDULE.  ALL GAPS AND
PENETRATIONS AT 5/8" TYPE "X" WALLBOARD SHALL BE FILLED WITH
TAPING CEMENT.  NAIL ALL GYP. BOARD TO WALL STUDS, PLATES,
BLOCKING, ETC., AS FOLLOWS:
   1/2" WALLBOARD 4d CEMENT COATED BOX NAIL OR 1-3/8" x 14
   GA. ACID-ETCHED, PHOSPHATE COATED
   NAIL OR 4d "DRYVITE" NAIL AT 7" O.C.
   5/8" TYPE "X" WALLBOARD 6D "COOLER" NAILS AT 7" O.C.

ROOF VENTILATION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATING AREA
SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE OR 1/300 OF THE
VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS ARE MET:
1. IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS

INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE 
CEILING.

2. AT LEAST 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE
REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY VENTILATORS
LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE.
UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET
BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATION
PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE LOCATION OF
WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE
INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS, INSTALLATION MORE THAN
3 FEET BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL
BE PERMITTED.

ALL VENT OPENINGS SHALL BE COVERED WITH CORROSION
RESISTANT, NON-COMBUSTIBLE  METAL MESH WITH MESH OPENINGS
OF AT LEAST 1/16" AND A MAXIMUM OF 1/8" DIMENSION.  VENTS SHALL
BE LOCATED SO AS TO PROVIDE CROSS VENTILATION OF EACH
SEPARATE ATTIC SPACE AND SHALL PROTECT AGAINST THE
ENTRANCE OF RAIN AND SNOW.

STAIR HANDRAILS:  EVERY STAIRWAY OF 4 OR MORE RISERS SHALL
HAVE AT LEAST ONE HANDRAIL AND EVERY OPEN SIDE OF A STAIRWAY
SHALL HAVE A GUARDRAIL. HANDRAILS MOUNTED ON A WALL SHALL
HAVE A MIN. 1-1/2" SPACE BETWEEN THE WALL AND THE HANDRAIL.
THE HANDGRIP PORTION OF HANDRAILS SHALL BE BETWEEN 1-1/4'
AND 2" CROSS SECTION DIMENSION AND SHALL HAVE A SMOOTH
SURFACE WITH NO SHARP CORNERS.  ALL HANDRAILS ARE TO BE
PLACED 34" AND 38" ABOVE TREAD NOSING AND SHALL BE
CONTINUOUS THE FULL LENGTH OF THE STAIRS.

EXTERIOR PLASTER: EXTERIOR PLASTER SHALL BE PORTLAND
CEMENT APPLIED IN THREE COATS TO A MIN. THICKNESS OF 7/8".  SEE
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR TEXTURE VARIATIONS.

APPLIANCES:  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE RESIDENTIAL
EQUIPMENT WHICH IS U.L. LABELED.  PROVIDE, TO THE OWNER, ALL
MANUFACTURER'S STANDARD WRITTEN WARRANTIES, OWNER'S
MANUALS, AND STANDARD ACCESSORIES.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
INSTALL THE APPLIANCES WHERE INDICATED ON DRAWINGS AND AS
REQUIRED BY ALL CODES AND LISTINGS. APPLIANCE TYPES, STYLES,
COLORS, ETC., SHALL BE SELECTED BY OWNER.

EMERGENCY EGRESS ESCAPE AND RESCUE WINDOWS: BASEMENTS
OF DWELLING UNITS AND EVERY BEDROOM BELOW THE 4TH STORY
SHALL HAVE AT LEAST ONE OPERABLE WINDOW OR DOOR APPROVED
FOR EMERGENCY ESCAPE AND RESCUE DIRECTLY TO EXTERIOR. THE
UNITS SHALL BE OPERABLE TO PROVIDE FULL CLEAR OPENING
WITHOUT THE USE OF SEPARATE TOOLS AND HAVE A NET CLEAR
OPENING OF NO LESS THAN 5.7 SQUARE FEET. THE NET CLEAR
OPENING HEIGHT SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 24" AND THE WIDTH SHALL
BE A MINIMUM OF 20" WITH THE BOTTOM OF THE CLEAR OPENING NOT
GREATER THAN 44" MEASURED FROM THE FLOOR IN DWELLING
UNITS, WHERE THE OPENING OF AN OPERABLE WINDOW IS LOCATED
MORE THAN 72” ABOVE THE FINISHED GRADE OR SURFACE BELOW,
THE LOWEST PART OF THE CLEAR OPENING OF THE WINDOW SHALL
BE A MINIMUM 24” ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR OF THE ROOM IN
WHICH THE WINDOW IS LOCATED. OPERABLE SECTIONS OF WINDOWS
SHALL NOT PERMIT OPENINGS THAT ALLOW PASSAGE OF A 4 INCH
DIAMETER WHERE SUCH OPENING ARE LOCATED WITHIN 24” OF THE
FINISHED FLOOR. WHERE SUCH WINDOW OPENINGS DO NOT COMPLY,
WINDOW FALL PREVENTION DEVICES AND WINDOW GUARDS THAT
COMPLY WITH ASTM F 2090, SHALL BE PROVIDED.

STREET ADDRESS: NEW AND EXISTING BUILDINGS SHALL BE
PROVIDED WITH APPROVED ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION. THE ADDRESS
IDENTIFICATION SHALL BE LEGIBLE AND PLACED IN A POSITION THAT
IS VISIBLE FROM THE STREET OR ROAD FRONTING THE PROPERTY.
ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION CHARACTERS SHALL CONTRAST WITH
THEIR BACKGROUND. ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE ARABIC
NUMBERS OR ALPHABETICAL LETTERS. NUMBERS SHALL NOT BE
SPELLED OUT. EACH CHARACTER SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN 4 INCHES
HIGH WITH A MINIMUM STROKE WIDTH OF 1 /2 INCH. 

SPARK ARRESTORS: SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED ON ALL
CHIMNEYS INCLUDING OUTSIDE FIREPLACES.

CODES:  ALL ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, WIRING AND INSTALLATIONS
SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE NATIONAL
ELECTRICAL CODE, CALIFORNIA TITLE 24 STANDARDS AND THE
MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.

LISTINGS: ALL ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES SHALL BE
LISTED BY A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING LAB.  INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS FOR ALL LISTED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED TO
THE FIELD INSPECTOR AT TIME OF INSPECTION.

RECESSED FIXTURES:  PROVIDE RECESSED FIXTURE CLEARANCE
PER CODE.  RECESSED FIXTURES IN INSULATED CEILINGS SHALL BE
"IC" APPROVED FIXTURES.

DRYER LOADS: CLOTHES DRYER LOADS SHALL BE DETERMINED ON A
LOAD OF 5000 WATTS PER APPLIANCE OR BY NAMEPLATE RATING.

ELECTRICAL BOXES: ELECTRIC SWITCH AND OUTLET BOXES ON
EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL HAVE RUBBER GASKETS FOR MEDIUM
INFILTRATION CONTROL.

KITCHEN AND BATH FIXTURES:  ALL GENERAL LIGHTING FIXTURES
AND BULBS IN KITCHEN AND BATH AREAS SHALL HAVE AN EFFICACY
RATING OF 40 LUMENS PER WATT OR GREATER.  FLUORESCENT
FIXTURES WITH PLUG-IN (NOT SCREW-IN) FLUORESCENT LAMPS
SHALL BE USED.

CLOSET LIGHTS: LIGHT FIXTURES IN CLOSETS/WARDROBES SHALL
HAVE A MIN. 18" HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE TO SHELVES.

TUB/SHOWER LIGHTS: LIGHT FIXTURES MOUNTED WITHIN 5' OF A SPA/
TUB SHALL BE MOUNTED AT LEAST 7'6" ABOVE THE MAXIMUM WATER
LEVEL OF THE SPA/TUB AND SHALL BE GFCI PROTECTED.

DRYER/COOKING UNIT OUTLETS: CLOTHES DRYERS AND COOKING
UNITS SHALL HAVE CONDUCTOR WIRES WITH AN INSULATED NEUTRAL
AND FOUR-PRONG OUTLET.

OUTDOOR OUTLETS: PROVIDE OUTSIDE RECEPTACLES AT THE FRONT
AND REAR OF THE HOME WITHIN 6'-6" OF GRADE WHICH ARE
WATERPROOF AND GFCI PROTECTED.  SEE PLAN FOR LOCATIONS.

KITCHEN BRANCH CIRCUITS: SHALL BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT
CIRCUIT INTERRUPTERS. PROVIDE (2) SMALL APPLIANCE BRANCH
CIRCUITS IN THE KITCHEN WHICH ARE LIMITED TO SUPPLYING WALL
AND COUNTER SPACE OUTLETS.  THESE OUTLETS CANNOT SERVE
DINING ROOM, OUTSIDE PLUGS, RANGE HOOD, DISPOSALS,
DISHWASHERS OR MICROWAVES. ONLY THE REQUIRED COUNTERTOP/
WALL OUTLETS (INCLUDING REFRIGERATOR).

BATHROOM OUTLET CIRCUITS: REQUIRED BATHROOM OUTLETS
SHALL BE ON A DEDICATED 20 AMP CIRCUIT WHICH CANNOT SERVE
ANY OTHER RECEPTACLES, LIGHTS, FANS, ETC.

TAMPER-RESISTANT RECEPTACLES IN DWELLING UNITS: ALL NEW
NON-LOCKING TYPE 125-VOLT, 15- AND 20-AMPERE RECEPTACLES
THAT ARE WITHIN 5 1/2' ABOVE FINISH FLOOR SHALL BE LISTED
TAMPER-RESISTANT RECEPTACLES. 

ARCHITECTURAL

MECHANICAL

ELECTRICAL

GENERAL NOTES

JOINTS AND OPENINGS: ANNULAR SPACES AROUND PIPES, ELECTRIC CABLES, CONDUITS,
OR OTHER OPENINGS IN PLATES AT EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL BE PROTECTED AGAINST THE
PASSAGE OF RODENTS BY CLOSING SUCH OPENING WITH CEMENT MORTAR, CONCRETE
MASONRY OR SIMILAR METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO THE ENFORCING AGENCY.

A MINIMUM OF 75% OF THE CONSTRUCTION WASTE GENERATED AT THE SITE IS DIVERTED
TO RECYCLE OR SALVAGE. THIS IS ACHIEVED EITHER BY USING CITY PRE-CERTIFIED
LANDFILLS OR IMPLEMENTATION OF A WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN. WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLAN SHALL BE PRE-APPROVED BY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT. 

HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM DESIGN SHALL BE SIZED, DESIGNED, AND HAVE
THEIR EQUIPMENT SELECTED USING THE FOLLOWING METHODS:

A HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS .

B HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS.

C SELECT HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT ACCORDING TO ACCA 36-S MANUAL S OR
OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHOD. 

DUCT OPENINGS AND OTHER RELATED AIR DISTRIBUTION COMPONENT OPENINGS SHALL
BE COVERED WITH TAPE, PLASTIC, SHEET METAL, OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE METHODS AT
THE TIME OF ROUGH INSTALLATION OR DURING STORAGE ON THE CONSTRUCTION SITE
AND UNTIL FINAL STARTUP OF THE HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT.

ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS, COATINGS, AND AEROSOL PAINTS SHALL COMPLY
WITH VOC AND OTHER CONTENT LIMITS. SPECIFIED IN SECTION 4.504 OF THE CGBSC. ALL
PRODUCT CONTAINERS SHALL REMAIN ON SITE FOR FIELD VERIFICATION. PRIOR TO FINAL
INSPECTION, A LETTER SIGNED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR MUST BE PROVIDED TO
THE BUILDING OFFICIAL CERTIFYING THAT ALL ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS,
COATINGS, AEROSOL PAINTS, AEROSOL COATINGS, CARPET SYSTEMS (INCLUDING
CARPETING, CUSHION, AND ADHESIVE), RESILIENT FLOORING SYSTEMS, AND COMPOSITE
WOOD PRODUCTS INSTALLED ON THIS PROJECT ARE WITHIN THE EMISSION LIMITS
SPECIFIED IN CGBSC SECTION 4.504

FINISHES:
A USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL) VOCS

REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2
B USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)
C DOCUMENTATION SHALL BE PROVIDED TO VERIFY THAT COMPLIANT VOC FINISH

MATERIALS HAVE BEEN USED PER CGBSC 4.504.2.4

80% OF FLOOR AREA RECEIVING RESILIENT FLOORING, SHALL COMPLY WITH THE VOC-
EMISSION LIMITS DEFINED IN THE COLLABORATIVE FOR HIGH PERFORMANCE SCHOOLS
(CHPS) LOW-EMITTING MATERIALS LIST OR BE CERTIFIED UNDER THE RESILIENT FLOOR
COVERING INSTITUTE (RCFI) FLOORSCORE PROGRAM.

PARTICLEBOARD, MEDIUM DENSITY FIBERBOARD (MDF), AND HARDWOOD PLYWOOD USED
IN INTERIOR FINISH SYSTEMS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOW FORMALDEHYDE EMISSION
STANDARDS. SPECIFY THE LIMITS ON THE PLANS IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 4.504.5.

VAPOR RETARDER AND CAPILLARY BREAK IS INSTALLED AT SLAB ON GRADE FOUNDATIONS.

PRIOR TO ENCLOSING THE WALL AND FLOOR FRAMING, CONFIRMATION MUST BE
PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING INSPECTOR SHOWING THE FRAMING MEMBERS DO NOT
EXCEED 19% MOISTURE CONTENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.505.3

ALL PLUMBING FIXTURES AND FITTINGS SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS REFERENCED IN CA
CIVIL CODE SECTIONS 1101.01-1101.8.

ALL EXISTING TO REMAIN PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING:
A TOILETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF SHALL BE REPLACED WITH TOILETS

WITH A MAXIMUM OF 1.28 GPF. 
B SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM SHALL BE REPLACED

WITH A MAXIMUM 1.8 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM SHALL

BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GPM (OR 1.8 GPM
FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS).

AN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUAL SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING
OCCUPANT OWNER.

HVAC SYSTEMS INSTALLERS SHALL BE TRAINED AND CERTIFIED IN THE PROPER
INSTALLATION OF HVAC SYSTEMS.

SPECIAL INSPECTORS EMPLOYED BY THE ENFORCING AGENCY MUST BE QUALIFIED AND
ABLE TO DEMONSTRATE COMPETENCE IN THE THE DISCIPLINE THEY ARE INSPECTING.

DOCUMENTATION USED TO SHOW COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CODE SHALL INCLUDE BUT IS
NOT LIMITED TO, CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, BUILDER OR
INSTALLER CERTIFICATION, INSPECTION REPORTS, OR OTHER METHODS ACCEPTABLE TO
THE ENFORCING AGENCY WHICH DEMONSTRATE SUBSTANTIAL CONFORMANCE. WHEN
SPECIFIC DOCUMENTATION OR SPECIAL INSPECTION IS NECESSARY TO VERIFY
COMPLIANCE, THAT METHOD OF COMPLIANCE WILL BE SPECIFIED IN THE APPROPRIATE
SECTION OR IDENTIFIED IN THE APPLICATION CHECKLIST.

DIMENSIONS: ALL EXTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF
SHEATHING. ALL INTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

CALGREEN:

ARC-FAULT AND GROUND FAULT OUTLETS: ARC-FAULT (AFCI)
REQUIRED IN FAMILY ROOMS , DINING ROOMS, PARLORS, LIBRARIES,
DENS, BEDROOMS, SUN ROOMS, REC ROOMS, CLOSETS, AND
HALLWAYS AND LIGHTING. GROUND FAULT (GFCI) IS REQUIRED IN
BATHROOMS, GARAGES, ACCESSORY AREAS, EXTERIOR,
CRAWLSPACES, BASEMENTS, DISHWASHERS, AND DISPOSALS.
COMBINATION AFCI/GFCI IS REQUIRED IN KITCHENS, AND LAUNDRY
AREAS. 

ELECTRICAL (CONT.)
A. FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM WILL BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED PER NFPA 13D 2016 ADDITION.

B. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED: AN AUTOMATIC RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL BE
INSTALLED IN ONE AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS AS FOLLOWS: IN ALL NEW ONE AND TWO-FAMILY
DWELLINGS AND IN EXISTING ONE AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS WHEN ADDITIONS ARE MADE THAT
INCREASE THE BUILDING AREA TO MORE THAN 3,600 SQUARE FEET. NOTE: THE OWNER(S),
OCCUPANT(S) AND ANY CONTRACTOR(S) OR SUBCONTRACTOR(S) ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR
CONSULTING WITH THE WATER PURVEYOR OF RECORD IN ORDER TO DETERMINE IF ANY
MODIFICATION OR UPGRADE OF THE EXISTING WATER SERVICE IS REQUIRED. A STATE OF
CALIFORNIA LICENSED (C-16) FIRE PROTECTION CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT PLANS,
CALCULATIONS, A COMPLETED PERMIT APPLICATION AND APPROPRIATE FEES TO THIS DEPARTMENT
FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR TO BEGINNING THEIR WORK. CRC SEC. 313.2 AS ADOPTED AND
AMENDED BY LGTC. 

C. WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS: POTABLE WATER SUPPLIES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM
CONTAMINATION CAUSED BY FIRE PROTECTION WATER SUPPLIES. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
APPLICANT AND ANY CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS TO CONTACT THE WATER PURVEYOR
SUPPLYING THE SITE OF SUCH PROJECT, AND TO COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THAT
PURVEYOR. SUCH REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE INCORPORATED INTO THE DESIGN OF ANY WATER-
BASED FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS, AND/OR FIRE SUPPRESSION WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS OR
STORAGE CONTAINERS THAT MAY BE PHYSICALLY CONNECTED IN ANY MANNER TO AN APPLIANCE
CAPABLE OF CAUSING CONTAMINATION OF THE POTABLE WATER SUPPLY OF THE PURVEYOR OF
RECORD. FINAL APPROVAL OF THE SYSTEM(S) UNDER CONSIDERATION WILL NOT BE GRANTED BY
THIS OFFICE UNTIL COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE WATER PURVEYOR OF RECORD
ARE DOCUMENTED BY THAT PURVEYOR AS HAVING BEEN MET BY THE APPLICANT(S). 2016 CFC SEC.
903.3.5 AND HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 13114.7 

D. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: NEW AND EXISTING BUILDINGS SHALL HAVE APPROVED ADDRESS
NUMBERS, BUILDING NUMBERS OR APPROVED BUILDING IDENTIFICATION PLACED IN A POSITION
THAT IS PLAINLY LEGIBLE AND VISIBLE FROM THE STREET OR ROAD FRONTING THE PROPERTY.
THESE NUMBERS SHALL CONTRAST WITH THEIR BACKGROUND. WHERE REQUIRED BY THE FIRE
CODE OFFICIAL, ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ADDITIONAL APPROVED LOCATIONS TO
FACILITATE EMERGENCY RESPONSE. ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE ARABIC NUMBERS OR
ALPHABETICAL LETTERS. NUMBERS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 4 INCHES (101.6 MM) HIGH WITH A
MINIMUM STROKE WIDTH OF 0.5 INCH (12.7 MM). WHERE ACCESS IS BY MEANS OF A PRIVATE ROAD
AND THE BUILDING CANNOT BE VIEWED FROM THE PUBLIC WAY, A MONUMENT, POLE OR OTHER SIGN
OR MEANS SHALL BE USED TO IDENTIFY THE STRUCTURE. ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE
MAINTAINED. CFC SEC. 505.1

E. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFETY: ALL CONSTRUCTION SITES MUST COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE CFC CHAPTER 33 AND OUR STANDARD DETAIL AND SPECIFICATION S1-7.
PROVIDE APPROPRIATE NOTATIONS ON SUBSEQUENT PLAN SUBMITTALS, AS APPROPRIATE TO THE
PROJECT. CFC CHP. 33

F. WILDLAND URBAN INTERFACE:THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE DESIGNATED WILDLAND-
URBAN INTERFACE FIRE AREA. THE BUILDING CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS
OF SECTION R327 OF THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE OR THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE
(CBC) CHAPTER 7A., AS APPLICABLE. VEGETATION CLEARANCE SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CBC
SECTION 701A.3.2.4 PRIOR TO PROJECT FINAL  APPROVAL.

FIRE NOTES:

NOTE:
ALL OUTDOOR LIGHTING AFFIXED TO THE BUILDING SHALL BE
DOWNWARD DIRECTED AND SHIELDED SO THAT NO LIGHT
GLARE WILL ENCROACH ONTO NEIGHBORING PROPERTIES. 

1
Scale: None
TYP. OUTDOOR LIGHT (O.L.)

As shown

Page 334



cL

c L

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

10
'-7

"

12
'-4

 3
/4

"

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(E) 26.4" OAK TREE
TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) FIRE
HYDRANT TO

REMAIN.

SSCO

SDMH

(E) JP

(E) JP

(E) ELEC.
METER TO BE

REMOVED.

(E) GAS
METER TO BE

REMOVED.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

PROPERTY LINE

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

(E) WATER
METER TO BE
RELOCATED.

(E) 27" SMOKE
TREE TO REMAIN.

SSCO
(E) CLEAN OUT TO

BE RELOCATED.

(E) HEDGE TO BE
REMOVED.

(E) 18" CYPRESS
TO BE REMOVED.

(E) 18" CYPRESS
TO BE REMOVED.

TYPE "III" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 3

THIS PAGE.

(E) CANOPY
DRIPLINE, TYP.

TYPE "I" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 1
THIS PAGE.

TYPE "I" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 1
THIS PAGE.

TYPE "III" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 3

THIS PAGE.

TYPE "III" TREE
PROTECTION. SEE

FIGURE 3 THIS PAGE.

(E)EXISTING NON-
PERMITTED
STRUCTURE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

ADJUSTED SETBACK

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(E) 1-STORY HOUSE TO BE
REMOVED SHOWN SHADED

(E) SHED TO BE REMOVED.

(E) SHED TO BE
REMOVED.

(E) SHED TO BE
REMOVED.

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SS SS SS SS

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SDSDSDSD

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
IT

E
 D

E
M

O
 A

N
D

 T
R

E
E

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
.

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A0.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1
Scale: 1/8"=1'-0"
SITE DEMOLITION/TREE PROTECTION PLAN

2 No Scale
TREE PROTECTION DIAGRAMS

SEE CIVIL SHEET C-0
FOR MORE INFORMATION

As shown

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

03
/2

6/
20

19
1

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

Page 335



G
R

E
E

N
P

O
IN

T 
R

A
TE

D
C

H
E

C
K

LI
S

T

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A0.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

Page 336



6'-9 1/2"

20'-6" 8'-1 1/2" 18'-7 1/4"

11'-6"

8'
-8

 1
/4

"

9'-7 1/2"

37
'-1

1 
1/

4"

5'
-2

 1
/4

"

13
'-1

1"

20
'-1

0 
1/

4"

HALL

FAMILY

LIVING/
KITCHEN

BATH

ENTRY

KITCHEN

GARAGE

OFFICE

UTILITYB
A

LC
O

N
Y

 A
B

O
V

E

F.P.

A B

C

D

E

F

G

CLOSET

DECK

BEDROOM

BATH

CLOSET

F.P.

OPEN ABOVE

OPEN ABOVE

1 2

DN

(under a separate permit)

(u
nd

er
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
pe

rm
it)

2'-
8"

13'-11 3/4"

20
'-1

0 
1/

4"

13'-9 1/2"

18
'-2

"

16
'-5

 1
/2

"

40'-8 1/4"

5'
-5

"
6'

-4
 1

/4
"

4'-3 3/4"

5'-5 3/4"

15
'-2

 1
/4

"

12'-3 1/4"

BATH

BEDROOM

BATH

BALCONY

OPEN BELOW

BEDROOM

CLO.

LAUNDRY

HALL

MASTER BDRM

BATH OPEN BELOW

STUDY

HALL

CLOSET

K L

M
N

Q P

C
LO

.

CLO.

R

FL
O

O
R

 A
R

E
A

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A1.0

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

FIRST FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
B 8'-1 1/2" 20'-10 1/4" 167.58
C 18'-7 1/4" 37'-11 1/4" 705.80
D 11'-6" 5'-2 1/4" 59.66
E 11'-6" 8'-8 1/4" 49.95
F radius= 6'-9 1/2" 72.46
G 9'-7 1/2" 13'-11" 133.95

FIRST FLOOR TOTAL  1,189.40 SF

SECOND FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
K 13'-11 3/4" 20'-10 1/4" 291.52
L 13'-9 1/2" 18'-2" 250.55
M radius= 2'-8" 5.59
N 5'-5 3/4" 5'-5" 29.68
P 40'-8 1/4" 16'-5 1/2" 669.65
Q 4'-3 3/4" 6'-4 1/4" 26.68
R 12'-3 1/4" 15'-2 1/4" 186
SECOND FLOOR TOTAL 1,459.67 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA 2,649.07 SF
A - GARAGE FLOOR AREA 422.81 SF

1 Scale: 3/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

2 Scale: 3/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
A (GARAGE) 20'-6" 20'-7 1/2" 422.81
B 8'-1 1/2" 20'-7 1/2" 167.58
C 18'-7 1/4" 37'-11 1/4" 705.80
D 11'-6 " 5'-2 1/2" 59.90
E 11'-6 " 5'-2 1/2" 59.90
F radius= 6'-9 1/2" 72.46
G 9'-7 1/2" 13'-11" 133.95
H 31'-7 3/4" 15'-6 1/2" 491.83
I radius= 1'-10 1/2" 14.55
FIRST FLOOR TOTAL  1,705.95 SF

SECOND FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
K 13'-11 3/4" 20'-10 1/4" 291.52
L 13'-9 1/2" 18'-2" 250.55
M radius= 2'-8" 5.59
N 5'-5 3/4" 5'-5" 99.54
O 4'-3 3/4" 6'-2 1/4" 26.68
P 40'-8 1/4" 16'-5 1/2" 669.
Q (BALCONY) 5'-0 1/2" 20'-10 1/4" 187.50
R (BALCONY) 12'-6" 15'-0" 105.14
SECOND FLOOR TOTAL 1,343.53 SF

ADU:
S 20'-4 3/4" 25'-2" 513.30 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA 3,562.78 SF
GARAGE FLOOR AREA 422.81 SF

As shown

FIRST FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
B 8'-1 1/2" 20'-7 1/2" 167.58
C 18'-7 1/4" 37'-11 1/4" 705.80
D 11'-6" 5'-2 1/4" 59.66
E 11'-6" 8'-8 1/4" 49.95
F radius= 6'-9 1/2" 72.46
G 9'-7 1/2" 13'-11" 133.95
H 14'-2 3/4" 15'-6 1/2" 221.14
J radius= 1'-10 1/2" 14.55
FIRST FLOOR TOTAL  1,425.08 SF

SECOND FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
K 13'-11 3/4" 20'-10 1/4" 291.52
L 13'-9 1/2" 18'-2" 250.55
M radius= 2'-8" 5.59
N 5'-5 3/4" 5'-5" 29.68
P 40'-8 1/4" 16'-5 1/2" 669.65
Q 4'-3 3/4" 6'-2 1/4" 26.68
SECOND FLOOR TOTAL 1,273.67 SF

ATTACHED ADU:
R 275.54 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA 2,974.29 SF
A - GARAGE FLOOR AREA 422.81 SF

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

Page 337



80
80

80
80

5036DC 3080 4040SC

11580
5080

2056FX 2056FX

30
80

28
20

A
W

28
80

50
80

15
08

0

2880

41050TC

28
80

36
80

28
80

2870FX

2870FX

2870FX

2880

21
08

0

2880

41050TC

1630FX

2
A4.1

2
A4.1

1
A4.1

1
A4.1

37
'-4

 1
/4

"

5'
-1

"

5'-8"

8'
-2

"

20
'-0

"

12'-3 1/2"

8'-1 1/2"

4'-1 1/2"

4'
-0

 1
/2

"

15'-0"

12
'-0

"

7'-9"

20'-0"

14
'-1

1"

13'-11"

6'-
7"

18'-0"

16
'-2

" 
A

T
T

A
C

H
E

D
 A

D
U

33'-7 1/2" ATTACHED ADU

7'
-5

 1
/2

"

14
'-1

1"

13'-7"

5'-0"

21
'-0

"

HALL

P
A

N
T

R
Y

FAMILY

LIVING/
KITCHEN

ISLAND

BATH

ENTRY

KITCHEN

GARAGE

OFFICE

UTILITY

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+11'3"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

1 2

DN

12

DN

F.F.
-1'3"

B
A

LC
O

N
Y

 A
B

O
V

E

F.P.

20' MINUTE FIRE
RATED DOOR W/
SELF CLOSING &
SELF LATCHING

MECHANISMS.

CLOSET

DECK

BEDROOM

1 D
N

2

BATH

CLOSET

F.P.

OUTLINE
FLOOR
ABOVE.

OUTLINE
FLOOR
ABOVE.

OPEN ABOVE

OPEN ABOVE

1 2

DN

F.F.
+0'0"

(N) ELEC. METER.
300 AMP.

(N) GAS
METER.

(under a separate permit)

(u
nd

er
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
pe

rm
it)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

P
LA

N

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A2.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

NEW INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; 2x4 WD. STUD,
1/2" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE

NEW EXTERIOR CONSTRUCTION.

NEW 1-HR FIRE RATED WALL; 2x4 WD. STUD, 5/8"
TYPE "X" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE. SEE PLAN FOR
LOCATIONS. 1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GREEN BUILDING:
FINISHES:

A. USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL)
VOCS REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2

B. USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)
PLUMBING:

ALL EXISTING NON-COMPLIANT PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL BE UPGRADED:
A. WATER CLOSETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF WILL NEED TO BE

REPLACED WITH WATER CLOSETS WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.28 GPF. 
B. SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM WILL NEED TO BE

REPLACED WITH A MAXIMUM 2.0 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C. LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM

WILL NEED TO BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF
1.2 GPM (OR 1.8 GPM FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS). 

X LINEAL FEET OF EAVE W/2X RAFTERS @ 16" O.C.:
X'/16" = ±X AVAILABLE BLOCKS

NEW UNDER FLOOR AREA TO BE VENTED = 
XXX SQ.FT.

NEW ATTIC AREA TO BE VENTED = XXX SQ.FT.

XXX/150(144) = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED XXX/150(144) = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED

1 FLOOR VENT UNIT:
13.5" X 7.5" = 101.25 SQ.IN NFVA

1 EAVE BLOCKING VENT UNIT:
14" x 5.5" = 77 SQ.IN NFVA

X FLOOR VENTS PROVIDED, DISTRIBUTED EVENLY:
(X) x XXX SQ.IN = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA

XXX SQ.IN. NFVA PROVIDED
> XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED

X EAVE VENTS PROVIDED, DISTRIBUTED EVENLY:
(X) x X SQ.IN. = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA

XXX SQ.IN. NFVA PROVIDED
> XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

NEW INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; 2x4 WD. STUD,
1/2" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE

NEW EXTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; SEE 5/A3.2

NEW 1-HR FIRE RATED WALL; 2x4 WD. STUD, 5/8"
TYPE "X" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE. SEE PLAN FOR
LOCATIONS.

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION

NEW CONSTRUCTION

TYPICAL NOTES:                             

updated 10/12/18
Calgreen changes

ELECTRICAL LEGEND
(ALL LIGHTING TO  BE HIGH EFFICACY)

LAUNDRY/BATHROOM VENTILATION:
FOR LAUNDRY ROOMS AND BATHROOMS WITHOUT AN OPERABLE WINDOW:

A. PROVIDE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM CAPABLE OF 5 AIR CHANGES/HR. TO
EXTERIOR.

B. USE SMOOTH METAL DUCT FOR DRYER EXHAUST WITH A MAX. LENGTH OF 14', TO
OUTSIDE WITH BACKDRAFT DAMPER AND TWO 90° ELBOWS AND A MIN. OF 4" DIA.

C. TERMINATION OF ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET
FROM PROPERTY LINES OR ANY OPENINGS INTO THE BUILDING (i.e., DRYERS,
BATH AND UTILITY FANS, ETC., MUST BE 3 FEET AWAY FROM DOORS WINDOWS,
OPENING SKYLIGHTS OR ATTIC VENTS).

D. EXHAUST FANS SHALL HAVE A MIN. OF 50 CFM FOR INTERMITTENT VENTILATION
OR 20 CFM FOR CONTINUOUS VENTILATION AND BE ENERGYSTAR COMPLIANT AND
BE EQUIPPED WITH A HUMIDISTAT AND HUMIDITY CONTROL. AND BE SWITCHED
SEPARATELY FROM LIGHTING SYSTEM.

PLUMBING:
A. ALL NEW TOILETS SHALL HAVE AN EFFECTIVE FLUSH VOLUME NOT TO EXCEED 1.28

GALLONS PER FLUSH.
B. ALL NEW LAVATORY FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. 
C. ALL NEW SHOWERHEADS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 80 PSI. 
D. ALL NEW KITCHEN FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. KITCHEN FAUCETS MAY TEMPORARILY INCREASE THE FLOW
ABOVE THE MAXIMUM RATE, BUT NOT TO EXCEED 2.2 GALLONS PER MINUTE AT 60
PSI AND MUST DEFAULT TO A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS PER MINUTE
AT 60 PSI.

KITCHEN ELECTRICAL:
A. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT

INTERRUPTER(AFCI).
B. PROVIDE AFCI AND GFCI PROTECTION AT ALL RECEPTACLES SERVING KITCHEN

COUNTERTOPS.
C. AT EACH KITCHEN AND DINING AREA COUNTER SPACE WIDER THAN 12", LOCATE A

RECEPTACLE SO THAT NO POINT ALONG THE COUNTER WALL IS OVER 24" FROM A
RECEPTACLE. COUNTERTOP RECEPTACLES REQUIRED WITHIN 24" EACH SIDE OF
A BREAK IN THE CONTINUOUS COUNTERTOP SURFACE (SINKS-STOVES).

D. REQ'D RECEPTACLES MOUNTED ON THE SIDES OF CABINETS SHALL BE A
MAXIMUM OF 12" BELOW THE COUNTERTOP SURFACE WITH A MAXIMUM OF 6"
COUNTERTOP OVERHANG.

E. PROVIDE AT LEAST TWO (2) 20 AMP CIRCUITS FOR COUNTER RECEPTACLES.

SMOKE DETECTORS:
A. SMOKE DETECTOR SYSTEM SHALL BE HARD WIRED, INTERCONNECTED TO SOUND

SIMULTANEOUSLY AND EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACKUP.
B. INSTALL DETECTORS IN EACH BEDROOM, AT EACH CORRIDOR/AREA NEXT TO THE

BEDROOM, AT THE TOP OF STAIRS AND EACH STORY AND BASEMENT.
C. MULTIPLE  SMOKE DETECTORS ARE REQUIRED WHEN CEILING LEVELS/

ELEVATIONS CHANGE OR ARE INTERRUPTED BY ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS
(CASED OPENINGS, ARCHWAYS, SKYLIGHT WELLS, ETC.) .

D. SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 217 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM:
A. WATER CLOSETS SHALL BE LOCATED IN SPACES NOT LESS THAN 30" IN WIDTH AND

24" IN FRONT.
B. WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BACKING BOARD SHALL NOT BE USED WHERE THERE

WILL BE DIRECT EXPOSURE TO WATER. CRC 702.3.7.1
C. BACKER FOR SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER WALLS TO BE FIBER-CEMENT, FIBER

REINFORCED CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNITS, GLASS MAT GYPSUM BACKERS OR
FIBER-REINFORCED GYPSUM BACKERS TO A MIN HEIGHT OF 72" ABOVE THE
FLOOR.  

D. USE 2X8 WOODEN BACKING IN ALL BATHROOM WALLS AT WATER CLOSET SHOWER
AND BATHTUB, LOCATED AT 34" FROM FLOOR TO CENTER OF THE BACKING
SUITABLE FOR THE ADDITION OF GRAB BARS.

E. DOORS AND PANELS OF TUB AND SHOWER ENCLOSURES SHALL BE FULLY
TEMPERED LAMINATED SAFETY GLASS OR APPROVED PLASTIC.

F. SHOWER COMPARTMENTS SHALL HAVE MIN INTERIOR FLOOR AREA OF 1024 SQ IN
AND ABLE TO CONTAIN A 30" DIA. CIRCLE.

G. SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER COMBINATION IN ALL BUILDING SHALL BE PROVIDED
WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTROL VALVES OF THE PRESSURE BALANCE OR THE
THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE TYPE.

CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS:
CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS REQUIRED BY SECTION 420.6.2 SHALL BE INSTALLED AND
MAINTAINED IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

A. OUTSIDE OF EACH SEPARATE DWELLING UNIT SLEEPING AREA IN THE IMMEDIATE
VICINITY OF THE BEDROOM (S).

B. ON EVERY LEVEL OF A DWELLING UNIT INCLUDING BASEMENTS.
C. IN GROUP R-1 OCCUPANCIES; ON THE CEILING OF EVERY SLEEPING UNIT OR

OTHER LOCATIONS WITHIN THE SLEEPING UNIT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

D. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL RECEIVE THEIR PRIMARY POWER FROM THE
BUILDING WIRING WHERE SUCH WIRING IS SERVED FROM A COMMERCIAL
SOURCE AND SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACK-UP. ALARM WIRING SHALL
BE DIRECTLY CONNECTED TO THE PERMANENT BUILDING WIRING WITHOUT A
DISCONNECTING SWITCH OTHER THAN AS REQUIRED FOR OVERCURRENT
PROTECTION.

E. WHERE MORE THAN ONE CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM IS REQUIRED TO BE
INSTALLED WITHIN THE DWELLING UNIT OR WITHIN A SLEEPING UNIT, THE ALARM
SHALL BE INTERCONNECTED IN A MANNER THAT ACTIVATION OF ONE ALARM
SHALL ACTIVATE ALL OF THE ALARMS IN THE INDIVIDUAL UNIT.

F. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 2034 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM ELECTRICAL:
A. PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE BATHROOM

OUTLETS. THIS CIRCUIT CANNOT SUPPLY ANY OTHER RECEPTACLES, LIGHTS,
FANS, ETC. (EXCEPTION-WHERE THE CIRCUIT SUPPLIES A SINGLE BATHROOM,
OUTLETS FOR OTHER EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE SAME BATHROOM SHALL BE
PERMITTED TO BE SUPPLIED).

B. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER (GFCI).

KITCHEN VENTILATION:
WHERE COMBUSTION APPLIANCES OR SOLID-FUEL BURNING APPLIANCES ARE
LOCATED INSIDE THE PRESSURE BOUNDARY, THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE NET
EXHAUST FLOW OF THE TWO LARGEST EXHAUST FANS SHALL NOT EXCEED 15 CFM
PER 100 SQ. FT. OF OCCUPIABLE SPACE, WHEN OPERATING AT FULL CAPACITY. IF
THE DESIGNED TOTAL NET FLOW EXCEEDS THIS LIMIT, THE NET EXHAUST FLOW
MUST BE REDUCED BY REDUCING THE EXHAUST FLOW OR PROVIDING
COMPENSATING OUT-DOOR AIRFLOW (NOTE: IF MAKE-UP AIR FAN IS INSTALLED IT
MUST BE ELECTRICALLY INTERLOCKED WITH THE LARGEST EXHAUST FAN)LAUNDRY ELECTRICAL:

A ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT (AFCI) CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER AND GROUND FAULT (GFCI) CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER.

B PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE LAUNDRY
RECEPTACLE OUTLET.

C MINIMUM 30 AMP DEDICATED CIRCUIT FOR DRYER PER CEC 220.54.

HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING:
A. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AS DEFINED BY CEC TABLE 150.0-A
B. ALL PERMANENTLY INSTALLED SCREW-BASED LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL CONTAIN

SCREW-BASED JA8 (JOINT APPENDIX 8) COMPLIANT LAMPS AND BE MARKED AS
JA8-2016 OR JA8-2016-E. CEC 150.0(k)G

C. ALL JA8 COMPLIANT LIGHT FIXTURES INSTALLED IN CEILING RECESSED
DOWNLIGHTS, LED LUMINARIES WITH INTEGRAL SOURCES, PIN-BASED LED
LAMPS, AND GU24 BASED LED LIGHT SOURCES SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS OR DIMMERS. 

D. AT LEAST ONE FIXTURE IN EACH BATRHROOM, GARAGE, LAUNDRY ROOM, AND
UTILITY ROOM SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY A VACANCY SENSOR.

E. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM EXHAUST FANS (EXCEPT
FOR KITCHEN EXHAUST HOODS).

F. ALL UNDER CABINET LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM OTHER
LIGHTING SYSTEMS.

G. GARAGE, LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN GARAGES,
LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS.

H. HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING IS NOT REQUIRED IN CLOSETS OF LESS THAN 70 SF.
I. OUTDOOR LIGHTING PERMANENTLY MOUNTED TO A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SHALL

BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED WITH A MANUAL ON/OFF SWITCH AND BY
PHOTO CONTROL AND A MOTION SENSOR. PER ENERGY 110.9.

J. ALL OTHER ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN ALL OTHER ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH
EFFICACY OR SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY EITHER DIMMERS AND VACANCY
SENSORS.

ATTIC/UNDERFLOOR INSTALLED FAU:
A. UNIT SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE THROUGH AN OPENING AND PASSAGEWAY NOT LESS

THAN THE LARGEST COMPONENT OF THE UNIT AND NOT LESS THAN 22"x30"
B. THE DISTANCE FROM THE PASSAGEWAY ACCESS TO THE UNIT SHALL NOT EXCEED

20'
C. THE WIDTH OF THE PASSAGEWAY SHALL BE UNOBSTRUCTED AND SHALL HAVE

SOLID FLOORING NOT LESS THAN 24" WIDE FROM THE ENTRANCE OPENING TO
THE UNIT.

D. A LEVEL WORKING PLATFORM NOT LESS THAN 30" BY 30" SHALL BE PROVIDED IN
FRONT OF THE SERVICE SIDE OF THE UNIT.

E. A PERMANENT 120V RECEPTACLE OUTLET AND A LIGHTING FIXTURE SHALL BE
INSTALLED NEAR THE UNIT. THE SWITCH CONTROLLING THE LIGHTING FIXTURE
SHALL BE LOCATED AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE PASSAGEWAY.

ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING:
ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED TO FACILITATE THE
FUTURE INSTALLATION OF AN EV CHARGING DEVICE AND MUST COMPLY WITH THE
FOLLOWING: 

A. A LISTED TRADE SIZE 1 RACEWAY SHALL BE INSTALLED TO ACCOMMODATE A
DEDICATED 208/240-VOLT BRANCH CIRCUIT.  THE RACEWAY SHALL ORIGINATE
FROM THE MAIN SERVICE PANEL OR SUB PANEL AND TERMINATES INTO A LISTED
CABINET, BOX,OR OTHER ENCLOSURE IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE FUTURE
CHARGING DEVICE.

B. THE SERVICE PANEL AND/OR SUB PANEL SHALL PROVIDE CAPACITY TO INSTALL A
40-AMP MIN. BRANCH CIRCUIT AND SPACE RESERVED TO ACCOMMODATE A
BRANCH CIRCUIT OVERCURRENT PROTECTIVE DEVICE.

C. THE ELECTRICAL PANEL SCHEDULE SHALL IDENTIFY THE OVERCURRENT
PROTECTIVE DEVICE SPACE RESERVED FOR FUTURE EV CHARGING AS "EV
CAPABLE".

D. THE RACEWAY TERMINATION LOCATION SHALL BE PERMANENTLY AND VISIBLY
MARKED AS "EV CAPABLE".

As shown

TOWN STANDARDS:
RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY

A ALL PASSAGE DOOR SHALL BE AT LEAST 32 INCH DOORS ON THE ACCESSIBLE
FLOOR LEVEL.

B THE PRIMARY ENTRANCE DOOR SHALL BE A 36 INCH WIDE DOOR INCLUDING A
5'X5' LEVEL LANDING, MORE THAN 1 INCH OUT OF PLANE WITH THE IMMEDIATE
INFERIOR FLOOR LEVEL AND WITH AN 18 INCH CLEARANCE AT INTERIOR STRIKE
EDGE.

C A DOOR BUZZER, BELL OR CHIME SHALL BE HARD WIRED AT PRIMARY ENTRANCE. 

FIREPLACE: 
A. NEW WOOD BURNING FIREPLACES SHALL BE AN EPA PHASE II APPROVED

APPLIANCES OR GAS APPLIANCE PER TOWN ORDINANCE 1905. TREE LIMBS SHALL
BE CUT WITHIN 10 FEET OF CHIMNEYS. 

1

NOTES:
A. GAS FIREPLACES INSTALLED IN THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS SHALL HAVE NO WOOD
BURNING COMPONENTS.
B. VENTILATION HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEMS SHALL HAVE MERV 6
FILTERS OR BETTER.
C. A COMPLETED CF2R-LTG-01-E FORM SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE TOWN BUILDING
INSPECTOR PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION.

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

EXHAUST FAN/EXHAUST FAN/LIGHT COMBO. SEE BATH
ELECTRICAL NOTES, THIS PAGE. 'W' INDICATES CONTINUOUSLY
OPERATING MULTI-SPEED WHOLE BUILDING VENTILATION FAN.
SEE WHOLE BUILDING VENTILATION NOTES THIS PAGE.

OUTDOOR LIGHT. EXTERIOR LIGHTING ATTACHED TO THE
BUILDING SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY WITH A MANUAL ON/OFF
SWITCH AND CONTROLLED BY MOTION SENSOR & PHOTO
CONTROL. FIXTURE SHALL BE DOWNWARD LIGHTING.

RECEPTACLE. BRANCH CIRCUIT PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT
CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER. SEE ELECTRICAL NOTES THIS PAGE.
ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER PROTECTED RECEPTACLE
W/ GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER. SEE ELECTRICAL
NOTES THIS PAGE.
WATERPROOF RECEPTACLE W/ GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER. PROVIDE EXTERIOR GFCI WATERPROOF
RECEPTACLES AT THE FRONT & REAR OF RESIDENCE WITHIN 6'-
6" OF GRADE.

SURFACE MOUNT WALL SCONCE.
VERIFY STYLE WITH HOMEOWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

COMBINATION SMOKE DETECTOR AND CARBON MONOXIDE
DETECTOR UNIT. SEE NOTES THIS PAGE

CEILING OR FLOOR MOUNTED HVAC REGISTER.

CHANDELIER
VERIFY STYLE WITH HOMEOWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

SURFACE MOUNT CEILING LIGHT FIXTURE OR PENDANT. VERIFY
STYLE WITH HOMEOWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

HIGH EFFICACY RECESSED LIGHT FIXTURE. SEE HIGH EFFICACY
LIGHTING NOTES THIS PAGE. LIGHTS IN INSULATED CEILINGS
SHALL BE IC RATED, HAVE ELECTRONIC BALLAST AND BE AIR-
TIGHT (AT). 

UNDER-CABINET FLUORESCENT LIGHT. SHALL BE SWITCHED
SEPARATELY FROM OTHER LIGHTING.

Page 338



1646FX

1646FX

1646FX

21070

8616TC

28
70

50
70

28
70

28
70

28
70

28
70

21
70

28
70

28
70

28
70

3016FX 3016FX 5036FX 1626FX 1626FX 1626FX

5045TC4020DC5045TC1630FX

2870

20
70

F
X

20
36

F
X

2870 2870 2870

2870

50
70

16
26

F
X

16
26

F
X

80
46

T
C

2
A4.1

2
A4.1

1
A4.1

1
A4.1

15'-1"

6'-0"

12
'-0

"
3'-0"

8'-6 1/2"

7'
-0

"

11'-10"

5'
-7

 3
/4

"

10'-2"

6'
-1

 1
/2

"

4'-0"

20
'-1

"

17
'-8

 1
/2

"

14
'-4

"

18'-0"

3'
-7

"

3'
-6

 1
/2

"

11'-9 1/2"

4'
-6

 1
/4

"

17
'-8

 1
/2

"

7'-5"

11'-5"

5'-0"

2'-0"

6'
-6

"

4'-0"

2'-0"

9'-6 1/2"

11'-9 1/2"

BATH

BEDROOM

BATH

BALCONY

OPEN BELOW

BEDROOM

CLO.

LAUNDRY

HALL

MASTER BDRM

BATH OPEN BELOW

STUDY

HALL

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

CLOSET

C
LO

.
N

IC
H

E CLO.

OUTLINE
FLOOR
BELOW.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

C
O

N
D

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A2.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

NEW INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; 2x4 WD. STUD,
1/2" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE

NEW EXTERIOR CONSTRUCTION.

NEW 1-HR FIRE RATED WALL; 2x4 WD. STUD, 5/8"
TYPE "X" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE. SEE PLAN FOR
LOCATIONS.

TYPICAL NOTES:                             

LAUNDRY/BATHROOM VENTILATION:
FOR LAUNDRY ROOMS AND BATHROOMS WITHOUT AN OPERABLE WINDOW:

A. PROVIDE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM CAPABLE OF 5 AIR CHANGES/HR. TO
EXTERIOR.

B. USE SMOOTH METAL DUCT FOR DRYER EXHAUST WITH A MAX. LENGTH OF 14', TO
OUTSIDE WITH BACKDRAFT DAMPER AND TWO 90° ELBOWS AND A MIN. OF 4" DIA.

C. TERMINATION OF ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET
FROM PROPERTY LINES OR ANY OPENINGS INTO THE BUILDING (i.e., DRYERS,
BATH AND UTILITY FANS, ETC., MUST BE 3 FEET AWAY FROM DOORS WINDOWS,
OPENING SKYLIGHTS OR ATTIC VENTS).

D. EXHAUST FANS SHALL HAVE A MIN. OF 50 CFM FOR INTERMITTENT VENTILATION
OR 20 CFM FOR CONTINUOUS VENTILATION AND BE ENERGYSTAR COMPLIANT AND
BE EQUIPPED WITH A HUMIDISTAT AND HUMIDITY CONTROL. AND BE SWITCHED
SEPARATELY FROM LIGHTING SYSTEM.

PLUMBING:
A. ALL NEW TOILETS SHALL HAVE AN EFFECTIVE FLUSH VOLUME NOT TO EXCEED 1.28

GALLONS PER FLUSH.
B. ALL NEW LAVATORY FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. 
C. ALL NEW SHOWERHEADS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 80 PSI. 
D. ALL NEW KITCHEN FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. KITCHEN FAUCETS MAY TEMPORARILY INCREASE THE FLOW
ABOVE THE MAXIMUM RATE, BUT NOT TO EXCEED 2.2 GALLONS PER MINUTE AT 60
PSI AND MUST DEFAULT TO A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS PER MINUTE
AT 60 PSI.

KITCHEN ELECTRICAL:
A. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT

INTERRUPTER(AFCI).
B. PROVIDE AFCI AND GFCI PROTECTION AT ALL RECEPTACLES SERVING KITCHEN

COUNTERTOPS.
C. AT EACH KITCHEN AND DINING AREA COUNTER SPACE WIDER THAN 12", LOCATE A

RECEPTACLE SO THAT NO POINT ALONG THE COUNTER WALL IS OVER 24" FROM A
RECEPTACLE. COUNTERTOP RECEPTACLES REQUIRED WITHIN 24" EACH SIDE OF
A BREAK IN THE CONTINUOUS COUNTERTOP SURFACE (SINKS-STOVES).

D. REQ'D RECEPTACLES MOUNTED ON THE SIDES OF CABINETS SHALL BE A
MAXIMUM OF 12" BELOW THE COUNTERTOP SURFACE WITH A MAXIMUM OF 6"
COUNTERTOP OVERHANG.

E. PROVIDE AT LEAST TWO (2) 20 AMP CIRCUITS FOR COUNTER RECEPTACLES.

SMOKE DETECTORS:
A. SMOKE DETECTOR SYSTEM SHALL BE HARD WIRED, INTERCONNECTED TO SOUND

SIMULTANEOUSLY AND EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACKUP.
B. INSTALL DETECTORS IN EACH BEDROOM, AT EACH CORRIDOR/AREA NEXT TO THE

BEDROOM, AT THE TOP OF STAIRS AND EACH STORY AND BASEMENT.
C. MULTIPLE  SMOKE DETECTORS ARE REQUIRED WHEN CEILING LEVELS/

ELEVATIONS CHANGE OR ARE INTERRUPTED BY ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS
(CASED OPENINGS, ARCHWAYS, SKYLIGHT WELLS, ETC.) .

D. SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 217 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM:
A. WATER CLOSETS SHALL BE LOCATED IN SPACES NOT LESS THAN 30" IN WIDTH AND

24" IN FRONT.
B. WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BACKING BOARD SHALL NOT BE USED WHERE THERE

WILL BE DIRECT EXPOSURE TO WATER. CRC 702.3.7.1
C. BACKER FOR SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER WALLS TO BE FIBER-CEMENT, FIBER

REINFORCED CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNITS, GLASS MAT GYPSUM BACKERS OR
FIBER-REINFORCED GYPSUM BACKERS TO A MIN HEIGHT OF 72" ABOVE THE
FLOOR.  

D. USE 2X8 WOODEN BACKING IN ALL BATHROOM WALLS AT WATER CLOSET SHOWER
AND BATHTUB, LOCATED AT 34" FROM FLOOR TO CENTER OF THE BACKING
SUITABLE FOR THE ADDITION OF GRAB BARS.

E. DOORS AND PANELS OF TUB AND SHOWER ENCLOSURES SHALL BE FULLY
TEMPERED LAMINATED SAFETY GLASS OR APPROVED PLASTIC.

F. SHOWER COMPARTMENTS SHALL HAVE MIN INTERIOR FLOOR AREA OF 1024 SQ IN
AND ABLE TO CONTAIN A 30" DIA. CIRCLE.

G. SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER COMBINATION IN ALL BUILDING SHALL BE PROVIDED
WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTROL VALVES OF THE PRESSURE BALANCE OR THE
THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE TYPE.

CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS:
CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS REQUIRED BY SECTION 420.6.2 SHALL BE INSTALLED AND
MAINTAINED IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

A. OUTSIDE OF EACH SEPARATE DWELLING UNIT SLEEPING AREA IN THE IMMEDIATE
VICINITY OF THE BEDROOM (S).

B. ON EVERY LEVEL OF A DWELLING UNIT INCLUDING BASEMENTS.
C. IN GROUP R-1 OCCUPANCIES; ON THE CEILING OF EVERY SLEEPING UNIT OR

OTHER LOCATIONS WITHIN THE SLEEPING UNIT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

D. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL RECEIVE THEIR PRIMARY POWER FROM THE
BUILDING WIRING WHERE SUCH WIRING IS SERVED FROM A COMMERCIAL
SOURCE AND SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACK-UP. ALARM WIRING SHALL
BE DIRECTLY CONNECTED TO THE PERMANENT BUILDING WIRING WITHOUT A
DISCONNECTING SWITCH OTHER THAN AS REQUIRED FOR OVERCURRENT
PROTECTION.

E. WHERE MORE THAN ONE CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM IS REQUIRED TO BE
INSTALLED WITHIN THE DWELLING UNIT OR WITHIN A SLEEPING UNIT, THE ALARM
SHALL BE INTERCONNECTED IN A MANNER THAT ACTIVATION OF ONE ALARM
SHALL ACTIVATE ALL OF THE ALARMS IN THE INDIVIDUAL UNIT.

F. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 2034 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM ELECTRICAL:
A. PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE BATHROOM

OUTLETS. THIS CIRCUIT CANNOT SUPPLY ANY OTHER RECEPTACLES, LIGHTS,
FANS, ETC. (EXCEPTION-WHERE THE CIRCUIT SUPPLIES A SINGLE BATHROOM,
OUTLETS FOR OTHER EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE SAME BATHROOM SHALL BE
PERMITTED TO BE SUPPLIED).

B. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER (GFCI).

KITCHEN VENTILATION:
WHERE COMBUSTION APPLIANCES OR SOLID-FUEL BURNING APPLIANCES ARE
LOCATED INSIDE THE PRESSURE BOUNDARY, THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE NET
EXHAUST FLOW OF THE TWO LARGEST EXHAUST FANS SHALL NOT EXCEED 15 CFM
PER 100 SQ. FT. OF OCCUPIABLE SPACE, WHEN OPERATING AT FULL CAPACITY. IF
THE DESIGNED TOTAL NET FLOW EXCEEDS THIS LIMIT, THE NET EXHAUST FLOW
MUST BE REDUCED BY REDUCING THE EXHAUST FLOW OR PROVIDING
COMPENSATING OUT-DOOR AIRFLOW (NOTE: IF MAKE-UP AIR FAN IS INSTALLED IT
MUST BE ELECTRICALLY INTERLOCKED WITH THE LARGEST EXHAUST FAN)LAUNDRY ELECTRICAL:

A ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT (AFCI) CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER AND GROUND FAULT (GFCI) CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER.

B PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE LAUNDRY
RECEPTACLE OUTLET.

C MINIMUM 30 AMP DEDICATED CIRCUIT FOR DRYER PER CEC 220.54.

HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING:
A. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AS DEFINED BY CEC TABLE 150.0-A
B. ALL PERMANENTLY INSTALLED SCREW-BASED LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL CONTAIN

SCREW-BASED JA8 (JOINT APPENDIX 8) COMPLIANT LAMPS AND BE MARKED AS
JA8-2016 OR JA8-2016-E. CEC 150.0(k)G

C. ALL JA8 COMPLIANT LIGHT FIXTURES INSTALLED IN CEILING RECESSED
DOWNLIGHTS, LED LUMINARIES WITH INTEGRAL SOURCES, PIN-BASED LED
LAMPS, AND GU24 BASED LED LIGHT SOURCES SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS OR DIMMERS. 

D. AT LEAST ONE FIXTURE IN EACH BATRHROOM, GARAGE, LAUNDRY ROOM, AND
UTILITY ROOM SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY A VACANCY SENSOR.

E. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM EXHAUST FANS (EXCEPT
FOR KITCHEN EXHAUST HOODS).

F. ALL UNDER CABINET LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM OTHER
LIGHTING SYSTEMS.

G. GARAGE, LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN GARAGES,
LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS.

H. HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING IS NOT REQUIRED IN CLOSETS OF LESS THAN 70 SF.
I. OUTDOOR LIGHTING PERMANENTLY MOUNTED TO A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SHALL

BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED WITH A MANUAL ON/OFF SWITCH AND BY
PHOTO CONTROL AND A MOTION SENSOR. PER ENERGY 110.9.

J. ALL OTHER ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN ALL OTHER ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH
EFFICACY OR SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY EITHER DIMMERS OR VACANCY
SENSORS.

ATTIC/UNDERFLOOR INSTALLED FAU:
A. UNIT SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE THROUGH AN OPENING AND PASSAGEWAY NOT LESS

THAN THE LARGEST COMPONENT OF THE UNIT AND NOT LESS THAN 22"x30"
B. THE DISTANCE FROM THE PASSAGEWAY ACCESS TO THE UNIT SHALL NOT EXCEED

20'
C. THE WIDTH OF THE PASSAGEWAY SHALL BE UNOBSTRUCTED AND SHALL HAVE

SOLID FLOORING NOT LESS THAN 24" WIDE FROM THE ENTRANCE OPENING TO
THE UNIT.

D. A LEVEL WORKING PLATFORM NOT LESS THAN 30" BY 30" SHALL BE PROVIDED IN
FRONT OF THE SERVICE SIDE OF THE UNIT.

E. A PERMANENT 120V RECEPTACLE OUTLET AND A LIGHTING FIXTURE SHALL BE
INSTALLED NEAR THE UNIT. THE SWITCH CONTROLLING THE LIGHTING FIXTURE
SHALL BE LOCATED AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE PASSAGEWAY.

ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING:
ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED TO FACILITATE THE
FUTURE INSTALLATION OF AN EV CHARGING DEVICE AND MUST COMPLY WITH THE
FOLLOWING: 

A. A LISTED TRADE SIZE 1 RACEWAY SHALL BE INSTALLED TO ACCOMMODATE A
DEDICATED 208/240-VOLT BRANCH CIRCUIT.  THE RACEWAY SHALL ORIGINATE
FROM THE MAIN SERVICE PANEL OR SUB PANEL AND TERMINATES INTO A LISTED
CABINET, BOX,OR OTHER ENCLOSURE IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE FUTURE
CHARGING DEVICE.

B. THE SERVICE PANEL AND/OR SUB PANEL SHALL PROVIDE CAPACITY TO INSTALL A
40-AMP MIN. BRANCH CIRCUIT AND SPACE RESERVED TO ACCOMMODATE A
BRANCH CIRCUIT OVERCURRENT PROTECTIVE DEVICE.

C. THE ELECTRICAL PANEL SCHEDULE SHALL IDENTIFY THE OVERCURRENT
PROTECTIVE DEVICE SPACE RESERVED FOR FUTURE EV CHARGING AS "EV
CAPABLE".

D. THE RACEWAY TERMINATION LOCATION SHALL BE PERMANENTLY AND VISIBLY
MARKED AS "EV CAPABLE".

As shown

TOWN STANDARDS:
RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY

A ALL PASSAGE DOOR SHALL BE AT LEAST 32 INCH DOORS ON THE ACCESSIBLE
FLOOR LEVEL.

B THE PRIMARY ENTRANCE DOOR SHALL BE A 36 INCH WIDE DOOR INCLUDING A
5'X5' LEVEL LANDING, MORE THAN 1 INCH OUT OF PLANE WITH THE IMMEDIATE
INFERIOR FLOOR LEVEL AND WITH AN 18 INCH CLEARANCE AT INTERIOR STRIKE
EDGE.

C A DOOR BUZZER, BELL OR CHIME SHALL BE HARD WIRED AT PRIMARY ENTRANCE. 

FIREPLACE: 
A. NEW WOOD BURNING FIREPLACES SHALL BE AN EPA PHASE II APPROVED

APPLIANCES OR GAS APPLIANCE PER TOWN ORDINANCE 1905. TREE LIMBS SHALL
BE CUT WITHIN 10 FEET OF CHIMNEYS. 

1

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

2

2

Page 339



10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
 -

 3
0-

0"
')

8"

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T 
- 

30
-0

"')

8"

3'-5"

9'
-0

"

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A3.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
NORTH FRONT EXTERIOR ELEVATION

2 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
SOUTH REAR EXTERIOR ELEVATION

As shown
NOTES:
A. DECORATIVE WOOD. IGNITION-RESISTANT, FIRE-RETARDANT-TREATED

WOOD PER SFM STANDARD 12-7A-5, ASTM E84. SEE DETAIL 7/A4.2

1

1

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

Page 340



10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T 
- 

30
'-0

")

8"

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
 -

 3
0'

-0
")

8"

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
X

TE
R

IO
R

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A3.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

2 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
WEST RIGHT EXTERIOR ELEVATION

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
EAST LEFT EXTERIOR ELEVATION As shown

NOTES:
A. DECORATIVE WOOD. IGNITION-RESISTANT, FIRE-RETARDANT-TREATED

WOOD PER SFM STANDARD 12-7A-5, ASTM E84. SEE DETAIL 7/A4.2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

1

1 1

1

2

2

2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

Page 341



10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

FINISH FLOOR
+0'-0"

FINISH CLG.
+10'-0"

TOP PLATE
+20'-0"

FINISH FLOOR
+11'-0"

1
A4.1

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

FINISH FLOOR
+0'-0"

FINISH CLG.
+10'-0"

TOP PLATE
+20'-0"

FINISH FLOOR
+11'-0"

2
A4.1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A4.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

2 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
BUILDING SECTION

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
BUILDING SECTION As shown

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

Page 342



N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
H

O
O

D
P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A6.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

104 HILOW CT.
100 HILOW CT.

100 DEL CARLO CT.

16311 SHANNON RD.

16310 SHANNON RD.

16330 SHANNON RD.
16344 SHADY VIEW LN.

16356 SHADY VIEW LN.

16347 SHADY VIEW LN.

16337 SHADY VIEW LN.

PROJECT VICINITY MAP.

As shown

Page 343



cL

c L

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

TR
E

E
T 

S
E

TB
A

C
K

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

10
'-7

"

12
'-4

 3
/4

"

9:00 A
M

 6/21/2018

9:
00

 A
M

 1
2/

21
/2

01
8

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
   

   
66

.3
7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
   

   
39

.9
8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(N) DRIVEWAY.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

PROPERTY LINE

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

   
   

78
.0

1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

   
   

78
.0

1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
PERMITTED
STRUCTURE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

ADJUSTED SETBACK

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

cL

c L

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

TR
E

E
T 

S
E

TB
A

C
K

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

10
'-7

"

12
'-4

 3
/4

"

12
:0

0 
PM

 6
/2

1/
20

18

12:00 PM 12/21/2018

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
   

   
66

.3
7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
   

   
39

.9
8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(N) DRIVEWAY.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

PROPERTY LINE

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

   
   

78
.0

1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

   
   

78
.0

1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
PERMITTED
STRUCTURE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

ADJUSTED SETBACK

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

cL

c L

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

TR
E

E
T 

S
E

TB
A

C
K

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

10
'-7

"

12
'-4

 3
/4

"

3:00 PM 6/21/2018

3:00 PM 12/21/2018

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
   

   
66

.3
7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
   

   
39

.9
8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(N) DRIVEWAY.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

   
   

78
.0

1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

   
   

78
.0

1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
PERMITTED
STRUCTURE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

ADJUSTED SETBACK

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(E) HOUSE

S
H

A
D

O
W

 S
T

U
D

Y

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A6.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1 Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN 2 Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

3 Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

June 21st 9:00am
December 21st 9:00am

June 21st 12:00pm
December 21st 12:00pm

June 21st 3:00pm
December 21st 3:00pm

LEGEND:        
JUNE SHADOW

DECEMBER SHADOW

As shown

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

N
True North

Project North
1

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

Page 344



26
'-9

 1
/2

"

28
'-1

1 
1/

2"
25

'-8
 1

/2
"

18
'-3

 1
/2

"

15
'-3

 1
/2

"

19
'-1

1"

15
'-1

0 
1/

2"

15
'-5

"

29
'-0

"

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T 
- 3

0'
-0

")

8"

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
H

O
O

D
E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

A6.3

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

104 HILOW CT. 100 HILOW CT.

100 DEL CARLO CT.

16311 SHANNON RD.

16330 SHANNON RD.

16344 SHADY VIEW LN.

16356 SHADY VIEW LN.16347 SHADY VIEW LN.

16337 SHADY VIEW LN.

16336 SHADY VIEW LN.

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

2

Page 345



4 1
/2 

: 1
2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

c L

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

4 1/2 : 12

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

7"

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

5'-0"

5'-0"

6'
-5

 1
/2

"

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

10
'-7

"

12
'-4

 3
/4

"

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(E) 26.4" OAK TREE
TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(N) DRIVEWAY.

(E) FIRE
HYDRANT TO

REMAIN.

SSCO

(E) JP

(E) JP

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF
FUTURE POOL
EQUIPMENT.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

(E) 27" SMOKE
TREE TO REMAIN.

5'
 0

" 
S

W
IM

M
IN

G
P

O
O

L 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

FUTURE SWIMMING
POOL (20'x15')

Under a separate permit.

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

(N) WATER
METER.

SSCO

SSCO

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

1 2

DN

(E) CANOPY
DRIPLINE, TYP.

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

(N) JOINT TRENCH
TO CONNECT TO
(N) UTILITIES.

PROJECT SIGN. SEE
NOTE 'E' THIS PAGE.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
PERMITTED
STRUCTURE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

ADJUSTED SETBACK

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(N) MAIN HOUSE

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

(N) ATTACHED ADU
AT 1ST FLOOR

(under a separate permit)

(N) SEWER
LINE.

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SDSDSDSD

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSCO

P
R

IV
A

C
Y

 E
X

H
IB

IT

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A

W
IN

G
S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 10/3/2019

LL / JW

PE

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R

O
JE

C
T
 D

E
S
C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
LE

:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T 
B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T 
T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

11

22

33

44

55

11223344

55

1 Scale: 1"=10'
SITE/ROOF PLAN

2 Not To Scale                                                                      16360 SHANNON ROAD
LANDSCAPE PLAN

Page 346



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page 
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 347



4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

cL

c L

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W

JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

JT
JT

4 1/2 : 12

4 1/2 : 12

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

TR
E

E
T

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

5'
-0

"

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

5'-0"
5'-0"

6'
-5

 1
/2

"

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(E) 26.4" OAK TREE
TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(N) DRIVEWAY.

(E) FIRE
HYDRANT TO

REMAIN.

SSCO

SDMH

(E) JP

(E) JP

4 
1/

2 
: 1

2

4 1/2 : 12

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF
FUTURE POOL
EQUIPMENT.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

E
D

G
E

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

(E) 27" SMOKE
TREE TO REMAIN.

5'
 0

" 
S

W
IM

M
IN

G
P

O
O

L 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

FUTURE SWIMMING
POOL (20'x15')

Under a separate permit.

5' 0" SWIMMING POOL SETBACK

(N) WATER
METER.

SSCO

SSCO

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

1 2

DN

(E) CANOPY
DRIPLINE, TYP.

(N) CLEAN OUT
LOCATION.

(N) JOINT TRENCH
TO CONNECT TO
(N) UTILITIES.

(N) ELEC.
METER.
300 AMP.

(N) GAS
METER.

PROJECT SIGN. SEE
NOTE 'E' THIS PAGE.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

LI
N

E
78

.0
1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

LI
N

E
78

.0
1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
CONFORMING
POOL HOUSE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(N) MAIN HOUSES
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

(N) ATTACHED
ADU

(under a separate permit)

SS SS SS SS

(N) SEWER
LINE.

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SDSDSDSD

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSCO

(E) HOUSE

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

CS

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

CITY OF SARATOGA:
CONSTRUCTION WORK HOURS:
MONDAY - FRIDAY 7:30AM - 6:00PM
SATURDAYS 9:00AM - 5:00PM
SUNDAYS AND WEEKDAY HOLIDAYS PROHIBITED

SITE MANAGEMENT:
A. SITE SHALL BE MAINTAINED CLEAN AT ALL TIMES AND CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS

HAULED OFF ON A REGULAR BASIS.
B. "BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICE" SHALL BE IN PLACE AND MAINTAINED DURING

THIS PROJECT FOR PROTECTION OF ANY POLLUTANTS ENTERING THE EXISTING
STORMWATER SYSTEM.

COVERSHEET NOTES FOR SARATOGA

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

Fill out "Tools>Project Information> Client Information" to
populate client information on cover sheet and title block.

PROJECT DATA
ZONING R1-8-PREZONE
OCCUPANCY TYPE R3/U
BUILDING TYPE VB
APN 532-03-034
LOT AREA 8,610 SF
(E) RESIDENCE TO BE REMOVED 1,056 SF

FLOOR AREA:
(N) 1st FLOOR 1,425.08 SF
(N) 2ND FLOOR 1,273.67 SF

 TOTAL 2,698.75 SF
(N) FAR 31 % > MAX. 32 %

(N) ATTACHED GARAGE: 422.81 SF
FAR 5 % < MAX. 9 %

BUILDING COVERAGE:
(N) RESIDENCE 2,307.96 SF

 TOTAL 2,307.96 SF
26.8 % < MAX. 40 %

PARKING 2 COVERED SPACES

SPECIAL INSPECTION

CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO:
2016 California Building Code
2016 California Residential Code
2016 California Plumbing Code
2016 California Mechanical Code
2016 California Electrical Code
2016 Energy Code
2016 Green Building Code
2016 California Fire Code
2016 California Reference Standards Code

COVERSHEET
GENERAL NOTES, CALGREEN CHECKLIST AND NOTES

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT DIRECTORY

SCOPE OF WORK:
DEMOLISH (E) 1,056 SF 1-STORY RESIDENCE. BUILD (N)
2,698.75 SF 2-STORY HOME.

PROPERTY OWNER:
Allan Coulson 
16336 Shady View Ln
Los Gatos, CA 95032

DESIGNER/CONTRACTOR:
DE MATTEI CONSTRUCTION, INC.
1794 THE ALAMEDA
SAN JOSE, CA. 95126
(408) 295-7516

SPECIAL INSPECTION NOTES

LOCATION MAP PARCEL MAP

1
Scale: 1/8"=1'-0"
 PROPOSED SITE/ROOF PLAN

ToDo:
1. PLACE HOLDER, BECAUSE IT WON'T

FORMAT WITHOUT IT.

SHEET INDEX

CS COVER SHEET
BLUEPRINT FOR A CLEAN BAY

1 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
C-1 COVER SHEET
C-2 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C-3 DRAINAGE AND MISC. DETAILS
C-4 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
L1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
A0.0 GENERAL NOTES
A0.1 SITE DEMO AND TREE PROTECTION.
A0.2 GREENPOINT RATED CHECKLIST
A1.0 FLOOR AREA DIAGRAMS
A2.1 PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
A2.2 PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
A3.1 PROPOSED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A3.2 PROPOSED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A4.1 PROPOSED SECTIONS
A6.1 NEIGHBORHOOD PHOTOGRAPHS
A6.2 SHADOW STUDY
A6.3 SCHEMATIC NEIGHBORHOOD ELEVATIONS

Coulson Residence
PROJECT
LOCATION

NOTES:
A. ROOF RAINWATER LEADERS ARE TO BE DISCHARGED ONTO SPLASH

BLOCKS AND DIRECTED INTO LANDSCAPED AREAS.
B. A SANITARY SEWER LATERAL CLEAN-OUT SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE

PROPERTY LINE, IF ONE DOES NOT ALREADY EXIST WITHIN TWO FEET
OF THE PROPERTY LINE.

C. All EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL BE DOWNWARD DIRECTED.
D. FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM WILL BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED PER

NFPA 13D 2016 ADDITION.
E. PROJECT SIGN SHALL BE ORIENTED TOWARDS THE STREET,WITHIN 1'

OF PROPERTY LINE OR 2' OF THE BACK OF SIDEWALK. THE TOP OF
THE SIGN SHALL BE 5' FROM (E) GRADE.

As shown

1

1

1

1

40 33
BOOK PAGE

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North

1

1

2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
05

/1
0/

20
19

2

2

2

2

2

EXHIBIT 18
Page 348



B
LU

E
P

R
IN

T
 F

O
R

 A
 C

LE
A

N
B

A
Y

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 5/22/2019

LL / JW

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

Page 349



BYREVISIONS

1" =10'

9-28-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

1 SHEETSOF

SANITARY SEWER

CLEANOUT

SANITARY SEWER

MANHOLE

FENCE LINE

WATER METER

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

XX" TREE

GUY ANCHOR

AS NOTED

JOINT POLE

TREE, SIZE AND TYPE

W

G

CONCRETE

WATER LINE

GM

GAS METER

GAS LINE

FL FLOWLINE

TC             TOP OF CURB

EP             EDGE OF PAVEMENT

CONC       CONCRETE

LIP            LIP OF GUTTER

GS            GROUND SHOT

AD            AREA DRAIN

TC            TOP OF CURB

FF             FINISH FLOOR

BSL           BUILDING SETBACK LINE

Page 350



BYREVISIONS

N.T.S.

12-2-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

GENERAL NOTES: 

UTILITY NOTES:

ABBREVIATION

DESCRIPTION LEGEND

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS
PERTINENT GRADING, PAVING AND TRENCH BACKFILL ON THIS SITE.
RECOMMENDATIONS ON STRIPPING AND SITE PREPARATION FOR ALL

EARTH WORK NOTE:
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STRICLY ADHERE TO THE SOILS ENGINEER'S

NOTE:

SHALL ESTABLISH HIS OWN QUANTITIES.

THE QUANTITIES ARE SHOWN FOR THE PURPOSE OF

GRADING PERMIT APPROVAL FROM THE TOWN OF 
LOS GATOS PUBLIC WORKS AND ARE NOT TO BE USED 
FOR  PAYMENT TO THE CONTRACTOR . CONTRACTOR 

STANDARD GRADING NOTES

“ ” 

55
3

52
0

APPROXIMATE GRADING QUANTITIES (CU. YDS.)

LOCATION CUT DEPTH FILL DEPTH

HOUSE 50

0

0 0

SITE 5 3 0.5'

TOTAL 55 3

NOTE: NO GRADING REQUIRED EXCEPT
FOR CRAWLSPACE & FOUNDATION
EXCAVATION & FOR SHAPING FINAL
GRADES FOR PROPER DRAINAGE

1'

2,552

2,971

5,523

IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE (S.F.)

BUILDINGS

DRIVEWAY/WALKS

TOTAL

EXISTING REPLACED NEW

1,359 1,327

328 148

1,687 1,826

TOTAL NEW & REPLACED IMPERVIOUS AREA=3,513 S.F.

THE PROJECT GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT PREPARED BY:

VICINITY MAP

SI
T

E

SHANNON RD

SH
A

D
Y

 V
IE

W
 L

A
N

E

D
E

L
 C

A
R

L
O

 C
O

U
R

T

B
O

N
N

IE
 L

A
N

E

H
IL

O
W

 R
D

N
O

B
L

E
 C

O
U

R
T

H
IL

O
W

 C
O

U
R

T

POOL 351

Page 351



N- ADU

1

2

D

N

FUTURE

POOL

FUTURE

P.E.Q.

DATEREVISIONS

1" =10'

12-2-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

GRADING AND DRAINAGE CONSTRUCTION  NOTES:

LEGEND:

DRAINAGE NOTE

DRAINAGE NOTE

Page 352



350

360

370

350

360

370

REVISIONS

AS SHOWN

12-2-2018

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

AREA DRAIN DETAIL

A

A

GRAVEL BASIN DETAIL

NOTES:

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

CONCRETE DRIVEWAY-TYPICAL SECTION

 ROOF DOWNSPOUT/SPLASH BLOCK

INFILTRATION DEVICE DETAIL

FOOTING DRAINS SYSTEM

SUBFLOOR DRAIN DETAIL

CATCH BASIN DETAIL

DATE

Page 353



BYREVISIONS

1" =10'

1-24-2019

NR

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

4 SHEETSOF

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE NOTES:  

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

LEGEND

STRAW WATTLES

ENTRENCHMENT 

IN FLAT AREA

STRAW  WATTLES

DETAIL

BURLAP SACK DRAIN INLET (D.I.)

SEDIMENT FILTER DETAIL

TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY ( ABOVE GRADE)

TEMPORARY COVER ON STOCK PILE

11.  

“ ”

“ ”

NOTES:

Page 354



Page 355



G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
T

E
S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A0.0

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

CALGREEN:
JOINTS AND OPENINGS: ANNULAR SPACES AROUND PIPES, ELECTRIC CABLES, CONDUITS,
OR OTHER OPENINGS IN PLATES AT EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL BE PROTECTED AGAINST THE
PASSAGE OF RODENTS BY CLOSING SUCH OPENING WITH CEMENT MORTAR, CONCRETE
MASONRY OR SIMILAR METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO THE ENFORCING AGENCY.

A MINIMUM OF 75% OF THE CONSTRUCTION WASTE GENERATED AT THE SITE IS DIVERTED
TO RECYCLE OR SALVAGE. THIS IS ACHIEVED EITHER BY USING CITY PRE-CERTIFIED
LANDFILLS OR IMPLEMENTATION OF A WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN. WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLAN SHALL BE PRE-APPROVED BY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT. 

HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM DESIGN SHALL BE SIZED, DESIGNED, AND HAVE
THEIR EQUIPMENT SELECTED USING THE FOLLOWING METHODS:

A HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS .

B HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS.

C SELECT HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT ACCORDING TO ACCA 36-S MANUAL S OR
OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHOD. 

DUCT OPENINGS AND OTHER RELATED AIR DISTRIBUTION COMPONENT OPENINGS SHALL
BE COVERED WITH TAPE, PLASTIC, SHEET METAL, OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE METHODS AT
THE TIME OF ROUGH INSTALLATION OR DURING STORAGE ON THE CONSTRUCTION SITE
AND UNTIL FINAL STARTUP OF THE HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT.

ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS, COATINGS, AND AEROSOL PAINTS SHALL COMPLY
WITH VOC AND OTHER CONTENT LIMITS. SPECIFIED IN SECTION 4.504 OF THE CGBSC. ALL
PRODUCT CONTAINERS SHALL REMAIN ON SITE FOR FIELD VERIFICATION. PRIOR TO FINAL
INSPECTION, A LETTER SIGNED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR MUST BE PROVIDED TO
THE BUILDING OFFICIAL CERTIFYING THAT ALL ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS,
COATINGS, AEROSOL PAINTS, AEROSOL COATINGS, CARPET SYSTEMS (INCLUDING
CARPETING, CUSHION, AND ADHESIVE), RESILIENT FLOORING SYSTEMS, AND COMPOSITE
WOOD PRODUCTS INSTALLED ON THIS PROJECT ARE WITHIN THE EMISSION LIMITS
SPECIFIED IN CGBSC SECTION 4.504

FINISHES:
A USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL) VOCS

REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2
B USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)
C DOCUMENTATION SHALL BE PROVIDED TO VERIFY THAT COMPLIANT VOC FINISH

MATERIALS HAVE BEEN USED PER CGBSC 4.504.2.4

80% OF FLOOR AREA RECEIVING RESILIENT FLOORING, SHALL COMPLY WITH THE VOC-
EMISSION LIMITS DEFINED IN THE COLLABORATIVE FOR HIGH PERFORMANCE SCHOOLS
(CHPS) LOW-EMITTING MATERIALS LIST OR BE CERTIFIED UNDER THE RESILIENT FLOOR
COVERING INSTITUTE (RCFI) FLOORSCORE PROGRAM.

PARTICLEBOARD, MEDIUM DENSITY FIBERBOARD (MDF), AND HARDWOOD PLYWOOD USED
IN INTERIOR FINISH SYSTEMS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOW FORMALDEHYDE EMISSION
STANDARDS. SPECIFY THE LIMITS ON THE PLANS IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 4.504.5.

VAPOR RETARDER AND CAPILLARY BREAK IS INSTALLED AT SLAB ON GRADE
FOUNDATIONS.

PRIOR TO ENCLOSING THE WALL AND FLOOR FRAMING, CONFIRMATION MUST BE
PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING INSPECTOR SHOWING THE FRAMING MEMBERS DO NOT
EXCEED 19% MOISTURE CONTENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.505.3

ALL PLUMBING FIXTURES AND FITTINGS SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS REFERENCED IN
TABLE 1401.1 OF THE CURRENT CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE.

ALL EXISTING TO REMAIN PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING:
A TOILETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF SHALL BE REPLACED WITH TOILETS

WITH A MAXIMUM OF 1.28 GPF. 
B SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM SHALL BE REPLACED

WITH A MAXIMUM 2.0 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM SHALL

BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GPM (OR 1.8 GPM
FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS).

AN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUAL SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING
OCCUPANT OWNER.

HVAC SYSTEMS INSTALLERS SHALL BE TRAINED AND CERTIFIED IN THE PROPER
INSTALLATION OF HVAC SYSTEMS.

SPECIAL INSPECTORS EMPLOYED BY THE ENFORCING AGENCY MUST BE QUALIFIED AND
ABLE TO DEMONSTRATE COMPETENCE IN THE THE DISCIPLINE THEY ARE INSPECTING.

DOCUMENTATION USED TO SHOW COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CODE SHALL INCLUDE BUT IS
NOT LIMITED TO, CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, BUILDER OR
INSTALLER CERTIFICATION, INSPECTION REPORTS, OR OTHER METHODS ACCEPTABLE TO
THE ENFORCING AGENCY WHICH DEMONSTRATE SUBSTANTIAL CONFORMANCE. WHEN
SPECIFIC DOCUMENTATION OR SPECIAL INSPECTION IS NECESSARY TO VERIFY
COMPLIANCE, THAT METHOD OF COMPLIANCE WILL BE SPECIFIED IN THE APPROPRIATE
SECTION OR IDENTIFIED IN THE APPLICATION CHECKLIST.

==========================
MAY ONLY BE FOR LOS GATOS
==========================

WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN:
A. PROVIDE A CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL IN

ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.408.2.
B. DOCUMENTATION SHALL BE PROVIDED, PRIOR TO FIRST INSPECTION, CONFIRMING

COMPLIANCE TO THE WASTE WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN PROVIDED TO THE
JURISDICTION. CGBSC SECTION 4.408.2.1

C. A MANUAL, COMPACT DISC, WEB-BASED REFERENCE, OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE MEDIA
INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN SHALL BE PLACED IN THE
BUILDING PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.410.1

updated 10/12/18
address numbers

CALGREEN: (ALT)
FINISHES:
A. USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL)

VOCS REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2
B. USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)

PLUMBING:
ALL EXISTING TO REMAIN PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE
FOLLOWING:
A. TOILETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF SHALL BE REPLACED WITH

TOILETS WITH A MAXIMUM OF 1.28 GPF. 
B. SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM SHALL BE

REPLACED WITH A MAXIMUM 2.0 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C. LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM

SHALL BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GPM
(OR 1.8 GPM FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS). 

WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE FIRE ZONE
REQUIREMENTS PER CRC R327:

PRIOR TO BUILDING PERMIT FINAL, THE PROPERTY SHALL BE IN A COMPLIANCE WITH THE
VEGETATION MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS PRESCRIBED IN CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE
SECTION 4906, INCLUDING CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 4291 OR CALIFORNIA
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 51182 PER CRC R327.1.5. 

ROOF GUTTERS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH THE MEANS TO PREVENT THE ACCUMULATION
OF LEAVES AND DEBRIS IN THE GUTTER PER CRC R327.5.4. 

EXTERIOR WALL COVERINGS SHALL EXTEND FROM THE TOP OF THE FOUNDATION TO THE
ROOF, AND TERMINATE AT 2 INCH NOMINAL SOLID WOOD BLOCKING BETWEEN RAFTERS AT
ALL ROOF OVERHANGS, OR IN THE CASE OF ENCLOSED EAVES, TERMINATE AT THE
ENCLOSURE PER CRC R327.7.3.1. 

THE EXPOSED UNDERSIDE OF ENCLOSED ROOF EAVES HAVING EITHER A BOXED-IN ROOF
EAVE SOFFIT WITH A HORIZONTAL UNDERSIDE, OR SLOPING RAFTER TAILS WITH AN
EXTERIOR COVERING APPLIED TO THE UNDERSIDE OF THE RAFTER TAILS, SHALL BE
PROTECTED BY ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PER CRC R327.7.5: 
30.1. NONCOMBUSTIBLE MATERIAL 30.2. IGNITION-RESISTANT MATERIAL 
30.3. ONE LAYER OF 5/8” TYPE ‘X’ GYPSUM SHEATHING APPLIED BEHIND AN EXTERIOR
COVERING ON THE UNDERSIDE OF THE RAFTER TAILS OR SOFFIT. 
30.4. THE EXTERIOR PORTION OF A 1-HOUR FIRE RESISTIVE EXTERIOR WALL ASSEMBLY
APPLIED TO THE UNDERSIDE OF THE RAFTER TAILS OR SOFFIT INCLUDING ASSEMBLIES
USING THE GYPSUM PANEL AND SHEATHING PRODUCTS LISTED IN THE GYPSUM
ASSOCIATION FIRE RESISTANT DESIGN MANUAL. 
30.5. BOXED-IN ROOF EAVE SOFFIT ASSEMBLIES WITH A HORIZONTAL UNDERSIDE THAT
MEET THE PERFORMANCE CRITERIA IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEST PROCEDURES SET
FORTH IN SFM STANDARD 12-7A-3. 

EXTERIOR WINDOWS AND EXTERIOR GLAZED DOOR ASSEMBLIES SHALL COMPLY WITH
ONE OF THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS PER CRC R327.8.2.1: 
31.1. BE CONSTRUCTED OF MULTI-PANE GLAZING WITH A MINIMUM OF ONE TEMPERED
PANE MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 2406 SAFETY GLAZING, OR 
31.2. BE CONSTRUCTED OF GLASS BLOCK UNITS, OR 
31.3. HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING OF NOT LESS THAN 20 MINUTES WHEN TESTED
ACCORDING TO NFPA 257, OR 
31.4. BE TESTED TO MEET THE PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS OF SFM STANDARD 12-7A-2.

EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL COMPLY WITH ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PER CRC 327.8.3: 
32.1. THE EXTERIOR SURFACE OR CLADDING SHALL BE OF NONCOMBUSTIBLE OR IGNITION-
RESISTANT MATERIAL, OR 32.2. SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF SOLID CORE WOOD THAT
COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 
32.2.1. STILES AND RAILS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 1 3/8 INCHES THICK 
32.2.2. RAISED PANELS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 1 1/4 INCHES THICK, EXCEPT FOR THE
EXTERIOR PERIMETER OF THE RAISED PANEL THAT MAY TAPER TO A TONGUE NOT LESS
THAN 3/8 INCH THICK. 
32.3. SHALL HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING OF NOT LESS THAN 20 MINUTES WHEN
TESTED ACCORDING TO NFPA 252. 
32.4. SHALL BE TESTED TO MEET THE PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS OF SFM STANDARD
12-7A-1.

GARAGE: 1-HR SEPARATION BETWEEN DWELLING AND GARAGE PER
CRC SECTION R302.6. 20 MINUTE, 1-3/4" SOLID WOOD FIRE RATED
DOOR WITH SELF CLOSING AND SELF LATCHING DEVICES PER CRC
SECTION R302.5

CODES: ALL HVAC EQUIPMENT, DUCT WORK AND INSTALLATIONS
SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE CURRENT
MECHANICAL CODE, CALIFORNIA TITLE 24 STANDARDS AND
MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS. ALL PLUMBING WORK SHALL
CONFORM WITH THE CURRENT CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE.

SKYLIGHTS: ALL SKYLIGHTS ARE TO BE PRE-MANUFACTURED PLASTIC
DOME TYPES WITH ANODIZED ALUMINUM FRAMES MOUNTED ON
WOOD CURBS OR DIRECTLY TO ROOF DECK. FRAME COLOR IS TO
MATCH OR BE SIMILAR TO THE ROOF COLOR.  CURB HEIGHT ABOVE
THE ADJACENT ROOF SURFACE IS TO BE 4" MINIMUM.  THE DOME
HEIGHT IS TO BE MINIMUM 5" OR 10% OF THE MAXIMUM SPAN OF THE
DOME.  SKYLIGHT UNITS SHALL MEET TITLE 24 REQUIREMENTS.
SKYLIGHTS WITH INSTALLED GLAZING 12' ABOVE THE WALKING
SURFACE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF LAMINATED GLASS WITH A
POLYVINYL BUTYRAL INTERLAYER AND A MINIMUM THICKNESS OF
0.030 INCHES (.76 mm)

EXTERIOR PLASTER LATH:  EXTERIOR PLASTER LATH SHALL BE OF AN
APPROVED, PAPER-BACKED, CORROSION RESISTANT METAL OR WIRE
FABRIC AND SHALL BE SELF FURRING.  (1/4" MIN.)  APPLY LATH OVER
WALL UNDERLAYMENT WITH THE LONG DIMENSION HORIZONTAL AND
LAP A MIN. 1/2" AT THE SIDES AND MIN. 1" AT THE ENDS.  WHERE END
LAPS OF SHEETS DO NOT OCCUR OVER SUPPORTS, THEY SHALL BE
SECURELY TIED TOGETHER WITH A MIN. 18 GA. WIRE.
REINFORCEMENT SHALL BE USED AT ALL CORNERS OR THE LATH
SHALL BE CARRIED AROUND CORNERS AT LEAST ONE SUPPORT.  A
WEEP SCREED SHALL BE PROVIDED AT OR BELOW THE FOUNDATION
LINE ON ALL EXTERIOR STUD WALLS A MIN. OF 4" ABOVE  HIGHEST
ADJACENT GRADE.  THE SCREED SHALL ALLOW TRAPPED WATER TO
DRAIN TO THE OUTSIDE.  BOTH THE METAL LATH AND PAPER
UNDERLAYMENT SHALL TERMINATE ON THE ATTACHMENT FLANGE OF
THE SCREED.  NAILING OF METAL LATH SHALL BE AT A MAX. OF 6 O.C.
EACH WAY USING EITHER 11 GA. X 1-1/2" LONG X 7/16" HEAD NAILS OR
16 GA. STAPLES WITH 7/8" LEGS.

GUARDRAILS: GUARDRAILS SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN 42 INCHES
HIGH MEASURED VERTICALLY ABOVE THE LEADING EDGE OF THE
TREAD, ADJACENT WALKING SURFACE OR ADJACENT SEATBOARD.
GUARDRAILS SHALL BE ABLE TO RESIST A SINGLE CONCENTRATED
LOAD OF 200 POUNDS, APPLIED IN ANY DIRECTION AT ANY POINT
ALONG THE TOP AND HAVE ATTACHMENT DEVICES AND SUPPORTING
STRUCTURE TO TRANSFER THIS LOADING TO THE APPROPRIATE
STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS OF THE BUILDING. INTERMEDIATE RAILS (ALL
THOSE EXCEPT THE HANDRAIL), BALUSTERS AND PANEL FILL ERS
SHALL BE DESIGNED TO WITHSTAND A HORIZONTALLY APPLIED
NORMAL LOAD OF 50 POUNDS ON AN AREA EQUAL TO ONE SQUARE
FOOT, INCLUDING OPENING AND SPACE BETWEEN RAILS.  OPEN
GUARDRAIL AND STAIR RAILINGS SHALL HAVE INTERMEDIATE RAILS,
BALUSTERS, PICKETS, ETC., ARRANGED SUCH THAT A 4" SPHERE
CANNOT PASS THROUGH THE OPENINGS.

INSULATION: FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION SHALL BE INSTALLED
ACCORDING TO THE T-24 REPORT. SEE T-24 REPORT FOR INSULATION
VALUES.

LISTINGS: ALL HVAC EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES SHALL BE LISTED
BY A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING LAB. INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS FOR ALL LISTED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED TO
THE FIELD INSPECTOR AT TIME OF INSPECTION.

EXHAUST FANS: ALL INTERIOR EXHAUST FANS SHALL PROVIDE 5 AIR
CHANGES PER HOUR OR MORE. EXHAUST FANS AND FAN SYSTEMS
SHALL HAVE BACK-DRAFT DAMPER CONTROLS.

1 HOUR WALLS: HVAC DUCTS PENETRATING ONE HOUR WALLS
(GARAGE/HOUSE WALL) SHALL BE MINIMUM 26 GAUGE GALVANIZED
STEEL. 1 HOUR SEPARATION BETWEEN DWELLING AND GARAGE PER
CRC SECTION R302.6.

GAS PIPING: GAS PIPING SHALL NOT BE IMBEDDED IN OR BELOW
CONCRETE SLABS

SEWER PIPING: PLASTIC OR PVC SEWER LINE SHALL BE PLACED WITH
MIN. 6" OF SAND BASE AND COVER.

FORCED AIR UNIT: FORCED AIR UNIT(S) SHALL BE INSTALLED PER THE
MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS AND THOSE OF THE
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER WHEN INSTALLED IN AN ATTIC SPACE.

GAS APPLIANCES: ALL GAS APPLIANCES AND EQUIPMENT SHALL HAVE
INTERMITTENT IGNITION DEVICES WITH NO CONTINUOUS BURNING
PILOTS. ALL APPLIANCES SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CURRENT
CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE.

WATER HEATERS: WATER HEATERS SHALL BE INSULATED WITH
EXTERNAL BLANKETS OF R-12 OF GREATER. INSULATE HOT WATER
INLET AND OUTLET PIPES (FIRST FIVE FEET IN UNCONDITIONED
SPACES) WITH EXTERNAL WRAPPING OF R-4 OR GREATER. WATER
HEATERS SHALL BE ANCHORED OR STRAPPED TO RESIST
HORIZONTAL DISPLACEMENT DUE TO EARTHQUAKE MOTION.
STRAPPING SHALL BE AT POINTS WITHIN THE UPPER 1/3 AND THE
LOWER 1/3 OF ITS VERTICAL DIMENSIONS. AT THE LOWER POINT, A
MINIMUM DISTANCE OF FOUR INCHES SHALL BE MAINTAINED ABOVE
THE CONTROLS WITH THE STRAPPING.  WATER HEATERS LOCATED IN
NON-LIVING SPACES SHALL BE INSTALLED ON A PLATFORM SUCH
THAT BURNERS AND BURNER-IGNITION DEVICES ARE LOCATED NOT
LESS THAN EIGHTEEN INCHES ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR. 

TANKLESS WATER HEATERS: TANKLESS WATER HEATER SHALL BE
INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATION.

DRYER VENT: CLOTHES DRYERS SHALL VENT TO THE OUTSIDE OF
THE BUILDING AND SHALL BE A MAXIMUM 14' IN LENGTH WITH TWO
FEET REDUCTION FOR EACH 90 DEGREE ELBOW OVER TWO.

PLUMBING VENTS: ALL PLUMBING VENTS SHALL BE MINIMUM 10 FEET
FROM OPERABLE SKYLIGHTS.

THERMOSTATS: ONLY "SETBACK" THERMOSTATS CERTIFIED BY THE 
CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION SHALL BE USED.

HOSE BIBS: HOSE BIBS AND WATER OUTLETS WITH HOSE
ATTACHMENTS SHALL HAVE APPROVED NON-REMOVABLE BACKFLOW
PREVENTION DEVICES.

FORCED AIR UNIT CLEARANCES: LISTED FURNACES SHALL BE
INSTALLED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF THEIR
LISTING. THE FURNACE INSTALLER SHALL LEAVE THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION AND OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS
ATTACHED TO THE APPLIANCE, CLEARANCES OF LISTED FURNACES
FROM COMBUSTIBLES SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED IN THE LISTING OR ON
THE FURNACE RATING PLATE. UNLISTED FURNACES SHALL HAVE THE
FOLLOWING CLEARANCES FROM COMBUSTIBLES:

ABOVE TOP OF CASING OR FURNACE 6"
FROM TOP AND SIDES OF WARM-AIR BONNET OR PLENUM 6"
FROM FRONT (UNLESS ACCESS REQUIREMENTS GREATER 18"
FROM BACK OF FURNACE 6"
FROM SIDES OF FURNACE 6"

DISHWASHERS: DISHWASHING MACHINES CONNECTED DIRECTLY TO
A DRAINAGE SYSTEM OR FOOD WASTE DISPOSAL SHALL HAVE AN
APPROVED DISHWASHER AIR GAP FITTING ON THE DISCHARGE SIDE
OF THE DISHWASHING MACHINE. LISTED AIR GAPS SHALL BE
INSTALLED WITH THE FLOOD LEVEL (FL) MARKING AT OR ABOVE THE
FLOOD LEVEL OF THE SINK/DRAIN BOARD, WHICH EVER IS HIGHER.

TUB AND SHOWER VALVES: TUB AND SHOWER VALVES SHALL HAVE
INDIVIDUAL CONTROL VALVES OF THE PRESSURE BALANCE OR THE
THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE TYPE 

QUICK ACTING VALVES: ALL BUILDING WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS IN
WHICH QUICK ACTING VALVES ARE INSTALLED (SUCH AS
DISHWASHERS, CLOTHES WASHERS, ETC.) SHALL BE APPROVED WITH
DEVICES AS CLOSE TO QUICK ACTING VALVES AS POSSIBLE TO
ABSORB HIGH PRESSURES RESULTING FROM THE QUICK CLOSING OF
THESE VALVES.

DUCT TERMINATIONS: ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCT TERMINATIONS
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF (3) FEET FROM PROPERTY LINES AND/OR ANY
OPENINGS INTO THE BUILDING.

WALL AND FLOOR FLASHING: ALL FLASHING AT WALLS, FLOORS, AND
ROOF JUNCTURES TO VERTICAL SURFACES SHALL BE 26 GA. G.I.
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS. FORM FABRICATE AND
INSTALL FLASHING AS SHOWN ON DETAILS. SET ALL FLASHING IN
PLASTIC CEMENT AND SET JOINTS IN BUTYL MASTIC. FLASHING
SECTIONS SHALL HAVE AN END LAP OF 4" MIN.

DOORS: ALL EXTERIOR DOORS ARE TO BE FULLY WEATHER-
STRIPPED, CERTIFIED AND LABELED FOR COMPLIANCE TO ENERGY
CONSERVATION REGULATIONS. ALL FRENCH DOORS SHALL BE PAINT
GRADE WOOD WITH TEMPERED, DOUBLE GLASS PANELS ARRANGED
AS SHOWN ON PLANS AND DOOR SCHEDULE.

WINDOWS: ALL WINDOWS SHALL BE FULLY WEATHER-STRIPPED,
CERTIFIED AND LABELED FOR COMPLIANCE TO ENERGY
CONSERVATION REGULATIONS. ALL WINDOWS ARE TO BE WOOD OR
VINYL FRAMED. DOUBLE GLAZED WITH PANES AS SHOWN ON PLANS
AND WINDOW SCHEDULE AND A MAXIMUM U-VALUE AS SET FORTH IN
THE T-24 ENERGY CALCULATIONS.

BATH COUNTER TOPS: ALL BATH COUNTERTOPS AND SPLASHES
SHALL BE CERAMIC TILE AS SELECTED BY OWNER UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS. USE GRANITE OR MARBLE TILES OR SLAB
WHERE NOTED ON PLANS AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS.

WEATHER BARRIER: ALL WEATHER EXPOSED WALL SURFACES SHALL
BE PROTECTED WITH AN UNDERLAYMENT OF (2) LAYERS GRADE "D"
BUILDING PAPER OVER PLYWOOD WALL SHEATHING. UNDERLAYMENT
SHALL BE APPLIED SHINGLE FASHION WITH MIN. 2" LAP AT
HORIZONTAL JOINTS AND MIN. 6" LAP AT VERTICAL JOINTS.
UNDERLAYMENT SHALL BE FREE OF HOLES AND BREAKS OTHER
THAN THOSE FROM NAILING TO PLYWOOD SHEATHING OR WALL
STUDS.

ARCHITECTURAL (CONT.)

CAULKING: ALL JOINTS AND PENETRATIONS AT EXTERIOR WALLS,
CEILINGS AND FLOOR ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE FULLY CAULKED AND
SEALED.

TUBS & SHOWERS: SHOWERS SHALL BE A MIN. SIZE OF 1024 SQ.IN
AND ACCOMMODATE AT 30" CIRCLE. BACKER FOR SHOWER AND TUB
SHOWER WALLS TO BE FIBER-CEMENT, FIBER REINFORCED
CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNITS, GLASS MAT GYPSUM BACKERS OR
FIBER-REINFORCED GYPSUM BACKERS TO A MIN. HEIGHT OF 72"
ABOVE THE FLOOR. SHOWER WALLS SHALL BE FINISHED WITH
CERAMIC TILE OF OTHER SMOOTH, HARD NON-ABSORBENT
COVERING. ALL TUB AND SHOWER GLAZING SHALL BE MADE OF
SHATTER-RESISTANT TEMPERED GLASS.  SWING DOORS SHALL OPEN
OUTWARD WITH A MIN. OPENING CLEARANCE OF 22".

PRE-FABRICATED FIREPLACES: PRE-FABRICATED METAL FIREPLACES
SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH INSULATED CHIMNEY FLUE, SPARK
ARRESTOR AND ACCESSORIES ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURERS
SPECIFICATIONS. FIREPLACE OPENING SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH A
TIGHT FITTING, CLOSEABLE METAL OR GLASS DOOR.  FIREPLACE
SHALL HAVE A FLUE DAMPER AND AN OUTSIDE AIR INTAKE WITH
DAMPER.  ONLY GAS APPLIANCE FIREPLACES ARE TO BE USED.

GLAZING: ALL GLAZING SHALL CONFORM TO FEDERAL GLAZING
REGULATIONS AND THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE.  GLAZING IN
HAZARDOUS LOCATIONS SHALL BE FULLY TEMPERED GLASS OR
APPROVED PLASTIC AND IS PERMANENTLY IDENTIFIED BY THE
MANUFACTURER OR INSTALLER.

MECHANICAL ROOM DOORS:  ACCESS DOORS OF THE MECHANICAL
ROOM SHALL BE SOLID CORE WITH MINIMUM 100 SQ. IN. LOUVERED
VENT AT TOP OF DOORS AND MINIMUM 100 SQ. IN. LOUVERED VENT AT
BOTTOM OF DOORS.

GYPSUM WALLBOARD:  ALL INTERIOR WALL AND CEILING FACES ARE
TO BE SHEATHED WITH 1/2" GYPSUM WALLBOARD EXCEPT WHERE
NOTED TO USE 5/8" TYPE "X" WALLBOARD.  TAPE, TEXTURE AND PAINT
GYP. BOARD ACCORDING TO FINISH SCHEDULE.  ALL GAPS AND
PENETRATIONS AT 5/8" TYPE "X" WALLBOARD SHALL BE FILLED WITH
TAPING CEMENT.  NAIL ALL GYP. BOARD TO WALL STUDS, PLATES,
BLOCKING, ETC., AS FOLLOWS:
   1/2" WALLBOARD 4d CEMENT COATED BOX NAIL OR 1-3/8" x 14
   GA. ACID-ETCHED, PHOSPHATE COATED
   NAIL OR 4d "DRYVITE" NAIL AT 7" O.C.
   5/8" TYPE "X" WALLBOARD 6D "COOLER" NAILS AT 7" O.C.

ROOF VENTILATION: THE MINIMUM NET FREE VENTILATING AREA
SHALL BE 1/150 OF THE AREA OF THE VENTED SPACE OR 1/300 OF THE
VENTED SPACE PROVIDED ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS ARE MET:
1. IN CLIMATE ZONES 14 AND 16, A CLASS I OR II VAPOR RETARDER IS

INSTALLED ON THE WARM-IN-WINTER SIDE OF THE 
CEILING.

2. AT LEAST 40 PERCENT AND NOT MORE THAN 50 PERCENT OF THE
REQUIRED VENTILATING AREA IS PROVIDED BY VENTILATORS
LOCATED IN THE UPPER PORTION OF THE ATTIC OR RAFTER SPACE.
UPPER VENTILATORS SHALL BE LOCATED NO MORE THAN 3 FEET
BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE, MEASURED
VERTICALLY, WITH THE BALANCE OF THE REQUIRED VENTILATION
PROVIDED BY EAVE OR CORNICE VENTS. WHERE THE LOCATION OF
WALL OR ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS CONFLICTS WITH THE
INSTALLATION OF UPPER VENTILATORS, INSTALLATION MORE THAN
3 FEET BELOW THE RIDGE OR HIGHEST POINT OF THE SPACE SHALL
BE PERMITTED.

ALL VENT OPENINGS SHALL BE COVERED WITH CORROSION
RESISTANT, NON-COMBUSTIBLE  METAL MESH WITH MESH OPENINGS
OF AT LEAST 1/16" AND A MAXIMUM OF 1/8" DIMENSION.  VENTS SHALL
BE LOCATED SO AS TO PROVIDE CROSS VENTILATION OF EACH
SEPARATE ATTIC SPACE AND SHALL PROTECT AGAINST THE
ENTRANCE OF RAIN AND SNOW.

STAIR HANDRAILS:  EVERY STAIRWAY OF 4 OR MORE RISERS SHALL
HAVE AT LEAST ONE HANDRAIL AND EVERY OPEN SIDE OF A STAIRWAY
SHALL HAVE A GUARDRAIL. HANDRAILS MOUNTED ON A WALL SHALL
HAVE A MIN. 1-1/2" SPACE BETWEEN THE WALL AND THE HANDRAIL.
THE HANDGRIP PORTION OF HANDRAILS SHALL BE BETWEEN 1-1/4'
AND 2" CROSS SECTION DIMENSION AND SHALL HAVE A SMOOTH
SURFACE WITH NO SHARP CORNERS.  ALL HANDRAILS ARE TO BE
PLACED 34" AND 38" ABOVE TREAD NOSING AND SHALL BE
CONTINUOUS THE FULL LENGTH OF THE STAIRS.

EXTERIOR PLASTER: EXTERIOR PLASTER SHALL BE PORTLAND
CEMENT APPLIED IN THREE COATS TO A MIN. THICKNESS OF 7/8".  SEE
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR TEXTURE VARIATIONS.

APPLIANCES:  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE RESIDENTIAL
EQUIPMENT WHICH IS U.L. LABELED.  PROVIDE, TO THE OWNER, ALL
MANUFACTURER'S STANDARD WRITTEN WARRANTIES, OWNER'S
MANUALS, AND STANDARD ACCESSORIES.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
INSTALL THE APPLIANCES WHERE INDICATED ON DRAWINGS AND AS
REQUIRED BY ALL CODES AND LISTINGS. APPLIANCE TYPES, STYLES,
COLORS, ETC., SHALL BE SELECTED BY OWNER.

EMERGENCY EGRESS ESCAPE AND RESCUE WINDOWS: BASEMENTS
OF DWELLING UNITS AND EVERY BEDROOM BELOW THE 4TH STORY
SHALL HAVE AT LEAST ONE OPERABLE WINDOW OR DOOR APPROVED
FOR EMERGENCY ESCAPE AND RESCUE DIRECTLY TO EXTERIOR. THE
UNITS SHALL BE OPERABLE TO PROVIDE FULL CLEAR OPENING
WITHOUT THE USE OF SEPARATE TOOLS AND HAVE A NET CLEAR
OPENING OF NO LESS THAN 5.7 SQUARE FEET. THE NET CLEAR
OPENING HEIGHT SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 24" AND THE WIDTH SHALL
BE A MINIMUM OF 20" WITH THE BOTTOM OF THE CLEAR OPENING NOT
GREATER THAN 44" MEASURED FROM THE FLOOR IN DWELLING
UNITS, WHERE THE OPENING OF AN OPERABLE WINDOW IS LOCATED
MORE THAN 72” ABOVE THE FINISHED GRADE OR SURFACE BELOW,
THE LOWEST PART OF THE CLEAR OPENING OF THE WINDOW SHALL
BE A MINIMUM 24” ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR OF THE ROOM IN
WHICH THE WINDOW IS LOCATED. OPERABLE SECTIONS OF WINDOWS
SHALL NOT PERMIT OPENINGS THAT ALLOW PASSAGE OF A 4 INCH
DIAMETER WHERE SUCH OPENING ARE LOCATED WITHIN 24” OF THE
FINISHED FLOOR. WHERE SUCH WINDOW OPENINGS DO NOT COMPLY,
WINDOW FALL PREVENTION DEVICES AND WINDOW GUARDS THAT
COMPLY WITH ASTM F 2090, SHALL BE PROVIDED.

STREET ADDRESS: NEW AND EXISTING BUILDINGS SHALL BE
PROVIDED WITH APPROVED ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION. THE ADDRESS
IDENTIFICATION SHALL BE LEGIBLE AND PLACED IN A POSITION THAT
IS VISIBLE FROM THE STREET OR ROAD FRONTING THE PROPERTY.
ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION CHARACTERS SHALL CONTRAST WITH
THEIR BACKGROUND. ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE ARABIC
NUMBERS OR ALPHABETICAL LETTERS. NUMBERS SHALL NOT BE
SPELLED OUT. EACH CHARACTER SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN 4 INCHES
HIGH WITH A MINIMUM STROKE WIDTH OF 1 /2 INCH. 

SPARK ARRESTORS: SPARK ARRESTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED ON ALL
CHIMNEYS INCLUDING OUTSIDE FIREPLACES.

CODES:  ALL ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, WIRING AND INSTALLATIONS
SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE NATIONAL
ELECTRICAL CODE, CALIFORNIA TITLE 24 STANDARDS AND THE
MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.

LISTINGS: ALL ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND ACCESSORIES SHALL BE
LISTED BY A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING LAB.  INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS FOR ALL LISTED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE PROVIDED TO
THE FIELD INSPECTOR AT TIME OF INSPECTION.

RECESSED FIXTURES:  PROVIDE RECESSED FIXTURE CLEARANCE
PER CODE.  RECESSED FIXTURES IN INSULATED CEILINGS SHALL BE
"IC" APPROVED FIXTURES.

DRYER LOADS: CLOTHES DRYER LOADS SHALL BE DETERMINED ON A
LOAD OF 5000 WATTS PER APPLIANCE OR BY NAMEPLATE RATING.

ELECTRICAL BOXES: ELECTRIC SWITCH AND OUTLET BOXES ON
EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL HAVE RUBBER GASKETS FOR MEDIUM
INFILTRATION CONTROL.

KITCHEN AND BATH FIXTURES:  ALL GENERAL LIGHTING FIXTURES
AND BULBS IN KITCHEN AND BATH AREAS SHALL HAVE AN EFFICACY
RATING OF 40 LUMENS PER WATT OR GREATER.  FLUORESCENT
FIXTURES WITH PLUG-IN (NOT SCREW-IN) FLUORESCENT LAMPS
SHALL BE USED.

CLOSET LIGHTS: LIGHT FIXTURES IN CLOSETS/WARDROBES SHALL
HAVE A MIN. 18" HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE TO SHELVES.

TUB/SHOWER LIGHTS: LIGHT FIXTURES MOUNTED WITHIN 5' OF A SPA/
TUB SHALL BE MOUNTED AT LEAST 7'6" ABOVE THE MAXIMUM WATER
LEVEL OF THE SPA/TUB AND SHALL BE GFCI PROTECTED.

DRYER/COOKING UNIT OUTLETS: CLOTHES DRYERS AND COOKING
UNITS SHALL HAVE CONDUCTOR WIRES WITH AN INSULATED NEUTRAL
AND FOUR-PRONG OUTLET.

OUTDOOR OUTLETS: PROVIDE OUTSIDE RECEPTACLES AT THE FRONT
AND REAR OF THE HOME WITHIN 6'-6" OF GRADE WHICH ARE
WATERPROOF AND GFCI PROTECTED.  SEE PLAN FOR LOCATIONS.

KITCHEN BRANCH CIRCUITS: SHALL BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT
CIRCUIT INTERRUPTERS. PROVIDE (2) SMALL APPLIANCE BRANCH
CIRCUITS IN THE KITCHEN WHICH ARE LIMITED TO SUPPLYING WALL
AND COUNTER SPACE OUTLETS.  THESE OUTLETS CANNOT SERVE
DINING ROOM, OUTSIDE PLUGS, RANGE HOOD, DISPOSALS,
DISHWASHERS OR MICROWAVES. ONLY THE REQUIRED COUNTERTOP/
WALL OUTLETS (INCLUDING REFRIGERATOR).

BATHROOM OUTLET CIRCUITS: REQUIRED BATHROOM OUTLETS
SHALL BE ON A DEDICATED 20 AMP CIRCUIT WHICH CANNOT SERVE
ANY OTHER RECEPTACLES, LIGHTS, FANS, ETC.

TAMPER-RESISTANT RECEPTACLES IN DWELLING UNITS: ALL NEW
NON-LOCKING TYPE 125-VOLT, 15- AND 20-AMPERE RECEPTACLES
THAT ARE WITHIN 5 1/2' ABOVE FINISH FLOOR SHALL BE LISTED
TAMPER-RESISTANT RECEPTACLES. 

ARCHITECTURAL

MECHANICAL

ELECTRICAL

GENERAL NOTES

JOINTS AND OPENINGS: ANNULAR SPACES AROUND PIPES, ELECTRIC CABLES, CONDUITS,
OR OTHER OPENINGS IN PLATES AT EXTERIOR WALLS SHALL BE PROTECTED AGAINST THE
PASSAGE OF RODENTS BY CLOSING SUCH OPENING WITH CEMENT MORTAR, CONCRETE
MASONRY OR SIMILAR METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO THE ENFORCING AGENCY.

A MINIMUM OF 75% OF THE CONSTRUCTION WASTE GENERATED AT THE SITE IS DIVERTED
TO RECYCLE OR SALVAGE. THIS IS ACHIEVED EITHER BY USING CITY PRE-CERTIFIED
LANDFILLS OR IMPLEMENTATION OF A WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN. WASTE MANAGEMENT
PLAN SHALL BE PRE-APPROVED BY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT. 

HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM DESIGN SHALL BE SIZED, DESIGNED, AND HAVE
THEIR EQUIPMENT SELECTED USING THE FOLLOWING METHODS:

A HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS .

B HEAT LOSS AND HEAT GAIN IS ESTABLISHED ACCORDING TO ACCA MANUAL J, ASHRAE
HANDBOOKS OR OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHODS.

C SELECT HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT ACCORDING TO ACCA 36-S MANUAL S OR
OTHER EQUIVALENT DESIGN SOFTWARE OR METHOD. 

DUCT OPENINGS AND OTHER RELATED AIR DISTRIBUTION COMPONENT OPENINGS SHALL
BE COVERED WITH TAPE, PLASTIC, SHEET METAL, OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE METHODS AT
THE TIME OF ROUGH INSTALLATION OR DURING STORAGE ON THE CONSTRUCTION SITE
AND UNTIL FINAL STARTUP OF THE HEATING AND COOLING EQUIPMENT.

ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS, COATINGS, AND AEROSOL PAINTS SHALL COMPLY
WITH VOC AND OTHER CONTENT LIMITS. SPECIFIED IN SECTION 4.504 OF THE CGBSC. ALL
PRODUCT CONTAINERS SHALL REMAIN ON SITE FOR FIELD VERIFICATION. PRIOR TO FINAL
INSPECTION, A LETTER SIGNED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR MUST BE PROVIDED TO
THE BUILDING OFFICIAL CERTIFYING THAT ALL ADHESIVES, SEALANTS, CAULKS, PAINTS,
COATINGS, AEROSOL PAINTS, AEROSOL COATINGS, CARPET SYSTEMS (INCLUDING
CARPETING, CUSHION, AND ADHESIVE), RESILIENT FLOORING SYSTEMS, AND COMPOSITE
WOOD PRODUCTS INSTALLED ON THIS PROJECT ARE WITHIN THE EMISSION LIMITS
SPECIFIED IN CGBSC SECTION 4.504

FINISHES:
A USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL) VOCS

REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2
B USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)
C DOCUMENTATION SHALL BE PROVIDED TO VERIFY THAT COMPLIANT VOC FINISH

MATERIALS HAVE BEEN USED PER CGBSC 4.504.2.4

80% OF FLOOR AREA RECEIVING RESILIENT FLOORING, SHALL COMPLY WITH THE VOC-
EMISSION LIMITS DEFINED IN THE COLLABORATIVE FOR HIGH PERFORMANCE SCHOOLS
(CHPS) LOW-EMITTING MATERIALS LIST OR BE CERTIFIED UNDER THE RESILIENT FLOOR
COVERING INSTITUTE (RCFI) FLOORSCORE PROGRAM.

PARTICLEBOARD, MEDIUM DENSITY FIBERBOARD (MDF), AND HARDWOOD PLYWOOD USED
IN INTERIOR FINISH SYSTEMS SHALL COMPLY WITH LOW FORMALDEHYDE EMISSION
STANDARDS. SPECIFY THE LIMITS ON THE PLANS IN ACCORDANCE WITH TABLE 4.504.5.

VAPOR RETARDER AND CAPILLARY BREAK IS INSTALLED AT SLAB ON GRADE
FOUNDATIONS.

PRIOR TO ENCLOSING THE WALL AND FLOOR FRAMING, CONFIRMATION MUST BE
PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING INSPECTOR SHOWING THE FRAMING MEMBERS DO NOT
EXCEED 19% MOISTURE CONTENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CGBSC SECTION 4.505.3

ALL PLUMBING FIXTURES AND FITTINGS SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS REFERENCED IN CA
CIVIL CODE SECTIONS 1101.01-1101.8.

ALL EXISTING TO REMAIN PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE FOLLOWING:
A TOILETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF SHALL BE REPLACED WITH TOILETS

WITH A MAXIMUM OF 1.28 GPF. 
B SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM SHALL BE REPLACED

WITH A MAXIMUM 1.8 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM SHALL

BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GPM (OR 1.8 GPM
FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS).

AN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUAL SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE BUILDING
OCCUPANT OWNER.

HVAC SYSTEMS INSTALLERS SHALL BE TRAINED AND CERTIFIED IN THE PROPER
INSTALLATION OF HVAC SYSTEMS.

SPECIAL INSPECTORS EMPLOYED BY THE ENFORCING AGENCY MUST BE QUALIFIED AND
ABLE TO DEMONSTRATE COMPETENCE IN THE THE DISCIPLINE THEY ARE INSPECTING.

DOCUMENTATION USED TO SHOW COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CODE SHALL INCLUDE BUT IS
NOT LIMITED TO, CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, BUILDER OR
INSTALLER CERTIFICATION, INSPECTION REPORTS, OR OTHER METHODS ACCEPTABLE TO
THE ENFORCING AGENCY WHICH DEMONSTRATE SUBSTANTIAL CONFORMANCE. WHEN
SPECIFIC DOCUMENTATION OR SPECIAL INSPECTION IS NECESSARY TO VERIFY
COMPLIANCE, THAT METHOD OF COMPLIANCE WILL BE SPECIFIED IN THE APPROPRIATE
SECTION OR IDENTIFIED IN THE APPLICATION CHECKLIST.

DIMENSIONS: ALL EXTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF
SHEATHING. ALL INTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF STUD
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

CALGREEN:

ARC-FAULT AND GROUND FAULT OUTLETS: ARC-FAULT (AFCI)
REQUIRED IN FAMILY ROOMS , DINING ROOMS, PARLORS, LIBRARIES,
DENS, BEDROOMS, SUN ROOMS, REC ROOMS, CLOSETS, AND
HALLWAYS AND LIGHTING. GROUND FAULT (GFCI) IS REQUIRED IN
BATHROOMS, GARAGES, ACCESSORY AREAS, EXTERIOR,
CRAWLSPACES, BASEMENTS, DISHWASHERS, AND DISPOSALS.
COMBINATION AFCI/GFCI IS REQUIRED IN KITCHENS, AND LAUNDRY
AREAS. 

ELECTRICAL (CONT.)
A. FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM WILL BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED PER NFPA 13D 2016 ADDITION.

B. FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED: AN AUTOMATIC RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL BE
INSTALLED IN ONE AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS AS FOLLOWS: IN ALL NEW ONE AND TWO-FAMILY
DWELLINGS AND IN EXISTING ONE AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS WHEN ADDITIONS ARE MADE THAT
INCREASE THE BUILDING AREA TO MORE THAN 3,600 SQUARE FEET. NOTE: THE OWNER(S),
OCCUPANT(S) AND ANY CONTRACTOR(S) OR SUBCONTRACTOR(S) ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR
CONSULTING WITH THE WATER PURVEYOR OF RECORD IN ORDER TO DETERMINE IF ANY
MODIFICATION OR UPGRADE OF THE EXISTING WATER SERVICE IS REQUIRED. A STATE OF
CALIFORNIA LICENSED (C-16) FIRE PROTECTION CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT PLANS,
CALCULATIONS, A COMPLETED PERMIT APPLICATION AND APPROPRIATE FEES TO THIS DEPARTMENT
FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR TO BEGINNING THEIR WORK. CRC SEC. 313.2 AS ADOPTED AND
AMENDED BY LGTC. 

C. WATER SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS: POTABLE WATER SUPPLIES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM
CONTAMINATION CAUSED BY FIRE PROTECTION WATER SUPPLIES. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
APPLICANT AND ANY CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS TO CONTACT THE WATER PURVEYOR
SUPPLYING THE SITE OF SUCH PROJECT, AND TO COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THAT
PURVEYOR. SUCH REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE INCORPORATED INTO THE DESIGN OF ANY WATER-
BASED FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS, AND/OR FIRE SUPPRESSION WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS OR
STORAGE CONTAINERS THAT MAY BE PHYSICALLY CONNECTED IN ANY MANNER TO AN APPLIANCE
CAPABLE OF CAUSING CONTAMINATION OF THE POTABLE WATER SUPPLY OF THE PURVEYOR OF
RECORD. FINAL APPROVAL OF THE SYSTEM(S) UNDER CONSIDERATION WILL NOT BE GRANTED BY
THIS OFFICE UNTIL COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE WATER PURVEYOR OF RECORD
ARE DOCUMENTED BY THAT PURVEYOR AS HAVING BEEN MET BY THE APPLICANT(S). 2016 CFC SEC.
903.3.5 AND HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 13114.7 

D. ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION: NEW AND EXISTING BUILDINGS SHALL HAVE APPROVED ADDRESS
NUMBERS, BUILDING NUMBERS OR APPROVED BUILDING IDENTIFICATION PLACED IN A POSITION
THAT IS PLAINLY LEGIBLE AND VISIBLE FROM THE STREET OR ROAD FRONTING THE PROPERTY.
THESE NUMBERS SHALL CONTRAST WITH THEIR BACKGROUND. WHERE REQUIRED BY THE FIRE
CODE OFFICIAL, ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ADDITIONAL APPROVED LOCATIONS TO
FACILITATE EMERGENCY RESPONSE. ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE ARABIC NUMBERS OR
ALPHABETICAL LETTERS. NUMBERS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 4 INCHES (101.6 MM) HIGH WITH A
MINIMUM STROKE WIDTH OF 0.5 INCH (12.7 MM). WHERE ACCESS IS BY MEANS OF A PRIVATE ROAD
AND THE BUILDING CANNOT BE VIEWED FROM THE PUBLIC WAY, A MONUMENT, POLE OR OTHER SIGN
OR MEANS SHALL BE USED TO IDENTIFY THE STRUCTURE. ADDRESS NUMBERS SHALL BE
MAINTAINED. CFC SEC. 505.1

E. CONSTRUCTION SITE FIRE SAFETY: ALL CONSTRUCTION SITES MUST COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE CFC CHAPTER 33 AND OUR STANDARD DETAIL AND SPECIFICATION S1-7.
PROVIDE APPROPRIATE NOTATIONS ON SUBSEQUENT PLAN SUBMITTALS, AS APPROPRIATE TO THE
PROJECT. CFC CHP. 33

F. WILDLAND URBAN INTERFACE:THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE DESIGNATED WILDLAND-
URBAN INTERFACE FIRE AREA. THE BUILDING CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS
OF SECTION R327 OF THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE OR THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE
(CBC) CHAPTER 7A., AS APPLICABLE. VEGETATION CLEARANCE SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CBC
SECTION 701A.3.2.4 PRIOR TO PROJECT FINAL  APPROVAL.

FIRE NOTES:

NOTE:
ALL OUTDOOR LIGHTING AFFIXED TO THE BUILDING SHALL BE
DOWNWARD DIRECTED AND SHIELDED SO THAT NO LIGHT
GLARE WILL ENCROACH ONTO NEIGHBORING PROPERTIES. 

1
Scale: None
TYP. OUTDOOR LIGHT (O.L.)

As shown

Page 356



cL

c L

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W

8'
-0

" 
S

ID
E

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25'-0" FRONT SETBACK

15
'-0

" 
S

TR
E

E
T

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K

20'-0" REAR SETBACK

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(E) 26.4" OAK TREE
TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) 45" REDWOOD
PINE TO REMAIN.

(E) FIRE
HYDRANT TO

REMAIN.

SSCO

SDMH

(E) JP

(E) JP (E) ELEC.
METER TO BE

REMOVED.

(E) GAS
METER TO BE

REMOVED.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

(E) WATER
METER TO BE
RELOCATED.

(E) 27" SMOKE
TREE TO REMAIN.

SSCO

(E) CLEAN OUT TO
BE RELOCATED.

(E) HEDGE TO BE
REMOVED.

(E) 18" CYPRESS
TO BE REMOVED.

(E) 18" CYPRESS
TO BE REMOVED.

TYPE "III" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 3

THIS PAGE.

(E) CANOPY
DRIPLINE, TYP.

TYPE "I" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 1
THIS PAGE.

TYPE "I" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 1
THIS PAGE.

TYPE "III" TREE
PROTECTION.
SEE FIGURE 3

THIS PAGE.

TYPE "III" TREE
PROTECTION. SEE

FIGURE 3 THIS PAGE.

(E)EXISTING NON-
CONFORMING
POOL HOUSE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(E) 1-STORY HOUSE TO BE
REMOVED SHOWN SHADED

(E) SHED TO BE REMOVED.

(E) SHED TO BE
REMOVED.

(E) SHED TO BE
REMOVED.

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SS SS SS SS

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SDSDSDSD

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
IT

E
 D

E
M

O
 A

N
D

 T
R

E
E

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
.

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A0.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1
Scale: 1/8"=1'-0"
SITE DEMOLITION/TREE PROTECTION PLAN

2 No Scale
TREE PROTECTION DIAGRAMS

SEE CIVIL SHEET C-0
FOR MORE INFORMATION

As shown

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

03
/2

6/
20

19
1

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

Page 357



G
R

E
E

N
P

O
IN

T
 R

A
T

E
D

C
H

E
C

K
LI

S
T

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A0.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

Page 358



6'-9 1/2"

1'
-1

0 
1/

2"

20'-6" 8'-1 1/2" 18'-7 1/4"

11'-6"

8'
-8

 1
/4

"

9'-7 1/2"

37
'-1

1 
1/

4"

5'
-2

 1
/4

"

13
'-1

1"

14'-2 3/4"

9'-7 1/4"

20
'-1

0 
1/

4"

HALL

FAMILY

DININGBATH

ENTRY

KITCHEN

GARAGE

OFFICE

UTILITYB
A

LC
O

N
Y

 A
B

O
V

E

F.P.

A B

C

D

E

F

G
H

J

CLOSET

DECK

BEDROOM

BATH

CLOSET

F.P.

OPEN ABOVE

OPEN ABOVE

1 2

DN

(under a separate permit)

(u
nd

er
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
pe

rm
it)

2'-
8"

13'-11 3/4"

20
'-1

0 
1/

4"

13'-9 1/2"

18
'-2

"

16
'-5

 1
/2

"

40'-8 1/4"

5'
-5

"
6'

-4
 1

/4
"

4'-3 3/4"

5'-5 3/4"

BATH

BEDROOM

BATH

BALCONY

OPEN BELOW

BEDROOM

CLO.

LAUNDRY

HALL

MASTER BDRM

BATH OPEN BELOW

BALCONY

HALL

CLOSET

K L

M
N

Q P

C
LO

.

CLO.

F
LO

O
R

 A
R

E
A

 D
IA

G
R

A
M

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A1.0

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

FIRST FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
B 8'-1 1/2" 20'-10 1/4" 167.58
C 18'-7 1/4" 37'-11 1/4" 705.80
D 11'-6" 5'-2 1/4" 59.66
E 11'-6" 8'-8 1/4" 49.95
F radius= 6'-9 1/2" 72.46
G 9'-7 1/2" 13'-11" 133.95
H 14'-2 3/4" 15'-6 1/2" 221.14
J radius= 1'-10 1/2" 14.55
FIRST FLOOR TOTAL  1,425.08 SF

SECOND FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
K 13'-11 3/4" 20'-10 1/4" 291.52
L 13'-9 1/2" 18'-2" 250.55
M radius= 2'-8" 5.59
N 5'-5 3/4" 5'-5" 29.68
P 40'-8 1/4" 16'-5 1/2" 669.65
Q 4'-3 3/4" 6'-4 1/4" 26.68
SECOND FLOOR TOTAL 1,273.67 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA 2,698.75 SF
A - GARAGE FLOOR AREA 422.81 SF

1 Scale: 3/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

2 Scale: 3/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
A (GARAGE) 20'-6" 20'-7 1/2" 422.81
B 8'-1 1/2" 20'-7 1/2" 167.58
C 18'-7 1/4" 37'-11 1/4" 705.80
D 11'-6 " 5'-2 1/2" 59.90
E 11'-6 " 5'-2 1/2" 59.90
F radius= 6'-9 1/2" 72.46
G 9'-7 1/2" 13'-11" 133.95
H 31'-7 3/4" 15'-6 1/2" 491.83
I radius= 1'-10 1/2" 14.55
FIRST FLOOR TOTAL  1,705.95 SF

SECOND FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
K 13'-11 3/4" 20'-10 1/4" 291.52
L 13'-9 1/2" 18'-2" 250.55
M radius= 2'-8" 5.59
N 5'-5 3/4" 5'-5" 99.54
O 4'-3 3/4" 6'-2 1/4" 26.68
P 40'-8 1/4" 16'-5 1/2" 669.
Q (BALCONY) 5'-0 1/2" 20'-10 1/4" 187.50
R (BALCONY) 12'-6" 15'-0" 105.14
SECOND FLOOR TOTAL 1,343.53 SF

ADU:
S 20'-4 3/4" 25'-2" 513.30 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA 3,562.78 SF
GARAGE FLOOR AREA 422.81 SF

As shown

FIRST FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
B 8'-1 1/2" 20'-7 1/2" 167.58
C 18'-7 1/4" 37'-11 1/4" 705.80
D 11'-6" 5'-2 1/4" 59.66
E 11'-6" 8'-8 1/4" 49.95
F radius= 6'-9 1/2" 72.46
G 9'-7 1/2" 13'-11" 133.95
H 14'-2 3/4" 15'-6 1/2" 221.14
J radius= 1'-10 1/2" 14.55
FIRST FLOOR TOTAL  1,425.08 SF

SECOND FLOOR:
LETTER WIDTH LENGTH AREA
K 13'-11 3/4" 20'-10 1/4" 291.52
L 13'-9 1/2" 18'-2" 250.55
M radius= 2'-8" 5.59
N 5'-5 3/4" 5'-5" 29.68
P 40'-8 1/4" 16'-5 1/2" 669.65
Q 4'-3 3/4" 6'-2 1/4" 26.68
SECOND FLOOR TOTAL 1,273.67 SF

ATTACHED ADU:
R 275.54 SF

TOTAL FLOOR AREA 2,974.29 SF
A - GARAGE FLOOR AREA 422.81 SF

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

Page 359



80
80

80
80

5036DC 3080 4040SC

11580
5080

2056FX 2056FX

30
80

28
20

A
W

28
80

50
80

15
08

0

2880

41050TC

36
80

28
80

2870FX

2870FX

2870FX

2880

21
08

0

2880

41050TC

1630FX

2
A4.1

2
A4.1

1
A4.1

1
A4.1

2.A

2.B

2.C

2.D

37
'-4

 1
/4

"

5'
-1

"

5'-8"

8'
-2

"

20
'-0

"

12'-3 1/2"

8'-1 1/2"

4'-0 1/2"4'-1 1/2"

4'
-0

 1
/2

"

15'-0"

12
'-0

"

7'-9"

20'-0"

15
'-0

"

14'-0"

6'-
7"

18'-0"

16
'-2

" 
A

TT
A

C
H

E
D

 A
D

U

19'-7 3/4" ATTACHED ADU

7'
-5

 1
/2

"

14
'-1

1"

13'-7"

5'-0"

21
'-0

"

HALL

P
A

N
T

R
Y

FAMILY

DINING

ISLAND

BATH

ENTRY

KITCHEN

GARAGE

OFFICE

UTILITY

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+11'3"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.C.
+10'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

F.F.
+0'0"

1 2

DN

12

DN

F.F.
-1'3"

B
A

LC
O

N
Y

 A
B

O
V

E

F.P.

20' MINUTE FIRE
RATED DOOR W/
SELF CLOSING &
SELF LATCHING

MECHANISMS.

CLOSET

DECK

BEDROOM

1 D
N

2

BATH

CLOSET

F.P.

OUTLINE
FLOOR
ABOVE.

OUTLINE
FLOOR
ABOVE.

OPEN ABOVE

OPEN ABOVE

1 2

DN

F.F.
+0'0"

(N) ELEC. METER.
300 AMP.

(N) GAS
METER.

(under a separate permit)

(u
nd

er
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
pe

rm
it)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

P
LA

N

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A2.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

NEW INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; 2x4 WD. STUD,
1/2" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE

NEW EXTERIOR CONSTRUCTION.

NEW 1-HR FIRE RATED WALL; 2x4 WD. STUD, 5/8"
TYPE "X" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE. SEE PLAN FOR
LOCATIONS. 1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GREEN BUILDING:
FINISHES:

A. USE LOW-VOC INTERIOR WALL/CEILING PAINTS (<50 GRAMS PER LETTER (GPL)
VOCS REGARDLESS OF SHEEN) CGBSC 4.504.2.2

B. USE LOW-VOC COATINGS THAT MEET SCAQMD RULE 1113 (CGBSC 4.504.2.3)
PLUMBING:

ALL EXISTING NON-COMPLIANT PLUMBING FIXTURES SHALL BE UPGRADED:
A. WATER CLOSETS WITH A FLOW RATE IN EXCESS OF 1.6 GPF WILL NEED TO BE

REPLACED WITH WATER CLOSETS WITH A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.28 GPF. 
B. SHOWER HEADS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.5 GPM WILL NEED TO BE

REPLACED WITH A MAXIMUM 2.0 GPM SHOWER HEAD. 
C. LAVATORY AND KITCHEN FAUCETS WITH A FLOW RATE GREATER THAN 2.2 GPM

WILL NEED TO BE REPLACED WITH A FAUCET WITH MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF
1.2 GPM (OR 1.8 GPM FOR KITCHEN FAUCETS). 

X LINEAL FEET OF EAVE W/2X RAFTERS @ 16" O.C.:
X'/16" = ±X AVAILABLE BLOCKS

NEW UNDER FLOOR AREA TO BE VENTED = 
XXX SQ.FT.

NEW ATTIC AREA TO BE VENTED = XXX SQ.FT.

XXX/150(144) = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED XXX/150(144) = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED

1 FLOOR VENT UNIT:
13.5" X 7.5" = 101.25 SQ.IN NFVA

1 EAVE BLOCKING VENT UNIT:
14" x 5.5" = 77 SQ.IN NFVA

X FLOOR VENTS PROVIDED, DISTRIBUTED EVENLY:
(X) x XXX SQ.IN = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA

XXX SQ.IN. NFVA PROVIDED
> XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED

X EAVE VENTS PROVIDED, DISTRIBUTED EVENLY:
(X) x X SQ.IN. = XXX SQ.IN. NFVA

XXX SQ.IN. NFVA PROVIDED
> XXX SQ.IN. NFVA REQUIRED

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

NEW INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; 2x4 WD. STUD,
1/2" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE

NEW EXTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; SEE 5/A3.2

NEW 1-HR FIRE RATED WALL; 2x4 WD. STUD, 5/8"
TYPE "X" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE. SEE PLAN FOR
LOCATIONS.

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION

NEW CONSTRUCTION

TYPICAL NOTES:                             

updated 10/12/18
Calgreen changes

ELECTRICAL LEGEND
(ALL LIGHTING TO  BE HIGH EFFICACY)

LAUNDRY/BATHROOM VENTILATION:
FOR LAUNDRY ROOMS AND BATHROOMS WITHOUT AN OPERABLE WINDOW:

A. PROVIDE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM CAPABLE OF 5 AIR CHANGES/HR. TO
EXTERIOR.

B. USE SMOOTH METAL DUCT FOR DRYER EXHAUST WITH A MAX. LENGTH OF 14', TO
OUTSIDE WITH BACKDRAFT DAMPER AND TWO 90° ELBOWS AND A MIN. OF 4" DIA.

C. TERMINATION OF ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET
FROM PROPERTY LINES OR ANY OPENINGS INTO THE BUILDING (i.e., DRYERS,
BATH AND UTILITY FANS, ETC., MUST BE 3 FEET AWAY FROM DOORS WINDOWS,
OPENING SKYLIGHTS OR ATTIC VENTS).

D. EXHAUST FANS SHALL HAVE A MIN. OF 50 CFM FOR INTERMITTENT VENTILATION
OR 20 CFM FOR CONTINUOUS VENTILATION AND BE ENERGYSTAR COMPLIANT AND
BE EQUIPPED WITH A HUMIDISTAT AND HUMIDITY CONTROL. AND BE SWITCHED
SEPARATELY FROM LIGHTING SYSTEM.

PLUMBING:
A. ALL NEW TOILETS SHALL HAVE AN EFFECTIVE FLUSH VOLUME NOT TO EXCEED 1.28

GALLONS PER FLUSH.
B. ALL NEW LAVATORY FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. 
C. ALL NEW SHOWERHEADS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 80 PSI. 
D. ALL NEW KITCHEN FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. KITCHEN FAUCETS MAY TEMPORARILY INCREASE THE FLOW
ABOVE THE MAXIMUM RATE, BUT NOT TO EXCEED 2.2 GALLONS PER MINUTE AT 60
PSI AND MUST DEFAULT TO A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS PER MINUTE
AT 60 PSI.

KITCHEN ELECTRICAL:
A. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT

INTERRUPTER(AFCI).
B. PROVIDE AFCI AND GFCI PROTECTION AT ALL RECEPTACLES SERVING KITCHEN

COUNTERTOPS.
C. AT EACH KITCHEN AND DINING AREA COUNTER SPACE WIDER THAN 12", LOCATE A

RECEPTACLE SO THAT NO POINT ALONG THE COUNTER WALL IS OVER 24" FROM A
RECEPTACLE. COUNTERTOP RECEPTACLES REQUIRED WITHIN 24" EACH SIDE OF
A BREAK IN THE CONTINUOUS COUNTERTOP SURFACE (SINKS-STOVES).

D. REQ'D RECEPTACLES MOUNTED ON THE SIDES OF CABINETS SHALL BE A
MAXIMUM OF 12" BELOW THE COUNTERTOP SURFACE WITH A MAXIMUM OF 6"
COUNTERTOP OVERHANG.

E. PROVIDE AT LEAST TWO (2) 20 AMP CIRCUITS FOR COUNTER RECEPTACLES.

SMOKE DETECTORS:
A. SMOKE DETECTOR SYSTEM SHALL BE HARD WIRED, INTERCONNECTED TO SOUND

SIMULTANEOUSLY AND EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACKUP.
B. INSTALL DETECTORS IN EACH BEDROOM, AT EACH CORRIDOR/AREA NEXT TO THE

BEDROOM, AT THE TOP OF STAIRS AND EACH STORY AND BASEMENT.
C. MULTIPLE  SMOKE DETECTORS ARE REQUIRED WHEN CEILING LEVELS/

ELEVATIONS CHANGE OR ARE INTERRUPTED BY ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS
(CASED OPENINGS, ARCHWAYS, SKYLIGHT WELLS, ETC.) .

D. SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 217 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM:
A. WATER CLOSETS SHALL BE LOCATED IN SPACES NOT LESS THAN 30" IN WIDTH AND

24" IN FRONT.
B. WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BACKING BOARD SHALL NOT BE USED WHERE THERE

WILL BE DIRECT EXPOSURE TO WATER. CRC 702.3.7.1
C. BACKER FOR SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER WALLS TO BE FIBER-CEMENT, FIBER

REINFORCED CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNITS, GLASS MAT GYPSUM BACKERS OR
FIBER-REINFORCED GYPSUM BACKERS TO A MIN HEIGHT OF 72" ABOVE THE
FLOOR.  

D. USE 2X8 WOODEN BACKING IN ALL BATHROOM WALLS AT WATER CLOSET SHOWER
AND BATHTUB, LOCATED AT 34" FROM FLOOR TO CENTER OF THE BACKING
SUITABLE FOR THE ADDITION OF GRAB BARS.

E. DOORS AND PANELS OF TUB AND SHOWER ENCLOSURES SHALL BE FULLY
TEMPERED LAMINATED SAFETY GLASS OR APPROVED PLASTIC.

F. SHOWER COMPARTMENTS SHALL HAVE MIN INTERIOR FLOOR AREA OF 1024 SQ IN
AND ABLE TO CONTAIN A 30" DIA. CIRCLE.

G. SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER COMBINATION IN ALL BUILDING SHALL BE PROVIDED
WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTROL VALVES OF THE PRESSURE BALANCE OR THE
THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE TYPE.

CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS:
CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS REQUIRED BY SECTION 420.6.2 SHALL BE INSTALLED AND
MAINTAINED IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

A. OUTSIDE OF EACH SEPARATE DWELLING UNIT SLEEPING AREA IN THE IMMEDIATE
VICINITY OF THE BEDROOM (S).

B. ON EVERY LEVEL OF A DWELLING UNIT INCLUDING BASEMENTS.
C. IN GROUP R-1 OCCUPANCIES; ON THE CEILING OF EVERY SLEEPING UNIT OR

OTHER LOCATIONS WITHIN THE SLEEPING UNIT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

D. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL RECEIVE THEIR PRIMARY POWER FROM THE
BUILDING WIRING WHERE SUCH WIRING IS SERVED FROM A COMMERCIAL
SOURCE AND SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACK-UP. ALARM WIRING SHALL
BE DIRECTLY CONNECTED TO THE PERMANENT BUILDING WIRING WITHOUT A
DISCONNECTING SWITCH OTHER THAN AS REQUIRED FOR OVERCURRENT
PROTECTION.

E. WHERE MORE THAN ONE CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM IS REQUIRED TO BE
INSTALLED WITHIN THE DWELLING UNIT OR WITHIN A SLEEPING UNIT, THE ALARM
SHALL BE INTERCONNECTED IN A MANNER THAT ACTIVATION OF ONE ALARM
SHALL ACTIVATE ALL OF THE ALARMS IN THE INDIVIDUAL UNIT.

F. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 2034 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM ELECTRICAL:
A. PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE BATHROOM

OUTLETS. THIS CIRCUIT CANNOT SUPPLY ANY OTHER RECEPTACLES, LIGHTS,
FANS, ETC. (EXCEPTION-WHERE THE CIRCUIT SUPPLIES A SINGLE BATHROOM,
OUTLETS FOR OTHER EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE SAME BATHROOM SHALL BE
PERMITTED TO BE SUPPLIED).

B. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER (GFCI).

KITCHEN VENTILATION:
WHERE COMBUSTION APPLIANCES OR SOLID-FUEL BURNING APPLIANCES ARE
LOCATED INSIDE THE PRESSURE BOUNDARY, THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE NET
EXHAUST FLOW OF THE TWO LARGEST EXHAUST FANS SHALL NOT EXCEED 15 CFM
PER 100 SQ. FT. OF OCCUPIABLE SPACE, WHEN OPERATING AT FULL CAPACITY. IF
THE DESIGNED TOTAL NET FLOW EXCEEDS THIS LIMIT, THE NET EXHAUST FLOW
MUST BE REDUCED BY REDUCING THE EXHAUST FLOW OR PROVIDING
COMPENSATING OUT-DOOR AIRFLOW (NOTE: IF MAKE-UP AIR FAN IS INSTALLED IT
MUST BE ELECTRICALLY INTERLOCKED WITH THE LARGEST EXHAUST FAN)LAUNDRY ELECTRICAL:

A ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT (AFCI) CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER AND GROUND FAULT (GFCI) CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER.

B PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE LAUNDRY
RECEPTACLE OUTLET.

C MINIMUM 30 AMP DEDICATED CIRCUIT FOR DRYER PER CEC 220.54.

HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING:
A. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AS DEFINED BY CEC TABLE 150.0-A
B. ALL PERMANENTLY INSTALLED SCREW-BASED LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL CONTAIN

SCREW-BASED JA8 (JOINT APPENDIX 8) COMPLIANT LAMPS AND BE MARKED AS
JA8-2016 OR JA8-2016-E. CEC 150.0(k)G

C. ALL JA8 COMPLIANT LIGHT FIXTURES INSTALLED IN CEILING RECESSED
DOWNLIGHTS, LED LUMINARIES WITH INTEGRAL SOURCES, PIN-BASED LED
LAMPS, AND GU24 BASED LED LIGHT SOURCES SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS OR DIMMERS. 

D. AT LEAST ONE FIXTURE IN EACH BATRHROOM, GARAGE, LAUNDRY ROOM, AND
UTILITY ROOM SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY A VACANCY SENSOR.

E. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM EXHAUST FANS (EXCEPT
FOR KITCHEN EXHAUST HOODS).

F. ALL UNDER CABINET LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM OTHER
LIGHTING SYSTEMS.

G. GARAGE, LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN GARAGES,
LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS.

H. HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING IS NOT REQUIRED IN CLOSETS OF LESS THAN 70 SF.
I. OUTDOOR LIGHTING PERMANENTLY MOUNTED TO A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SHALL

BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED WITH A MANUAL ON/OFF SWITCH AND BY
PHOTO CONTROL AND A MOTION SENSOR. PER ENERGY 110.9.

J. ALL OTHER ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN ALL OTHER ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH
EFFICACY OR SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY EITHER DIMMERS AND VACANCY
SENSORS.

ATTIC/UNDERFLOOR INSTALLED FAU:
A. UNIT SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE THROUGH AN OPENING AND PASSAGEWAY NOT LESS

THAN THE LARGEST COMPONENT OF THE UNIT AND NOT LESS THAN 22"x30"
B. THE DISTANCE FROM THE PASSAGEWAY ACCESS TO THE UNIT SHALL NOT EXCEED

20'
C. THE WIDTH OF THE PASSAGEWAY SHALL BE UNOBSTRUCTED AND SHALL HAVE

SOLID FLOORING NOT LESS THAN 24" WIDE FROM THE ENTRANCE OPENING TO
THE UNIT.

D. A LEVEL WORKING PLATFORM NOT LESS THAN 30" BY 30" SHALL BE PROVIDED IN
FRONT OF THE SERVICE SIDE OF THE UNIT.

E. A PERMANENT 120V RECEPTACLE OUTLET AND A LIGHTING FIXTURE SHALL BE
INSTALLED NEAR THE UNIT. THE SWITCH CONTROLLING THE LIGHTING FIXTURE
SHALL BE LOCATED AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE PASSAGEWAY.

ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING:
ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED TO FACILITATE THE
FUTURE INSTALLATION OF AN EV CHARGING DEVICE AND MUST COMPLY WITH THE
FOLLOWING: 

A. A LISTED TRADE SIZE 1 RACEWAY SHALL BE INSTALLED TO ACCOMMODATE A
DEDICATED 208/240-VOLT BRANCH CIRCUIT.  THE RACEWAY SHALL ORIGINATE
FROM THE MAIN SERVICE PANEL OR SUB PANEL AND TERMINATES INTO A LISTED
CABINET, BOX,OR OTHER ENCLOSURE IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE FUTURE
CHARGING DEVICE.

B. THE SERVICE PANEL AND/OR SUB PANEL SHALL PROVIDE CAPACITY TO INSTALL A
40-AMP MIN. BRANCH CIRCUIT AND SPACE RESERVED TO ACCOMMODATE A
BRANCH CIRCUIT OVERCURRENT PROTECTIVE DEVICE.

C. THE ELECTRICAL PANEL SCHEDULE SHALL IDENTIFY THE OVERCURRENT
PROTECTIVE DEVICE SPACE RESERVED FOR FUTURE EV CHARGING AS "EV
CAPABLE".

D. THE RACEWAY TERMINATION LOCATION SHALL BE PERMANENTLY AND VISIBLY
MARKED AS "EV CAPABLE".

As shown

TOWN STANDARDS:
RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY

A ALL PASSAGE DOOR SHALL BE AT LEAST 32 INCH DOORS ON THE ACCESSIBLE
FLOOR LEVEL.

B THE PRIMARY ENTRANCE DOOR SHALL BE A 36 INCH WIDE DOOR INCLUDING A
5'X5' LEVEL LANDING, MORE THAN 1 INCH OUT OF PLANE WITH THE IMMEDIATE
INFERIOR FLOOR LEVEL AND WITH AN 18 INCH CLEARANCE AT INTERIOR STRIKE
EDGE.

C A DOOR BUZZER, BELL OR CHIME SHALL BE HARD WIRED AT PRIMARY ENTRANCE. 

FIREPLACE: 
A. NEW WOOD BURNING FIREPLACES SHALL BE AN EPA PHASE II APPROVED

APPLIANCES OR GAS APPLIANCE PER TOWN ORDINANCE 1905. TREE LIMBS SHALL
BE CUT WITHIN 10 FEET OF CHIMNEYS. 

1

NOTES:
A. GAS FIREPLACES INSTALLED IN THE TOWN OF LOS GATOS SHALL HAVE NO WOOD
BURNING COMPONENTS.
B. VENTILATION HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEMS SHALL HAVE MERV 6
FILTERS OR BETTER.
C. A COMPLETED CF2R-LTG-01-E FORM SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE TOWN BUILDING
INSPECTOR PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION.

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

EXHAUST FAN/EXHAUST FAN/LIGHT COMBO. SEE BATH
ELECTRICAL NOTES, THIS PAGE. 'W' INDICATES CONTINUOUSLY
OPERATING MULTI-SPEED WHOLE BUILDING VENTILATION FAN.
SEE WHOLE BUILDING VENTILATION NOTES THIS PAGE.

OUTDOOR LIGHT. EXTERIOR LIGHTING ATTACHED TO THE
BUILDING SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY WITH A MANUAL ON/OFF
SWITCH AND CONTROLLED BY MOTION SENSOR & PHOTO
CONTROL. FIXTURE SHALL BE DOWNWARD LIGHTING.

RECEPTACLE. BRANCH CIRCUIT PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT
CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER. SEE ELECTRICAL NOTES THIS PAGE.
ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER PROTECTED RECEPTACLE
W/ GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER. SEE ELECTRICAL
NOTES THIS PAGE.
WATERPROOF RECEPTACLE W/ GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER. PROVIDE EXTERIOR GFCI WATERPROOF
RECEPTACLES AT THE FRONT & REAR OF RESIDENCE WITHIN 6'-
6" OF GRADE.

SURFACE MOUNT WALL SCONCE.
VERIFY STYLE WITH HOMEOWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

COMBINATION SMOKE DETECTOR AND CARBON MONOXIDE
DETECTOR UNIT. SEE NOTES THIS PAGE

CEILING OR FLOOR MOUNTED HVAC REGISTER.

CHANDELIER
VERIFY STYLE WITH HOMEOWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

SURFACE MOUNT CEILING LIGHT FIXTURE OR PENDANT. VERIFY
STYLE WITH HOMEOWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

HIGH EFFICACY RECESSED LIGHT FIXTURE. SEE HIGH EFFICACY
LIGHTING NOTES THIS PAGE. LIGHTS IN INSULATED CEILINGS
SHALL BE IC RATED, HAVE ELECTRONIC BALLAST AND BE AIR-
TIGHT (AT). 

UNDER-CABINET FLUORESCENT LIGHT. SHALL BE SWITCHED
SEPARATELY FROM OTHER LIGHTING.

Page 360



1646FX

1646FX

1646FX

21070

8616TC

28
70

50
70

28
70

28
70

28
70

28
70

16
26

F
X

21
70

28
70

28
70

28
70

3016FX 3016FX 5036FX 1626FX 1626FX 1626FX

5045TC4020DC5045TC1630FX

2870

20
70

F
X

20
36

F
X

2870 2870 2870

2870

50
70

2
A4.1

2
A4.1

1
A4.1

1
A4.1

2.A

15'-1"

6'-0"

12
'-0

"
3'-0"

8'-6 1/2"

7'
-0

"

11'-10"

5'
-7

 3
/4

"

10'-2"

6'
-1

 1
/2

"

4'-0"

20
'-1

"

17
'-8

 1
/2

"

12
'-2

"

18'-0"

3'
-7

"

3'
-6

 1
/2

"

11'-9 1/2"

4'
-6

 1
/4

"

17
'-8

 1
/2

"

7'-5"

11'-5"

5'-0"

2'-0"

6'
-6

"

4'-0"

2'-0"

9'-6 1/2"
2'

-0
"

2'-0"

10'-0"

BATH

BEDROOM

BATH

BALCONY

OPEN BELOW

BEDROOM

CLO.

LAUNDRY

HALL

MASTER BDRM

BATH OPEN BELOW

BALCONY

HALL

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

F.C.
+9'0"

CLOSET

C
LO

.
N

IC
H

E CLO.

OUTLINE
FLOOR
BELOW.

BALCONY
REDUCTIONS.

OUTLINE OLD
BALCONY.

CHANGED TO
SINGLE DOOR.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

C
O

N
D

F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A2.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

LEGEND:                       
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO BE DEMOLISHED

NEW INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION; 2x4 WD. STUD,
1/2" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE

NEW EXTERIOR CONSTRUCTION.

NEW 1-HR FIRE RATED WALL; 2x4 WD. STUD, 5/8"
TYPE "X" GYP. BD. EACH SIDE. SEE PLAN FOR
LOCATIONS.

TYPICAL NOTES:                             

LAUNDRY/BATHROOM VENTILATION:
FOR LAUNDRY ROOMS AND BATHROOMS WITHOUT AN OPERABLE WINDOW:

A. PROVIDE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM CAPABLE OF 5 AIR CHANGES/HR. TO
EXTERIOR.

B. USE SMOOTH METAL DUCT FOR DRYER EXHAUST WITH A MAX. LENGTH OF 14', TO
OUTSIDE WITH BACKDRAFT DAMPER AND TWO 90° ELBOWS AND A MIN. OF 4" DIA.

C. TERMINATION OF ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET
FROM PROPERTY LINES OR ANY OPENINGS INTO THE BUILDING (i.e., DRYERS,
BATH AND UTILITY FANS, ETC., MUST BE 3 FEET AWAY FROM DOORS WINDOWS,
OPENING SKYLIGHTS OR ATTIC VENTS).

D. EXHAUST FANS SHALL HAVE A MIN. OF 50 CFM FOR INTERMITTENT VENTILATION
OR 20 CFM FOR CONTINUOUS VENTILATION AND BE ENERGYSTAR COMPLIANT AND
BE EQUIPPED WITH A HUMIDISTAT AND HUMIDITY CONTROL. AND BE SWITCHED
SEPARATELY FROM LIGHTING SYSTEM.

PLUMBING:
A. ALL NEW TOILETS SHALL HAVE AN EFFECTIVE FLUSH VOLUME NOT TO EXCEED 1.28

GALLONS PER FLUSH.
B. ALL NEW LAVATORY FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.2 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. 
C. ALL NEW SHOWERHEADS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 80 PSI. 
D. ALL NEW KITCHEN FAUCETS SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS

PER MINUTE AT 60 PSI. KITCHEN FAUCETS MAY TEMPORARILY INCREASE THE FLOW
ABOVE THE MAXIMUM RATE, BUT NOT TO EXCEED 2.2 GALLONS PER MINUTE AT 60
PSI AND MUST DEFAULT TO A MAXIMUM FLOW RATE OF 1.8 GALLONS PER MINUTE
AT 60 PSI.

KITCHEN ELECTRICAL:
A. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT CIRCUIT

INTERRUPTER(AFCI).
B. PROVIDE AFCI AND GFCI PROTECTION AT ALL RECEPTACLES SERVING KITCHEN

COUNTERTOPS.
C. AT EACH KITCHEN AND DINING AREA COUNTER SPACE WIDER THAN 12", LOCATE A

RECEPTACLE SO THAT NO POINT ALONG THE COUNTER WALL IS OVER 24" FROM A
RECEPTACLE. COUNTERTOP RECEPTACLES REQUIRED WITHIN 24" EACH SIDE OF
A BREAK IN THE CONTINUOUS COUNTERTOP SURFACE (SINKS-STOVES).

D. REQ'D RECEPTACLES MOUNTED ON THE SIDES OF CABINETS SHALL BE A
MAXIMUM OF 12" BELOW THE COUNTERTOP SURFACE WITH A MAXIMUM OF 6"
COUNTERTOP OVERHANG.

E. PROVIDE AT LEAST TWO (2) 20 AMP CIRCUITS FOR COUNTER RECEPTACLES.

SMOKE DETECTORS:
A. SMOKE DETECTOR SYSTEM SHALL BE HARD WIRED, INTERCONNECTED TO SOUND

SIMULTANEOUSLY AND EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACKUP.
B. INSTALL DETECTORS IN EACH BEDROOM, AT EACH CORRIDOR/AREA NEXT TO THE

BEDROOM, AT THE TOP OF STAIRS AND EACH STORY AND BASEMENT.
C. MULTIPLE  SMOKE DETECTORS ARE REQUIRED WHEN CEILING LEVELS/

ELEVATIONS CHANGE OR ARE INTERRUPTED BY ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS
(CASED OPENINGS, ARCHWAYS, SKYLIGHT WELLS, ETC.) .

D. SMOKE DETECTORS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 217 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM:
A. WATER CLOSETS SHALL BE LOCATED IN SPACES NOT LESS THAN 30" IN WIDTH AND

24" IN FRONT.
B. WATER RESISTANT GYPSUM BACKING BOARD SHALL NOT BE USED WHERE THERE

WILL BE DIRECT EXPOSURE TO WATER. CRC 702.3.7.1
C. BACKER FOR SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER WALLS TO BE FIBER-CEMENT, FIBER

REINFORCED CEMENTITIOUS BACKER UNITS, GLASS MAT GYPSUM BACKERS OR
FIBER-REINFORCED GYPSUM BACKERS TO A MIN HEIGHT OF 72" ABOVE THE
FLOOR.  

D. USE 2X8 WOODEN BACKING IN ALL BATHROOM WALLS AT WATER CLOSET SHOWER
AND BATHTUB, LOCATED AT 34" FROM FLOOR TO CENTER OF THE BACKING
SUITABLE FOR THE ADDITION OF GRAB BARS.

E. DOORS AND PANELS OF TUB AND SHOWER ENCLOSURES SHALL BE FULLY
TEMPERED LAMINATED SAFETY GLASS OR APPROVED PLASTIC.

F. SHOWER COMPARTMENTS SHALL HAVE MIN INTERIOR FLOOR AREA OF 1024 SQ IN
AND ABLE TO CONTAIN A 30" DIA. CIRCLE.

G. SHOWER AND TUB SHOWER COMBINATION IN ALL BUILDING SHALL BE PROVIDED
WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTROL VALVES OF THE PRESSURE BALANCE OR THE
THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE TYPE.

CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS:
CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS REQUIRED BY SECTION 420.6.2 SHALL BE INSTALLED AND
MAINTAINED IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

A. OUTSIDE OF EACH SEPARATE DWELLING UNIT SLEEPING AREA IN THE IMMEDIATE
VICINITY OF THE BEDROOM (S).

B. ON EVERY LEVEL OF A DWELLING UNIT INCLUDING BASEMENTS.
C. IN GROUP R-1 OCCUPANCIES; ON THE CEILING OF EVERY SLEEPING UNIT OR

OTHER LOCATIONS WITHIN THE SLEEPING UNIT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

D. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL RECEIVE THEIR PRIMARY POWER FROM THE
BUILDING WIRING WHERE SUCH WIRING IS SERVED FROM A COMMERCIAL
SOURCE AND SHALL BE EQUIPPED WITH BATTERY BACK-UP. ALARM WIRING SHALL
BE DIRECTLY CONNECTED TO THE PERMANENT BUILDING WIRING WITHOUT A
DISCONNECTING SWITCH OTHER THAN AS REQUIRED FOR OVERCURRENT
PROTECTION.

E. WHERE MORE THAN ONE CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM IS REQUIRED TO BE
INSTALLED WITHIN THE DWELLING UNIT OR WITHIN A SLEEPING UNIT, THE ALARM
SHALL BE INTERCONNECTED IN A MANNER THAT ACTIVATION OF ONE ALARM
SHALL ACTIVATE ALL OF THE ALARMS IN THE INDIVIDUAL UNIT.

F. CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS SHALL BE LISTED AND COMPLY WITH UL 2034 AND BE
INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 720 AND
MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS.

BATHROOM ELECTRICAL:
A. PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE BATHROOM

OUTLETS. THIS CIRCUIT CANNOT SUPPLY ANY OTHER RECEPTACLES, LIGHTS,
FANS, ETC. (EXCEPTION-WHERE THE CIRCUIT SUPPLIES A SINGLE BATHROOM,
OUTLETS FOR OTHER EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE SAME BATHROOM SHALL BE
PERMITTED TO BE SUPPLIED).

B. ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY GROUND FAULT CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER (GFCI).

KITCHEN VENTILATION:
WHERE COMBUSTION APPLIANCES OR SOLID-FUEL BURNING APPLIANCES ARE
LOCATED INSIDE THE PRESSURE BOUNDARY, THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE NET
EXHAUST FLOW OF THE TWO LARGEST EXHAUST FANS SHALL NOT EXCEED 15 CFM
PER 100 SQ. FT. OF OCCUPIABLE SPACE, WHEN OPERATING AT FULL CAPACITY. IF
THE DESIGNED TOTAL NET FLOW EXCEEDS THIS LIMIT, THE NET EXHAUST FLOW
MUST BE REDUCED BY REDUCING THE EXHAUST FLOW OR PROVIDING
COMPENSATING OUT-DOOR AIRFLOW (NOTE: IF MAKE-UP AIR FAN IS INSTALLED IT
MUST BE ELECTRICALLY INTERLOCKED WITH THE LARGEST EXHAUST FAN)LAUNDRY ELECTRICAL:

A ALL BRANCH CIRCUITS TO BE PROTECTED BY ARC-FAULT (AFCI) CIRCUIT
INTERRUPTER AND GROUND FAULT (GFCI) CIRCUIT INTERRUPTER.

B PROVIDE 20AMP DEDICATED BRANCH CIRCUIT TO SUPPLY THE LAUNDRY
RECEPTACLE OUTLET.

C MINIMUM 30 AMP DEDICATED CIRCUIT FOR DRYER PER CEC 220.54.

HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING:
A. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AS DEFINED BY CEC TABLE 150.0-A
B. ALL PERMANENTLY INSTALLED SCREW-BASED LIGHT FIXTURES SHALL CONTAIN

SCREW-BASED JA8 (JOINT APPENDIX 8) COMPLIANT LAMPS AND BE MARKED AS
JA8-2016 OR JA8-2016-E. CEC 150.0(k)G

C. ALL JA8 COMPLIANT LIGHT FIXTURES INSTALLED IN CEILING RECESSED
DOWNLIGHTS, LED LUMINARIES WITH INTEGRAL SOURCES, PIN-BASED LED
LAMPS, AND GU24 BASED LED LIGHT SOURCES SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS OR DIMMERS. 

D. AT LEAST ONE FIXTURE IN EACH BATRHROOM, GARAGE, LAUNDRY ROOM, AND
UTILITY ROOM SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY A VACANCY SENSOR.

E. ALL LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM EXHAUST FANS (EXCEPT
FOR KITCHEN EXHAUST HOODS).

F. ALL UNDER CABINET LIGHTING SHALL BE SWITCHED SEPARATELY FROM OTHER
LIGHTING SYSTEMS.

G. GARAGE, LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN GARAGES,
LAUNDRY, AND UTILITY ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED BY
VACANCY SENSORS.

H. HIGH EFFICACY LIGHTING IS NOT REQUIRED IN CLOSETS OF LESS THAN 70 SF.
I. OUTDOOR LIGHTING PERMANENTLY MOUNTED TO A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SHALL

BE HIGH EFFICACY AND CONTROLLED WITH A MANUAL ON/OFF SWITCH AND BY
PHOTO CONTROL AND A MOTION SENSOR. PER ENERGY 110.9.

J. ALL OTHER ROOMS: LIGHTING INSTALLED IN ALL OTHER ROOMS SHALL BE HIGH
EFFICACY OR SHALL BE CONTROLLED BY EITHER DIMMERS OR VACANCY
SENSORS.

ATTIC/UNDERFLOOR INSTALLED FAU:
A. UNIT SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE THROUGH AN OPENING AND PASSAGEWAY NOT LESS

THAN THE LARGEST COMPONENT OF THE UNIT AND NOT LESS THAN 22"x30"
B. THE DISTANCE FROM THE PASSAGEWAY ACCESS TO THE UNIT SHALL NOT EXCEED

20'
C. THE WIDTH OF THE PASSAGEWAY SHALL BE UNOBSTRUCTED AND SHALL HAVE

SOLID FLOORING NOT LESS THAN 24" WIDE FROM THE ENTRANCE OPENING TO
THE UNIT.

D. A LEVEL WORKING PLATFORM NOT LESS THAN 30" BY 30" SHALL BE PROVIDED IN
FRONT OF THE SERVICE SIDE OF THE UNIT.

E. A PERMANENT 120V RECEPTACLE OUTLET AND A LIGHTING FIXTURE SHALL BE
INSTALLED NEAR THE UNIT. THE SWITCH CONTROLLING THE LIGHTING FIXTURE
SHALL BE LOCATED AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE PASSAGEWAY.

ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING:
ELECTRIC VEHICLE SUPPLY EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED TO FACILITATE THE
FUTURE INSTALLATION OF AN EV CHARGING DEVICE AND MUST COMPLY WITH THE
FOLLOWING: 

A. A LISTED TRADE SIZE 1 RACEWAY SHALL BE INSTALLED TO ACCOMMODATE A
DEDICATED 208/240-VOLT BRANCH CIRCUIT.  THE RACEWAY SHALL ORIGINATE
FROM THE MAIN SERVICE PANEL OR SUB PANEL AND TERMINATES INTO A LISTED
CABINET, BOX,OR OTHER ENCLOSURE IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO THE FUTURE
CHARGING DEVICE.

B. THE SERVICE PANEL AND/OR SUB PANEL SHALL PROVIDE CAPACITY TO INSTALL A
40-AMP MIN. BRANCH CIRCUIT AND SPACE RESERVED TO ACCOMMODATE A
BRANCH CIRCUIT OVERCURRENT PROTECTIVE DEVICE.

C. THE ELECTRICAL PANEL SCHEDULE SHALL IDENTIFY THE OVERCURRENT
PROTECTIVE DEVICE SPACE RESERVED FOR FUTURE EV CHARGING AS "EV
CAPABLE".

D. THE RACEWAY TERMINATION LOCATION SHALL BE PERMANENTLY AND VISIBLY
MARKED AS "EV CAPABLE".

As shown

TOWN STANDARDS:
RESIDENTIAL ACCESSIBILITY

A ALL PASSAGE DOOR SHALL BE AT LEAST 32 INCH DOORS ON THE ACCESSIBLE
FLOOR LEVEL.

B THE PRIMARY ENTRANCE DOOR SHALL BE A 36 INCH WIDE DOOR INCLUDING A
5'X5' LEVEL LANDING, MORE THAN 1 INCH OUT OF PLANE WITH THE IMMEDIATE
INFERIOR FLOOR LEVEL AND WITH AN 18 INCH CLEARANCE AT INTERIOR STRIKE
EDGE.

C A DOOR BUZZER, BELL OR CHIME SHALL BE HARD WIRED AT PRIMARY ENTRANCE. 

FIREPLACE: 
A. NEW WOOD BURNING FIREPLACES SHALL BE AN EPA PHASE II APPROVED

APPLIANCES OR GAS APPLIANCE PER TOWN ORDINANCE 1905. TREE LIMBS SHALL
BE CUT WITHIN 10 FEET OF CHIMNEYS. 

1

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

N
True North

Project North
1

2

2

Page 361



10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
 -

 3
0-

0"
')

8"

(E) GRADE, TYP.

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

STUCCO WALLS
EXTERIOR, TYP.

BALCONY
WITH IRON
RAILINGS,

TYP.

CLASS 'A' SPANISH TILE
ROOF SYSTEM, TYP.

ROUND TOWER WITH
CONICAL ROOF, TYP.

DECORATIVE
WOOD, TYP. SEE

NOTE THIS PAGE.

FRONT ARCHED
DOOR, TYP.

WOOD
CORBELS, TYP.

SQUARE
COLUMNS,

TYP.

DECORATIVE
CARRIAGE LIGHT.

WEEP
SCREED, TYP.

STACK
STONE.

STUCCO
BASE, TYP.

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
 -

 3
0-

0"
')

8"

1'-0"

9'
-0

"

(E) GRADE, TYP.

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

STUCCO WALLS
EXTERIOR, TYP.

BALCONY WITH IRON
RAILINGS, TYP.

CLASS 'A' SPANISH TILE
ROOF SYSTEM, TYP.

WOOD
CORBELS, TYP.

WEEP
SCREED,

TYP.

STACK
STONE.

(N)ATTACHED ADU
UNDER A SEPARED PERMIT.

NEIGHBORS
POOL HOUSE

FENCE

STUCCO
BASE, TYP.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A3.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
NORTH FRONT EXTERIOR ELEVATION

2 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
SOUTH REAR EXTERIOR ELEVATION

As shown
NOTES:
A. DECORATIVE WOOD. IGNITION-RESISTANT, FIRE-RETARDANT-TREATED

WOOD PER SFM STANDARD 12-7A-5, ASTM E84. SEE DETAIL 7/A4.2

1

1

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

Page 362



10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
 -

 3
0'

-0
")

8"

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

(E) GRADE, TYP.

STUCCO WALLS
EXTERIOR, TYP.

BALCONY WITH
IRON RAILINGS, TYP.

ROUND TOWER WITH
CONICAL ROOF, TYP.

DECORATIVE
WOOD, TYP. SEE

NOTE THIS PAGE.

GROUPED ARCH
WINDOWS, TYP.

CLASS 'A' SPANISH TILE
ROOF SYSTEM, TYP.

(N)ATTACHED ADU
UNDER A SEPARED PERMIT.

WOOD
CORBELS, TYP.

SQUARE
COLUMNS, TYP.

WEEP
SCREED,

TYP.

STACK
STONE.

STUCCO
BASE, TYP.

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
 -

 3
0'

-0
")

8"

(E) GRADE, TYP.

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

STUCCO WALLS
EXTERIOR, TYP.

DECORATIVE
WOOD, TYP. SEE
NOTE THIS PAGE.

CLASS 'A' SPANISH TILE
ROOF SYSTEM, TYP.

(N)ATTACHED ADU
UNDER A SEPARED PERMIT.

WOOD
CORBELS, TYP.

SQUARE
COLUMNS,
TYP.

WEEP
SCREED,

TYP.

STUCCO
BASE, TYP.

OBSCURED
WINDOW.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A3.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

2 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
WEST RIGHT EXTERIOR ELEVATION

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
EAST LEFT EXTERIOR ELEVATION As shown

NOTES:
A. DECORATIVE WOOD. IGNITION-RESISTANT, FIRE-RETARDANT-TREATED

WOOD PER SFM STANDARD 12-7A-5, ASTM E84. SEE DETAIL 7/A4.2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

1

1

1

1

1 1

1

2

2

2

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

Page 363



10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

FINISH FLOOR
+0'-0"

FINISH CLG.
+10'-0"

TOP PLATE
+20'-0"

FINISH FLOOR
+11'-0"

1
A4.1

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

FINISH FLOOR
+0'-0"

FINISH CLG.
+10'-0"

TOP PLATE
+20'-0"

FINISH FLOOR
+11'-0"

2
A4.1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A4.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

2 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
BUILDING SECTION

1 Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"
BUILDING SECTION As shown

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

Page 364



N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
H

O
O

D
P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A6.1

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

104 HILOW CT.
100 HILOW CT.

100 DEL CARLO CT.

16311 SHANNON RD.

16310 SHANNON RD.

16330 SHANNON RD.
16344 SHADY VIEW LN.

16356 SHADY VIEW LN.

16347 SHADY VIEW LN.

16337 SHADY VIEW LN.

PROJECT VICINITY MAP.

As shown

Page 365



cL

c L

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

9:00 A
M

 6/21/2018

9:
00

 A
M

 1
2/

21
/2

01
8

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(N) DRIVEWAY.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

PROPERTY LINE

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
CONFORMING
POOL HOUSE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(E) HOUSE

cL

c L

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"
12

:0
0 

PM
 6

/2
1/

20
18

12:00 PM 12/21/2018

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(N) DRIVEWAY.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

PROPERTY LINE

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
CONFORMING
POOL HOUSE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(E) HOUSE

cL

c L

61'-0"

8'
-0

"

1'
-0

"

3:00 PM 6/21/2018

3:00 PM 12/21/2018

PROPERTY LINE      142.27'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

66
.3

7'

PROPERTY      118.52'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

   
   

39
.9

8'

SHADY VIEW LN.
(60' R.O.W.)

S
H

A
N

N
O

N
 R

D
.

(5
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

(N) DRIVEWAY.

EDGE PAVEMENT
ROLLED CURB

E
D

G
E

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
   

   
78

.0
1'

SECOND FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

FIRST FLOOR
BUILDING
OUTLINE

(E)SWIMMING POOL

(E)EXISTING NON-
CONFORMING
POOL HOUSE9' HEIGHT.

2 
1/

2 
: 1

2

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF (E)
1-STORY HOME
AT 16344 SHADY
VIEW LN.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF (E) 2-STORY HOME AT
16330 SHANNON RD.

(E) HOUSE

S
H

A
D

O
W

 S
T

U
D

Y

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A6.2

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

1 Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN 2 Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

3 Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

June 21st 9:00am
December 21st 9:00am

June 21st 12:00pm
December 21st 12:00pm

June 21st 3:00pm
December 21st 3:00pm

LEGEND:        
JUNE SHADOW

DECEMBER SHADOW

As shown

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

1
03

/2
6/

20
19

N
True North

Project North
1

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

Page 366



26
'-9

 1
/2

"

28
'-1

1 
1/

2"
25

'-8
 1

/2
"

18
'-3

 1
/2

"

15
'-3

 1
/2

"

19
'-1

1"

15
'-1

0 
1/

2"

15
'-5

"

29
'-0

"

10
'-0

"
9'

-0
"

28
'-7

" 
(M

A
X

. B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
 -

 3
0'

-0
")

8"

FINISH FLOOR
358.5'

FINISH CLG.
368.5'

FINISH FLOOR
369.5'

TOP PLATE
378.5'

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
H

O
O

D
E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S

SHEET:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

D
R
A
W

IN
G

S
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 B
Y
:

PLANNING SET 7/18/2019

LL / JW

A6.3

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

DATE:

P
R
O

JE
C
T
 D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
:

C
ou

ls
on

 R
es

id
en

ce
16

33
6 

S
ha

dy
 V

ie
w

 L
n

Lo
s 

G
at

os
, C

A
 9

50
32

B
Y

D
A

T
E

N
O

.
S
H

E
E
T
 T

IT
L
E
:

D
eM

at
te

i C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
17

94
 T

he
 A

la
m

ed
a,

 S
an

 J
os

e,
C

A
. 9

51
26

P
: (

40
8)

 2
95

-7
51

6
F

: (
40

8)
 2

86
-6

58
9

LI
C

.#
 B

-4
78

45
5

12/17/2018

D
IS

C
LA

IM
E

R
:

T
H

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 C

O
N

TA
IN

S
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
IN

F
O

R
M

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 IS
 IN

T
E

N
D

E
D

 F
O

R
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 O

F
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

"
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 S
H

O
U

LD
 N

O
T

 B
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

, I
N

W
H

O
LE

 O
R

 IN
 P

A
R

T,
 W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

AT
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 "

D
e 

M
at

te
i

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

c.
" 

"D
e 

M
at

te
i C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

In
c.

" 
C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 H

E
LD

 L
IA

B
LE

 IN
 T

H
E

E
V

E
N

T
 T

H
E

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

R
E

R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

 O
R

 D
IV

U
LG

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T

W
R

IT
T

E
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
AT

IO
N

.

As shown

104 HILOW CT. 100 HILOW CT.

100 DEL CARLO CT.

16311 SHANNON RD.

16330 SHANNON RD.

16344 SHADY VIEW LN.

16356 SHADY VIEW LN.16347 SHADY VIEW LN.

16337 SHADY VIEW LN.

16336 SHADY VIEW LN.

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

S
 T

O
 P

LA
N

 C
H

E
C

K
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
LL

2
07

/0
9/

20
19

2

Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



 

PREPARED BY: Ryan Safty 
 Associate Planner 
  
   
Reviewed by:  Planning Manager and Community Development Director   
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● (408) 354-6872 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                         
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 10/09/2019 

ITEM NO: 4 

DESK ITEM 

    
 

DATE:   October 9, 2019 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director 

SUBJECT: Architecture and Site Application S-18-060.  Project Location: 16336 Shady 
View Lane.  Appellant: Matt and Carrie Currie.  Applicant:  De Mattei 
Construction.  Property Owner: Allan and Katty Coulson.  
Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee Decision approving 
a request for demolition of a single-family residence and construction of a 
new single-family residence on property zoned R-1:8. APN 532-03-034. 
 

REMARKS: 
 
Exhibit 20 includes additional correspondence from the appellant, addressing their support of 
the revised plans previously provided as Exhibit 17.  
 
Should the Planning Commission find that the revised plans provided as Exhibit 17 are 
acceptable, with the reduced front setback along Shannon Road, additional required findings 
are included as underlined in Exhibit 21.  
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Previously received with the October 9, 2019 Staff Report: 
1. Location map  
2. Required Findings and Considerations (two pages)   
3. Recommended Conditions of Approval (12 pages)  
4. Project data sheet (two pages) 
5. Project Description and Letter of Justification dated November 21, 2018 (one page) 
6. Color and materials sample received September 5, 2019 (one page) 
7. Consulting Architect’s Report dated February 8, 2019 (five pages) 
8. Update to Consulting Architect’s Report received September 26, 2019 (one page) 
9. Consulting Arborist’s Report dated January 31, 2019 (39 pages) 

Page 370



PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUBJECT: 16336 Shady View Lane/S-18-060 
DATE:  October 9, 2019 
 
10. Summary of neighborhood outreach received June 14, 2019 and September 10, 2019 (three 

pages) 
11. Correspondence between applicant and appellant prior to August 13, 2019 Development 

Review Committee meeting (20 pages)   
12. Landscape Plan Modifications received August 13, 2019 (one page) 
13. August 13, 2019 Development Review Committee meeting minutes (three pages) 
14. Appeal of Development Review Committee received August 22, 2019 (15 pages) 
15. Applicant’s response letter to appeal received September 10, 2019 (one page) 
16. Correspondence between applicant and appellant following appeal (17 pages)  
17. Revised development plans incorporating alternative design options received October 4, 

2019 (22 sheets) 
18. Development plans approved by Development Review Committee on August 13, 2019 

(20 sheets) 
19. Public comment received by 11:00 a.m., Friday, October 4, 2019 
 
Received with this Desk Item Report: 
20. Additional correspondence from appellant received October 8, 2019 (three pages) 
21. Revised Required Findings and Considerations (two pages) 
 

Page 371



EXHIBIT 20
Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank 

Page 375



N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2019\Shady View Lane 16336 PC appeal amended Findings for Desk Item - reduced setback.docx

PLANNING COMMISSION – October 9, 2019 
REQUIRED FINDINGS & CONSIDERATIONS FOR: 

16336 Shady View Lane 
Architecture and Site Application S-18-060 

Consider an appeal of a Development Review Committee decision approving a request 
for demolition of a single-family residence and construction of a new single-family 
residence on property zoned R-1:8. APN 532-03-034. 
PROPERTY OWNER: Allan and Katty Coulson 
APPLICANT: Lerika Liscano (De Mattei Construction) 

FINDINGS 

Required findings for CEQA: 

■ The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to the adopted Guidelines for the
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act, Section 15303: New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.

Required finding for the demolition of a single-family residence: 

■ As required by Section 29.10.09030(e) of the Town Code for the demolition of a single-
family residence:
1. The Town's housing stock will be maintained as the single-family residence will be

replaced.
2. The existing structure has no architectural or historical significance, and is in poor

condition.
3. The property owner does not desire to maintain the structure as it exists; and
4. The economic utility of the structures was considered.

Required finding for reduced setbacks on a nonconforming lot: 

■ As required by Section 29.10.265(3) of the Town Code for modification of zoning rules on
nonconforming lots, including setback requirements:

1. The subject property is nonconforming with regard to the frontage being 66 feet in
a zone where 80 feet is required.

2. The new single-family residence will be compatible with the neighborhood.

EXHIBIT 21
Page 376



 
N:\DEV\FINDINGS\2019\Shady View Lane 16336 PC appeal amended Findings for Desk Item - reduced setback.docx 

Required Compliance with the Residential Design Guidelines: 
 
■ The project is in compliance with the Residential Design Guidelines for single-family homes 

not in hillside residential areas and was reviewed by the Town’s Consulting Architect. The 
project is compatible with the immediate neighborhood in terms of size, bulk, and scale. 
The proposed two-story residence is adjacent to a two-story home and would not be the 
largest or tallest home in the immediate neighborhood. Privacy measures have been taken 
in the form of screening trees, window modifications and reductions, and size reductions 
and enclosure of one side of a second-story balcony with a screening wall.  

 
 

CONSIDERATIONS: 
 

Considerations in review of Architecture & Site applications: 
 
■ As required by Section 29.20.150 of the Town Code, the considerations in review of an 

Architecture and Site application were all made in reviewing this project 
 

 

Page 377



 

PREPARED BY: Matt Morley 
 Parks and Public Works Director 
   
 

Reviewed by: Town Manager, Community Development Director, and Town Attorney 
   
 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 406-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS                                          
PLANNING COMMISSION 
REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 10/09/2019 

ITEM NO: 5 

 
   

 

DATE:   October 4, 2019 

TO: Planning Commission 

FROM: Matt Morley, Parks and Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: General Plan Amendment Application GP-19-001.  Project Location: Town 
Wide.  Applicant: Town of Los Gatos. 
Consider proposed General Plan amendments to language specific to 
Highway 17 in Goal TRA-4 and supporting policies.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Provide a recommendation to the Town Council on proposed General Plan amendments 
(Exhibit 3) to language specific to Highway 17 in Goal TRA-4 and supporting policies. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Changing dynamics in job and population growth in the greater Bay Area have led to increased 
pressure on local streets and roads as freeways exceed capacity.  This is especially evident in 
Los Gatos during commute hours and with summer weekend beach traffic.  The configuration 
of Highway 17 approaching Los Gatos from the north and through the Town may exacerbate 
the impacts on the Town as drivers search for alternate routes that lead them to local streets. 
 
In 2016, Measure B was passed by voters to allow for transportation improvements throughout 
the County funded through a sales tax increase.  This measure included broad language specific 
to Los Gatos and Highway 17.  The specific Measure B language reads:  
 
Highway 17 Corridor Congestion Relief: Upgrade Highway 17/9 interchange to improve 
pedestrian and bicycle safety, mobility, and roadway operations; deploy advanced 
transportation technology to reduce freeway cut thru traffic in Los Gatos, including traffic signal 
control system upgrades in Los Gatos, Traveler Information System, advanced ramp metering 
systems; support Multi-Modal Congestion Relief Solutions, including enhanced Highway 17 
 

Page 378



PAGE 2 OF 3 
SUBJECT: Proposed General Plan Amendment to language specific to Highway 17 in Goal 

TRA-4 and Supporting Policies 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 
BACKGROUND (continued): 

Express Bus service, implementing local bus system improvements that reduce auto trips to 
schools, work, and commercial areas in Los Gatos; and develop park and ride lots to serve as 
transit hubs for express bus, shuttles, local bus system connections. 

 
Through preliminary discussions with the Valley Transportation Agency (VTA), and Caltrans an 
opportunity exists to extend the scope of the Highway 9 interchange project to include 
efficiencies from Highway 85 through the Highway 9 onramp to southbound Highway 17.  
 
In the interest of ensuring the potential for funding for the maximum scope of the project, on 
March 19, 2019 the Town Council, on a 3-2 vote, supported the design for a project at Highway 
9 and Highway 17, including design options for efficiencies on Highway 17 and for additional 
travel lanes on Highway 17, and directed staff to process a 2020 General Plan  amendment 
allowing for the project.  Exhibit 1 is the Council Agenda Report for this item. 
 
The early work associated with the project includes identifying the scope of work and 
preliminary design associated with the project, which may include stacking lanes, merge lanes, 
auxiliary lanes, exit lanes, and improved traffic flow through lane realignment and roadway 
widening.  The Town will be engaged through a public outreach process and provide Town 
Council reports throughout the design and construction. 
  
DISCUSSION: 

The Town Council directed staff to process amendments to the existing 2020 General Plan in 
alignment with the potential project.  Exhibit 2 provides the text of 2020 General Plan Goal 
TRA-4 and supporting policies and Exhibit 3 provides the recommended amendments.  Staff 
recommends retaining the full language of the existing Goal TRA-4 in the interest of continuing 
to emphasize the importance of Highway 17 to the community.  Modifications to the 
supporting policies would facilitate the project design. 
 
Town procedure requires the General Plan Committee (GPC) to make a recommendation on all 
proposed General Plan amendments.  Because the entire GPC sits on the General Plan Advisory 
Committee (GPAC) and it is important for the entire GPAC to be involved with any changes to 
the existing General Plan to inform its work on the update, this item was presented to the GPAC 
on September 19, 2019. The GPAC recommendation is now proceeding to the Planning 
Commission as it conducts a public hearing on the amendments and makes its recommendation 
to the Town Council.  The Town Council is tentatively scheduled to hold its public hearing on 
November 5, 2019.  
 
 
 

Page 379



PAGE 3 OF 3 
SUBJECT: Proposed General Plan Amendment to language specific to Highway 17 in Goal 

TRA-4 and Supporting Policies 
DATE: October 4, 2019 
 
DISCUSSION (continued): 

During the GPAC discussion on this item, three recommendations were provided.  The 
recommendations from the GPAC refer to the text in Exhibit 3 and the recommendation for 
added text is reflected as underlined and italicized. 
 

1. Modify the recommended changes to Policy TRA-4.1 to read:  Improvements to Highway 
17 should consider and if appropriate support efficiency improvements prior to adding 
capacity through increased travel lanes. 

 
2. With respect to Policy TRA-4.3, the GPAC recommended removal of this policy in its 

entirety and renumbering subsequent policies to reflect the removal. 
 

3. With respect to Policy TRA-4.5, the GPAC recommended not making the staff 
recommendation that would change the word “do” to “does,” while accepting the 
removal of the words “lanes or.”  

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The Commission should review the proposed amendments and provide a recommendation to 
the Town Council. 
 
COORDINATION: 
 
This report has been coordinated with the Community Development Department. 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact as a result of the recommended action. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

This is not a project defined under CEQA, and no further action is required. 

 

 
EXHIBITS: 
 
1. March 19, 2019 Council Agenda Report 
2. Current General Plan TRA-4 Goal and Policies 
3. Proposed General Plan amendments to Goal TRA-4 and supporting policies 
 

Page 380



PREPARED BY: MATT MORLEY 
Parks and Public Works Director 

Reviewed by:  Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager, Town Attorney, Finance Director 

110 E. Main Street Los Gatos, CA 95030 ● 408-354-6832 
www.losgatosca.gov 

TOWN OF LOS GATOS  

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING DATE: 03/19/2019 

ITEM NO: 7 

DATE: MARCH 14, 2019 

TO: MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM: LAUREL PREVETTI, TOWN MANAGER 

SUBJECT: SUPPORT THE 2016 MEASURE B PROJECT FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT HIGHWAY 
9 AND HIGHWAY 17 INCLUDING DESIGN OPTIONS FOR EFFICIENCIES ON 
HIGHWAY 17 AND FOR ADDITIONAL TRAVEL LANES ON HIGHWAY 17 AND 
DIRECT STAFF TO PROCESS A GENERAL PLAN 2020 AMENDMENT ALLOWING 
FOR THE PROJECT 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Support the 2016 Measure B project for improvements at Highway 9 and Highway 17 including 
design options for efficiencies on Highway 17 and for additional travel lanes on Highway 17 and 
direct staff to process a General Plan 2020 amendment allowing for the project. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Countywide 2016 Measure B sales tax measure includes investments in the regional 
transportation infrastructure across nine program areas.  The Santa Clara Valley Transportation 
Authority (VTA) manages the 2016 Measure B program and the VTA Board approves project 
prioritization and funding.  The VTA intends to approve projects on a two-year budget cycle with a 
ten year look ahead at potential projects.  For projects to get underway in that ten-year cycle, it is 
important that they are included in the two-year budgeting process.  The Town has engaged 
actively to ensure local projects receive prioritization in the program. 

One priority area of particular importance to Los Gatos is the Highway program.  The program 
includes upgrades to the highway system with the number and anticipated costs of the identified 
projects exceeding the anticipated funding through the life of 2016 Measure B, making this a very 
competitive category.   

EXHIBIT 1Page 381



PAGE 2 OF 3 
SUBJECT: SUPPORT THE 2016 MEASURE B PROJECT FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT HIGHWAY 9 

AND HIGHWAY 17 INCLUDING DESIGN OPTIONS FOR EFFICIENCIES ON HIGHWAY 
17 AND FOR ADDITIONAL TRAVEL LANES ON HIGHWAY 17 AND DIRECT STAFF 
TO PROCESS A GENERAL PLAN 2020 AMENDMENT ALLOWING FOR THE PROJECT 

DATE:  MARCH 14, 2019 

S:\COUNCIL REPORTS\2019\03-19-19\07 2016 Measure B Allocation - Hwy 17\Staff Report FINAL.docx    3/14/2019 2:22 PM MM

DISCUSSION: 

Through the process to establish the structure of and projects included in the 2016 Measure B, the 
Town proposed upgrades to the interchange at Highway 9 and Highway 17 as its major project in 
the category.  In reviewing the project with VTA, an opportunity exists to include two options for 
modifications to Highway 17 through Los Gatos.  The first includes efficiency improvements such 
as adding auxiliary lanes and realigning existing lanes.  Auxiliary lanes might include continuing the 
on-ramp from Lark Avenue south to the Highway 9 off-ramp, facilitating a smoother transition of 
traffic.  The second is an expanded version that could include the addition of travel lanes on 
Highway 17.  VTA is prepared to advance this project by budgeting 2016 Measure B funds to bring 
the project through preliminary design and environmental review.  The allocation of 2016 
Measure B funds would require at least a 10 percent contribution from non-2016 Measure B 
sources.  Securing 2016 Measure B funds would be an important first step toward assessing 
Highway 17 solutions for addressing the cut-through of regional traffic through the Town. 

The Transportation Element of the Town of Los Gatos 2020 General Plan Goal TRA-4 identifies 
several policies associated with Highway 17, including Policy TRA-4.1 – “Highway 17 should not be 
widened to provide additional travel lanes south of Lark Avenue.”  VTA is aware of this policy and 
the current work to update the Town’s General Plan.  Approval of the recommendation will signify 
the Council’s support to pursue and accept 2016 Measure B funds to start project development 
efforts for Highway 17 that could result in an improvement project that includes additional lanes 
on Highway 17 and to update the Town’s General Plan as part of its ongoing efforts to allow for 
such an outcome.  The project design will remain within the existing Highway 17 right-of-way and 
any impacts to trees will be mitigated with equivalent replacement plantings. During the project 
development process, the town and its Council will have multiple opportunities to direct, review 
and provide input on the development of solutions to be part of the project.  This should also align 
with the completion of the General Plan 2040.   

The first phase of the project development process that would assess options could take up to two 
years to complete and would result in recommendations on project elements to take into future 
phases, such as environmental documentation and design.  Support of the first phase should occur 
in good faith that a reasonable design will be supported by the Town for future construction.  

CONCLUSION: 

Supporting the initiation of a project development process for improvements on Highway 17, with 
the understanding that improved conditions on Highway 17 may lead to less congestion on local 
roadways and will lead to subsequent environmental documentation and design work on selected 
project elements with concurrence from the Town.   

Page 382



PAGE 3 OF 3 
SUBJECT: SUPPORT THE 2016 MEASURE B PROJECT FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT HIGHWAY 9 

AND HIGHWAY 17 INCLUDING DESIGN OPTIONS FOR EFFICIENCIES ON HIGHWAY 
17 AND FOR ADDITIONAL TRAVEL LANES ON HIGHWAY 17 AND DIRECT STAFF 
TO PROCESS A GENERAL PLAN 2020 AMENDMENT ALLOWING FOR THE PROJECT 

DATE:  MARCH 14, 2019 

S:\COUNCIL REPORTS\2019\03-19-19\07 2016 Measure B Allocation - Hwy 17\Staff Report FINAL.docx                       3/14/2019 2:22 PM MM 
 

 
COORDINATION: 
 
This report has been coordinated with the VTA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
This agenda item does not financially obligate the Town; however, 2016 Measure B projects have 
a requirement for a minimum ten percent non-2016 Measure B match of funds.  If approved, 
Town staff will work with VTA and others to identify matching funds, including Federal, State, or 
regional grant funds.  The Town may also be asked to contribute matching funds for the project in 
the future. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
 
The recommended actions are not a project defined under CEQA and no further action is required. 
 

Page 383



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 384



T O W N   O F   L O S    G A T O S 2 0 2 0    
G E N E R A L    P L A N   
T R A N S P O R T A T I O N    E L E M E N T  

Policies 

Policy TRA-4.1 Highway 17 should not be widened to provide additional travel lanes south of Lark Avenue. 

Policy TRA-4.2 There should not be an interchange at Blossom Hill Road. 

Policy TRA-4.3 Highway 17 between Los Gatos and Santa Cruz should not be widened to provide additional 
travel lanes or be converted to a freeway. 

Policy TRA-4.4 The Planning Commission and Town Council shall review all new or modified connections 
with Highway 17 within the Town. 

Policy TRA-4.5 Work with other local jurisdictions and the State to develop effective ways to reduce 
regionally generated Highway 17 congestion and cross-town traffic that do not involve adding freeway lanes 
or interchanges. 

Goal TRA-4 To ensure that future changes to Highway 17 do not 
negatively impact the quality of life or small-town 
character of Los Gatos. 

EXHIBIT 2

Page 385



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 386



T O W N   O F   L O S    G A T O S 2 0 2 0    
G E N E R A L    P L A N   
T R A N S P O R T A T I O N    E L E M E N T  

Policies 

Policy TRA-4.1 Highway 17 should not be widened to provide additional travel lanes south of Lark 
Avenue.Improvements to Highway 17 should consider efficiency improvements prior to adding capacity 
through increased travel lanes. 

Policy TRA-4.2 There should not be an interchange at Blossom Hill Road. 

Policy TRA-4.3 Highway 17 between Los Gatos and Santa Cruz should not be widened to provide additional 
travel lanes or be converted to a freeway. 

Policy TRA-4.4 The Planning Commission and Town Council shall review all new or modified connections 
with Highway 17 within the Town. 

Policy TRA-4.5 Work with other local jurisdictions and the State to develop effective ways to reduce 
regionally generated Highway 17 congestion and cross-town traffic that does not involve adding freeway 
lanes or interchanges. 

Goal TRA-4 To ensure that future changes to Highway 17 do not 
negatively impact the quality of life or small-town 
character of Los Gatos. 

EXHIBIT 3

Page 387



This Page  
Intentionally 

Left Blank

Page 388


	Top
	1. Minutes of September 11, 2019
	Item 1 - Minutes of September 11, 2019

	2. 16 Chestnut Avenue
	Chestnut Ave, 16 - 10-09-19 - STAFF REPORT (Continued)
	Item 2 - Exhibit 21

	3. 56 Central Avenue
	Central 56- 10-09-19
	Item 3 - Exhibit 1
	Item 3 - Exhibit 2
	Item 3 - Exhibit 3
	Item 3 - Exhibit 4
	Item 3 - Exhibit 5
	Item 3 - Exhibit 6
	Item 3 - Exhibit 7
	Item 3 - Exhibit 8
	Item 3 - Exhibit 9
	Item 3 - Exhibit 10
	Item 3 - Exhibit 11
	Item 3 - Exhibit 12
	Item 3 - Exhibit 13
	Item 3 - Exhibit 14
	Item 3 - Exhibit 15
	Item 3 - Exhibit 16
	Item 3 - Exhibit 17
	Item 3 - Addendum
	Item 3 - Exhibit 18

	4. 16336 Shady View Lane
	Shady View Lane, 16336 - 10-09-19 - STAFF REPORT
	Item 4 - Exhibit 1
	Item 4 - Exhibit 2
	Item 4 - Exhibit 3
	Item 4 - Exhibit 4
	Item 4 - Exhibit 5
	Item 4 - Exhibit 6
	Item 4 - Exhibit 7
	Item 4 - Exhibit 8
	Item 4 - Exhibit 9
	Item 4 - Exhibit 10
	Item 4 - Exhibit 11
	Item 4 - Exhibit 12
	Item 4 - Exhibit 13
	Item 4 - Exhibit 14
	Item 4 - Exhibit 15
	Item 4 - Exhibit 16
	Item 4 - Exhibit 17
	Item 4 - Exhibit 18
	Item 4 - Exhibit 19
	Item 4 - Desk Item
	Item 4 - Exhibit 20
	Item 4 - Exhibit 21

	5. Highway 17 GP Amendment
	Item 5 - Staff Report
	Item 5 - Exhibit 1
	Item 5 - Exhibit 2
	Item 5 - Exhibit 3

	Bottom

